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A) SHAREHOLDER RECEIVABLES FOR CONTREBUTIONS DUE {
B) FIXED ASSETS
I Intangible assets
1) Start-up and other capitalised expenses 2,658,027 1,866,220
2) Research, development and advertising costs
3) Industrial patent and intellectual property rights 3,511,914 2,386,644
4) Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 2,820,884 1,890,071
5) Goodwill
6) Consolidation difference 13,225,000 1 14,873,269
7) Work in progress and advance payments 58,323 | 1,096,099
8) Other intangible assets 21,778,872 | 21,614,619
Total intangible assets 44,053,020 43,726,922
II Tangible assets
1) Land and buildings 179,621,123 176,784,199
2) Plant and machinery:
- Non-transferable assets 1,057,221,346 948,403,330
~ Transferable assets 187,342,033 192,914,475
1,264,563,379 1,141,317,804
3) Industrial and commercial equipment 8,760,352 | 7,449,350
4) Other assets 18,976,548 | 14,901,203
5) Work in progress and advance payments { 101,158,854 | 78,574,045
Total tangible assats 1,550,078,256 1,419,026,602
III Financial assets ]
1) Investment in |
a) subsidiaries !
b) affiliates { 95,630,292 27,294,623
¢) other companies 24,390,317 48,441,371
Total equity investments 117,020,609 75,735,994
2) Financial receivables
a) subsidiary receivables
b) affiliate receivables
- due after one year 1,265,770 2,408,316
- due within one year 68,689
1,165,770 2,477,005
c) receivable from the Municipality of Milan
d) other receivables |
- due after one year 6,381,487 t 7,042,936
- due within one year 402,095 677,982
8,783,582 7,720,917
Total financial receivables 7,949,352 10,197,922
3) Other securities ] 78,326 78,326
4) Own shares L ;
Total financial assets 125,048,287 86,012,242
Total fixed assets { B ) 1,719,179,563 1,548,765,765
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D)

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

1) Materials and fuels:
a) materiats
b) fuels
c) other

2) Work in progress

3) Work in progress contracts

4} Finished goods and merchandise
5) Advance payments

6) Other

Total inventories

Receivables

1) Receivables for the sale of power and services

2) Subsidiary receivables

3} Affiliate receivables

4) Parent company receivables

5) Other receivables:
- Electricity Equalisation Fund
- receivables from financial transactions
- advances to suppliers
- personnel receivables
- receivables from associated companies
- other receivables

Total receivables

Financial assets not classified as fixed assets

1) Investment in subsidiaries
2) Investment in affiliates
3} Other equity investments
5) Other securities

Total financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent
1) Bank and post office deposits
Banks - Post office

2) Outstanding cheques
3) Cash and cash equivalents on hand

Total cash and cash equivalent

Total current assets ( C)

ACCRUED INCOME AND PREPAID EXPENSE

TOTAL ASSETS
Y

7,032,818
2,945,647

9,978,265

12,480,862

22,468,127

327,811,568

1,296,518
86,807,093

6,586,173

205,204
75,558

41,522,340
48,989,275

434,304,474

2,706

2,706

84,657,310
€4,657,310

151,765

84,809,015

541,584,322

1,817,488

2,262,181,370

[

7,364,743

1,342,375

2,869
8,709,987

12,593,195

437,639
68,064

21,808,884

231,493,968

2,414,965
35,019,737

13,933,458

69,890,252

1,442,933

67,462

2,311,424

56,184,525
143,830,054

412,758,724

6,720,846
3,002,706

9,723,552

26,460,671
26,460,671

302,478
26,763,149

471,054,309

1,860,673

2,021,680,748
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A) SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
I Share Capital 936,024,648 929,646,858
II  Additional paid-in capital !
I11 Revaluation reserves
IV Legal reserve 64,038,868 62,554,718
V  Reserve for own shares in portfolio
VI Reserves required by Bylaws or regulations
VI Other reserves
a) Reserve for accelerated depreciation 3,490,936
b) Extracrdinary reserve 57,542,755 52,226,927
¢) Consolidation reserve 28,762,252 ¢ 191,428
d) Other reserves 2,025 |
89,797,968 ( 52,418,355
VIII Retained earnings (losses) (63,648,564) | (45,095,083)

IX Net income (loss) for the period 105,088,988 | 74,494,519
Total consolidated shareholder’s equity 1,133,309,908 1,074,019,408
Minority interests ;

Minority interest in capital and reserves I 8,130,858 | 7,993,282

Minority interest in income/loss 2,434,234 i 137,576

Total minority interests 10,565,092 8,130,858

Total shareholder’s equity 1,143,875,000 1,082,150,266

i

PROVISION FOR RISKS AND OTHER CHARGES
1) Retirement benefits and similar provisions
2) Tax fund
3) Other provision i
- future expenses ‘ 208,124
- specific risks 75,922,966 55,957,125
- deferred taxes 24,718,783 16,371,531
Total other provision 100,641,749 | 72,536,780

Total provision for risks and other charges { B ) 100,641,749 72,536,780

!
t

{) EMPLOYEE' LEAVING ENTITLEMENT @1,786,688 : 60,783,282

|
i
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D) PAYABLES
1) Bonds
2) Convertible bonds
3) Bank
- due within one year 247,506,210 161,000,246
- due after one year 94,363,276 34,925,692
341,869,466 195,925,939
4) Payables to other financial institutions
- due within one year 27,343,693
- due after one year 5,331,305 31,154,150
: 8,331,305 58,497,843
5) Advance payments (received) 41,691,309 29,139,303
6) Accounts payable - suppliers 339,177,040 266,396,737
7) Notes payable
8) Subsidiary payables
9) Affiliate payables 5,039,770 6,721,038
10) Parent company payables 66,630,312 120,831,505
11) Taxes payable 33,131,892 51,167,871
12) Social security payables 11,843,017 12,052,674
13) Other payables
a) personnel payables 7,884,601 8,645,028
b) Electricity Equalization Fund 4,743,133 19,957,142
c) other 90,384,294 32,453,276
d) payables to associated companies 28,844
103,012,028 61,084,290
Total payables ( D) 947,728,159 801,817,200
E) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME 8,140,824 4,393,220
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,262,181,370 2,021,680,748
Commitments
Security deposits received 128,774,630 132,543,022
Security deposits provided 120,818,918 67,834,485
Total cancelled bankruptcies 2,245,930 1,716,609
Guarantees provided 5,329,090
Total commitments 252,839,478 207,423,206
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A) REVENUES \ J
1) Revenues from sales and services i
Sale of electricity to other electric power companies 60,362,845 | 15,273,800
Sales of electricity to customers 403,130,578 | 223,293,555
Sale of heat ] 20,145,138 15,511,613
Sale of gas to users i 427,702,782 349,978,760
Services on behalf of users and third parties 148,008,271 91,120,809
Services provided to affiliates 1,137,148 3,485,077
Connection fees 12,861,872 | 11,387,069
Total revenues from sales and services 1,073,558,432 710,050,684
2) Changes in inventories :
|
3) Changes in werk in progress contracts (103,332) ; 1,492,443
4) Capitalised expenses 26,365,466 | 27,897,576
5) Other revenues and income j
Miscellaneous i 28,247,837 ‘r 16,069,904
Qther revenues: "
1. contribution received 9,341,213 \ 39,526,534
2. others 793,868 [ 120,176
10,135,079 39,646,710
Total other revenues and income 38,382,016 55,716,614
Total revenues (A ) 1,136,223,480 795,157,317
‘ |
B) OPERATING EXPENSES i |
6) Materials and fuels § ‘
Purchases of power ] 60,518,973 | 20,845,916
Purchases of fuel for production ! 410,063,296 l 287,226,218
Purchase of other fuel 556,465 | 706,856
Purchases of materials @L%Z&M&J 20,782,787
Total materials and fuels 493,092,908 329,561,778
7) Services w
Electric power delivering charges 49,253,917 18,777,188
Contract and other work 55,012,444 41,815,939
Other expenses 52,329,294 J 46,589,194
Total services 156,595,655 107,182,321

I
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Conselidatad sheets

88 of 12.92.2004 88 o 12.91,2000
)
8) Lease and rental expenses 12,074,391 8,410,607
9) Personnel expenses
a) salaries and wages 36,788,490 88,028,938
b) social security payments 25,693,136 28,013,178
¢) emplayee’ leaving payments 7,791,975 7,808,142
d) retirement benefits and similar payments
e} other expenses 3,428,203 4,097,315
Total personnel expenses 123,701,804 127,947,574
10) Amortization, depreciation and write-downs
a) amortization of intangible assets 20,934,792 16,602,473
b) depreciation of tangible assets:
1. ordinary depreciation 85,503,263 52,406,500
2. depreciation of transferable assets 8,655,294 5,674,894
61,158,537 58,081,394
c) other write-downs of fixed assets
d) write-downs of receivables included in current
assets and of liguid assets 3,318,755 | 1,703,602
Total amortization, depreciation and write-downs 85,412,103 76,387,469
11) Changes in inventories (1,268,278) 506,882
12) Risk provisions 28,082,660 2,652,991
13) Other provisions
14) Other operating expenses
Taxes, duties and water diversion fees 59,647,563 11,347,377
Other expenses 18,440,884 7,240,038
Total other operating expenses 78,088,447 18,587,415
Total operating expenses { B ) 970,729,700 672,237,037
Operating income (A - B) 165,493,780 122,920,280

]
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C) FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

15) Income frem investments in
a) subsidiaries 426,342
b) affiliates 9,330
¢} other companies | 3,852,048 814,536

3,801,978 1,240,878

16) Other financial income
a) From receivables included in
fixed assets:
1. Subsidiaries
2. Affiliates 94,081
3. Parent company
4. Other 310,554 281,098
310,354 375,179
From securities included in fixed assets 3,559 2,166
From securities included in current assets 952,659 203,463
Income, not included above:
1. From subsidiaries
2. From affiliates
3. From the parent company
4. From other sources ‘ 8,879,259 13,350,193

Total other financial income 10,156,031 13,231,002

17) Interest and other financial expense
a) Subsidiaries
b) Affiliates
c) Parent companies 2,935,795 2,171,930
d) Other 19,891,346 16,000,838

Total interest and other financial expense 22,827,141 18,172,828

Total financial income and expense { C) (8,809,732) {3,000,949)
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D) ADJUSTMENTS TO THE VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (
18) Revaluations
a) Of equity investments 1,934,652 121,820
b) Of financial assets which are not
classified as equity investments
c) Of securities included in current assets
which are not classified as equity investments
d) Other
Total revaluations 1,934,652 121,820
19) Write-downs
a) Of equity investments 17,803,943 18,055,319
b) Of financial assets which are not classified as
equity investments 26,339
c) Of securities included among current assets
that are not classified as equity investments 286
d) Other
Total write-downs 17,905,943 18,081,945
Total adjustments to the value of financial assets (15,971,291) (17,960,125)
E) EXTRAORDINARY INCOME ADN EXPENSE
20) Extraordinary income
a) Capital gains on disposal of assets 65,203
b) Non-operating income/reversal of asset items 2,253,999 3,785,209
d) Other
Total extraordinary income 2,253,999 3,850,412
21) Extraordinary income
a) Capital losses on disposal of assets
b) Non-operating expenses/reversal of liability items 291,364 1,970,852
¢) Other:
- Taxes and duties for prior periods 7,488 2,256 |
- Other 3,766,241 4,133,766 =
3,773,729 4136000 2
Total extraordinary expense 4,065,093 6,106,873
=3
o
Total extraordinary income and expense (1,811,094) (2,256,461) =
' =
| il o
Income before taxes 138,901,663 99,702,745 g
T &
©
o
22) Income taxes o ‘ Y
Current taxes 34,102,448 27,891,333 =)
Advance tax payments (11,074,287) (11,746,181) &
Deferred taxes 8,347,252 | 8,925,498 o
Total income taxes 31,378,441 25,070,650 ?
s
23) NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 107,528,222 74,632,095 9,
Minority interest (2,594,284) | (137,576) 2
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 105,088,988 74,494,519 &
— fi
g
)
=
&
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_Preparation criteria

The consolidated financial statements closed as of December 31, 2000 were prepared in
accordance with current applicable laws regarding financial statements as well as regula-
tions regarding the companies whose stock is listed on the stock exchange.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared under the assumption that the com-
panies are operating and ongoing concerns, in accordance with the formats stipulated in
the Civil Code for the balance sheet, income statement and contents of the notes to finan-
cial statements, with reference to legal provisions, which were interpreted and supple-
mented by accounting principles of Business Consultants and Accountants, and as neces-
sary, by accounting principles recommended by the International Accounting Standard
Committee ~ IASC - and referenced by CONSOB, and in accordance with the criteria stip-
ulated by CONSOB regulations related to the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments.

The notes to financial statements provide all additional information considered necessary
for the purposes of giving a true and accurate picture of the balance sheet, income state-
ment and financial condition of the Group.

The notes to financial statements and report on operations include a presentation of the
information required by CONSOB Resolution No. 11971 of May 14, 1999 concerning the
approval of the regulation on the provisions for implementing Legislative Decree No. 58 of
February 24, 1998 with regard to issuers.

On August 21, 2001, the AEM Group adopted the Euro as the money of account to replace
the Lira, so these financial statements have been prepared in Euro.

The report on operations also provides the information required on the basis of CONSOB
recommendations contained in Notice No. 97001574 dated February 20, 1997 regarding
company controls and Notice No. 98015375 dated February 27, 1998 with respect to infor-
mation on transactions with related parties.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared using the financial statements of
subsidiaries and affiliates, approved by their respective shareholders’ meetings or, where
these are not held, using the draft financial statements approved by their respective
Boards of Directors.

The valuation criteria adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements comply
with the provisions of Articles 34 and 35 of Legislative Decree No. 127/1991, and coincide
with the valuation criteria adopted for the AEM parent company's financial statements. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries were prepared using the same valuation criteria
and accounting principles followed by the parent company; therefore no adjustments and
reclassifications were required in order to make them uniform with the parent company 's
valuation criteria and accounting principles.

Balance sheet and income statement items were compared with corresponding items in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2000.

These consolidated financial statements were subject to a full audit, which was carried out
in accordance with the principles stated by CONSOB. The audit was conducted by RECON-
TA ERNST & YOUNG S.p.A.
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_Consolidation area

The AEM Group Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group parent company's
financial statements and the financial statements of the Italian and foreign subsidiaries,
in which, pursuant to Article 2359 of the Civil Code, AEM Spa holds directly or indirectly
a majority of voting rights which can be exercised at the annual meeting of shareholders.
Non-substantial subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation using the full integration
method. The cost method is used to value these companies.

Affiliated undertakings are considered those companies in which AEM Spa exerts a sub-
stantial direct or indirect influence. Major influence is deemed to exist when at least one-
fifth of the votes can be exercised at the annual meeting of shareholders, or one-tenth, if
the company is quoted on requlated markets.

Affiliates of a significant size are valued in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method, thereby giving a summarized consclidation of same.

The cost method is used to value investments in non-substantial unconsolidated sub-
sidiaries and in non-substantial affiliates, as well as investments in other undertakings.

The attached list of companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Other Investments provides a complete list of the Group companies, included in the
Consolidated Group as of December 31, 2001. The list indicates the consolidation method
used in preparing these consolidated financial statements and changes compared to the
previous year, as well as investments valued using the eguity method, with changes com-
pared to the previous year. Finally, the list also includes other investments, for which val-
uation has not been taken using the equity method, due to their insignificance.

In the area of wholly consolidated investments, the consolidated group showed an increase
over the year ending December 31, 2000, due to the addition of the remaining portion of
authorised capital in Zincar S.r.l., so that the parent company now has full control over the
authorised capital, and the founding of AEM Trading S.r.l. in March with AEM S.p.A. as the sole
shareholder. The inclusion of these companies in the consolidated group has a major impact,
so that it was unnecessary to reclassify the consolidated financial statements at the opening
of the fiscal period under review to obtain comparable economic and equity data. Furthermore,
the shareholders’ meetings of Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and Triveneta Gas S.p.A., held on April 20,
2001, approved the merger by incorporating Triveneta Gas S.p.A. in Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and
established that was to have retroactive effect starting from January 1, 2001.

Regarding the equity investments in affiliated companies, during 2001 there was paid the
25% quota of the consertium fund in Consorzio Italpower set up with ACEA S.p.A., AEM di
Torino S.p.A. and Atel in order to participate in the bidding to acquire the electric power
generating companies (GENCO), which ENEL S.p.A. has to dispose of to comply with the
obligations of the Bersani Decree. Again during 2001, AEM S.p.A. acquired 30% of the con-
sortium fund in Consorzio 3A which holds 49% of Grosseto Energia Ambiente S.p.A., and
paid in 49% of the authorised capital in the company e-UTILE S.p.A., created with Siemens
S.p.A. which holds the remaining 51% of stock.

_Principles of consolidation

The consolidation principles adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2001, which comply with the provisions of article 31 of
Legislative Decree N. 127/1991, are unchanged from those used to prepare the consoli-
dated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2000.

The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated group are consoti-
dated using the full integration method. This method totals the items making up the finan-
cial statements for the period for both the parent company and subsidiaries. It also writes
off all items regarding relationships between companies included in the consolidation.




Application of the linear integration method results in the following main adjustments:

o assets and liabilities of the companies included in consolidation are included, off-
setting the book value of the investments in companies included in the consolidat-
ed group against their corresponding share of shareholders” equity;

o the positive difference created during acquisition by offsetting the acquisition cost of
investments against the respective shares of shareholders’ eguity is assigned to the adjust-
ment of shareholders’ equity amounts, based on valuations effected at acquisition. Any
remainder which cannot be assigned as increased assets is assigned to the Assets section
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet under Consolidation Difference, belong to intangible
fixed assets. Any negative remainder, if due to predicted unfavourable economic results, is
reported under Consolidation Reserve for Future Risks and Expenses; if there is no such
forecast of future results, the same item is assigned to Consolidated Shareholders” Equity
under Consolidation Reserve;

o The differences arising from subsequent writing off of consolidated investments are
included in the item Consolidation Reserve under Consolidated Shareholders” Equity. These
differences are primarily due to profits or losses by the consolidated companies not report-
ed in the income statements of the controlling companies, from consolidation adjustments,
and from revaluation reserves;

o Receivables and payables, costs and revenues, profits and losses arising from inter-group
transactions not with third parties are offset with the resulting entry of the respective tax
effect; on the other hand, costs and revenues relating to transactions concluded at normal
market conditions are not offset, as this would involve excessive costs compared to over-
all consolidation costs;

o Capital gains arising from contributions of groups of assets to business enterprises
included in the consolidated group are written off; activities spun off and transferred to a
Group company at revalued figures, with respective reporting of a majority investment in
the transferor company are valued in the consolidated financial statements at the trans-
feror company’s book values; analogously, gocodwill, created in case of the spin-off of
groups of assets for affiliates, is written off in the consolidated financial statements;

o Dividends paid out by companies included in the consolidated group are written off from
the consolidated income statement and reported under Reserves for Shareholders’ Equity;
o Provisions and value adjustments taken for the sole purpose of receiving otherwise
unobtainable tax benefits are wholly written off. Deferred or prepaid taxes are calculated
on the temporary differences between taxable income and the economic result of the
undertakings included in the consolidated group;

o Consolidated shares, used to calculate Shareholders” Equity and Group result are cal-
culated using the capital shares held directly or indirectly by the parent company and
its subsidiaries;

o The amount of capital and reserves of affiliates corresponding to minority investments
is reported in a shareholders’ equity item called Minority Capital and Reserves; the portion
of the consolidated econcmic result corresponding to minority investments is reported
under Minority profit (loss) for the year.

The companies in which the parent company directly or indirectly holds a sufficient num-
ber of shares to exert significant influence on management are valued using the equity
method, based on the financial statements ending on the reference date of the consolidat-
ed financial statements.

By applying the equity method, the investment's book value is adjusted to the correspon-
ding portion of shareholders’ equity taken from the financial statements or from the asso-
ciated company’s draft financial statements, after deducting dividends, having taken the
adjustments required by accounting principles to apply this consolidation method and hav-
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ing depreciated the appreciation paid at acquisition, if said value was attributed to depre-

ciable assets or to goodwill.

The difference between book value arrived at using this consolidation method and the value
reported in the parent company’s financial statements as it applies to the portion of the
affiliates’ profit for the year, is entered in one of the specific items of the consolidated
statement of income. Differences arising from dividends, profits, or losses from previous
years, contributions to capital account, or exchange rate differences are directly applied to
increasing or decreasing the value of the investment, as an item to offset the Consolidation
Reserve recorded under Reserves for Consolidated Shareholders” Equity.

_Accounting princizles

In line with the previsions of Article 2426 of the Civil Code and legislative decree
127/1991, the valuation criteria used for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements closed as of December 31, 2001 were not changed from the criteria used for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements closed as of December 31,
2000. During the fiscal year, following the application of accounting principle no. 29
of 2001, adjustments to estimates relating to previous periods, arising from greater or
further information or more experience regarding the assumptions on which they were
based, fall within the normal procedure for achieving an estimation and do not lead to
showing extraordinary income elements.

In application of accounting principle N. 25, issued in 1999, the consolidated financial
statements report taxes accruing for the period, that is, they include both current
income taxes for the period and deferred taxes entered as both assets and liabilities.

It should be noted that in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the
exceptions included in Paragraph 4 of Article 2423 of the Civil Code were not made.

The main valuation criteria used for the preparation of 2000 consolidated financial state-
ments are as follows:

_Intangible fixed zssets

These items are stated at purchase or production cost including ancillary charges and other
directly allocable costs. They are amortised regularly in relation to their projected future
economic life. If it is deemed that certain intangible assets have no future economic life,
the remaining value is charged to the income statement.

Start-up and expansion costs and research and development costs that are applicable to
two or more years are reported among assets, subject to the consent of the auditing firm.
These costs are amortised over a period of five years. However, the costs incurred in 1998
in relation to the procedure of placing and listing shares on the stock exchange, which are
reporfed under start-up and expansion costs, are amortised on a straight-line basis over
three periods.

Advertising costs are fully allocated to period costs in the fiscal year when incurred.

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, at the time the book value of

investments is first written off against the corresponding percentages of shareholders’
equity in investments, if the difference that emerges cannot be assigned to individual
asset items of the corresponding companies included in the consolidation group, and if
requirements are met, said difference is reported under assets in the consolidated balance
sheet, and is amortised over a period deemed appropriate for deriving its economic bene-
fits, though not longer than twenty years.




_Tangible Fxed assels
Tangible assets are stated in financial statements at purchase or internal production cost,
or at the transfer cost based on the expert appraisal of the company's assets. Cost includes
ancillary charges and the portion of all direct and indirect costs that can be reasonably
allocated to the assets.

The historical cost in the consolidated financial statements may contain the consolidation
difference, if assigned to these assets.

Plant assets under construction are stated in financial statements in the amount of direct
costs incurred during the year, and are not depreciated since depreciation for these tangi-
ble assets commences at the time they become available and ready for use.

Tangible assets are reqularly depreciated each fiscal year on a straight-line basis using eco-
nomic and technical depreciation rates taken from expert appraisals and considered repre-
sentative of the potential to use the tangible assets.

The depreciation rates applied are shown in the section containing notes on assets. For
additions made during the period, tangible assets were depreciated by applying 50% of the
rate.

Assets with a unit cost under € 516 are depreciated entirely in the period in which the
purchase cost is incurred for such assets.

Freely transferable assets at the expiration of concessions are depreciated each period
using the straight-line method on the basis of the remaining term of concessions, which
are renewed for a further thirty years; this renewal was also taken into account for con-
cessions already expired on the date these financial statements were prepared.

In the event there are changes in the useful life of assets, due to revisions of the original
appraisal conditions resulting from company plans that call for the replacement of the
assets, the tangible assets will be depreciated taking into account the remaining future
life.

Contributions to plant assets, which are made in proportion to the cost of the tangible
assets, are credited to the income statement gradually on the basis of the useful life of
the assets they relate to. The posting method used stipulates that such contributions be
directly allocated as a reduction of the assets to which they relate.

Ordinary maintenance costs are fully charged to the income statement; incremental main-
tenance costs are allocated to the assets to which they relate.

Tangible assets alsc include assets held under financial leasing agreements. As set down
in the accounting principle concerning consolidated financial statements, in accordance
with I.A.S. international accounting principle N. 17, these assets are reported in the
financial statements under assets, off setting a financial payable of the same amount
under liabilities, reported under Other Payables. This payable is gradually reduced,
based on the repayment plan of the capital shares included in the contractually pro-
vided rates. The amount of assets reported is regularly depreciated every year accord-
ing to the straight-line method, based on the economic rate deemed representative of
the remaining potential to use said asset. Earnings derived from the sale and lease back
of the asset are deferred and depreciated, based on the asset’s useful life. Any loss is
wholly assigned to the year in which the transaction took place.
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_Financial fixed assets

Investments in companies that are not consolidated using the linear integration method
are valued using the equity method described in Principles of Consolidation, above, for
investments on which the parent company exerts substantial influence within the mean-
ing of Paragraph 2 of Article 2359 of the Civil Code.

The higher purchase cost of investments in affiliates compared to the corresponding frac-
tion of shareholders” equity at the time of purchase, if attributed to good-will, is amor-
tised over twenty years.

Other investments not included in the consolidation are valued according to the cost
method.

The value of investments reported in the financial statements valued at cost is determined
on the basis of the purchase or subscription price, or the value attributed to assets trans-
ferred. The cost is reduced for permanent losses of value in the event the companies owned
have incurred losses for which no income is projected in the immediate future to absorb
the losses.

This lower value is not maintained in future periods if the reasons for the adjustment no
longer apply. The lower limit of value adjustments is reflected in the shareholders’ eguity
of the companies or in the estimated sales value for those assets subject to negotiations
for potential sale.

In the event of an addition fo equity investments following an increase in dividend-pay-
ing capital, which is subscribed and paid-in by the parent company, the cost value to
which the non-current equity investment is posted is increased by the amount correspon-
ding to the cost incurred for the subscription.

In the event there is a reduction in authorised capital of the subsidiary due to losses, the
value of the eguity investment is reduced; if increases in capital are approved following
the reduction of capital due to losses, the value of the equity investment is reduced and
then restored in the amount corresponding to the capital increase made.

Equity investments with negative shareholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal year are elimi-
nated, and if the parent company deems it necessary to incur the cost of recapitalisation, a
risk reserve is created in the amount equal to the stake in the negative shareholders’ equity.
If the subsidiary prepares financial statements in a foreign currency, the valuation is carried
out using the currency of the subsidiary's financial statements. Any loss in value is convert-
ed to Euro, using the historical exchange rate of incorporation for the cost of the subsidiary.
The historical exchange rate of incorporation may be modified only if there is a change in
the exchange rate that would result in a permanent loss of value. In this event, the new
exchange rate replaces historical exchange rates, and book value is written down as a result.
For the purposes of comparing book value with the fraction of shareholders’ equity of the
subsidiary, the shareholders’ equity is converted to Euro using the exchange rate at the end
of the fiscal year.

Equity investments to be sold within the following fiscal year are reported as financial
assets not classified as non-current assets among current assets.

Fixed rate debt instruments that are to remain in the portfolio in the long term are stat-
ed at the transfer or purchase cost including ancillary charges. The cost is written down

for any permanent losses in value.

Receivables included among financial assets are reported at their estimated reatisable value,




_Inventories
Inventories are reported at the lower of purchase cost, including directly applicable ancil-
lary costs, and estimated replacement cost determined from market values.

The cost is determined using the weighted average method. Market value is determined
on the basis of the current cost of inventories on hand at the end of the fiscal year. The
value of obsolete and slow-moving inventory on hand is written down in relation to the
potential to use or sell such inventory by the creation of a special reserve for obsolete
materials.

Pending contracts for multi-year orders are valued on the basis of payments accrued with
reasonable certainty using the percentage of completion method, determined by the rela-
tionship of costs incurred to total projected costs to complete the project. Pending con-
tracts for orders lasting tess than 1 year are valued at cost. Any losses on orders that are
estimated with a reasonable approximation are fully charged to the income statement in
the fiscal year in which they become known.

_Recelvables

Receivables are reported at their estimated realisable value through the creation of spe-
cial allowances. Receivables include billings, which are being collected, issued at the end
of the fiscal year, and those to be issued, which, however, are related to supply and serv-
ice arrangements applicable to the fiscal year under review. Accounts receivable related to
customers subject to receivership proceedings or experiencing financial difficulties, for
which it is of no use to initiate enforcement proceedings, are fully charged off, or to the
extent to which the information obtained and pending procedures support the definitive
inability to collect such receivables,

Receivables for financial transactions include receivables related to financial institutions
for commerciat credit policies and for repurchase agreements; these receivables corre-
spond to prices paid for these transactions. The interest related to these financial trans-
actions, which is accrued during the period but not yet paid, is posted to accrued
income.

Other receivables under current assets include assets in the form of advance tax payments,
the determination of which is specified in the valuation criteria for taxes on current peri-
od income.,

_Financial assets not classified as fixed assets

Securities and equity investments that are to be traded in the short term, or with a natu-
ral maturity in the following fiscal year, are valued at the lower of purchase cost, using
the weighted average method, and market value at the end of the fiscal year. The cost
value is restored if the reasons for previous write-downs no longer apply.

_Prepayments and accruals
These items include portions of expenses and income applicable to two or more fiscat
years, the amount of which varies over time, in order to comply with the accrual principle.

_Risk and other charges

These reserves are created to cover losses or tiabilities of a specific nature, the existence
of which is certain or likely, and for which the amount or date of occurrence could not be
determined at the end of the fiscal year. Provisions to these reserves reflect the best pos-
sible estimate on the basis of available information.
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The tax reserve includes deferred tax liabilities, the determination of which is specified in
the valuation criterion for taxes on current period income.

Risk reserves include the provision for the present value (which was estimated reasonably
on the basis of actuarial and mathematical calculations) of payments in lieu of notice that
are coming due and payable to employees entitled at the end of the fiscal year, who, at
the time of the termination of their work relationship due to their retirement, are entitled
to receive certain additional monthly payments.

The reserve for specific risks also includes the provision for the present value (which was
determined reasonably on the basis of actuarial and mathematical calculations) of amounts
due to retired former employees who are entitled to the pension supplement paid by the
Premungas fund, and amounts due to employees whose rights are coming due.

_Employee’ leaving entitlement

This reserve covers the accrued liability to all employees at the closing date of the
financial statements. It is determined on the basis of the provisions of Law No. 297
of May 29, 1982 and includes the provisions for employee severance pay accrued for
personnel on the payroll at the end of the year net of advances paid pursuant to
Article 1 of the above law. This liability is subject to revaluation through the use of
indices.

This entry also includes amounts due and payable, which are calculated at the time the
necessary seniority is reached for a minimum pension, to employees entitled at the end
of the fiscal year, and who, at the time of the termination of their work relationship
due to retirement, are entitled to receive certain additional monthly payments, as stip-
ulated in internal company agreements and the collective labour agreement.

_Payables

These items are posted at nominal value.

Tax payables on current taxes are entered according to the estimated tax burden for the
year, using current rates, applied to a realistic estimate of taxable income, also taking into
account tax credits, losses carried forward for the year and specific tax relief situations. If
taxes to be paid are less than tax credits, payments on account, and withholding, the dif-
ference represents a receivable and is entered under assets in the balance sheet.

_Commitments

Commitments include security provided directly and indirectly and security received, bro-
ken down by security deposits, guarantees and other security in an amount equal to the
actual commitment, and collateral equal to the value of the right or asset provided as col-
lateral.

_Revenues znd cost recognition

Revenues and income are posted net of returns, discounts and allowances as well as taxes
directly connected with the sate of products and services.

To be specific:

© Revenues from the sale of power are recognised and posted when provided;

o Service revenues are recognised on the basis of completed services and in accordance
with related contracts. Revenues for pending contracts are recognised in proportion to the
work completed;




o Revenues from the sale of goods are recognised at the time title is transferred;
o (ontributions from the Equalisation Fund are sundry contributions due to the Group
companies, as established by the decisions issued from the Italian Electricity and Gas
Authority;

o Connection fees are considered revenues from services provided during the period;
accordingly, they are posted based on the accrual principle;

o Expenses are posted in accordance with the accrual principle;

o Financial income and expenses are recognised on the basis of the accrual principle;

o Dividends from investments in other companies are posted in the year that the com-
panies’ annual shareholders” meetings are held, at which the distribution of profits or
reserves is approved. "

-~

_Income taxes

Income taxes for the period are calculated on the basis of current laws, applying the rates
in force, taking specific tax benefits into account.

Deferred taxes are calculated with respect to temporary differences, including those
resulting from consolidation adjustments, in assessments, and are reported in the reserve
for deferred taxes only if the amount is negative. If the figure is positive, it is consid-
ered an asset for prepaid taxes and is posted under Other Receivables under Current Assets
only if there is reasonable certainty that, during the years when temporary deductible dif-
ferences will occur, and which led to the posting of prepaid taxes under taxable income,
there will be taxable income no less than the amount of the differences to be offset. The
amount of prepaid taxes is reviewed each year in order to verify the continuation of rea-
sonable certainty of achieving future taxable income, in order to recover the prepaid taxes
in full.

No deferred tax asset or liability is calculated for those temporary differences for which
there are no reasonable expectations that they will be cancelled out with a resulting pay-
ment or recovery of taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported using the equity method.

In order to take into account the different tax rates applicable to different levels of
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using average expected rates for
the periods in which the temporary differences will be reversed.

Any changes, resulting from modifications of taxes and/or tax rates, will be reported in the
fiscal year in which the new provisions go into effect and will be actually applicable.

In order to calculate deferred tax assets, the tax benefit deriving from the future use of
current or previous period tax losses can be taken into account, as long there exists a rea-
sonable certainty of income which permits the recovery in the short term.

Deferred taxes and prepaid taxes of the various consolidated companies are offset only if
there is a legal right to compensate balances.

_Criterfa for the conversion of entries in foreign currency

Receivables, debt and payables originally expressed in foreign currency are converted to
Euro at the historical exchange rates in effect on the dates of the related transactions.
Exchange differences realised at the time of paying debt and payables and collecting
receivables in foreign currency are posted to the income statement. If the conversion of
debt, payables and receivables in foreign currency, which was carried out on the basis of
exchange rates in effect as of the date of the financial statements, results in a net loss, it
is applied and reflected in the income statement. If, on the other hand, the conversion
results in a net gain, this amount is shown under the income statement postings at the
financial income item.
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The items of the balance sheet are compared to the corresponding items in the consoli-
dated financial statements as of December 31, 2000.

_Assets

_B) Fixed assets
_B I) Intangible assets

of 12.31.2001 12312000
—
Start-up and other capitalised expenses 2,658 1,866
Industrial patent and intellectual property rights 3,512 2,386
Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 2,821 1,890
Cansolidation difference 13,225 14,873
Work in progress . 1,096
Other intangible assets L 7 21,779 7 21,615
Total intangible assets 44,053 43,726

The historical cost does not include allocations of consolidation differences.

As of December 31, 2001, intangible assets totalled € 44,053 thousand (£ 43,726 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000) and were related to the capitalisation of costs covering
several years, such as:

o start-up and other capitalised expenses, which totalled € 2,658 thousand (€ 1,866
thousand as of December 31, 2000), related to the capitalisation of costs that were
incurred in 1999 for carrying out the corporate reorganisation process of AEM S.p.A., as
well as capitalised costs related to the increase in authorised capital, during the previous
fiscal year, by the subsidiary Metroweb Spa (formerly Citytel Srl). These costs are amortised
over a 5 year period;

o industrial patent rights and rights to use intellectual property for € 3,512 thousand
(€ 2,386 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and concern the capitalisation of costs
incurred to acquire the licence to use application software with no time-limit, including
SAP R/3 and the software for the Internet portal. These costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over 3 years;

o concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights, which totalled € 2,821 thousand
(€ 1,890 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and include costs incurred to acquire the
licence to use application software with a time limit. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over 3 years;

o consolidation difference, which totalled € 13,225 thousand (€ 14,873 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), determined by the acquisition of a majority investment in
Serenissima Gas S.p.A., controlled directly, and in Triveneta Gas S.p.A., indirectly con-
trolied through Serenissima Gas S.p.A. This consolidation difference, being the difference
between the acquisition value of the investment inclusive of ancillary charges and the
share of shareholders’ equity in Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and Triveneta Gas S.p.A., is prima-
rily attributable to the appreciation in value of the gas distribution concessions held by
Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and Triveneta Gas S.p.A. until the expiry of such concessions.
Despite the concessions having a duration of approximately 30 years, considering that reg-
ulatory developments towards the liberalisation of the gas sector leave room for uncer-
tainty as to the actual duration of the distribution concessions, it was deemed appropri-
ate to write off the consolidation difference in 10 years.
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During the period under review, following the acquisition of 49% of the authorised capi-
tal in Zincar S.r.l. by the parent company AEM S.p.A., which now has 100% control, the
excess of cost over the shareholders” equity in Zincar S.r.l. was wholly amortised during the
period;

o intangible assets in process totalled € 58 thousand (€ 1,096 thousand as of December
31, 2000) and were for charges related to the creation of new application software which
is being completed;

o other intangible assets totalled € 21,779 thousand (€ 21,615 thousand as of December
31, 2000) and were for the costs for adapting user facilities to natural gas, the costs
incurred for converting city thermal power plants to methane, costs for transforming and
installing facilities owned by customers to supply heat to end users, and planning costs
for the construction of the museum in the area of Bovisa. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over 3 years. The costs incurred for leasehold improvements, such as the
maintenance costs on the offices in Sesto San Giovanni, are amortised on the basis of the
rental contract’s duration entered into with Sesto San Giovanni Municipality. This item also
includes the costs incurred for the start-up of operations in the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A.
(formerly Citytel S.r.1.), relative loan charges and the expenses capitalised by this compa-
ny for leasehold improvements.

Intangible assets of December 31, 2001 showed, over the same pericd in 2000, a net
increase of € 327 thousand resulting from the various effects of the following items:

¢ investments made during the period under review totalling € 21,379 thousand;

o the consolidation difference relating to Zincar S.r.l. for € 36 thousand;

o amortisation applicable to the year for € 20,935 thousand;

the value of certain multiyear costs deducted for € 152 thousand;

the value of certain multiyear costs transferred and reclassified among tangible assets
under “Plant and Machinery - Distribution network” for € 1 thousand.

The composition of the item “Intangible Assets” and the changes during the period are
shown at attachment 1 to these Notes.

0O

o)

2, n,

TR 2 1l = e s,
B IT) Tangible assals

r P

{
| thousends of eum 12502000 92.91.3000 |
Land and buildings 179,621 | 176,784
Plant and machinery 1,244,503 | 1,141,318
Industrial and commercial equipment 8,760 ) 7,449
Other assets 15,975 ¢ 14,902
Work in progress and advance payments 101,159 J[ 78,574
Total tangible assets 1,550,078 1,419,027
1 ]
The historical cost does not include allocations of consolidation differences.
The gross amount of tangible assets can be seen in the following table:
r }
| L ‘
{ of e 12912001 12.39.2000
Gross value 1,7%%,264 \ 1,564,646
Accumulated depreciations (205,186) (145,619)
Net value 1,550,078 1,419,027
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Tangible assets, which were € 1,755,264 thousand (£ 1,564,646 thousand as of December
31, 2000) before accumulated depreciation, increased by a net amount of € 190,618 thou-
sand due to the differences arising from:

o investments made and advance payments to suppliers for the creation of plants in the
period under review, totalling € 196.708 thousand;

o the other acquisitions under “Land and buildings - Leased buildings” and “Plant and
Machinery - Distribution networks” at € 53,551 thousand. These costs relate to the build-
ing in Corso di Porta Vittoria acquired by a lease-back transaction, for € 53,550 thousand,
and to the reclassification from “Intangible Assets” of certain multiyear costs for € 1 thou-
sand;

© the value of assets divested during 2001, gross of accumulated depreciation, for
€ 59,639 thousand.

With regard to assets transferred from the parent company to subsidiaries during 1999,
it should be noted that, for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated finan-
cial statements, capital gains from the transfer were written off, in accordance with
correct accounting principles, determined by the difference between the book value of
the transferred assets and their value as determined in expert appraisals prepared by a
Court-appointed expert, with regard both to the transfer of fibre-optics networks to the
subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. (formerly Citytel S.r.l.), and to the transfer of divisions
related to the transmission of electrical power, the distribution of electrical power
and the distribution of gas and heat, to the companies AEM Trasmissione S.p.A.,
AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and AEM Gas S.p.A.

Tangible Assets also include the values of the building in Via Caracciolo, leased in 1999
for € 16,737 thousand, net of capital gains realised from the sale and lease back trans-
action of € 10,119 thousand, and the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria leased during
2001 for € 53,550 thousand, net of the capital gain realised of € 678 thousand. These
sale and lease-back operations are posted in these financial statements according to the
financing method, as provided by relative accounting principles.

_Capftal expenditures

| B

1 o 12,2008 12.91.2000 |
L ]
Capital expenditures 196,708 ( 200,607

The capital expenditures made by AEM S.p.A. in 2001 were primarily related to the fol-
lowing tangible assets:

_Land and buildings
a) Non-industrial land
Investments of € 24 thousand were made for the land by the South receiver station.

b) Non-industrial buildings

The capital expenditures totalled € 322 thousand and mostly refer to work done on the
buildings of the rest home at Bormio, the shelter at Fusino, and on the small buildings for
the North and South receiver stations.

L
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S c)'LEhd and industrial buildings

Capital expenditures totalled € 3,317 thousand and concerned the work of renovating
industrial buildings for the West receiver station, at the Bovisa, Orobia and Canavese sites,
the offices at Trento, Caracciolo e Gonin, the fencing around the cabin of the 1* Belgioioso
sault and the protection system for the Tecnocity cogeneration plant; Buildings were also
updated at the Cassano power plant and the buildings in Grosio.

_Plant and machinery

a) Hydroelectric production plants

Capital expenditures totalling € 336 thousand were made which involved the plants at the
Premadio, Stazzona and Grosio power plants and the work for expansion of the remote con-
trolled system.

b) Thermoelectric production plants
Capital expenditures of € 578 were made, largely for the work of expanding of Group 1
at the Cassano d’Adda thermal power plant.

0) Heat production plants
Total capital expenditures of € 444 thousand were made concerning the re-powering of the
Tecnocity cogeneration plant.

¢) Transport lines

Work valued at € 695 thousand was completed, largely involving conservation projects of
the 220 and 130 kV lines and the construction of the Medolago variant on the North/Grosio
Receiver Station 220 kV line.

d) Transformer stations

Capital expenditures amount to € 229 thousand.

Work was done on the 220 kV section of the North and South receiver station, on the 23
kV of the North receiver station and on the auxiliary plants of the West receiver station.

e) Electricity distribution networks

Work valued at € 13,247 thousand was completed.

The main activities involved the extension of the medium and low voltage networks, the
refurbishing of the isolating transformer stations, and the modernisation of internal plants.
Work was also done on the auxiliary plants and on the 220 kY section of the Gadio sub-
station and on the 9/23 kV section of the Suzzani, Loreto and Po substations. Lastly, other
work involved the medium and low voltage lines in Valtellina and the IT networks in the
Milan buildings.

f) Gas distribution networks

Work totalling € 20,259 thousand was completed.

The main activities involved the laying of medium and low-pressure pipes, the risers and
measuring devices for the upkeep of the network and the acquisition of new residential
users and heating systems. In addition, new network booths, cathode protection equip-
ment and plant remote-control systems were installed.

g) Heat distribution networks
Capital expenditures totalled € 1,188 thousand and mainly refer to the development of the
district heating networks in the areas of Sesto San Giovanni and Tecnocity.
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h) Telecommunications networks
Investments totalled € 65,918 thousand and related essentially to measures to create
the fibre optic networks in the Milan metropolitan area.

_Industrial and commercial equipment
New equipment and mobile phanes were purchased totalling € 3,092 thousand.

_Qther assets
Expenditures for furniture, furnishings, office equipment and vehicles totalled € 2,547
thousand.

_Transferable assets

Capital expenditures of € 128 thousand largely concerned the work for alterations to the
loading tanks at the Lovero plant and the work on the sluice gates of the San Giacomo
dam.

_Worlk in progress

a) Non-industrial buildings

These capital expenditures total € 1,029 thousand and concern refurbishment works on
buitdings in the Canavese area.

b) Industrial buildings

Capital expenditures of € 1,336 thousand were made, mainly pertaining to the work on
the buildings in Piazza Po and the Bovisa area. Updating work was also carried out on
the buildings of the Cassano power plant and the Premadio, Grosio and Stazzona build-
ings.

¢) Electricity production plants

The capital expenditures in building were € 22,879 thousand.

Regarding the hydroelectric power plants, the main work concerned the continuation of the
installation of the fourth group of the Grosio power plant and of the works for expanding
the Premadio power plant, for a total amount of € 10,654 thousand.

Capital expenditures of € 12,225 thousand were made for the thermoelectric producticn
plants, mostly concerning the repowering of Group 1 of the Cassano power plant.

d) Heat production plants

Capital expenditures of € 9,409 thousand were made. The work involved the setting up of
the cogeneration plant at Famagosta, Figino and Linate, the heating and cooling plants at
Bovisa and Bocconi University, as well as the expansion of the cogeneration plant at
Tecnocity.

e} Transformer stations
Capital expenditures totalled € 418 thousand, primarily relating to refurbishment of the
23 kV section of the South receiver station.

) Electricity distribution networks

Capital expenditures underway amount to € 935 thousand and largely refer to work done
on the auxiliary plants of the Brunelleschi, Suzzani, Mugello and S. Dionigi substations and
to the continuation of the work on the remote control system of the isolating transformer
stations.
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istribution networks
Capital expenditures in construction totalled € 1 thousand and concern the designing of
the 4" gas intake.

1) Heat distribution networks

Capital expenditures in construction totalled € 3,959 thousand, relating to the continua-
tion of the expansion work on the district heating network in the areas of Figino,
Famagosta and Tecnocity.

Jj) Telecommunications networks
Capital expenditures totalled € 12,776 thousand and mostly relate to the work in progress
to create the fibre optics network in the Milan metropolitan area.

k) Other gssets
These were € 1,094 thousand and mainly relate to the development of the some of the IT
systems.

{) Advance payments

The advance payments of € 9,550 thousand for constructing tangible assets largely refer
to the continuation of works for constructing Group 2 of the Cassano thermoelectric power
plant.

m) Transferable assets

The main activity concerned the excavation work and construction of the sluice gates to
create the new Vicla Canal, as well as the conservation work on the San Giacomo dam,
totalling € 20,998 thousand.

_Decreases

Decreases in tangible assets which, net of € 1,592 thousand in accumulated depreciation,
totalled € 58,047 thousand, refer mainly to the sale and lease back of the building in Corso
di Porta Vittoria 4, the sale of an alternator of Group 2 of the Cassano d’Adda thermoelec-
tric power plant and some of the components of the Fraele plant, the decommissioning of
3 pylons on the North/Grosio receiver station 220 kV line, the partial sale of a piece of
land in Bollate, the decommissioning of the isolating transformer stations, medium and
low voltage cables, internal plants in the utility buildings, below surface pipes, risers and
measuring devices considered no longer useful to the companies operations, as well as to
the elimination of PCs and office equipment, and for the sale of some vehicles.

_Accumulated depreciation

| »

| (heusends of cum 12312000 22.31.2000
[ o ]

Accumulated depreciation l 205,185 145,619

Foliowing the provision for depreciation for the fiscal year of € 61,159 thousand, accu-
mutated depreciation amounts to € 205,186 thousand and covers 12.4% of the value of
operating plants as at December 31, 2001. This provision basically reflects the fact that
the transfer of divisions pertaining to the transmission of electric power and the distribu-
tion of electricity, gas and heat to subsidiaries took place with closed books, thus entail-
ing a valuation of assets net of value-adjusting reserves into transferee company assets.




The depreciation of tangible assets was calculated on the basis of rates that correspona..to
economic and technical rates that are deemed to be representative of the remaining poten-
tial use and useful life of the tangible assets,

The rates applied are as follows:

o non-industrial land and buildings 1.2% - 12.5%
o industrial land and buildings 0.8% - 18.0%
o production plants 1.0% - 16.7%
o transport lines 0.7% - 12.5%
o transformer stations 2.4% - 25.0%
o distribution networks 0.7% - 33.3%
o miscellaneous equipment 3.3% - 16,7%
© mobile phones 100.0%

o furniture and fittings 5.0% - 19.0%
o electric and electronic office equipment 5.0% - 50.0%
o vehicles 5.0% - 18.0%

At the expiration of the concession, freely transferable assets are depreciated on the basis
of the duration of the concessions renewed for a further thirty years; this renewal was also
taken into account for concessions that had already expired on the preparation date of
these consolidated financial statements.

The decision to depreciate freely transferable assets on the basis of the duration of con-
cessions, which were renewed for a further thirty years, was based on the fact that this
period of time is an appropriate representation of the useful life attributed to transferable
plant assets and is supported by current regulaticns. In fact, there are specific requlations
that call for the automatic renewal of concessions related to hydroelectric plants up to a
maximum of sixty years for major diversions of public water to be used for driving power,
and thirty years for minor diversions (Law No. 102 of May 2, 1990, better known as the
Valtellina Law). The Bersani Decree No. 79/1999 also calls for the ability to renew hydro-
electric concessions for thirty years from the expiration date, provided that the grantor of
the concession presents a plan to improve the productivity of the plant.

Bearing in mind that the concessions for the transferable plant assets of AEM S.p.A., which
are all located in Valtellina, almost exclusively involved major diversions of public water,
it was decided, on the basis of the prudence principle, to consider the concessions to be
automatically renewable for a further thirty years from the expiration date of the conces-
sions.

Tangible assets affected by changes in useful life due to revisions in the original condi-
tions for estimating the remaining potential usage resulting from company plans calling
for the replacement of these assets, were depreciated taking into account the remaining
future usage.

It should also be noted that no financial expenses were capitalised during the fiscal year
under review.

A summary table was prepared for “Tangible assets” (Attachment No. 2 to the notes to
financial statements) which indicates, for each item, the beginning amount, changes dur-
ing the period, and the ending balance of tangible assets and relative accumulated depre-
ciation.
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_BII) Financial assels

_B III 1) Equity investments

B IIT 1 b) Investments in affiliates

T
i
of 2392001 12.91.3000 |
Equity investments 95,630 ! 27,295

Investments in affiliates, evaluated using the cost method, total € 95,630 thousand show-
ing an increase of € 68,335 thousand from a year earlier,

The following table shows the make up and changes in these investments during the fis-
cal year:

Investentshingathiliatest tiistand % et

of o Inwle welie
[ } ) )

Values at 12.31.2000 38,370 458 (11,533) - 27,295

Changes as of 12.31.2001

- changes in share capital - - - - -

- acguisitions 20 - - - 20

- contributions - - - - -

- subscriptions 47,618 - - - 47,618

- disposals - - - - -

- reclassifications (704) - - - (704)

~ write-downs - - (9,104) - (9,104)

- revaluations - 30,505 - - 30,505

Total changes as of 12.31.2001 46,934 30,505 (9,104) - 68,335

Values at 12.31.2001 85,304 30,963 (20,637) - 95,630

The acquisitions and subscriptions during the year were:

o € 5,168 thousand to subscribe the increase in capital of the affiliate Mestni Plinovoodi
d.o.o. in May 2001;

o € 39,470 thousand to subscribe the increase in capital in the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. It
is pointed out that AEM S.p.A. only partially subscribed the capital increase, in relation to
the financial commitments foreseen for the development of the core business;

o € 20 thousand for the purchase of 39,000 shares in the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A.;

o € 1,580 thousand to subscribe 30% in the consortium fund of Consorzio 3A;

o € 646 thousand in payment of 25% of the consortium fund of Consorzio Italpower (in
liguidation) set up with ACEA S.p.A., AEM di Torino S.p.A. and ATEL in order to take part
in the bidding for the acquisition of Elettrogen, an electricity generating company (GENCO)
which ENEL S.p.A. sold as required by the Bersani Decree. The bidding was finally won by
a competitor company;

o £ 487 thousand, corresponding to seven-tenths of the authorised capital in Electrone
S.p.A. (£ 263 thousand) and Plurigas S.p.A. (€ 224 thousand);

o € 81 thousand for AEM S.p.Als quota - egualling 49% of the authorised capital
totalling € 100 thousand - in the company e-UTILE S.p.A. including ancillary constitu-
tion costs.
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Write-downs of € 9,104 thousand are represented by the amount attributable for the
losses sustained in the period by the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. (€ 6,977 thousand) and
Mestni Plinovodi d.0.0. (€ 1,941 thousand), both valued by the equity method, as well
as the write-down of the investment in Italpower S.p.A. (€ 186 thousand) set up in
order to bid for Elettrogen as already mentioned, and subsequently put into liquidation
during 2001.

Revaluations, totalling € 30,505 thousand, concerned the pro-quota amounts of the net
income generated during the year by the affiliates Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A. (€ 8
thousand), Malpensa Energia S.r.l. (€ 109 thousand), Plurigas S.p.A. (€ 1,807 thousand)
and Electrone S.p.A. (€ 10 thousand), valued by the equity method. This item also includes
the revaluation by € 28,571 thousand of the equity investment in Fastweb S.p.A. due to
the reduction of the share in this company held by AEM S.p.A. as a result of the € 6,500
thousand increase in authorised capital carried out by the affiliate during the year and
fully subscribed by third parties with the payment of a premium.

The reclassifications of € 704 thousand refer to the € 98 thousand investment in Zincar
S.r.l., which becomes fully integrated, and to the € 606 thousand investment in Laritel
S.r.l., reclassified to the item “Other eguity investments” since the percentage owned has
dropped from 30% to 6.19% due to AEM S.p.A. not subscribing to the increase in capital
in this company during 2001.

B III 1 d) Investments in other companies

Investments in other companies, valued at cost, totalled € 21,390 thousand (€ 48,441
thousand in the 2000 period), representing a decrease of € 27,051 thousand compared to
the previous period.

The table below shows the composition and changes occurring during the year:

—
lnvestmentshiny Ned
- off COSE im velve alue]

-

Values as of 12,31.2000 55,072 - (6,631) - 48,441
Changes as of 12.31.2001

- changes in share capital - - - - -
- acquisitions 12,189 - - - 12,189
- contributions - - - - -
- subscriptions 25 - - - 25
- disposals (48) - - - (48)
- write-downs - - (8,803) - (8,803)
- reclassifications (30,414) - - - (30,414)
Total changes as of 12.31.2001 (18,248) - (8,803) - (27,051)
Vaiues as of 12.31.2001 136,824 - (15,434) - 21,390

The acquisitions and subscriptions during the year were:

o € 11,315 thousand for the purchase of shares in AEM di Torino S.p.A.;

o £ 874 thousand for the purchase of shares in ASM di Sondrio S.p.A.;

o £€ 25 thousand to subscribe 16.66% in the consortium fund of Consorzio Milanosistema.
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Disposals of € 48 thousand refer to the sale of a quota of the authorised capital in
Emittenti Titoli S.p.A..
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he write-downs of € 8,803 thousand is partly represented by the pro-quota amount for
the losses regarding the investment in e.BISCOM S.p.A. (€ 8,198 thousand), prudentially
applied to align the historic cost with the average arithmetic value of the market in the
second half of 2001 with a view to recovering the cost sustained in the medium term peri-
od, and partly in Laritel S.r.l. (€ 605 thousand).

Reclassifications of € 30,414 thousand refer, for € 31,020 thousand, to the reclassifica-
tion to current assets, and subsequent sale, of the equity investment in Montedison S.p.A.,
and for € 606 thousand to the reclassification of the equity investment in Laritel S.r.L.

Special summary tables {Attachment No. 3 to notes to financial statements) were prepared
for equity investments included in financial assets and excluded from the consolidation,

and for investments valued using the equity method or the cost method.

_B III 2) Financial receivables

L
_ theussnds of cum 12302000 92312000 |
( ~ T h
Affiliate receivables 1,968 [ 2,477
of which:
Due after one year 1,166 2,408
Due within one year = 69
Receivables from others . 6788 | 7,721
of which:
Due after one year 6,381 7,043

Due within one year 402 [ 678

The item under review includes outstanding medium and long-term receivables as of
December 31, 2001 totalling € 7,949 thousand (€ 10,198 thousand as of December 31,
2000). This item is made up of:

o affiliate receivables of € 1,166 thousand (€ 2,477 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
referring to the first seven tranches of the loan granted to the affiliate Alagaz S.p.A. in
order to develop the “Metanizzazione di Porgolovo” project in St. Petersburg, free of inter-
est up to January 1, 2002; affiliate receivables show a decrease of € 1,311 thousand as a
result of the repayment of loans granted to the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o.;

o other receivables totalled € 6,783 thousand (€ 7,721 thousand as of December 31,
2000) broken down as follows:

- € 574 thousand for staff receivables (€ 763 thousand as of December 31, 2006), of
which € 247 thousand, for employee loans, is due within the following period. This amount
dropped € 189 thousand from the prior period due to fewer loans granted and for loans
paid back during the period;

- € 368 thousand for receivables from users (€ 633 thousand as of December 31, 2000),
due within the following period, a result of financing granted for the transformation of
heating plants;

- € 507 thousand for security deposits (€ 497 thousand as of December 31, 2000);

- € 5,334 thousand of tax credits (€ 5,828 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for the
advance payment of IRPEF [individual income taxes], applied to severance pay accrued for
employees on the payrolt at the end of fiscal year 1997 and paid to tax authorities in 1997
and 1998. These credits were used for the payment of withholdings on severance payments
paid starting January 1, 2001, as prescribed by the regulation introducing such withhold-
ing. These credits are re-valued at the end of each fiscal year in accordance with the cri-




teria set forth in Article 2120 of the Civil Code. The financial income resulting from the
revaluation is posted to the income statement under other financial income.

Changes during the fiscal year and maturities for these receivables are shown in the fol-
lowing table:

|
thousandsfoifeuo atfilehangesginl s

12322000 Hepoded 22822001 m@l@ Ay He Ay
ubsequen e 3

i
| eno peno peied |
| B i

]

Affiliate receivables 2,477 (1,311) - 1,166 -
Other receivables
- personnel
receivables 763 (189) 247 323 4
- miscellaneous user
receivables 633 (265) 155 213 -
- security deposits 497 10 - 507 - !
- tax credits 5,828 (494) - 5,334 -
Total 10,198 (2,249) 402 7,543 4

It should be noted that no write-downs were applied to non-current receivables since it is
believed that they will be collected in full.

_B III 3) Other securities

i o 12,91.2001 12.91.2000 |
: ]

Other securities } 78 ] 78

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 78 thousand, unchanged from a year earli-
er, and was for government securities or securities guaranteed by the government that
mature after the following period, and that AEM S.p.A. intends to hold until their natural
maturity. ?
During the fiscal year, no adjustments were made for permanent losses of value. :

_C) Current asset

_C I) Inventories

§ 1
J o 12,99,2009 12.91.2000
/ I
| —
Inventories W 22,468 ( 21,809
! |
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As of December 31, 2001 the composition and changes in inventories from the prior peri-

od were as follows:

ihotsandsforedto Ameus &s of @m@aﬁ@m ; Amenits as o
losiaoes o Sepemd iasiaoei
Materials and fuels:
- materials and equipment 8,755 (289) 8,468
~ obsolescence provision (1,390) (43) (2.433) |
7,365 (332) | 7,033 |
- fuels 1,342 1,603 \ 2,945
- other inventory on hand 3 (3) L_)V_= o :;__‘
Total materials and fuels 8,710 1268 [ 9@
Work in progress contracts 12,593 (103) 12,480
Advance payments 438 (438) l ‘
QOther 68 (68) | = !
Total 21,809 659 22,468

| :

Changes in reserves posted as an adjustment to the amounts of inventories were as fol-
lows:

i

of o Use Anodntsgai
12.81.2000 o chomges  12.3%.2000 WJ
! e
Obsolescence provision 1,390 300 (257) - 7’ 1,433
i

Inventories of materials and fuel for the Group totalling € 9,978 thousand rose by € 1,268
thousand from December 31, 2000, attributable to lower purchases during the period of
materials for reserve supplies of € 289 thousand, offset by the increase in fuel inventories
of € 1,603 thousand as a result of normal requirements for generating thermoelectric power.
The amount reported for inventories of materials was adjusted to the current value with the
reserve for obsolescence.

This reserve, which at the end of the fiscal year totalled € 1,433 thousand (€ 1,390 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000), is created in order to write-down materials that move slow-
ly over the medium term as well as those considered obsolete. In 2001, a provision was made
to this reserve of € 300 thousand after classifying certain materials on hand as obsolete. At
the same time, to cover the elimination of certain materials that were already considered
obsolete, the reserve was used to the extent of € 257 thousand.

It should also be noted that the cost of materials on hand calculated using the weighted
average method, does not differ substantially from the current value at the end of the fiscal
year. In fact, this value is € 198 thousand higher than the value reported in financial state-
ments as of December 31, 2001.

At the end of the period, pending projects totalled € 12,490 thousand (€ 12,593 thousand
at the end of the prior period), € 6,834 thousand of which refers to work in process assigned
by the Municipality of Milan to AEM S.p.A. accerding to the urban lighting plan involving the
refurbishing and expansion of city tighting fixtures and traffic signals, as well as € 5,170
thousand for the works carried out by the subsidiary Metroweb in relation to the setting up
of an integrated tetephone system for the Lombardy Regicnal Council for € 1,264 thousand
and the work-in-pragress for other telecommunications aperators for € 3,906 thousand.
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For the period under review, the advances to suppliers item shows a zero amount (€ 438
thousand in the prior period), as does the Other reserve supplies which, in the previous peri-
od, stood at € 68 thousand.

_CII) Recelvables

_Receivables for the sale of power and services

] |

aff 12,57.2004 12302000
Receivables for the sale of power and services 327,812 231,494

This item, which totalled € 327,812 thousand net of write-downs (€ 231,494 thousand as
of December 31, 2000), was payable entirely within the following period.

The following table shows receivables for the sale of energy and services and changes for

the year:
| |
ehousandsYoffeuro fimounistaiSlEhangeshinBAmountstat Receivablesfdue
12922000 e 12.92.2009 Widhin the Ay the Az
SUBSEqUENY Ehellsty
pared  pened op
o i 30

Receivables for the
sale of power 85,548 28,756 114,304 114,304 - -
Receivables for the
sale of power,

invoices to be issued 93,421 33,724 127,145 127,145 - -
Total receivables for
the sale of power 178,969 62,480 268,440 241,449 - -

Receivables for
services 28,794 39,513 3,307 68,307 - -
Receivables for

services, invoices

to be issued 25,743 (3,953) 21,780 21,790 - -
Total receivables
for services 54,537 35,560 60,097 90,097 - -

Allowance for
doubtful receivables (2,012)  (1,722) (3,734) (3,734)

Total 231,494 96,318 327,812 327,812 - -

[ ]

Changes in allowances offsetting the amount of receivables for sales of power and servic-
es are detailed in the following table:

of eur & Uss 3y
12.31.2000 12:31.200%
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Allowance for doubtful
receivables from users
and customers (2,012) (2,990) 1,268 - (3.734)
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Receivables for the sale of power, which totalled € 241,449 thousand (€ 178,969 thou-
sand in the prior period), increased € 62,480 thousand as a result of sales of electric power
by the subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A. to eligible customers, to the national corporation
called Gestore Rete Trasmissione Nazionale (GRTN) as required by the Italian Electricity and
Gas Authority, as well sales to Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A.

and Valdisotto Energia S.r.l. The increase is also due to the higher level of receivables for
power to the subsidiary AEM Elettricitd S.p.A. largely arising from the new tariff system
which came into force during the current period, to the higher sales of gas by the sub-
sidiaries AEM Gas S.p.A. and Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and from the new tariff system applied
during the period.

Receivables for services, which totalled € 90,097 thousand (€ 54,537 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), were primarily for receivables related to ASM Brescia S.p.A. for serv-
ices involving the management of the Cassano d’Adda thermoelectric power plant, third
party receivables for miscellaneous services, and receivables related to ENEL for the assess-
ment of the counter-value of power exchanged during the year, receivables related to SNAM
for the subsidy granted on gas sales, receivables from GRTN covering the costs for the
power installations and those ancillary to the national network for the transport of elec-
tric power, as well as to the increase in receivables of the subsidiary Metroweb thanks to
the progress in works for the infrastructure of cable ducts and optic fibre.

As of December 31, 2001, the allowance for doubtful receivables totalled € 3,734 thou-
sand, an increase of € 1,722 thousand over the end of the previous period, as a result of
changes during the period. It also includes the writing-off of receivables from users for
interest on delayed payment calculated at the end of the period.

This allowance is deemed to be in line with the risk to which it refers.

_Affiliate receivables

| | |
@ ) . ﬂ@ogﬂo{l . ﬂ?{o;’iﬂq;;
Affiliate receivables l 7,297 2,415

Out of this entry, which totalled € 1,297 thousand (€ 2,415 thousand as of December 31,
2000), net of the allowance for doubtful receivables for € 19 thousand, € 1,274 thousand
was for receivables related to goods and services already invoiced, and € 41 thousand was
for receivables related to goods and services to be invoiced, primarily in relation to
Fastweb S.p.A., Malpensa Energia S.r.l., Mestni and Consorzio Italpower. Affiliate receiv-
ables are primarily the result of commercial relationships, and all are due within the fol-
lowing period. They are related to the sale of power, materials and devices and miscella-
neous services provided for affiliate companies.

The above receivables are all considered to be collectable within the following year.

Changes to the reserve adjusting the value of doubtful affiliate receivables are detailed in
the following table.

e

1

| theusznds of eure oo Use AmEUAE &t |

12-31.2000 _ . Ghemges 12302001 |

i

Allowance for doubtful : ‘
affiliate receivables 12 7 - - ‘ 19




_Parent company receivabies

o 18.32,2008 12.32.2000 )
]
Parent company receivables 35,807 35,019

As of December 31, 2001 receivables related to the Municipality of Milan totalled € 56,807
thousand, net of the allowance for doubtful receivables, in the amount of € 477 thousand.
Group receivables related to the parent entity primarily concern the supply of energy and
the supply of services and materials to install and manage the public lighting fixtures and
the network of city traffic lights. This item increased € 21,788 thousand over the finan-
cial statements as of December 31, 2000, due primarily to an increase in services provid-
ed during the period, with respect to the progress made in the urban lighting plan award-
ed by the Municipality of Milan in 1998 to AEM S.p.A. and the production of subsequent
urban pians approved by the City Council.

Changes to the reserve adjusting the value of doubtful parent company receivables are
detailed in the following table:

| chousands ofgeliro &8 Use JAmotntsaii
| 12,91,2000 12,82,2001
r

Allowance for doubtful r
parent company receivables 192 285 - - 477 f
|

_Other receivables

B L

af 12:3%.200% 12,30.2000
Other receivables 43,300 T 143,830
of which:

- Electricity Equalisation Fund receivables 3,586 13,933
- receivables for financiat transactions = 69,890
- advance payments - suppliers 205 1,443
- personnel receivables 78 67
— other receivables 41,528 58,497

This item totalled € 48,390 thousand (€ 143,830 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
refers to the following:

o £ 6,586 thousand, net of write-downs of € 105 thousand, for receivables related to the
Equalisation Fund for the Electricity Industry [CCSE], referring to both the contribution
towards thermal charges that have not yet been paid by that agency, and to the contri-
bution towards the production of electricity for the tied market (Authority’s resolution
No. 205/99; compared to the end of the previous fiscal year, these receivables have
reduced by € 7,374 thousand largely because of the abolition of the thermal charge paid
by the CCSE as of January 1, 2001, as required by the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority’s
resolution No. 230/00;

o € 205 thousand, a decrease of € 1,238 thousand since the previous period, for advance
payments made during the period to suppliers of work related to the development of the
urban lighting plan;

o € 76 thousand for staff receivables (€ 67 thousand in the previous period);
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AL F D Cu .;:~6'"€'"Z;i:5’é'3' thousand for miscellaneous receivables (€ 58,497 thousand at December 31,

2000). € 4,385 thousand of this entry was for receivables related to third parties for com-
pensation resulting from damage caused to plant assets, as well as VAT receivables for
€ 11,445 thousand of the parent company AEM S.p.A. and the subsidiaries AEM Energia
S.p.A. and AEM Service S.r.l.; tax credits, of € 14,014 thousand, from IRPEG [Corporate
Income Tax] and IRAP [Regional Manufacturing Tax] deferred taxes resulting from the tem-
porary differences between the net income as per the financial statements and the taxable
income for the 2001 fiscal period, which will be returned in future periods, as well as
receivables for € 3,157 thousand from IRPEG credit for the 2001 period of the parent com-
pany AEM S.p.A., € 403 thousand in receivables from Social Security agencies, and € 8,012
thousand the tax credit relating to the 2001 dividend reported in accounts on an accruals
basis. The decrease of € 16,974 thousand since the end of the previous period is largely
due to the reduction in the VAT credit of the parent company AEM S.p.A. relative to the
last month of the period.
Third party receivables for the compensation of damage caused to plant assets were adjust-
ed by specific risk reserves of € 341 thousand and by the allowance for doubtful debts for
compensation of damages of € 8 thousand in order to reflect the actual potential for col-
lection.

Changes in reserves adjusting the value of other receivables are shown below:

|

| ousends of o moangan . Use Gher  Ameuas &
| 12.81-2000 . Gmemge  12:.93.2001 |
I e e

Reserve for specific risks as !
a reduction to third party ‘ ;
receivables for the ‘
compensation of damages 341 - - - BZSI
Allowance for doubtful \
receivables for compensation

of damages - 8 - - 8 ‘
Allowance for doubtful ;
receivables from others 70 34 - - 106

Other receivables are all due to be paid within the subsequent period.
_C I1T) Financial zssets not classifed as fined assels

_Other equity investments

| g L

| Ghonsends eFewW® .o .. .. o0l 9299,2000 o 92.99.2000 :

C ; T T TS
Other equity investments T = ‘ 6,721

!

As of December 31, 2001, this item showed a zero figure since the parent company AEM
S.p.A. sold all its shares in ACSM S.p.A. di Como and in Montedison S.p.A. during 2001.




_Other securities

! & 12812004 ﬂaoga
; —
Other securities 3 3,003

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 3 thousand (€ 3,003 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and was for fixed return bonds. The decrease of € 3,000 thousand
from December 31, 2000 was due to the sale of all the Lavoro Bank Overseas bonds.

At the end of the period there were no adjustments made to value.

_C 1V) Cash and cash equivalent

_Bank and post office deposits

] L

o 12,82.2003 12.81,2000
Bank and post office deposits 84,657 26,461

Liquid assets in current accounts as of December 31, 2001 were € 84,657 thousand, rep-
resenting an increase of € 58,196 thousand compared to the end of fiscal year 2000. The
increase compared to the end of the previous period is largely due to fixed-term deposits
opened to guarantee creditors at the time of the registering, in the Companies’ Register,
of the project to split AEM Energia S.p.A. from AEM Gas S.p.A. effective as of January 1,
2002. This item includes interest accrued but not yet credited at December 31, 2001.

_Cash and cash equivalents on hand

af 12.81.2008 12.3%.2000
Cash and cash equivalents on hand w82 302

Total cash balances that had not been deposited to current accounts at banks were € 152
thousand as of December 31, 2001.

_D) Accrued income and prepaid expenses

—
af 12.81.2009 12.31.2000
Accrued income and prepaid expenses ﬂAﬂ?J 1,861

This item was reported at € 1,417 thousand and primarily was for amounts paid towards
future payables as well as payments of fees made that relate to a future period. The
decrease of € 444 thousand is due to the reduction in accrued income relating to interest
on financial transactions.
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the following table:

Tﬁé;to?'hlf)gs:i%ioh and changes that occurred in this item during the year are reported in

heusands ef eure

Amenntsfal @lmﬁ duing| Ameums &
12:.31.2000 OCJ 12372000
Accrued income:
- Revenue related to the period 296 (296) -
- interest on financial transactions 13 as .
Total accrued income 309 309y . -
|
Prepaid expenses: j
- invoicing related to the i
subsequent period 86 1,082 1,168
- payments during the
year related to the
subsequent period 1,465 (L,216) | 249
Total prepaid expenses 1,551 (135) ﬂ.,x;’t?
Total 1,861 (464) 1,417
!
P S B
_-l@dCIES
i
{Hheusands ef eum o 12,99.2000 12312
Group shareholders’ equity:
Share capital 936,02 929,647
Legal reserve 4,839 62,555
Accelerated depreciation reserve 3,491 -
Extraordinary reserve 57,543 | 52,227
Consolidation reserve 28,762 | 191
Other reserves 2 -
Losses carried forward (61,661) | (45,095)
Net income for the period _ 105,089 | 74,494
Totat Group shareholders’ equity 1,133,910 1,074,020
Minority interests 10,565 8,131
Total shareholders’ equity 1,143,875 1,082,150

™ A[‘rq\‘c—\ [ e o?-ﬂ_
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As of December 31, 2001, authorised capital stock totalled € 936,025 thousand. On July
25, 2001, the authorised capital was converted to Euro and comprises 1,800,047,400
shares with a par value of € 0.52 each. The difference of € 6,378 thousand was drawn from
the Extraordinary reserve.

It should be noted that earnings per share, which is obtained from the ratio of net income
for the period to the number of ordinary shares in circulation during the year, were approx-
imately € 0.06 (€ 0.04 euro as of December 31, 2000).

pup=4

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 64,039 thousand, due to the 5% allocation
of net income from the prior period as required by Article 2430 of the Civil Code.

i o B
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_VIT) Other reserves

_Accelerated depreciation reserve

This totals € 3,491 thousand at December 31, 2001 and refers to the allocation of part of
the net income from 2000 of AEM S.p.A. to cover the accelerated depreciation, pursuant
to paragraph 2, Article 67 of Presidential Decree 917/86.

_Extraordinary reserve

This item totalled € 57,543 thousand (£ 52,227 thousand as of December 31, 2000) as
was made up as follows:

o € 41,395 thousand for the provision to this reserve of a portion of undistributed income of
AEM S.p.A. from previous periods; the increase of € 5,316 thousand arises from the allocation
of part of the parent company’s net income from the 2000 period, partly offset by the use for
the increase of authorised capital as a result of converting to the Euro;

o £ 16,148 thousand, from the excess reported in reserves for specific risks, which
occurred in fiscal year 1997. These reserves were funded by making full use of additional
paid-in capital that resulted from the transformation of the municipal power company into
a corporation.

_Consolidation reserve

This totalled € 28,762 thousand and mainly refers to the evaluation of the affiliate
Fastweb S.p.A. by the equity method, as well as retained earnings from affiliates from pre-
vious years.

_Other reserve
This totalled € 2 thousand at the end of 2001 and refers to dividends from previous peri-
ods which some shareholders waived.

_VIIE) Retained earnings

This item shows a negative balance of € 61,641 thousand and refers both to the consoli-
dation adjustments concerning values reported in previous years’ financial statements of
the Group companies, and to losses and profits of previous periods brought forward by
some of the subsidiaries.

_IX) Net income for the period
Net income was € 105,089 thousand and consist of the consolidated profit for 2001.

_Minority interests

As of December 31, 2001 this item totalled € 10,565 thousand (€ 8,131 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and represents the portion of capital, reserves and profits belonging
to minority shareholders in the companies Metroweb S.p.A. and Serenissima Gas S.p.A., not
fully controlled by AEM S.p.A.

It should also be noted that the portion of minority interests in the subsidiaries AEM
Elettricita S.p.A., AEM Gas S.p.A., AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. and AEM Energia S.p.A. is not
relevant, since AEM S.p.A. holds 99.99% of the authorised capital in those companies.

The increase over the end of the previous year is mostly due to the reporting of the por-
tion of results for the period attributable to minority interests.

Pursuant to Article 2426 of the Civil Code, Paragraph 1, Point 5, it should be noted that
since there are no other available reserves, a portion of the extraordinary reserve, in the
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amount of € 2,658 thousand, is bound by law to cover the start-up and expansion costs ’ I
that are not depreciated as of the end of the period.

The relationship between shareholders’ equity and parent company net income as of
December 31, 2001, reported in the company's financial statements, and those figures con-
tained in the consolidated financial statements, is shown in the following tables:

| |

r

| of eur 12898000 12.91.2000 |
i .
Parent company shareholder’s equity 1,004,304 1,943,495
Profit (loss) for the period of affiliates, ;
not received by AEM, valued by the equity method (5,983) (11,299)
Consolidation reserve 28,762 192
Profit (loss) for the period of consolidated companies 26,993 | 12,181
Elimination of inter-group income from transfer of
divisions, of non-current assets and sale of non-current
assets (808,026) (869,384)
Other consclidation adjustments 78,288 61,633
Elimination of adjustments, in compliance with
tax regulations (6,13%) 1,991
Profit/loss carried forward (67.641) (45,095)
Elimination of dividends from affiliates, valued by |
the equity method and from subsidiaries L {madse) | (19,695)
Total consolidated sharehotder’s equity L ___ggﬂgg}g_gﬂ@j 1,074,020
Minority interests: i
Minority share capital and reserves 8,131 7.993
Minority profit/loss O 2a% 137
Total minority interests r 10,565 1;‘ 8,131
Consolidated shareholder's equity 1,143,875 1,082,150
|
] !
I k 1
| off ure 12822001 9291, ‘
[
Parent company profit (loss) for the period 35,468 29,683
Profit (loss) for the period of affiliates valued by
the equity method (6,983) (11,299)
Consolidated subsidiaries’ profit (loss) for the period 26,903 12,182
Elimination of dividend received by subsidiaries and
the relative tax credit (22.452) (19,695)
Consolidation adjustments 78,288 | 61,633
Elimination of adjustments in compliance with
tax regulations (6,135) | 1,991
Censolidated net income 105,089 74,495

L ]

Changes in the shareholders’ equity items pertaining to the Group are contained in the
attachment no. 5 in the notes to the financial statements.
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_B) Provision for risk and other charges

_Qther reserves

[ o ‘ 12922000 . 929,200
l
Risk and other charges 100,642 72,537
of which:
Social security payments
Specific risks 75,923 55,957
Deferred taxes 24,719 16,372
Future expenses = 208

These reserves consist of:

o Provision for specific risks

As of December 31, 2001 this reserve totalled € 75,923 thousand (€ 55,957 thousand as
of December 31, 2000), and can be broken down as follows:

- € 4,303 thousand (£ 3,735 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for the provision for
pending suits with staff and third parties and potential liabilities related to operations.
The increase reported since the prior period is attributable to new disputes regarding oper-
ations which arose during the period;

- € 8,946 thousand (€ 9,145 thousand at the end of the last period) for the provision
for the present value, which was reasonably estimated on the basis of mathematical and
actuarial calculations, of payments in lieu of notice that are falling due, which will be paid
to employees entitled at the time of the termination of their work relationship due to
retirement;

- € 42,118 thousand (€ 43,077 thousand as of December 31, 2000) in relation to the
estimate, which was determined on the basis of mathematical and actuarial calculations,
of future liabilities to retired former employees who are entitled to supplemental pension
benefits from the Premungas pension fund, and liabilities to employees whose rights are
falling due. This reserve which, as of December 31, 2001 was adequate to cover the relat-
ed risk, decreased € 959 thousand since December 31, 2000 in order to adjust it for the
charge that will actually be paid by the parent company AEM S.p.A.;

- £ 13,910 thousand for the provision made by AEM Elettricita S.p.A. for ascertaining
the standardization of distribution costs in line with the intentions of the Italian
Electricity and Gas Authority;

- € 6,647 thousand for the provision made during the year by the subsidiary AEM Gas
S.p.A. in order to take account of any settlement in favour of users deriving from the appli-
cation of the new tariff system required by the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority reso-
lution no. 237/00, subsequently annulled by a sentence from the Lombardy Regional
Administrative Court. The Italian Electricity and Gas Authority has lodged an appeal with
the State Council which will deliver sentence in the first months of 2002.

In these financial statements, no provision was made for the risk associated with the
European Community infraction proceedings, which was initiated in 1999 by the EEC
Commission against the Italian government, and in particular with regard to the tax mora-
torium pursuant to Law No. 427/93, since it involves an event that is currently deemed to
be remote with only a possibility of occurrence.

PIUBWIDIP 1DIOUDUN] P2IDPIOPU0D ANOIY IV 2Y1 01 9310N~

£
(&Y




'S Provision for deferred taxes

These total € 24,719 thousand, with an increase of € 8,347 thousand over December 31,
2000. The increase of this reserve is due, for € 22,452 thousand, to the provision for tax-
ation on reported dividends relating to the parent company AEM S.p.A. and, for € 5,471
thousand, following adjustments aimed at adapting the financial statements of individual
companies to those justified under civil terms so as to offset conflicts that might be cre-
ated by the application of changes and provisions called for solely by tax law, such as, in
particular, the higher depreciation applied, in order to avoid unjustified fiscal penalization.
The remainder of the Reserve is for deferred IRPEG [Corporate Income Tax] and IRAP
[Regional Manufacturing Tax] payable taxes of all the AEM Group companies, resulting from
the deduction, purely for income declaration purposes, of accelerated depreciation. These
allocations have been partly offset by the use of € 3,694 thousand from the provision fol-
towing the distribution of dividends from subsidiaries relating to the 2000 period, togeth-
er with the relative tax credit.

Deferred taxes were calculated using the current IRPEG and IRAP rates applicable when the
temporary differences that produced them are reversed.

o Provision for future expenses

As of December 31, 2001 this item shows a nil value (€ 208 thousand as of December 31,
2000) since the obligations deriving from gas distribution agreements in the municipali-
ties of Cinisello Balsamo and Cassano d'’Adda were fully acquitted during the period.

The above reserves changed as follows during the period:

i
i

3 of eum AdToUAL &8 Use Aouns &

| 13912000  dhenges  18.31.2001
Reserve for specific risks 55,957 23,524 (3,119) (439) ; 75,923
Reserve for deferred taxes 16,372 12,041 (3,694) - 24,719
Reserve for future expenses 208 - (208) - =

| of , » 12.30.2000  12.81.2000

Employee’ leaving entitlement 61,787 ‘ 60,783

| A e

As of December 31, 2001 this reserve totalled € 61,787 thousand corresponding to the
total amount of severance pay accrued by staff on the payroll at the end of fiscal year 2001
net of advances made pursuant to Article 1 of Law No. 297 of May 29, 1982, and the
amount due and payable for payments in lieu of notice at the time the necessary seniori-
ty is reached for a minimum pension, to employees entitled at the end of the fiscal year.
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The increase in the employee severance pay reserve from the period ending December
31, 2000 totalled € 1,004 thousand and is basically attributable to the allocating of the
portion of this reserve accrued during the year in review.

J i
oifetiva a; Use ol
12.89.2000 change: 12.91.2000
Employee severance
pay reserve 60,196 6,969 (5,716) (246) 61,203
Payment in lieu of
notice accrued 587 26 (35) 6
Total 60,783 6,995 (5,751) (240) 61,787
_D) Payables
_Banks
o 12.89.2001 12.9.2000 |
!
Short-term banks 247,508 161,000
Medium-long term bank debts 94,363 34,926
Total payables to bank 341,869 195,926

These total € 341,869 thousand. € 94,363 thousand refers to medium and long term debt,
of which € 91,618 is due after the 5th financial year following. The other € 247,506 thou-
sand is short term financial debt, consisting of current portions of medium-long term longs
due in the period and of the use of credit lines.

Medium-long term debt for acquisition and development of new investments concern:

o for € 11,118 thousand, loans financing the project to extend natural gas pipelines,

given to the subsidiary AEM Gas S.p.A., contracted with the European Investment Bank and

provided by the Independent department for the financing of public works and public util-

ity installations” of Banca Nazionale del Lavoro, guaranteed by the payment delegacy on

ordinary actual earnings and subject straight-line depreciation;

o for € 5,164 thousand, the loan taken out by AEM S.p.A. from Banca Commerciale Italiana

{(IntesaBci) to finance the increase in capital of the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.o.0.;

o for € 612 thousand, the loan taken out by Serenissima Gas S.p.A. from Mediocredito del

Friuli-Venezia Giulia to expand the gas distribution network, guaranteed by mortgages and

liens on owned property;

o for € 77,468 thousand, concern a loan acquired by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. from
+ a pool of banks in order to finance the projects to develop its own infrastructures.

The increase in medium-tong term bank debt of £ 59,437 thousand since the previous peri-

od is largely due to the higher borrowing by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A., and also for

the reclassification to this item of € 25,823 thousand included in the previous period in

the item “Payable to other financial institutions”, as well as the new loan taken out by the

parent company AEM S.p.A., partly offset by the reclassification to short-term bank debt

of the remaining amount of the loan taken out by AEM Gas S.p.A. from Cariplo, which is

envisaged will be paid in advance during the next period.
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Short-term bank debt increased by € 86,506 thousand since the previous period, largely
because of an increase of € 25,823 in debts by the parent company AEM S.p.A. following
the lean issued by Banca OPI S.p.A., due in 2002, an increase in debts by the subsidiary
Metroweb S.p.A., caused both by the reclassification to this item of € 27,344 thousand
reported in the previous period under Payables to other financial institutions, and by the
€ 10,631 thousand increase in borrowing by the same company, an increase of € 23,076
thousand by the subsidiary AEM Gas S.p.A., largely due to the reclassification in this item
of the remaining debt of the loan granted by Cariplo, and also for the evaluation of the
penalty for having paid off this loan in advance, partly offset by the repayment of some
portions of loans during the year and by a reduction of € 368 thousand in short-term debt
by the subsidiary Serenissima Gas S.p.A. both for having fully repaid a short-term loan and
for the payment of some of the instalments due in the period.

_Payable to other fnancial institutions

Debt to other financial institutions totalled € 5,331 thousand (€ 54,498 thousand as of
December 31, 2000). This debt relates to financing obtained from the Cassa Depositi e
Prestiti [Bank for Deposits and Loans] for the planning of the new Viola canal, which is
under construction, and for operations related to the expansion of the Premadio power
plant, as well as for repowering operations of Group 1 of the Cassano d'Adda thermoelec-
tric power plant. The decrease of € 53,167 thousand is due entirely to the reclassification
of debts of the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. to the Bank debts item.

_Advance payments

| dongends of quo 12992000 12.31.2000 _
Advance payments 41,691 | 29,139

Advance payments from users and customers totalled € 41,691 thousand representing an
increase of € 12,552 thousand from December 31, 2000.

This increase is the result of the difference between deposits paid by new users and users
who discontinued service during the year, as well as the advance payments made by the
Municipality of Milan for the implementation of the new public lighting project. During the
year, there began the reimbursement of deposits from tied users by AEM Elettricita S.p.A.
for billing directly debited at current bank accounts, in compliance with Resolution 200/99
from the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority.

_Accounts payable - suppliers

|
| o qure 92.39.2001 - 12.97.2000
— o 12912000

Accounts payable - suppliers 339,177 266,397

In consolidated terms, as of December 31, 2001, debt exposure to suppliers totalied €
339,177 thousand (€ 266,397 thousand as of December 31, 2000) representing an increase
of € 72,780 thousand from the prior period attributable primarily to higher debt of the
subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. regarding contracts for making the network infrastructure, as
well as an increase in borrowing by the Group in relation to changes in the terms for pay-
ment of orders.
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Changes occurring during the period, and the maturities of accounts payable to suppliers,
alt of which are of a trade nature, are provided in the following table:

F of qum Gt ehangeskin Aot Yt Eallingfdue
12312000 e 1259.2000  Wikin®e  Afr G
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Accounts payable
- suppliers 150,927 44,231 195,956 194,870 288 -
Accounts payable to suppliers
for invoices to be received 115,470 28,549 144,019 144,019 - -
Total accounts payable
- suppliers 266,397 72,780 339,177 338,889 288 -

L ]

Accounts payable to foreign suppliers totalled € 803 thousand. Accounts payahle to sup-
pliers, denominated in currencies that are part of the Euro, were reported at the fixed,
invariable rate set on January 1, 1999, and do not give rise to exchange differences.
Payables valued at exchange rates as of December 31, 2001, which are denominated in cur-
rencies that are not a part of the Euro, result in a minor exchange loss when converted at
the exchange rate for reporting purposes.

_Affilfate payables

| ousands of 12,81.2001 19,99.2000 |
R e
Affiliate payables BgJ 6,721

At the end of the period, these totalled € 5,040 thousand mostly refer to amounts payable
for provision of company telecommunication services and Internet connections carried out
by the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. for all the companies in the AEM Group, and to frade
payables to Electrone S.p.A. for energy intermediation expenses, as well as for payables to
the Italpower Consortium for membership contributions.

_Parent Company pavables

| L
af 12812002 12812000
L
Payables to the Municipality of Milan 6,630 120,831

Payables to the Municipality of Milan, the parent entity of AEM S.p.A., which are due with-
in the following period, totalled € 66,630 thousand compared to € 120,831 in the finan-
cial statements as of December 31, 2000, and could be broken down as follows:

o £ 60,173 thousand for the balance of the current account for the settlement of finan-
cial relationships between AEM S.p.A. and the Municipality of Milan. The decrease of
€ 14,706 from the financial statements as of December 31, 2000 is attributable to the fact
that, according to the current account agreement between AEM and the Municipality of
Milan, any receivables recorded by AEM S.p.A. are posted to the current account at matu-
rity and used as a reduction of the amount payable by AEM S.p.A.
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- _;Ijj?) 0t the dividend totalling € 37,930 thousand related to fiscal year 2000 was paid to

the city administration in cash as approved by the shareholders’ meeting of April 30, 2001.
o £ 6,457 thousand, a decrease of € 39,496 thousand compared to December 31, 2000,
relating primarily to the annual charge, for 2000 and 2001 and not yet paid, for exclusive
agreements for the management of distribution services for power, gas and heat within the
territory of the Municipality of Milan. The other amounts owed to the Municipality of Milan
refer to the surtax on electrical energy invoiced to users and not paid to the City
Administration.

e

of 92319000 12.99.8000
Taxes payable L 33,132 '} 51,168

Group payables for taxes, which totalled € 33,123 thousand, decreased € 18,036 thousand
over December 31, 2000. These consisted primarily of amounts due to tax authorities for
the settlement of taxes on electricity and gas consumption, amounts due to tax authori-
ties for the payment of VAT, IRPEG, IRAP and IRPEF withholdings [personal income tax],
as well as amounts payable local authorities for water diversion fees.

The decrease from the previous peried is largely due to the reduced IRPEG and IRAP tax
for the period, and a decrease in VAT payables, as well as a decrease in other debts since,
during the previous period, there were included payables to taxation authorities for sub-
stitute tax on capital gains generated by the operation of transferring the company branch
to the subsidiary AEM Service S.r.l,

All of these payables are due within the following period, except the payables relating to
the substitute tax, payable during the next five years,

Social security payables

L
Howsands of euro ___fad%aeel 0 92394000
Social security 11,645 \ 12,053

This item totalled € 11,845 thousand, representing a decrease of € 208 thousand com-
pared to the period closing December 31, 2000. This was related to the debt position of
the Group in relation to the Social Security Institute for monthly payments for December
2001 that have not been paid.

The payables under review are due within the subsequent period.

Other payables

il |
| thousends of ey _ 18992001  92.97.3000
Other payables 108,012 | 61,084
. P e e
of which: ‘
- personnel payables 7,885 8,645
- Electricity Equalization Fund payables i 4,743 19,957
- associate company payables 29
- other 90,384 } 32,453




The overall amount for this item was € 103,012 thousand (€ 61,084 thousand 4t
of the 2000 pericd), comprising:

o € 7,885 thousand, representing a decrease of € 760 thousand from December 31, 2000,
for staff payables. This item includes costs related to the renewed staff contract for the
gas sector, the costs for the employee productivity bonus accrued during the period and
the charge for vacation time accrued but not taken in 2001 as of December 31, 2001;

© € 4,743 thousand for payables to the Equalisation Fund regarding the heat surcharge
included in the final sales price for electric power, which is invoiced to users and not yet
paid to the Agency. The reduction of € 15,214 thousand is largely due to the new tariff
system in force since January 1, 2001;

° € 90.384 thousand (€ 32,453 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for miscellaneous
debt and payables, the principal component of which is the debt to leasing companies for
the properties in Via Caracciolo and Via della Signora in Milan, for sale and lease-back
transactions entered into during 1999 and in March 2001 and reported in the consolidat-
ed financial statements using the finance method. Also forming part of the Other debt and
payables are the subsidies to be allocated to users for the conversion of facilities, the
exposure towards various agencies and companies with regard insurance premiums for the
period that have not been paid, payables to the Board of directors and the Audit commit-
tee, remaining deposits not redeemed by users, and also the connection subsidies unas-
signed to costs for the period.

The above debt and payables are all due within the following pericd.

_E) Accrued expenses and deferred income

& au® 12,32,2009 12.51.2000
Accrued expenses and deferred income 3,150 4,393

|

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 8,506 thousand and was largely related to
deferred credits of the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. regarding telecommunication services
and rental of optic fibre billed in advance but pertaining to future periods, as well as to
interest on bank loans and financing.

The following table shows the composition and changes to this entry during the period:

{
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Accrued expenses:
Payable interest on loans 2,373 (1,287) 1,086
Total accrued expenses 2,373 (1,287) 2,066 - -

Deferred income:

Other deferred income 2,020 5,044 7,084 - -
Total deferred income 2,020 5,044 7,064 - -
Total 4,393 3,757 8,150 - -

I
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| of euge 12992001 12,31.2000 _
Commitments 252,839 207,423

_Security deposits recefved

Security deposits made by contractors, as well as guarantees issued by credit institutions
to ensure proper execution of work, as well as sureties issued by credit institutions to guar-
antee contracts relating to the signing of commercial credit policies totalled € 129,775
thousand (€ 132,543 thousand as of December 31, 2000).

_Security deposits provided

This item totalled € 120,819 thousand (€ 67,834 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was related to guarantees issued and security deposits made to guarantee obligations made
to third parties and to guarantees issued. These include € 7,669 thousand as this year's
share of guarantees issued in support of loans negotiated by the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi
d.o.o.

_Receivables written off due to bankruplcies

These totalled € 2,246 thousand (£ 1,717 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and relate
to customer and user receivables written off due to the initiation of bankruptcy proceed-
ings.

_Guarantees provided
As of December 31, 2001, this item was nil (€ 5,329 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
since they expired during the period under review.
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_A) Revenues

_A 1) Revenues from sales and services
Revenues from the sale of power and services reported in the income statement of the con-
solidated financial statements for the period ending December 31, 2001 totalled
€ 1,073,558 thousand net of consolidation adjustments, compared to € 710,051 thousand
for the prior period. These revenues are detailed as follows:

o revenues for the sale of power to other electric companies of € 60,383 thousand
(€ 15,274 thousand as of December 31, 2000). £ 15,546 thousand of the increase is due
to the sale of electrical power to ENEL and to the GRTN by the parent company AEM S.p.A.
(482.1 million kWh), € 25,030 thousand to sales by the subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A.
(631.7 million kWh), £ 2,924 thousand to sale by the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L. (65 mil-
lion kWh), as well as € 1,609 thousand for the transfer of electrical power produced by the
Tecnocity plant to the GRTN by the subsidiary AEM Gas S.p.A. (23,1 million kWh);

o revenues from the sale of electrical power to users of € 403,131 thousand; this item
comprises:

- € 287,945 thousand (€ 169,133 thousand as of December 31, 2000) in revenues of
the subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A., net of amounts exceeding the volume of revenues
permitted (V1 limit), following sales during the period of 2,872.9 million kWh (3,017.9
million kWh in 2000) to users connected to the network of AEM Elettricitd S.p.A. These
revenues grew since the previous period by € 118,812 thousand mainly due to the differ-
ence between direct income, from January 1, 2001, to the distributor of the component to
cover the variable fuel costs (+€ 126,943 thousand) and the lower quantity of power sold
(-€ 8,132 thousand);

- £ 115,185 thousand (€ 54,160 thousand as of December 31, 2000) from revenues of
the subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A. following sales of 1,502.3 million kWh to eligible cus-
tomers on the deregulated power market;

o revenues for the sale of gas to users for € 427,703 thousand; this item includes:

- £ 406,062 thousand {€ 332,130 thousand in 2000) revenues of the subsidiary AEM
Gas S.p.A., following the sale of 1,078 million cubic metres of gas (985 million cubic
metres in 2000), net of interdivisional sales of € 5,498 thousand (€ 2,960 thousand as of
December 31, 2000). Compared to the previous pericd, revenues from the sales of gas to
users show an increase of € 73,931 thousand, resulting from the higher quantity of gas
sold (+93,03 million cubic metres, equalling 9.4% compared to December 31, 2000). The
increase in the quantity sold led to higher revenues of approximately € 31,370 thousand,
whereas the higher average revenues (+12%) resulting from the increase of prices of raw
material purchased and the change in tariffs introduced by the Italian Electricity and Gas
Authority, generated higher revenues of approximately € 42,562 thousand. The higher
guantity of gas sold during 2001, compared to the previcus period, is largely due to the
growth in market share in the heating sector as a result of acquiring new customers (in
keeping with the strategic goal of penetrating the Milanese heating fuel market), to the
acquisition of a new concession for the distribution of gas in the municipality of Rosate,
and also to the full year’s distribution of gas in the area of the Buccinasco municipality,
acquired in September 2000;

- € 21,641 thousand (€ 17,848 thousand as of December 31, 2000) to revenues
achieved by Serenissima Gas S.p.A. due to selling 68.5 million cubic metres of gas (66.6
million cubic metres in 2000);

o revenues from the sale of heat to users for € 20,145 thousand, from selling 269.4 mil-
lion thermal kWh (229.3 million thermal kWh as of December 31, 2000) which is an
increase of € 4,633 thousand compared to a year earlier, € 2,712 thousand of which is due
to the higher revenues resulting from the greater guantity of thermal energy sold (+17%)
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"~ enues (+11%) recorded during 2001;

.l 27 o Revenues for services on behalf of users and third parties of € 148,098 thousand

' (€ 91,121 thousand in 2000), of which € 3,430 thousand was attributable to services pro-
vided to users and the Municipality of Milan, and € 111,696 thousand for services provid-
ed on behalf of third parties. The revenues from services provided to the Municipality of
Milan were largely related to the management and installation, on behalf of the
Municipality, of public lighting fixtures and the traffic signal network. These revenues were
down € 2,709 thousand since December 31, 2000, attributable to the gradual completion
of the activity related to the implementation of the Urban Lighting Plan, which was
assigned by the Municipality of Milan to AEM at the end of 1998, and to the completion
of subsequent urban plans approved by the City Council. Revenues from services provided
on behalf of third parties were primarily related to revenues for the sale of thermoelectric
power produced for ASM Brescia S.p.A. and the charge to that company for the applicable
portion of operating expenses and capital expenditures related to the Cassano d'Adda
power plant (€ 35,201 thousand), revenues for electric power vectoring (€ 10,591 thou-
sand), revenues for services to the GRTN (€ 8,126 thousand), as well as revenues from
services provided for the subsidiaries Metroweb S.p.A., both in relation to the hiring of the
optic fibre network and miscellaneous services (€ 52,320 thousand). Revenues from serv-
ices provided on behalf of third parties increased a total of 59,398 million Lire compared
to 2000 primarily attributable to the increase in revenues for services provided by the sub-
sidiary Metroweb S.p.A., the increase in revenues for services to the GRTN by the subsidiary
AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., as well as the increase in revenues from services to ASM Brescia
S.p.A. by both the parent company AEM S.p.A. and the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.l.;
o revenues from services provided to affiliates of € 1,137 thousand, relating both to serv-
ices provided mostly to the affiliates Fastweb S.p.A., Malpensa Energia S.r.l., Plurigas
S.p.A. and Consorzio Italpower, and to sales of materials to the affiliates Societa Servizi
Valdisotto S.p.A. and Mestni Plinovodi d.o.0.;
o connection fees of € 12,962 thousand, representing an increase since December 31,
2000 OF € 1,575 thousand, as a result of a higher number of customers connected during
the year.

_A 3) Changes in work in progress

This item reported a negative balance of € 103 thousand (-€ 1,596 thousand compared
to 2000) and mainly refers to work in progress by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. to cre-
ate an integrated telephony system for the Lombardy Region, and to work done for other
telecommunication operators. The decrease from December 31, 2000 is attributable to the
gradual completion of work in progress on behalf of the Municipality of Milan for the pub-
lic lighting and traffic signals systems. Work in progress was valued at cost for contracts
related to activities lasting a year or less, whereas those relating to multiyear contracts
are valued on the basis of the amounts accrued with reasonable certainty.
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_A 4}) Capﬁcam@@l expenses

assets”;

[ L

1 of 12912001 12.92,2000

L
Materials 9,662 10,591
(taken from the warehouse), of which, included in:
- Intangible assets 2 1
- Tangible assets 9,860 10,590
Personnel expenses 14,728 16,246
of which, included in:
~ Intangible assets 361 480
- Tangible assets 14,362 15,766
Financial charges o 1,060
Total 24,385 27,897

These items represent the internal costs incurred for making the company's capital expen-
ditures. The description of the capital expenditures was presented in comments on balance
sheet assets in the section covering tangible and intangible assets.

_A 5) Other revenues and income

Other revenues totalled € 38,383 thousand {€ 55,717 thousand as of December 31, 2000),
comprising the following:

o miscellanecus income and revenues, which totalled € 28,248 thousand (€ 16,070 thou-
sand in the previous period), increased by € 12,178 thousand and were primarily related
to non-operating income for allocation differences from previous periods, inclusive of
€ 8.575 thousand relating to the acknowledgement by the C.C.S.E. of the subsidy on ther-
moelectric production referring to the previous three years, in compliance with accounting
principle no. 29 of 2001. Non-operating income was classified in this item, referring to the
adjustments to allocations of previous pericds, reported in the 2000 fiscal year at item E
20), as well as extraordinary non-operating income and reversed liability items, and also
the bonus for the development of natural gas sales, acknowledged to AEM Gas S.p.A. by
SNAM S.p.A., to the compensation for damages and penalties received from users, insur-
ance companies and private individuals, the excess of certain specific risk reserves, per-
taining to operations, and to the sale of equipment and materials;

o subsidies from the Equalisation Fund of € 9,341 thousand (€ 39,526 thousand as of
December 31 of the previous period) which are acknowledged as follows:

- £ 9,149 thousand to AEM S.p.A., as a contribution to encourage the production of
electricity for the tied market, at a rate of € 0.0031 per kWh for a period of two years, as
provided by resolution no. 205/1999 from the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority, the
decrease of € 29,102 thousand largely being due to the abolition (resolution 230/00) as
of January 2001 from the Authority of the contribution for the production of thermoelec-
tric power of the Equalisation Fund - Electricity Sector, incorporating the component cov-
ering variable production costs in the tariff to users;

- £ 192 thousand to the subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A., relating to a quota of 0.5%
of the tariff component paid to the CCSE (components “A” and “UC") to cover lost income
from non-paying users. The large drop recorded compared to contributions acknowledged
in the previous period is a result of direct revenues, by the distributor, of the component
covering variable fuel costs;

o subsidies provided by other agencies in the period equalling € 794 thousand.
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The value of production includes € 1,951 thousand relating to trade operations during the
year with affiliates, details of which are shown in the table betow:

Reyenues) MaloensaliliEastwe D IIestng italpowes Telal .
tictsandsfoffetic Seviz/ERevgTal Bl ‘
Sl

e it e g ¢ e o e e

A1) Revenues from sales

and services

o Revenues from the sale

of electricity 814 - - - - - - 814
o Revenues from sale of

materials 23 - - 22 - - - 45
o Services to third parties 23 332 401 - 178 13 145 1,092
A5)0ther revenues - - - - - - - -
Total 860 332 401 22 178 13 145 1,951

Expenditures for purchases of raw materials, other materials and merchandise totalled
€ 493,093 thousand in 2001 broken down as follows:

o costs for the purchase of electric power from other companies € 57,722 thousand, and
thermal power for district heating of € 2,797 thousand. During the year, the purchases of
electric power from other producers increased € 39,350 thousand, as compared to the pre-
vious year, primarily as a consequence of higher purchases of electric power made by the
subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A., of purchases made in the last quarter of the period by the
subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L., as well as the increase in the quantity of electric power taken
by ENEL during the period. The costs for the purchase of thermal power for district heat-
ing increased by € 323 thousand over December 31, 2000, mainly in retation to the heav-
ier charge for the purchase of thermal power during the year;

o the costs for the purchase of fuel broken down as follows:

T

j l

| heusands of aur 12.99.2004 ﬂ@oé}rﬂo:@m;
Costs for the purchase of fuel L 410,005 | 287,226
of which:
~ Cost for the purchase of fuel
for electric power generation 129,610 69,831
~ Cast for the purchase of gas !
for distribution to users 278,406 213,063
- Cost for the purchase of fuel
for the generation of heat ‘ 2,049 4,332
]

these costs, which totalled € 410,065 thousand, rose by € 122,839 thousand since
December 31, 2000.

In particular, the cost of fuel for the production of thermoelectric power rose € 59,779
thousand from the prior period, primarily attributable to the greater guantity of gas and
fuel oil purchased for the greater output of thermoelectric power generated, partially off-
set by the reduction in the price of fuels.

The costs for the purchase of gas for distribution to users increased € 65,343 thousand as
of December 31, 2001, attributable to both the higher raw material cost and the greater
guantity purchased. The cost of gas purchases for the production of heat amounted to
£ 2,049 thousard as of December 31, 2001;
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o costs for the purchase of other fuel of € 556 thousand (€ 707 thousand as of December

31, 2000);
o costs for purchases of materials, which amount to:

J |

of 12,81.200% 19.89.2000
—
Costs for the purchase of materials 27,93% 80,645
(Capitalised costs) 2,883 (59,862)
Total 21,952 20,783

these items are shown in financial statements net of capitalised costs related to the cap-
ital investments made.

Compared to December 31, 2000, the costs for the purchase of materials grew by € 1,169
thousand, largely as a result of higher costs of purchases incurred during normal mainte-
nance operations and for third parties.

_B 7) Services

This item totalled € 156,596 thousand with an increase of € 49,413 thousand over
December 31, 2000, broken down as follows:

o expenditures for electric power delivering fees of € 49,254 thousand (€ 18,777 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000). This increase since the prior period is mainly due to costs
incurred by AEM Energia S.p.A. for electric power vectoring to eligible customers
(+€ 28,881 thousand) and also charges for dispatching and regulating electrical power and
for the transmission charge borne by the subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A. for the purchase
of electrical power for the tied market (+ € 1,326 thousand);

o costs related to contracts and other work:

o 12.51.2001 19.9.2000 |
( 1
Costs for contracts and work L 137,751 145,275
(Capitalised costs)  (&2,739) (103,459)
Total 55,012 41,816

[ ]

net of capitalised costs, these expenses increased € 13,196 thousand since December 31,
2000, mostly as a result of higher costs sustained by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A., part-
ly offset by tess work for third parties.

o other service expenses totalling:

r
| theveands ef 12.91.2001 12312000
[
Other service expenses 53,750 52,351
~ (Capitalised costs) ) - ) (4,421) (5,762)
Total 52,329 46,589

Net of capitalised costs, these expenses increased € 5,740 thousand since December 31,
2000, and largety concern professional services for consultancy, technical engineering and
IT advice (Euro conversion project), maintenance of CED machines, surveillance services,
advertising and image costs, insurance expenses as well as telecommunication services
received from the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A.
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Compensation paid by the AEM Group to directors during the period totalled € 1,081 thou-
“sand, of which € 834 thousand relating to the positions held by the members of the Board
of Directors of AEM S.p.A. of both the parent company and the subsidiaries, while com-
pensation paid to the audit committee totalled € 577 thousand.

As stipulated in Article 78 of CONSOB Resolution No. 11971 of May 14, 1999, which cov-
ers the regulations for the implementation of Legislative Decree No. 58 of February 24,
1998 regarding issuers, below is the information on compensation paid during the period
to directors and internal auditors by the parent company AEM S.p.A. and subsidiaries.
Compensation means the fee paid for the position held, including for a portion of the year,
as well as any non-monetary benefits, bonuses and other incentives, which are also allo-
cated by companies owned by AEM S.p.A.

_Board of Directors
-
l Bissigandllass [Bositioniield) Term of pestion Fees far Oer
| wEe o i) e eadoier  compene |
i | Jneemes  sgBen
= z s £ mm e e
Zuccoli Giutiano Chairman 01.01.01  12.31.01 284,051.29 129,114.22  20,000.00 (*)  433,165.51
Director 01.01.01  12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Cattaneo Flavio Deputy Chairman 01.01.01  01.29.01 3,282.689 1,972.79 (% 5,255.48
Director 01.01.01  01.29.01
Spadacini Luigi Deputy Chairman 06,13.01  12.31.01 8,301.37 8,301.37
Director 03.28.01 12.31.01 19,738.56 19,738,56
Manzoli Marco Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 62,000.00 (%) 87,822.84
Exec. Board 01.01.01 12.31.01 12,911.42 12,911.42
Scarselli Aldo Director 01.01.01  12.31.01 25,822.84 55,000.00 () 80,822.84
Exec. Board 01.01.01 12.31.01 12,911.42 12,911.42
Oberti Paolo Director 01.01.01  12.31.01 25,822.84 44,000.00 {9 69,822.84
Ortolani Carlo Director 01,01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Prosperetti Luigi Directer 01.01.01  12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Provasoli Angelo Director 01.01.01  12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Total 521,956.63  129,114.22 182,972,79 834,043.64

(A) Compensation received as member of the Board of Directors of Metroweb S.p.A. € 20,000;

(B} Compensation received as member of the Board of Directors of Serenissima Gas S.p.A. € 854.79 and Triveneta Gas S.p.A.
€ 1,118.00;

(C) Compensation received as Chairman and member of the Board of Directors of AEM Service S.r.l. € 30,000; as Chairman
of Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and Triveneta Gas S.p.A. € 32,000;

(D) Compensation received as member of the Board of Directors of Metroweb S.p.A. € 40,000; AEM Service S.r.l. € 15,000;

(E) Compensation received as member of the Board of Directors of Zincar S.r.l, € 9,000; Metroweb S.p.A. € 20,000; AEM Service
S.r.l. € 15,000.
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_Audit Committee

| Frtandlt  Costentel) | Tamoigeston  fessr  Bommes ot
name} {tom to] thelllandfothed [compens
L [positioniincentives] Sation
L
Lonardi Piero Chairman of the
Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 61,974.83 145,408.45 (*)  207,383.28
Cattaneo Michele  Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 41,316.55 96,938.96 ()  138,255.51
Vergallo Italo Bruno Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 41,316.55 96,938.96 ()  138,255.51
Metroweb S.p.A.
Terrenghi Vittoric  Chairman of the
Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 12,694.00 (%) 12,694.00
Lonardi Piero Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 8,635.00 (") 8,635.00
Arancio Francesco  Auditor 01.61.01  12.31.01 8,635.00 {%) 8,635.00
AEM Service S.r.l.
Frattini Achille Chairman of the
Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 10,442.76 {9 10,442,76
Lonardi Piero Auditor 01.01.01 12.31.01 8,449.23 (8 8,449.23
Lo Presti Beniamino Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 8,449.23 () 8,449.23
Serenissima Gas S.p.A.
Facca Carlo Chairman of the
Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 7,271.71 () 7,271.71
Vergallo Itato Bruno  Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 5,619.05 (%) 5,619.05
Campisi Luis Auditor 01.01.01 12.31.01 4,296.92 () 4,296.92
Triveneta Gas S.p.A.
Facca Carlo Chairman of the
Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 5,381.48 (%) 5,381.48
Vergallo Italo Bruno Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 3,677.17 (%) 3,677.17
Campisi Luis Auditor 01.01.01  12.31.01 3,883.76 (%) 3,883.76
Zincar S.r.l.
Mandirola Pietro Chairman of the
Audit Committee 15,0301 12.31.01 3,000.00 () 3,000.00
Coppa Stefano Auditor 15,03.01 12.31.01 1,500.00 (") 1,500.00
Salina Fabio Auditor 15,03.01 12.31.01 1,500.00 (7) 1,500.00
Total 144,607.93 432,721.68 577,329.61

(A) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas S.p.A. € 61,974.83, AEM
Elettricita S.p.A. € 61,974.83, AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. € 16,578.27, AEM Energia S.p.A. € 4,880.52;

(B) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas S.p.A. € 41,316.55, AEM
Elettricita S.p.A. € 41,316.55, AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. € 11,052.18, AEM Energia S.p.A. € 3,253.68;

(C) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas S.p.A. € 41,316.55, AEM
Elettricita S.p.A. € 41,316.55, AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. € 11,052.18, AEM Energia S.p.A. € 3,253.68;

(D) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary company Metroweb S.p.A.;
(E) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary company AEM Service S.r.l.;
(F) Compensation as member of the Audit Committes for the subsidiary company Serenissima Gas S.p.A.;

(G} Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for Triveneta Gas S.p.A. merged into Serenissima Gas S.p.A. with
effect back-dated to January 1, 2001;

(H) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary company Zincar S.r.l. set up on March 15, 2001.

_B 8)Lease and rental expense

This item totalled € 12,074 thousand (€ 9,411 thousand as of December 31, 2000} and
was primarily related to charges under agreements for the management of gas and district
heating services in the territory of the Municipality of Milan, to vehicle hire fees, rental
payments and fees for application software usage licenses.
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_B 9) Personnel expenses

For the period ending December 31, 2001, staff costs totalled € 123,702 thousand
(€ 127,948 thousand as of December 31, 2000), of which € 14,723 thousand was capi-
talised (€ 16,246 thousand as of December 31, 2000).
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At the Group level, staff costs, as a percentage of value of production, were 10.9% com-
pared to 16.1% as of December 31, 2000.

This result was {argely due to a rise in the value of production and to a decrease in staff
costs. Compared to 2000, staff costs decreased € 4,246 thousand, mostly as a result of the
fall in staff numbers by 112.

Overall, the aver cost per employee as of December 31, 2001 was € 43.5 thousand (€ 43.6
thousand in 2000).

A usage of the reserve for specific risks was reported for the contribution paid to the
Premungas pension fund by AEM S.p.A. for the supplemental social security payments to
retired former employees entitled to this supplemental payment in the amount of € 2,912
thousand.

The following table shows the average number of employees broken down by position and
contract:

]

12.31.2001

Hansgers @ MeElond Mothone Commere
mechanicaWlipiodUGEoN
engineering

Managers
Managerial staff
Office workers
Plant workers

Total

12,30.2000
ElectinGity] (GashMetal¥andIMe hang]
| medhanical preduciien

Managers - - -
Managerial staff 101 32 3
Office workers 1,021 651 29
Plant warkers 479 363 -

Total 43 1,601 1,046 32

_B 10) Amortization, depreciation and write-downs

This item totalled € 85,412 thousand (€ 76,387 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was made up as follows:

o amortisation of intangible assets of € 20,935 thousand (€ 16,602 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), refers to portion attributable to the period for start-up and expan-
sion costs, the costs sustained to purchase the licence to use application software for a
fixed period and indefinitely, the consolidation differences relating to Serenissima Gas
S.p.A., Triveneta Gas S.p.A. and Zincar S.r.l., and also for improvements to leased assets
regarding refurbishment costs for the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria and the commer-
cial offices belonging to the Municipality of Sesto San Giovanni;

o depreciation of tangible assets, at € 61,159 thousand (€ 58,081 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), of which € 5,655 thousand (€ 5,674 thousand in the previous year)
was for depreciation of freely transferable assets.

The depreciation of tangible assets was calculated on the hasis of economic and tech-
nical depreciation rates that are deemed to be representative of the remaining poten-




tial use of the tangible assets. Freely transferable assets were depreciated on the basis
of the term of the concession, which was renewed for a further thirty years. The depre-
ciation of tangible assets included € 948 thousand for the depreciation of the proper-
ties in Via Caracciolo and Corso di Porta Vittoria in Milan, which are leased and includ-
ed in assets in the balance sheet under the tangible asset entry “Land and buildings”
in keeping with the valuation criterion established by international standard IAS No.
17 and referenced by domestic accounting principles on consolidated financial state-
ments;

o write-down of receivables included in current assets and liquid assets of € 3,319 thou-
sand (€ 1,704 thousand as of December 31, 2000) including the provision to the allowance
for doubtful receivables in the amount necessary to adjust user and customer receivables
to their estimated realisable value.

_B 11) Changes in inventories
These inventories reduced overall by € 1,268 thousand up to December 31, 2001, as is
shown in the following table:

o 12.94.2004 12.51.2000
Beginning inventory 10,160 10,734
Ending inventory (11,412) (10,100)
Change in reserve for obsolescence of materials &d (267)
Change in reserve for price fluctuation = -
Other changes = 140
Total (1,268) 506

_B 12) Risk provisions

This item, totalling € 23,033 thousand (€ 2,653 thousand as of December 31, 2000), was
primarily related to a € 13,910 thousand provision made by the subsidiary AEM Elettricita
S.p.A. in relation to the application of the new tariff system, while € 6,647 thousand was
for the provision made by the subsidiary AEM Gas S.p.A. in relation to the application of
the new tariff system required by Resclution 237/00 from the Italian Electricity and Gas
Authority, € 1,953 thousand for the provision made by AEM S.p.A. to adjust the reserve
for specific risks (related to supplemental pension payments paid by the Premungas pen-
sion fund to retired former employees) to the charge actually owed by AEM. This amount
was determined on the basis of mathematical and actuarial calculations. This item also
included provisions, totalling € 523 thousand, for pending suits with third parties and
potential liabilities related to operations.

_B 14) Other operating expenses

This item totalled € 78,088 thousand (€ 18,587 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
consisted of the following:

o € 48,731 thousand as a charge made to AEM S.p.A. and the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L.
for the extraction of hydroelectric power, as provided by the Authority’s resolution
No. 230/00 applied to hydroetectric and geothermal generating companies on the differ-
ence between the average weighted value of the wholesale price of electricity sold on the
national market in the various periods of time, and the average weighted value of the
wholesale electricity price component covering fixed production costs for electricity as
provided by resolution No. 205/99 for 2000;

o € 10,917 thousand for taxes, duties and water diversion fees (€ 11,347 thousand as of
December 31, 2000); The charge for taxes and duties includes the water diversion fees paid
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to various agencies of € 5,848 thousand (€ 5,958 thousand in 2000), and other taxes and
duties of € 5,069 thousand (€ 5,389 thousand as of December 31, 2000); the increase in
taxes and duties is largely due to the increase in ICI and OSAP taxes paid during the year,
as well as a contribution to the CCSE by the subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A., as required
by the Authority (Resolution No. 123/00) in relation to the standards of continuity of the
service to users;

c €18,440 thousand (€ 7,240 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for other aperating
expenses, mainly referring to non-operating losses and non-existent assets, for adjust-
ments to allocations of previous years. Such revenues include the estimate for the changed
evaluation of revenues charged to the Municipality of Milan for public lighting works in
previous periods, to the capital losses resulting from the elimination during the period of
various assets from the production process, the charge for the importation of electrical
power from abroad by the subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A., as well as other miscellaneous
operating expenses.
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In 2001, income from equity investments totalled € 3,861 thousand (€ 1,240 thousand as
of December 31, 2000), € 9 thousand of which was for dividends relating to 2000 from the
affiliate Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A., € 111 thousand (€ 141 thousand as of December
31, 2000) to dividends for the 2000 period from ASM Brescia S.p.A., € 75 thousand, ACSM
S.p.A. di Como, € 12 thousand, and Emittenti Titoli, for € 24 thousand, and for € 3,741
thousand (€ 673 thousand in the previous period) to the capital gains resulting from the
transfer of shares posted in current assets, including shares in ACSM S.p.A. di Como,
Montedison S.p.A., Emittenti Titoli and Italpower S.p.A.

_C 18} Other Fnancial income
Financial income totalled € 10,156 thousand (€ 13,931 thousand as of December 31,
2000), consisting of:

¢ € 311 thousand (£ 375 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for interest on financial
receivables posted under financial assets. This income was primarily from interest on
amounts receivable from staff and the income on user receivables relating to the loans
granted for the transformation of plants, as well as € 117 thousand in interest on affili-
ate receivables related to financing provided by AEM S.p.A. to the affiliate Mestni
Plinovodi d.o.0.;

o € 966 thousand for income from long-term securities and securities included in current
assets;

o € 8,879 thousand (€ 13,350 thousand at December 31, 2000) for miscellaneous income,
made up as follows:

- interest on short-term financial receivables of € 4,552 thousand which shows a fall
of € 5,976 thousand since the previous period. This fall reflects the lower financial assets
available for short-term operations, which were used during the year in order to finance
industrial investments;

- interest on bank deposits of € 2,370 thousand, showing an increase of € 1,058 thou-
sand compared to December 31, 2000 due to improved treasury management;

- interest on other receivables totalling € 1,957 thousand (€ 1,763 thousand as of
December 31, 2000} which was primarily for overdue interest, interest on past-due pay-
ments charged to users and income on advance payments made to suppliers.




_C 17) Interest and other financial expenses
Financial expenses totalled € 22,827 thousand (£ 18,173 thousand as of December 31,
2000), and are detailed as follows:

o interest paid to the parent company entity of AEM S.p.A. of € 2,936 thousand (£ 2,172
thousand as of December 31, 2000), for accrued financial expenses on the current account
maintained with the Municipality of Milan for the settlement of financial items between
AEM S.p.A. and the Municipality. The increase of € 764 thousand is largely due to payable
interest accrued on the debt for the purchase of the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria,
partly compensated by the lower average funds deposited on the current account held with
the parent company;

o interest to others of € 19,891 thousand (€ 16,001 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
including:

- Interest on bank debt totalling € 16,926 thousand (€ 15,006 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) for the borrowing of the Group from banks, as detailed in the balance
sheet, the increase of € 1,920 thousand being due to the higher payable interest charged
to the parent company AEM and the subsidiary Metroweb, partly offset by a reduction in
the payable interest charged to the subsidiaries AEM Gas and Serenissima Gas;

- interest on other debt totalling € 2,965 thousand (€ 995 thousand as of December
31, 2000), primarily involving financial charges relating to the leasing contracts for the
buildings in Via Caracciolo and Corso di Porta Vittoria.

_D) Adjustments to the value of financial assets

_D 18) Revaluations

At December 31, 2001 this item totalled € 1,935 thousand and referred to the higher value
attributed to the equity investments in affiliates, valued in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method. This higher value is the result of income generated dur-
ing the period by the affiliates and posted to the consolidated income statement on the
hasis of the accrual principle.

_D 19) Write-downs

This item totalled € 17,906 thousand and refers to the following:

o € 6,977 thousand for the write-down of the equity investment, valued using the
equity method, in the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A., resulting from the operating loss of the
company;

© € 8,198 thousand for the prudential write-down of the equity investment in e.BISCOM
S.p.A. to adjust it to the average arithmetic market value in the second half of 2001;

o € 790 thousand for the write-down of the equity investments in Italpower S.p.A., in
liquidation, and Laritel S.r.l.;

o € 1,941 thousand for the write-down of the equity investment, valued using the equi-
ty method, in the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.0.0., mainly resulting from the losses sus-
tained by the company.

_E) Extraordinary income and expenses

_E 20) Extraordinary income

At December 31, 2001, these were € 2,254 thousand (€ 3,850 thousand as of December
31, 2000) and refer wholly to non-operating expenses which mostly arose from lower con-
tributions for staff for the previous period.
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_E 21) Extraordinary expense

In the financial statements for the period ending December 31, 2001, this item totalled
€ 4,065 thousand (€ 6,107 thousand as of December 31, 2000), primarily related to the
penalty charges for the early repayment of loans by the subsidiary AEM Gas S.p.A.:, and to
non operating losses related to higher contribution charges borne during the year and
referring to the previous period.

_22) Income taxes
As of December 31, 2001 this item totalled € 31,378 thousand, representing an increase
of € 6,308 thousand over the prior period.

The increase since the previous period largely arose from the consolidation of AEM Trading
S.r.l. and the full operating capacity during 2001 of AEM Service S.r.l., as well as the
increased consolidated earnings before taxes, although it was partly offset by the reduc-
tion in the IRPEG rate applied to the various companies in the Group. In fact, as estab-
lished by current fiscal laws, the IRPEG rate for the various companies reduced by one per-
centage point from 37% to 36%, while the parent company AEM S.p.A. benefited from the
elimination of the limit on the average tax rate for “Dual Income Tax” purposes (Articte 6,
law 388/2000) which permitted applying an IRPEG rate of 19% instead of the 27% in the
previous period.

—_— - " - ——

j i

| chowsands of @i 92803001 12812000 |
1 o ]
Income taxes 34,102 27,891
- Deferred tax asset (11,071) (11,746)
+ Deferred tax liability 8,347 8,925
Total applicable taxes 31,378 25,070

J

Taxes applicable to the period, which were calculated on the basis of current accounting
principles and the appropriate consolidation criteria, are as follows:

© € 34,102 thousand for current taxes for the period consisting of € 24,088 thousand for
IRPEG and € 10,014 thousand for IRAP;

o € 8,347 thousand for deferred tax liabilities, of which € 5,471 thousand was calculat-
ed for adjustments aimed at modifying book values of the individual companies to those
permissible under civil law, in order to eliminate conflicts resulting from the application
of changes and provisions stipulated by tax regulations that are not permissible under civil
law. In particular, these include higher allowable depreciation for tax purposes posted in
the financial statements of the transferee subsidiaries in order to take advantage of a tax
benefit that is otherwise not available;

o in adjustment of the amounts shown above, € 11,071 thousand in deferred tax credit.
This tax, net of the return of the portion of advance tax paid pertaining to the period
amounting to € 665 thousand, relating to the adjustment of the capital gains from the
transfer of the company branch from AEM S.p.A. to AEM Service S.r.l. during 2000, have
been calculated in relation to the temporary differences existing between income report-
ed in financial statements and the taxable income for each of the companies in the Group.

For the current period, it should be noted that the application of the soft tax rate of 19%,
as stipulated by regqulations for the introduction of the Dual Income Tax (DIT, Legislative
Decree No. 466/97) had a significant effect for the parent company AEM S.p.A., which
obtained tax savings of € 7,388 thousand. The benefits provided by DIT to the other sub-
sidiaries are instead negligible.




The Group tax rate was 22.6% on earnings before taxes for the period which was a resu[tﬁ,ﬁ o
as well as of the general reduction in the IRPEG rate, mainly because of the benefit
obtained in 1999 in relation to the non-taxation of capital gains achieved by the parent
company AEM S.p.A. through the transfer of divisions to the companies AEM Trasmissione
S.p.A., AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and AEM Gas S.p.A., since AEM S.p.A. was subject to a tax
moratorium, as well as a result of the entry in the consolidated financial statements of the
deferred tax credit related to writing off capital gains resulting from the transfer of the
company division to AEM Service S.r.l. during the period under review, although partially
returned during the current period.

For the Board of Directors
The Chairman
Ing. Giuliano Zuccoli
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ik 12.31.2000
[Amostisaticn

Start-up and other capitalised expenses

Industrial patent and intellectual property rights

Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights
Consolidation difference

Work in progress

Other intangible assets

Total intangible assets

8,893
4,051
6,042
16,478
1,096
32,106
68,660

(7,027)
(1,665)
(4,152)
(1,605)

(10,491)
(24,540)

‘.

2,386
1,890
14,873
1,096
21,615
43,726




thel Ameuts &t 22922008
Acguisitions Costt Book
fm forgtie] hange valUe]
licthelpeliod
]

1,773 (981) 792 16,666 (8,008) 2,658

788 2,926 (2,588) 1,126 7,765 (4,233) 3,512

2,357 108 (1,544) 931 8,517 (3,696) 2,821

36 (1,684) (1,648) 16,514 (3,289) 13,225

2,335 (3,221) (152) (1,038) 53
14,116 187 (1) (14,138) 164 45,408 (24,628) 21,779 |

21,415 (153) (20,935) 327 89,928 (45,875) 44,053
L I I ]
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Changes
akcateqehy

Non-transferable assets
Land and buildings
Non-industrial land
Non-industrial buildings
Industrial land and buildings
Leased buildings

Total land and buildings

Plant and machinery
Production facilities
Transport lines

Transformer stations
Distribution networks
Total plant and machinery

Industrial and commercial
equipment

Miscellaneous equipment
Mobile phones

Total industrial and
commercial equipment

Other assets
Furniture and fittings

Electric and electronic office
equipment

Vehicles

Capital equipment with value
up to € 516

Total other assets

Work in progress and
advance payments

Non-industrial buildings
Industrial buildings
Production facilities
Transport lines
Transformer stations
Distribution networks
Miscellaneous equipment
Other assets

Advance payments

Total werk in progress and
advance payments

Total non-transferable assets

Transferable assets

Plant and machinery
Transferable assets in process
Total transferable assets
Grand total

344
58,828
113,785
16,737
189,694

253,692
45,450
28,762

721,674

1,049,578

819
2,364
18,557

28
27,469

11
4,594

53,844
1,325,162

214,754
24,730
239,484
1,564,646

(1.712)
(10,911)
(287)
(12,910)

(47,081)
(2,349)
(2,792)

(48,953)

(101,175)

(123,780)

(21,839)

(21,839)
(145,619)

344
57,116
102,874
16,450
176,784

206,611
43,101
25,970

672,721

948,403

819
2,364
18,557

28
27,469

11
4,594

53,844
1,201,382

192,915
24,730
217,645
1,419,027

24
322
3,317

3,663

1,358
695

229
100,612
102,894

1,029
1,336
32,288

418
17,671

1,094
9,550

63,386
175,582

128
20,998
21,126
196,708

53,550
53,550

37,807
56,879

(1,644)
(240)
(20,911)

(37,703)

(1,004)

(61,502)
27

53,551




Chenges during Te & 12.81.2009
AcquisiFions Ghange] DiSposals! Dispesals) Depracikiion Valile Nceumulated Beak
i Neeumulated offassets atael
jassets
H 1
368
(54,228) 904 495 4,922 (1,303) 3,619
(1) (126) 123 3,345 120,715 (14,133) 106,562
948 70,287 (1,235) 9,052
(1) (54,354) 1,027 4,788 196,292 (16,671) 179,621
(20) 7 13,421 274,102 (60,495) 213,607
(48) 3 2,026 46,007 (4,372) 41,723
1 947 28,992 (3,739) 25,253
(4,649) 369 30,225 855,445 (78,808 776,636
1 (4,717) 379 46,619 1,204,636 (147,415 1,057,221
(3) 2 1,775 13,393 (4,633) 8,760
(5) 5 5 ©)
(8) 7 1,780 13,401 (4,841) 8,760
460 3,188 (2,020) 1,108
(40) 25 1,586 19,264 (4,818) 14,445
(134) 82 93 1,824 (1,102) 422
178 1,036 (2,038
(174) 107 2,317 23,012 (©,887) 15,078
(16) 138 188
3,460 3,460
29,934 29,934
445 445
7,437 7,437
101 101
14,144 14,144
(16) 38,790 88,710
(59,269) 1,520 55,504 1,408,081 (177,764) 1,847,887
‘ (>
Se)
(370) 72 5,655 214,784 (27,422) 187,342 ‘E
45,449 43,440
(370) 72 5,655 260,298 (27,422) 292,791 2
(59,639) 1,592 61,159 1,755,264 (205,186) 1,550,078 ©
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Companies included in consolidation
Metroweb S.p.A. (formerly Citytel S.r.l.)
Aem Elettricita S.p.A.

Aem Gas S.p.A.

Aem Trasmissione S.p.A.

Aem Energia S.p.A.

Aem Service S.r.l.

Aem Trading S.r.l.

Zincar S.r.l.

Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

Companies not included in consolidation
Equity investments in affiliates

Malpensa Energia S.r.l.

Plurigas

Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A.

Metsni Plinovedi d.o.0.

Alagaz S.p.A.

Fastweb S.p.A.
Electrone S.p.A.
Bovisa Sviluppo S.p.A.

Consorzio Italpower (in liguidation)

Italpower S.p.A. (in liquidation) (%)

e-Utile S.p.A.

Consorzio 3A

Equity investments in other companies
CESI (Italian experimental electro-technical centre)
ASM Brescia S.p.A.

Aem Torino S.p.A.

Asm Sondrio

Consorzio Milan Sistema

Laritel S.r.t.

AVIO Vattellina S.p.A.

Emittenti Titoli S.p.A.

ANPHORA S.r.l.

DIX.IT (in liquidation)

e.BISCOM S.p.A.

(*) Net of own shares held by Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

Segrate (Mi)

Milan

Valdisotto (So)
Capodistria (Slovenia)

St Petersburg
(Russian Federation)

Milan
Turin
Milan
Milan
Mitan
Milan

Genoa

Milan
Brescia
Turin
Sondrio
Milan
Como
Sondrio
Milan
Milan
Milan
Milan

(**) The values of companies with authorised capital in Euro are in thousands.

(1) The equity investment has been totally written-down.

520,000
572,000
76,597
104
12,405
99

100
1,082

5,200

800

5,837
450,000,000
50,000

34,876
1,500
102
2,582
100
100
5,268

8,550
529,849
346,307

5,834

150

180

2,892

5,200

52,000
10,0060,000,000
26,202
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% o 92.90,2000 | |
&8 f 92.92,2001 off |
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67.16% 67.16% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

99.99% 99.99% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

99.99% 99.99% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

99.99% 99.99% AEM S.p.A. Globat integration method

99.99% 99.99% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

100% 100% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

108% 100% AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

100% 100% AEM S.p.A, Global integration method

794% () 79.4% (*) AEM S.p.A. Global integration method

49% AEM S.p.A. 2,938 Equity method

40% AEM S.p.A. 2,127 Equity method

35.7% AEM S.p.A. 2,177 Equity method

39.9% AEM S.p.A. 5,266 Equity method

35% AEM S.p.A. 8 Equity method

30.8% AEM S.p.A. 80,370 Equity method

25% AEM S.p.A. 385 Equity method

50% AEM S.p.A. 52 Equity method

25% AEM S.p.A. 646 Cost method

10% AEM S.p.A. Cost method

49% AEM S.p.A. 81 Cost method

30% AEM S.p.A. 1,580 Cost method

2% AEM S.p.A. 165 Cost method

0.298% AEM S.p.A. 2,014 Cost method

1.9896% AEM S.p.A. 11,315 Cost method

3.99% AEM S.p.A. 874 Cost method

16.67% AEM S.p.A. 25 Cost method

6.2% AEM S.p.A. 1 Cost method

0,18% AEM S.p.A. 5 Cost method

2.32% AEM S.p.A. 98 Cost method

11% AEM S.p.A. 170 Cost method

14.28% AEM S.p.A. 738 Cost method

0.27% AEM S.p.A. 5,971 Cost method

|
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COMPANIES INCLUDED IN CONSOLIDATION AREA AS OF 12.31.2001

Acquired companies

Zincar S.r.l.

Companies set up
AEM TRADING S.r.l.




Headquanters] GUgrency Gapial
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Milan Euro 100 100%

Milan Euro 99 100%
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Consolidated shareholders’ equity as of 12,31.2000 029,647 62,555

Changes during the period:

Legal reserve

Accelerated depreciation reserve
Extraordinary reserve

Net income distributed to shareholders
Consolidation reserve

Other reserves

Conversion authorised capital in Eurc

Net income distributed to shareholders drawn from the parent company’s
extraordinary reserve

Retained earnings

Group portion of net income (loss) for the period

Minority interest:

Change in minority interest in capital and reserves

Profit (loss) for the period

Consolidated shareholders’ equity as of 12,31.2001 236,025 64,039




Extizerdinawyl IlConsotidation Other || Gioup Reingd | Group pordien Wt |
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52,227 191 74,495 (45,095) 1,074,020 8,130 1,082,150
(1,484)
(3,491)
11,694 (11,694)
(74,372) (74,372) (74,372)
28,571 28,571 28,571
2 2 2
(6,378)
16,546 (16,546)
105,089 105,089 105,089
138 138
2,297 2,297
57,543 28,762 2 105,089 (61,641) 1,133,310 10,565 1,143,875
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Conseffideied 12:90.2001

Cash flow from eperating activities

Net income

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in subsidiary and affiliate receivables for sales
of power and services

Increase in parent company receivables

Decrease in other receivables

Increase in inventory

Decrease in accrued income and prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable to suppliers
Decrease in other payables

Increase in advances from customers

Increase in accrued expenses and deferred income
Increase in employee’ leaving payed

Increase in other reserves

Total cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow used in investment activities
Net capital expenditures on tangible and intangible assets
Increase in equity investments

Total cash flow used in investment activities

Free cash flow

Cash flow from financing activities

Increase in bank debt

Decrease in financial receivables

Decrease in debt to other financial institutions
Decrease in cash account debt due to the Municipality
of Milan

Increase in shareholder’s equity

Net income distributed

Total cash flow from financing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, EMD OF THE PERIOD

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial receivables

Cash account with the Municipality of Milan
Other financial institutions

Bank debt

TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION

105,089
61,159
20,935

(93,199)
(21,787)
26,490

(659)
443
72,780

(17,483)
12,552
3,757
1,008
28,105

_ ComsaliGeted 12.51.2000

197,175

(213,471)
(61,286)

(254,755)

I

(87,%80)

145,844
8,032
(53,167)

(14,766)
31,605
(74,372)

42,736

-

(14,844)
99,656
84,812

84,812
1,243
(60,173)
(5,831)

| (341,869)

(321,318)

74,495
58,081
16,603

(63,200)
5,349

(52,878)

(1,630)
446
66,326
49,485
4,588
1,177
2,270
8,854

169,966

(244,017)
(57,774)

(301,791)

(131,825)

(35,714)
(8,798)
54,214

(35,926)
1,363
(106,909)

(131,770)

(263,595)
363,251
99,656

99,656
9,276
(74,879)
(58,498)
(195,925)

(220,370)




lamountsfinketro

12.31.2009

Consolideted 12312000

Sulbital lotall % Subtotal [otal %
INVESTED CAPITAL
Intangible assets 44,055,020 301 43,726,922 3.36
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Gross amount 1,795,264,256 21980 1,564,645,602 120.12
(Accumulated depreciation) (205,186,000) (34.09) (145,619,000) (12.18)
1,550,078,256 105,79 1,419,026,601 108.94
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Equity investments 417,020,600 7,89 75,735,994 5.81
Other financial receivables 5,879,546 040 6,548,936 0.50
Security deposits 504,840 008 494,000 0.04
(Risk and expense reserves) (100,641,748) 687) (72,536,780} {5.57)
(Employee’ leaving payed) (61, 786,858) (4.22) (60,783,282) (4.67)
* NET FIXED ASSETS 1,886,204,008 ilﬂ 1,412,212,390 108.42
Inventories 28 463,127 305? 21,808,884 1.67
Shart-term receivables 434,706,569 20467 343,546,453 26.38
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 1417465 6,10 1,860,673 0.14
(Accounts payable to suppliers) (398,177,040) (23.19) (266,396,736) (20.45)
(Other debt and payables) (201,177,261) (18.78) (206,117,963) (15.82)
(Accrued expenses and deferred income) B.140524) (0:56) (4,393,220) (0.34)
* WORKING CAPITAL (9,990,894 (@94) | (109,691,907) (8.42)
** TOTAL INVESTED CAPITAL 1,465,193,041 100,00 1,302,520,481 100.00
SQURCES OF FUNDING
* TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (5,148,678,808) (73487) |(1,082,150,266) (83.08)
Long term financial receivables 1,244,086 088 2,486,642 0.19
{Long term debt) (99,694,380) (6.80) (93,423,535) (7.17)
@ TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER ONE YEAR (98,450,405) 6:72) (90,936,894) (6.98)
Financiat receivables due within one year 76,679,787 5.89
Cash and cash equivalent 84,811,721 3.79 29,765,856 2.29
{Debt due within one year) (807,679,277) (21.00) (235,878,964) (18.11)
@ TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION WITHIN ONE YEAR (222,257,556) (18.21) | (129,433,321) (9.94)
* TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION (1 +2) (829,395,/861) (@88) | (220,370,215) (16.92)

** TOTAL SOURCES

(1,465,193,041) (100.00)

1

(1,302,520,481) (100.00)
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ameunts in cure 12.31.2004 Consalidated 12.31.2000
Stibtotal . Subtetel ?@@ﬂz %

ASSETS

1. CURRENT ASSETS 348,408,008 2402 473,661,653  23.43
Cash, bank deposits and fixed-rate securities % 81°.721 3% L 20,765,856 1.47
Receivables for financial transactions ‘ 69,890,252 3.46
Investments in current assets : 6,720,846 0.33
Receivables for the sate of power and services 7 83 14 | 231,493,968 11.45
Affiliate receivables . e} 2,414,965 0.12
Parent company receivables 5,807,3 251 35,019,737 1.73
Electricity Equalization Fund receivables ‘ 8 : 829 | 13,933,458 0.69
Other receivables | 1 8 184 58,563,411 2.90
Advances to suppliers during the period | 03,2 L8 1,442,933 0.07
Current portion of long term financial receivables 432,095 382 677,982 0.03
Current portion of affiliate financial receivables 68,689 0.00
Inventories 22 4463 .99 21,808,884 1.08
Accrued income and prepafd expenses 1 b £.06 1,860,673 0.09

TANGIBLE ASSETS 1,350,078,286 1,419,026,602  70.19
Transferable tangible assets 187 192,914,475 9.54
Non-transferable tangible assets 3 51.96 1,038,770,094 51.38
Advances to suppliers for plant assets 8.2 187,342,033 9.27

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 43,726,922 2.16
Intangible assets 43,726,922 2.18

FINANCIAL ASSETS 124,646,302 85,265,572 4,22
Investments 117,020,509 75,735,994 3.75
Securities £ 328 3.80 78,326 0.00
Long term financial receivables from affiliates £, 165, 77 2,408,316 0.12
Long term financial receivables ,581,48 .29 7,042,936 0.35

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS (2 +3 +4) 1,718,777,468 1,548,019,096  76.57

TOTAL ASSETS (1+5) 2,262,181,370 2,021,680,748 100.00
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i 12.81.2009 12,38.2000
Sulretal Tetal % Subtotal %
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
1. CURRENT LIABILITIES 856,188,402 3748 712,786,884 35,26
Advance payments and security deposits from customers 41,891,309 184 29,139,303 1.44
Accounts payable - suppliers 339,177,040 14,99 266,396,737 13.18
Affiliate payables 5,030,770 0.22 6,721,038 0.33
Parent company payables:
- current account 60,173,067 256 74,878,718 3.70
- other payables 6,457,245 0.29 45,952,787 2.27
Taxes payable 38,131,802 146 51,167,871 2.53
Social security and workmen's compensation payables 13,345,017 8.52 12,052,674 0.60
CCSE payables 4,943,133 0.22 19,957,142 0.99
Personnel payables 7.864,601 0.35 8,645,028 0.43
Other debt and payables 00,364,286 4,00 32,482,120 1.61
Short-term bank debt 247,506,210 18,84 161,000,246 7.96
Accrued expenses and deferred credits 8,149,524 0,36 4,393,220 0.22
l
2. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES W20 1980 226,743,598 11,22
Medium and tong-term bank debt 94,363,276 4,17 34,925,692 1.73
Debt to other financial institutions 8,831,305 0.24 58,497,843 2.89
Employee’ leaving entitlement 61,786,638 2.78 60,783,282 3,01
Reserve for future expenses 208,124 0.01
Reserve for deferred taxes 24,798,763 109 16,371,531 0.81
Reserve for specific risks 75,822,966 3,96 55,957,125 2.77
3. SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 1,999,900,008 8610 1,074,019,408  53.13
Share capital 936,024,648 41,38 929,646,898 45,08
Legal reserve 64,098,660 2.83 62,554,718 3.09
Other reserves 61,035,736 2,70 52,226,927 2.58
Consolidation reserve 28,762,232 127 191,428 0.01
Retained earnings (61,640,564) (@.72) (45,095,083) (2.23)
Net income for the period 105,088,968 &84 74,494,519 3.68
4. MINORITY INTERESTS 40,868,002 047 8,130,858 0,40
Minority interest in shareholder’s equity 10,565,002 047 8,130,858 0.40
5. TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 1,143,875,000 50.57 1,082,150,266 53.53
6.  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 2,262,181,370 100,00 2,021,680,748 100.00
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1 ATOERTS 0 e Consalideted 12.31,2001 12,91.2000
| Stibtetall Toal B Subel 0 TRl %

REVENUES 2,192,813,8639 1080 767,259,272 100.0
Sale of power to other electric companies 80,362.64 54 15,273,800 2.0
Sale of electricity to tied customers 287 > | 169,133,337 22.0
Sale of electricity to eligible customers 125,185,406 6 54,160,218 7.1
Sale of gas to users 427,702, Wk 349,978,760 45.%
Sates of heat , 8 15,511,613 2.0
Services to affiliates 3,137, 21 3,485,051 0.5
Services to users ’ ; 3,142,640 0.4
Services to Municipality of Milan 3,872,955 3 35,680,974 4.7
Services provided on behalf of third parties 111 9.0 52,296,942 6.8
Changes in pending contracts 109,332} 0 1,492,443 0.2

4

Connection fees 12,963, 1.2 ! 11,387,069 1.5
Other current period revenues : B ! 16,189,891 2.1

Total revenues 1,008,174,080 Z . 721,732,738 94.8
Electricity Equalisation Fund contributions 9,943,219 3 39,526,534 5.2

OPERATING COSTS 720,308,460 454,656,863 59.3
Purchase of fuel and power 458,537,661 L 309,182,604 40.3
Materials | 2391913 2.3 10,294,248 1.3
Delivering fees 48,233,917 18,777,340 2.4
Contracts and other work 45,5684,97% 1 41,815,966 5.5
Services | 32,329,292 46,589,060 6.1
Lease and rental expense 22,074,394 7.1 9,410,361 1.2
Charge for extraction of hydroelectric power 68,730,957
Mountain municipalities contributions and water diversion fees i 5,848,033 5,958,363 0.8
Taxes and duties for the period 6.078,44 0. 5,389,228 0.7
Other operating expenses 3367) te 7,239,693 0.9

VALUE ADDED (A -B) 562,917,416 312,602,410

PERSONNEL EXPENSES 108,976,860 111,701,364

GROSS OPERATING INCOME (EBITDA) (C-D) 273,938,553 X 200,901,046

AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND PROVISIONS OB, A0, 774 ! 79,040,460
Depreciation of tangible assets 61,158,358 ! 58,081,394
Amortization of intangible assets 29, 2 4.8 16,602,473
Provisions to allowance for doubtful receivables 3,318,735 3 1,703,602
Provisions/uses of risk reserves 23,032,660 23 | 2,652,991

OPERATING INCOME (EBIT) (E-F) 165,493,779 . 121,860,586
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H.  RESULTS OF GROUP COMPANIES VALUED AT NET EQUITY (8,268,988)  (@8) (11,298,528)  (L.5)
I FINANCIAL EXPENSES B1B98,249 29 23,896,690 3.1
Interest expense on current account with the Municipality of Milan 2,885,785 0.3 2,171,930 0.3
Write-downs of equity investments 8,968,108 08 5,631,300 0.9
Other financial interest 19,891,346 18 15,093,460 2.0
L. FINANCIAL INCOME 12,017,410 1.8 15,293,838 2.0
QOther financial income 14,017,410 1.3 15,293,838 2.0
M. TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES) (L -~1) (27,707880) (a6 (8,602,852) (1.1}
N.  INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM (G + H + M) 143,998,957 126 101,959,206 133
0.  EXTRAGRDINARY INCOME (EXPENSES) (2.882,004) (@. (2,256,461) (0.3}
P.  INCOME BEFORE TAXES (N + 0 ) 138,901,663 12.5 99,702,745 13.0
Q. TAXES 21,978,441 2B 25,070,650 3.3
Income taxes 34,900,446 3.1 27,891,333 3.6
Advance tax payments (12,071,257) (1.6) (11,746,181) (1.5)
Deferred taxes 8,947,252 0.8 8,925,498 1,2
R.  INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS 107,523,222 9.7 74,632,095 9.7
S.  MINORITY INTERESTS (2,434,234) (0.2) (137,576) 0.0
T.  NET INCOME 105,088,988 9.4 74,494,519 9.7
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\ ., -purstiant to Articte 153 of Legistative Decree 58/59 ana paragraph 3, Article 2429 of the Civil Code

(Translation from the original issued in Italian)

Dear Shareholders,
The Board of Directors has provided this Audit Committee with the AEM Group consolidat-
ed financial statements as required by law.

As previously mentioned, the events which took place during the financial year were;

o the merger by incorporation of the subsidiary Triveneta Gas S.p.A. into its parent com-
pany Serenissima Gas S.p.A. which took place on April 20, 2001 and whose effect was
retroactive to January 1, 2001.

c the constitution of the company AEM Trading S.r.l. on March 15, 2001;

o the acquisition of the entire authorised capital in the formerly affiliate company Zincar
Sl

As a result, the consolidated financial statements for the 2001 fiscal period now inctude
nine companies compared to the eight of the previous year.

There are now fully consolidated the subsidiaries AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., AEM Elettricita
S.p.A., AEM Gas S.p.A., AEM Energia S.p.A., AEM Service S.r.l., AEM Trading S.r.l.,
Metroweb S.p.A., Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and Zincar S.r.l. and business relations between
them and the parent company have been eliminated in compliance with the provisions of
law.

The affiliates Fastweb S.p.A., Malpensa Energia S.r.l., Societd Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A.,
Metsni Plinovodi d.c.o., Bovisa Sviluppo S.p.A., Electrone S.p.A., Alagaz S.p.A. and
Plurigas S.p.A. were evaluated in the consolidated balance sheet by the net equity
method.

The 49% stake acquired in e-Utile S.p.A., the 25% stake acquired in Consorzio Italpower
and the 30% stake acquired in Consorzio 3A were all valued at cost.

Lastly, the equity investments in other companies were evaluated in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet by the cost method.

The equity investment in Laritel S.r.l. was reclassified fo “other equity investments” since
the quota held fell from 30% to 6.19% due to AEM S.p.A. not subscribing to the capital
increase decided by this company.

The value of the equity investment in e-Biscom S.p.A. was prudentially adjusted.

The Committee has noted, in compliance with that specified in the Notes to the financial
statements, that the consolidated balance sheet was prepared on the basis of financial
statements from the subsidiaries and affiliates approved by their respective shareholders’
meetings or, failing this, on the basis of draft financial statements approved by their
respective Boards of Directors.

The consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2001 record net income for the
period of € 105,088,988, total assets of € 2,262,181,370, consolidated net equity of
€ 1,028,220,920 net of minority interests in the period income and in shareholders’ equi-
ty. Contingencies amount to € 252,839,478.




those used for preparing the financial statements for AEM S.p.A. and the subsidiary com-
panies, thus requiring that no adjustments or reclassifications were made for purposes of
compatibility. These criteria comply with Articles 34 and 35 of Legislative Decree 127/91.

The Committee acknowledges that it has verified the compliance of accounting formats and
principles that were used and indicated in the notes to financial statements with: the laws,
regulations enacted by CONSOB, accounting principles enacted by accountants and busi-
ness consultants and the accounting principles recommended by the I.AS.C. -
International Accounting Standard Committee, and has checked the appropriateness of
these formats and principles in relation to the Group's operations.

The Committee also acknowledges that it verified the ccorrespondence of financial state-
ments with facts and information that the Audit Committee had at its disposal following
its participation in meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee and after
performing its monitoring duties and exercising its inspection and control powers.

As a result, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial state-
ments correctly express the asset and economic situation of the AEM Group for the period

ending December 31, 2001.

Milan, 11 April 2002

The Audit Committee
Dr Piero Lonardi

Dr Michele Cattaneo

Dr Italo Bruno Vergalio
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AUDITORS’ REPCRT
pursuant to article 156 of Legisiative Decree of Februery 24, 1998, n. 58
(Translation from the original ltelian text)

To the Shareholders
of Aem S.p.A.

1. We have audited the consolidated finamcial statements of Aem S.p.A. zs of
and for the year ended December 31, 2001. These consolidaied finamcial
statements are the responsibility of Aem Sp.As menagement. Cur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolideted fimemeial
statements besed on our audit.

Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards and precedures
recommended by CONSCOB (the Itsliem Stock Exchenge Regulatory
Ageney) (1). In accordance with such standards and procedures we plenned
and performed our audit to obtain the information necessary in order to
determine whether the consolidated financial statements e materially
misstated and if such comsolidated financial statements, taken as 2 whols,
may be relied upon. An sudit includes examining, on 2 test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolideted fimamcial
staternents, as well as assessing the appropristensss of the accounting
principles gpplied end the reesonsbleness of the estimates mede by
menagement. We belisve that our audit provides & ressoneble besis for our
opinion.

For the opinion on the consolidated financial stetements of the prior yess,
which are presented for comparative purposss as required by the law,
reference should be made to our report dated April 10, 2001,

I our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of Aem S.p.A. comply
with the Italian (1) regulations governing consolidated fnancial statements;
accordingly, they clearly presemt and give e true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of Aem S.p.A. as of December 31, 2001, and
the consolidated results of its operations for the year then ended.

Milan, April 8, 2002
Reconta Emmst & Young S.p.A.

signed by: Pellegrino Libroia
(paztner)

(1) Words added in wensletion from originel Kalian text

& Reconta Ernst & Young 5.p.A.
Sede Legale: 00196 Roma - Via G, D. Romagnosi 18/A
Capitale Sociale € 1.043.330,00 iv.
Iscritta alla $.0. del Registro delle Imprese presso la C.CLAA, di Roma
Codice fiscale e numero di iscrizione 00434000584
{vecchio numero R.1. 6697/89 - numero R.E.A. 250904}
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_MARCO CINGOLANI was bern in Come on February 21, 1961 and has been living |
and working in Milan sinee 1978, In his works, space and colour beeome CONPEVETS
off meaning which glve (ije to an autencmeus censiruetion rejlecting an ethical prej- |
@et. There are ne soeially committed ariists, just aesthetically commitied artiots:s this |
{s the motte which Clngeladl often loves te repeat.

When [ patng, | have to aceumulate many palntings bejore semething emerges. |
start them end then leave them e rest. Then [ go baek to Hem, concel them and [finish
lhenm, semetimes. [ve ot the bad habit of resting one painting en tep off anciher, with
the painted side facing out, 4o My eyes are used fe sezing @ riet of colours jrem ol andies.
Reprinted frem “Seelete ¢nenime del celere” 4
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Listed on the Italian Stock Exchange since 1998, AEM S.p.A. (called just AEM from here
on) is a multi-energy company and the teading company in Italy in the management of
public utility services.

The main areas where the AEM Group operates are: electricity, gas and heat, telecommu-

nications and services which include the public and artistic lighting of Milan.

_ELECTRICTYY

_Generation

_AEM S.p.A.

AEM has seven hydroelectric plants with installed capacity of 593 MW (megawatts), four
reservoirs in Valtellina, and a thermoelectric plant located in Cassano d'’Adda having gen-
eration capacity of 550 MW,

Since October 1, 2001, AEM’s generating plants are being managed by AEM Trading S.r.l.
through a specific agreement which acknowledges the fixed production costs to AEM as
well as the return on the capital invested.

_Transmission

_AEM TRASMISSIONE S.p.A.

Through 1,092 km of high-voltage electric power lines, this company links AEM's genera-
tion plants to the medium and low-voltage distribution system of AEM Elettricita S.p.A.
The high-voltage lines form part of the national trasmission network managed by the
Gestore Rete Trasmissione Nazionale (GRTN).

_Trading and sales to eligible customers

_AEM ENERGIA S.p.A.

This is within the company Group which has been purchasing and selling electricity to eli-
gible customers in the free electricity market. From October 1, 2001 the supply of whole-
sale electrical power has been carried out by AEM Trading S.r.L.

From January 1, 2002 this company will take over all the sales of natural gas.

_AEM TRADING S.r.lL

In the last quarter of 2001, AEM Trading S.r.l. became the sole company authorised, for all
the companies in the AEM Group, to negotiate contracts for supplying natural gas with the
affiliated Plurigas S.p.A., both for use by AEM thermoelectric plants and for the non-indus-
trial use of AEM Gas S.p.A. customers. In addition, from October 1, 2001, AEM Trading S.r.L.
is responsible for AEM's generating plants, supplying electricity to AEM Energia S.p.A. and
AEM Elettricita S.p.A. for their respectively customers on the free and regulated market, as
well as gas for residential and industrial use to AEM Gas S.p.A.

AEM Trading S.r.l. is also active in the wholesale market for electricity, negotiating spot
purchase and sale contracts with other operators.




_ELECTRONE S.p.A.
A company created jointly between AEM Torino S.p.A., ACEA S.p.A. and the Swiss compa-
ny ATEL for selling electricity and other energy products to eligible customers.

_VALDISOTTO ENERGIA S.r.l.

A company created between Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A. and the municipal companies
distributing electricity in Sondrio, Tirano, Morbegno and Chiavenna, with the purpose of
to manage the trader activity of electric power.

_Distribution and sale

_AEM ELETTRICITA S.p.A.

Is the owner of the electric power network, in medium and low voltage, extending for
4,239 km and delivering electric power to over 50% of customers connected to the com-
pany's network within the city area of Milan and Rozzano and in a smaller percentage of
customers, within the adjacent municipalities.

_SOCIETA SERVIZI VALDISOTTO S.p.A.
Distributes electric power and provides the public lighting within the area of Valdisotto
Municipality.

_GAS AND HEAT

_Distribution and Sale

_AEM GAS S.p.A.

Provides to gas distribution and sale activities in the Milan metropolitan area and several
adjoining municipalities. The company owns a 9,373 km network of gas pipeline. AEM Gas

generates, distributes and sells heat in several districts of Milan and Sesto San Giovanni
through three thermal plants, five cogeneration plants and a distribution network extending
61 km.

_SERENISSIMA GAS S.p.A.

This company distributes and sells gas in the districts of San Dona di Piave and sur-
rounding areas in the Venice region, and also in the areas of Basiliano and surrounding
areas in the Udine region. The company owns a 590 km network of gas pipeline.

_MESTNI PLINOVODI d.o.0.

This company is based in Capodistria (Slovenia) and distributes natural gas in Slovenia,
holding concessions to install the gas supply and distribution network in sixteen Slovenian
municipalities.

_ALAGAZ

Headquartered in St. Petersburg (Russian Federation), this company is principally involved
in developing natural gas distibution networks within the Russian Federation, primarily in
the city of St. Petersburg.




MAE.PENSA ENERGIA S.r.l
Operates the methane cogeneration plant at Malpensa 2000 Airport, supplying this facili-
ty with electric power, heat and air conditioning.

_PLURIGAS S.p.A.

This company trades in natural gas, negotiating purchase contracts to primarily meet the
needs of partner companies which distribute and sell to end users and generate electrici-
ty by methane fed plants. The company is also active in selling gas directly to major eli-
gible customers.

_TELECOMMUX
_Broad band nelt
_METROWEB S,p.A.
This company had already installed more than 2,150 km fibre-optic network mainly in
Milan and in some of the adjacent cities. The company leases the fibre optic network to
other telecom company and Internet service providers.

_FASTWEB S.p.A.
This company sells innovative products in the sector of telecommunications, including inte-
grated broadband telecommunications services using Internet Protocol (IP) technology.

EJ“
_Urb

_AEM S p. A

The company is in charge of the urban lighting system (public and art tighting) in Milan
and surrounding areas for a total of some 110,004 public lights. It also maintains 690 traf-
fic-lights in Milan and Cassano d'Adda.

_Managemen? services

_AEM SERVICE S.r.l.

This company handles the relationship with retail customers for the Group’s companies and
other entities, operating as a call centre, back office-front office, meter reading and billing
services.

_Engineering

_BOVISA SVILUPPO S.p.A.

The purpose of this company is to research and manage projects for the development of
buildings and infrastructures for Milan Polytechnic University and AEM, as well as other
companies and public agencies.




_ZINCAR S.il.

The object of this company is the study and development of projects connected to envi-
ronmental sustainable urban mobility and the construction and management of plants and
industrial processes for the better use of energy.

_e-UTILE S.p.A.

This company, created on May 22, 2001, is a joint venture formed by AEM and Siemens
Informatica starting on January 1, 2002. The aim of this joint venture is to supply “IT
Solutions and Services” to operators active in the utilities sector.
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Revenues 7 [, 1 767.3 655.8
Value added : j 312.6 319.7
Personnel costs 09:. (111.7) (115.6)
Gross operating income (EBITDA) 272 200.9 204.1
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs e (79.0) (76.9)
Operating income (EBIT) I 121.9 127.2
Results of group companies valued at net equity (11.3) 0.1
Financial income and expenses ¢ (8.6) (2.2)
Extraordinary income (expense} o (2.3) 2.4
Income before taxes 99.7
Taxes (25.1)
Minority interest - - (0.1)
Net income b 74.5

Operating income/Revenues % o7 15.9%

_Revenues: € 1,112.5 million
_Gross operating income: € 273.Q million
_Net income: € 105.1 million

_ Frencl et (ilens of eurs) ] i : 1999 _

Net Investments 160.4
Cash flow (*) 295.3

(*) Profit, depreciation, amortisation, allocations and variations in the net working capital.

_Dividend per share: € 0.042
_Market capitalization
aé of December 31, 2001: € £,092 miilion

Balenes Sheet dete (@illens of cure)

Net capital employed
Equity of the Group including minority interests
Net financial position

_Energy delivered:

Opering det | 208 2000 oo

Energy delivered (*) (millions kWh) B ; 15,289 13,797
Customers served (thousand units) - 1,286 1,236
Employees average of years units - 1 2,750 2,835
Revenues per employee (thousands of euro) . ] 279 231
Productivity per employee (millions kWh per employee) 6] 5.56 4.86

(*) Gas distributed have been converted in kWh equivalent by multiplying cubic metres of methane by the
ratio of 8,250/860.




_Customers: 1,299,000
_Employees: 2,666 year's average

_Empmyees (years units average) PCustomers {thousands units)
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Dear Shareholders

The AEM Group’s net income in 2001 was € 105.1 million, some 41.1% higher
than a year earlier.

During 2001, AEM actively expanded the core business and rapidly reacted to the
opportunities created by the liberalization process of the energy market. Following a
business model which relates operations, markets and customers in a new way, with
a growing network of industrial connections and exchanges, the company invested
in generation plants and other strategic activities like distribution and marketing in
order to serve an increasing number of customers.

AEM is effectively managing the competition created by the liberalization of the energy
field, with its existing skills in this market and building a model a for expanding into new
areas of interest with an offer of additional services.

Committed to maintaining a relevant return for shareholders, the Board of Directors pro-
poses the distribution of € 0.042 dividend per share increasing compared of last year.

AR 4

.
_2001 performance

Revenues were € 1,112.5 million, which was a 45% increase over 2000 resulting from the
strategic actions pursued.

Gross operating income exceeded € 273.9 million (+ 36.4% on 2000). All the sectors
improved their contribution, but most of all in the generation and sale of electricity on
the free market and on sales to regulated market power.

AEM has been able to develop new opportunities within the context of deregulation of the
energy market, despite the reduction of margins and the cut in tariffs enforced by the
national requlator.

The € 105.1 million net income achieved is 41.1% higher than in 2000, which takes into
account prudential allocations to reserves and the adjustments to the values of financial
investments.

Annual costs were reduced with a growth in the productivity rate. Investments were made
in fixed assets for around € 187 million, with an increase for telecommunications network;

cash flow generated was € 197.2 million.

ROI increased from 10.2% to 12%, while ROE rose from 6.8% to 9.4%.




In the electricity sector, AEM achieved a significant 51.4% growth in generation capaci-
ty since 2000, totalling 4.644 million kWh.

The generating plants proved to have greater capacity and efficiency levels. Generation of
both hydroelectric power and thermoelectric power increased. Having completed the
repowering of Group 1 at the Cassano d’Adda thermoelectric plant, the combined cycle
plant began running at full power: the plant’s current power capacity has increased per-
formance by 50%, reduced consumption of fuel and drastically cut unitary costs.

From 2001, AEM has materialized a new business development model based on the trading
activity of energy on the free market, a preliminary step towards the start up of the nation-
al Electricity Exchange.

In the gas sector, expansion has continued through the acquisition of new customers and
of further urban networks such as Buccinasco and Rosate. The results achieved are due to
the combined effect of an increase in the average price and the higher quantity sold. These
created a year on year increase of 22.2% in revenues and 9.3% in the cubic meters of gas
distributed.

Growth also continued in district heating, thanks to new users, greater quantities of kWht
distributed and higher revenues.

In the telecommunications sector AEM through the subsidiary Metroweb and the affili-
ate Fastweb, has maintained its presence in the new market for using broadband services.
2001 saw investments being made for the laying of fibre optic networks in the metropol-
itan area of Milan, which will be completed in 2002, as well as in some of the nearby
provinces. There was also progress in commercial growth with the offer of phone and
advanced services to corporate and domestic customers.

Competitive advantage

Taking part in the Edipower consortium which acquired Eurogen from ENEL, AEM has pur-
sued a strategy of alliances with the aggregation of industrial and financial partners.
Industrial partners are players able to compete on the Italian and European markets, and
able to bring greater efficiency to the energy sector, reducing the costs of generation to
the benefit of the entire system of the country.

Edipower’s organisational model is based on tolling agreements between industrial part-
ners which withdraw the power generated by the plants in proportion to their share held.

AEM therefore has significant quantities of energy available to be competitive, particular-
ly through the further capacity from the Eurogen plants estimated at 7 billion kilowatt
hours after the repowering implementation.




_Strategic objectives

The scenario of the energy sector and the process of liberalization underway require a new
operating model and efficiency in the distribution of power and power services.

AEM intends concentrating its efforts on the production and commercial side, operating
along the power value chain through a network of infrastructures, market agreements and
added value services.

The strategic lines defined will result in tangible action giving priority to focusing on three
goals:

_L. [ncreasing the generation capacity

The aim is to reach an availability of 16 billion kilowatt hours which will result in gaining
a leading position in the national power market.

The growth in the generation of power will be brought about by further investments for
upgrading plants. Work is due to take place for the repowering of other groups in the ther-
moelectric plant at Cassano, and to create a Greenfield plant as well as the completion of
work on the Valtellina hydroelectric plants which are to be carried out with the least envi-
ronmental impact.

_2, Completing the strategic model

The strategic model of activities in the energy sector adopted by AEM is based on a great
trading capacity, through its own dedicated company, that represents a real competitive
advantage.

In addition AEM will apply a market strategy focusing on multi-services through the sale
to final users of specifc services developed from the existing skills of the AEM Group and
selected partner. Operational management, information services and communication tech-
nology are realized, with the affiliated company e-Utile, for clients that operate in local
public services.

_3. Expanding the market share

The expected growth in the market share is partly a result of the negotiations started with
ENEL relating the value of Milan’s distribution.

At the moment, there are being considered alternative decisions instead of the network
acquisition.

The strategy of expanding activities is continuing with investments on equity in smaller
power companies, such as the recent acquisition of a 24.9% stake in Agam located in
Monza.




_The future for AEM

AEM is looking with interest at a future of enormous opportunity in a free market of elec-
tricity, gas and telecommunications sectors in Italy and abroad. In this period of major
changes, the commitments of the management and all those who work at AEM have been
directed towards producing significant progress: A great thanks to all of them.

Giuligno Zuccoli, Chairman




On December 28, 2001, the AEM S.p.A. shares market price was € 2.273, a fall in value
average of 27% in line with the situation seen in the, MIB 30 Index affected by the strong-
ly negative context worldwide for financial markets.

AEM's total market capitalization at December 28, 2001 was € 4,092 million, some 163%
higher than at the time of the listing in July 1998.

Valumes of AEM shares traded in 2001, was high with an average daily volume of around
3.7 million shares traded.

_AEM - MIB 30 Index trend (July 23, 1998 = 100)
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The power of the Chairman and of the Directors are presented in the Corporate Governace chapter.
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Consolidated earnings by the AEM Group reached € 1,112.5 million, an increase of 45%
over the previous year when they stood at € 767.3 miltion.

This € 345.3 million increase in income over the previous year is a result of the positive
progress in the Group’s core business (electricity and gas) and of the high performance
achieved by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. in the area of the optic fibre network leas-
ing.

During this period under review, electric power generation increased a total of 51% year
on year, with hydroelectric production growing by 16% and thermoelectric production by
some 118%.

The guantity of electricity sold was 32% higher than in 2000,

Sales of electric power continued to be strong both in terms of acquisition of new elec-
tricity supply contracts on the free market and as a result of the higher average revenues
connected to the new tariff system.

The gas sector gave its own contribution to the result with a 9% increase in the gquanti-
ties sold over the 2000 period. Also the figures concerning the sale of heat substantially
improved, with an increase of 18%.

Another important component leading to the high revenues was income from services
which increased by € 54.6 million. Most of this increase was as a direct result of higher
earnings by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A.

External charges increased by € 274.9 million (+60%), due to variable costs including:

© costs for purchasing fuel and energy products, which increased by 52% because of the
increase in oil and fuel market prices and because of the higher quantities purchased and
produced;

¢ the higher delivering charges for electricity, by around € 30.5 miltion;

© the charge for hydroelectric extraction revenues of € 48.7 million. This tax only con-
cerns hydroelectric plants belonging to the former producer-distributor companies, and
from January 1 2001 is applied to all the hydroelectric production delivered to the free and
the regulated markets.

Consolidated added value stood at € 382.9 million, showing a year on year increase of
€ 70.3 miltion (+22.5%).

Personnel costs were € 109 million, with a decrease of € 2.7 million.

Gross operating income for the period was € 273.9 millien, a growth of 36.4% compared
to the € 200.9 miltion for the prior period.

Following the allocation of € 82.1 million as the allowance for depreciation and amortiza-
tion, and an allocation of € 26.3 million to the risk and expense reserves, which largely
referred to the provisions made by AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and AEM Gas S.p.A. for the appli-
cation of the new tariff system, the consolidated operating income was € 165.5 miltion,
equalling 14.9% of consolidated revenues and showing an increase of € 43.6 million com-
pared to 2000 (+35.8%).
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The part of results from those Group companies valued at net equity changed from
-€ 11.3 million in 2000 to -€ 7.0 million in 2001; this result was helped by the lower loss
relating the affiliated company Fastweb S.p.A.

Net financial expenses increased from —€ 8.6 million to -€ 17.8 million, both as a result
of average borrowing and because of increased write downs of financial assets during the
period (particularly E.Biscom S.p.A., written down by around € 8.2 million in 2001 against
£ 6.6 million in 2000).

Income before tax and before minority interests were therefore € 138.9 miltion, growing
by 39.3% since the previous period.

Tax for the period amounted to € 31.4 million, against € 25.1 million of the prior year,
earlier, and takes into account the deferred tax assets and liabilities calculated in relation
to the temporary differences existing between civil and consolidated income.

The consolidated net income for the period, net of minority interests, was € 105.1 million
(€ 74.5 million in the previous period).

The economic performance for the period, compared to the previous year, is summarised in
the following table:

of eure 32312000 %hon 12302000 Shon  Ghenges %
| FRVRRL | feeae 04/80
i = s e—— S eeee s semms - s meem Y ey

Revenues 1,192,316  900.0 @ 767,259  100.0 345257  45.0

Revenue from sales P2,183,17% 99.2 | 727,733 94.8 375,442 51.6
Equalisation Fund subsidies | 9,341 08 | 39,526 5.2 (30,185) (76.4)

Value added L 982917 344 | 312,602 407 70,315 22.5
Personnel costs . (108.978)  (9.8) = (111,701)  (14.6) 2,723 (2.4)

Gross operating income - |

EBITDA .93 200,901 26.2 73,038 36.4
Depreciation and ‘ ;
amortisation 1‘ 82,394 (7.4) (74,684) (9.7) (7,410) 9.9

Provisions (28.35%)  (2.4) (4.356) (0.6) (21,995) 504.9
Operating income - EBIT @ 265 14.9 121,861 15.9 43,633 35.8

Results of Group companies

valued at net equity | (8,9%3) {0.8)
Financiat income and

expenses 17,798 {1.8) (8,603) (1.1) (9,195) 106.9

{11,299) (1.5) 4,316 (38.2)

i

Income before : :
extraordinary items | 146,743 12,6 . 101,959 13.3 38,754 38.0
Extraordinary income |

(expenses) i {uedy) (@G@EVJ (2,256) 445 (19.7)
Income before taxes 133902 135 9,703 39,199 39.3
Taxes 31,379) (2.8) (25,071) (6,308) 25.2
Income before minority :
interests

i
1 .
L 107,328 @ 97 | 74,632 . 32,891 44,1
Minority interests ; (2.434) ©.2) (137) . (2,297) 1,676.6

Net income 105,089 9.4 74,695 . 30,594 41,1

i
l

_Balance Sheet
Net invested capital as of December 31, 2001 was € 1,555,1 million, showing an increase
of € 142.9 million from a year earlier. Net investments in tangible and intangible assets




were € 192.8 million and € 20.7 million respectively. Long-term equity investments grew
by € 41.3 million. Working capitat fell by € 19.8 million.

On the sources of funds side, consolidated shareholders’ equity increased by € 61.8 mil-
lion, mostly as a result of the difference between the group’s attributable income for
the period of € 105,01 million, the dividends of € 74.4 million distributed by the par-
ent company AEM S.p.A. during the year, and the reporting in the consolidation reserve
of the capital gain arising from the valuation by the equity method of the subsidiary
Fastweb S.p.A., equalling € 28.6 million following on the increase in capital fully sub-
scribed by the other shareholder E-Biscom, with payment of a stock premium.

The group’s consolidated net financial position deteriorated by € 100.9 million since
December 31, 2000, mostly as a result of the financial needs arising from investments
made by the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A.

The following table compares consolidated shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2001
and year end 2000:

i L ey

j \

o eure 12.8%,2000 % 12.84,2000 % %
@1/00

Invested capital |

Net non-current assets 1,555,105 1061 1,412,212 108.4 142,893 10.1

Working capital _ (89,912) 6.2) | (109,692) (8.4) 19,780 (18.0)

Total invested capital 1,465,193 100.0 1,302,520 100.0 162,673 12.5

Sources of funding

Shareholders’ equity (1,143,875) 78:4 (1,082,150) 83.1 (61,725) 5.7

Total financial position

after the following period (98,450) 6.7 | (90,937) 7.0 {7,513) 8.3

Total financial position |

within the following period (222,868) 15.2 (129,433) 9.9 (93,435) 72.2

Total net financial position | (821,398) 239 | (220,370) 16.9 (100,948) 45.8

Total sources (1,465,193)  100.0 (1,302,520) 100.0  (162,673)  12.5
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| tousznds of cum | 12.31.200%

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Depreciation and amortisation

Changes in assets and liabitities -

Total L:i

CASH FLOW IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net capital expenditures in tangible, intangible and financial
assets

1978

105,009
82,004

|
|

12313600

(254,755)

Total (s

FREE CASH FLOW

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in bank debt

Decrease in financial receivables

Decrease in debt to other financial institutions

Decrease in current account debt due to the Municipality
of Milan

Increase in shareholders’ equity

Net income distributed

Total

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE PERIOD

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

Net cash and cash equivalents

Financial receivables

Owed to current account with the Municipality of Milan
Debt to other financial institutions

Bank debt

Total

(57,588)

145,944

(33,167)

|

'

(14,706} -

31,005
(4,372}

. 4are

(1, 85)
99,655
8,812

1

|
|

74,495
74,684
20,787

169,966

(301,791)
(301,791)

(131,825)

(35,714)
(8,798)
54,214

(35,926)
1,363
(106,909)

(131,770)

(263,595)
363,251

99,656

99,656
9,276
(74,879)
(58,498)
(195,925)

(220,370)

The statement of cash flows shows that the year's operating activities generated consoli-
dated cash flows of € 192.7 million (€ 170 million in the 2000 period). Investing activi-
ties used € 254.8 million and group financing activities during the year generated
resources of € 42.7 million mostly as a result of the increase in bank borrowing.

Consolidated net change in cash and eguivalent decreased through the year by € 14.8 mil-
lion to € 84.8 million at December 31, 2001 (compared to € 99.7 million at December 31,

2000).




The following table provides a condensed breakdown of the AEM Group’s net financial
indebtedness for the specified years:

| L

of 12.99.2001 12.99.2000 |

\
Medium/long-term financial assets l 1,244 2,487
Medium/long-term financial liabilities L (99,695) (93,424)
Medium/long-term financial indebtedness | (©8,481) (90,937)
Short-term financial indebtedness (307,679) (235,879)
Short-term financing activities 84,822 | 106,446
Short-term net financial indebtedness L ((@@@?))_J (129,433)
Total indebtedness/net financial position (321,318) (220,370)

dnouy Ww3v—

Y
=
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AEM S.p.A. recorded income of € 35.5 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001,
net of attributable taxes (+19.5% year on year).
Revenues record a total amount of € 397.3 million, due to the earnings achieved among
the subsidiaries for sale of power, sales of materials, and provision of services, from rev-
enues for services to the Municipality of Milan and for third parties, as well as for servic-
es to affiliated companies. Compared to the previous year, this is an increase of 31.2%.
Following the external charges of € 273.5 million sustained during the year, the value
added figure hecame € 123.8 million while the cost of labour was € 60.3 million, leading
to a gross operating income (EBITDA) of € 63.5 million, some 16% of revenue (+49,2%).
After the € 29.4 million allowance for ordinary depreciation and the € 3.3 million alloca-
tion to risks and expenses reserves, the aperating income (EBIT) was € 30.8 million
equalling 7.7% of revenue.
The positive balance of both financial operations (at € 17.7 million) and extraordinary
operations (at € 1.6 million) led to a pre-tax income of € 50.1 million (+15.4%). Income
tax for the period totalled € 14.6 million and relates to the allocation for current taxes of
€ 12.4 million, and to deferred taxes tiabilities of € 1.6 million and deferred tax assets of
€ 0.6 million calculated in order to achieve the correct tax charges for the period elimi-
nating the interference of a tax nature not justified under civil terms.

_Income Stai

The following table shows the performance for the year:

i i
¢ Hhewsands of eure 12.3%.2001  %en 12.89.2008 2 Hew
L 1
Revenues ' 297,235 1000 ‘ 302,795  100.0 94,460 31.2

Revenue from sales 388,107 97.7 264,545 87.4 123,562 46.7
Equalization Fund
contribution 9,148 ?\,3 ! 38,250 12.6 (29,102) (76.1)

Value added 128,78 31.2 2 | 111,136 36.7 12,645 11.4

S -

@C,Bag‘ ”332‘7 (68,600) (22.7) 8,271 (12.1)

Personnel cost

H

Gross operating income i
EBITDA 68,452 1640 42,536 14.0 20,916 49,2

Depreciation and
amortisation (29,406) (7.4) (32,337) (10.7) 2,931 (9.1)
Provisions (3.276) \MGL (2,622) (0.9) (654) 24.9

Operating income - EBIT 30779 W7 7,577 2.5 23,193  306.1

Financial income and
expenses ] 17.58 . 3 18,426 6.1 (745) (4.0)

Income before ;
extraordinary items 48450 122 | 26,003 8.6 22,448 86.3

Extraordinary income ]
(expenses) | 1,527 04 17,382 5.7 (15,755) {(90.6)

I
Income before taxes ] 50,078 12,6 43,385 14.3 6,693 15.4
Taxes L (14610)  (30) | (3702)  (45) (908) 6.6

Net income 35,468 8.9 29,683 0.8 5,785 19.5
f l




_Balance Sheet
Net invested capital as of December 31, 2001 amounts to € 2,005.2 million, an increase
of € 16.3 mitlion compared to December 31, 2000 (+0,8%).

Net investments in tangible and intangible assets were € 12 million. Long-term equity
investments show a net increase of € 19.9 million. Working capital increased by € 15.3
mitlion.

On the sources of funds side, shareholders’ equity was down € 38.9 million resulting from
the difference between the income for the period of € 35.5 million and the dividends dis-
tributed by AEM S.p.A. during the year.

The following table compares shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2001 and year end

2000:

[ | i

* ofgeio) 12.31.2001 % 12.9%.2000 % Changes %

! 01/00
Invested capital |
Net non-current assets 1,885,527 9.0 [ 1,984,538 99.8 989 0.0
Working capital 19,702 1.0 | 4,409 0.2 15,293 347
Total invested capital 2,005,229 100.0 1,988,947 100.0 16,282 0.8
Sources of funding

Shareholders’ equity ' (1,904,594) 95,0 (1,943,495) 97.7 38,901 (2.0)
Total financial position

after the following period (9,252) 0.5 (2,845) 0.1 (6,407) 225
Total financial position

within the following period | (91,383) 4.8 (42,607) 2.1 (48,776) 114
Total net financial position | (100,885) 520) (45,452) 2.3 (55,183) 121

Total sources (2,005,229) 100.0 (1,988,947) 100.0 (16,282) 0.8
f !
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{housands of eure

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Depreciation and amortisation

Changes in assets and liabilities

Total

CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net capital expenditures in tangible, intangible and financial
assets ! 131.965) (187,491)

FREE CASH FLOW ! (100,636)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES |
Change in shareholders’ equity 3 -
Increase in bank debt 30,987 -
Decrease in financial receivables ? (8,812)
Decrease in current account debt to subsidiaries (39,515} (15,642)
Increase in debt to other financial institutions . 1,047
Decrease in current account debt due to the Municipality i '

of Milan (14,708) (35.926)
Net income distributed : (96,397) (106,909)

Total L (e8p7) (166,242)

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (70,388) (266,878)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD | 87,205 354,173
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE PERIOD ! 16,910 87,295

NET FINANCIAL POSITION
Net cash and cash equivalents 16,910 87,295
Financial receivables 1,244, 9,276
Owed to current account with the Municipality of Milan (68,573} (74,879)
Bank debt ! 30,980, -
Debt to other financial institutions : 5,33%) (5,331)
Owad to current account with subsidiaries ' o {22,298) (61,813)

Total L (100633) | (45,452)

The statement of cash flow shows that the year’s operating activities generated a cash flow
of € 51.1 mitlion (€ 86.8 million in 2000), while investing activities used € 31.9 million.

The group’s financing activities during the year used € 89.6 million arising from the dis-
tribution of the 2000 dividend for € 74.4 million and the € 14.7 million decrease owed to
the current account of AEM S.p.A. with the Municipality of Milan, as well as the decrease
in amounts owed in the current account to subsidiaries.

Net change in cash and equivalent decreased through the year by € 70.4 million to € 16.9
million as of December 31, 2000 (€ 87.3 million as of December 31, 2000).

The company’s net financial position deteriorated by € 55.2 million, giving a negative bal-
ance of € 100.6 mitlion.




The following table provides a condensed breakdown of AEM's net financial indebtedness o =Sl
for the specified years: 3

| L
oifelie 12.82,2001 12.81.2000
)
Medium/long-term financial assets ] 1,244, 2,486
Medium/long-term financial liabilities (10,486) {5,331)
Medium/long-term financial indebtedness (8,252) (2,845)
Short-term financial indebtedness {1.90,616) (161,625)
Short-term financing activities 99,233 119,018
Short-term net financial indebtedness (91,388) (42,607)
Total indebtedness/net financial position (100,635) (45,452)
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_Italian energy market =~
During 2001, 84.2% of electricity demands were covered by domestic production, with the
remainder as imports. The mix of domestic production comes 19.7% from hydroelectric
sources, 78.4% from thermoelectric plants and 1.97% from geothermal and wind power
sources. When compared with electricity generation in 2000, it can be seen that hydro-
electric production grew (+8.2%), with falls from both thermoelectric production (-0.6%)
and geothermal sources (-4.2%), and a growth in wind-powered generation (+45.2%},
although this last only supplies 0.3% of domestic production.

_Regulations and tariffs

From January 1, 2001 Resolution 238/00 came into force whereby the Italian Authority for
Electricity and Gas reduced the tariff component for covering fixed production costs for
electricity sold on the tied market by 20%.

This provision by the Authority was revoked by the Regional Administrative Councit for
Lombardy with a sentence on July 31, 2001. Until such time as a sentence is delivered
regarding the appeal presented by the Authority to the Council of State, the sale tariffs
and prices of electricity produced have not changed.

The Authority has also provided, by Resolution 230/00 taking effect as of January 1, 2001,
for the abolition of contributions to the production of electric power paid by the
Equalisation Fund - Electricity Sector, incorporating the component covering variable pro-
duction costs in the tariff itself.

The price structure therefore remains that already defined by the Authority through
Resolution 205/99 which includes a component for covering fixed production costs, dif-
ferentiated by time bracket, and & component to cover variable costs, not differentiated
by time bracket, equalling the unitary cost permitted for electricity produced by thermo-
electric plants.

Following the abolition of the heat charge account with the Equalisation Fund - Electricity
Sector, the Authority has established the method for calculating the extra price for access
and usage of the national grid for electricity generated by hydroelectric and geothermal
plants in 2000 and for the years 2001 to 2006.

This extra price, which is only applied to producing/distributing companies at the date of
issuance of the Bersani decree (March 16, 1999) is a portion, decreasing over the years,
of the difference between the wholesale price of electric power and the costs acknowl-
edged by the Authority to cover the fixed costs of such plants.

AEM S.p.A., together with other hydroelectric power producers, has taken steps to contest
these provisions, maintaining that they are seriously damaging to competition since they
are only applied to producer/distributor companies and in contrast with the basic princi-
ples of the tariff regulations defined by law 481/95. The Regional Administrative Court
rejected the request for repeal for formal reasons. AEM is waiting to hear the sentence
passed by the Council of State with which it has lodged an appeal.

With Resolution 114/01, the Italian Authority for Electricity and Gas has also defined the
method for calculating and updating some of the parameters used for determining the
“stranded costs”.

Stranded costs are the production costs relating to commitments taken with electricity
companies prior to deregulation, which cannot be recovered due to the opening of the
market and which negatively affect companies’ profitability. Their recovery is governed by
the decree of January 26, 2000 issued by the Ministry for Industry together with the
Treasury.

In July 2001, the Authority checked, for those subjects applying for the authorization nec-
essary for constructing electricity generating plants from renewable or similar sources,




compliance with the obligations of paragraph 2, Article 15 of Legislative Decree 79/99 (the
“Bersani” decree). With Resolution 151/01, the Authority informed the governmental cor-
poration Gestore delle Rete di Trasmissione Nazionale S.p.A., ENEL S.p.A. and the
Equalisation Fund - Electricity Sector, about this provision.

In August there was distributed the plan of measures regarding the “conditions for
acknowledging combined production of electricity and heat as cogeneration”.

The start-up of Group 1 at the Cassano d’Adda thermoelectric plant, which began commer-
cial operations from February 1, 2001, has given the expected results, increasing the gross
yield from 37% to over 50%. This strong improvement will make it possible to reduce con-
sumption of fuels and to considerably reduce unitary costs.

On the basis of Resolution 62/01 implementing Resolution 70/97, AEM S.p.A. has obtained
from the Equalisation Fund a reimbursement of € 8.5 million regarding the period 1998-
2000 as a result of the shutdown of the thermoelectric plant at the Cassano power plant
in the second half of 1997,

As of October 1, 2001, AEM S.p.A. has entered into two agreements with AEM Trading S.r.L.

for contracting out the thermoelectric and hydroelectric plants.

The total gross production of electrical . .
_Electric power generation
power as of December 31, 2001 was 4,644 . [ snuiion ewn
mitlion kWh.
The gross production of hydroelectric power
was 2,311 million kWh which, over the same
period in 2000, had been 1,997 million
kWh.
The gross production of thermoelectric
power was 2,333 million kWh which was
mostly obtained by using methane. In 2000,
production was 1,070 million kWh.
In the first three quarters of 2001, AEM S.p.A.
sold 2,209.5 million kWh to the subsidiary
AEM Elettricita S.p.A., which distributes elec-
tricity connected to its network in Milan, 650
million kWh to the subsidiary AEM Energia
S.p.A., which sells power on the market of eli-
gible customers, and 442 million kWh as
water excess. Over the whole of the 2001
period AEM S.p.A. sold 13.7 million kWh to O3 Hydroetectric
the affiliate Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A.,
which distributes electrical power to its cus-
tomers connected to the network of the
Municipality of Valdisotto and transferred 26.4 million kWh to the GRTN produced by hydro-
electric plants with flowing water with power capacity up to 3 MW (resolution 82/99 from
the Italian Authority for Electricity and Gas).

]

1,946
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] Thermoelectric

[] Total electric power

Gross production in the last quarter of 2001, carried out on behalf of AEM Trading S.r.l. in
application of the aforementioned contracts, was generated by hydroelectric plants for 461
million kWh and by thermoelectric plants for 718 million kWh.
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_Earnings

Revenues produced in 2001 were € 282 million of which € 232 million from the electric
power generated in the first nine months of the period, and € 30 million from rentals of
production plants to AEM Trading S.r.L.

The following table presents the financial highlights of AEM S.p.A. - Generating Division
as of December 31, 2001.

| REM S - safllfons of cure 12.91.2001 92.91,2000

Revenues 282 188
Value added 118 83
Gross operating income 104 67
Operating income 46

_Plants and investment

Investments made by AEM S.p.A. Generating Division amount to € 46 million, of which
€ 33 million refers to hydroelectric power plants, particularly for the continuation of the
excavation work for the main tunnel in the New Viola Canal, the building work and the
valves chamber for the Premadio power plant, and the work to create Group 4 of the Grosio
power plant. Regarding the thermoelectric power plants, work totalling € 13 million was
done on the Cassano d'Adda power plant, particularly cancerning the completion of repow-
ering Group 1, the continuation of work for repowering Group 2 and the installation of the
fire prevention system in the oil storage area.
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- _Regulations and terlis
The Italian Authority for Electricity and Gas, with resolution 39/01, has changed and
approved the technical requlations for connecting to the network, in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph 6, Article 3 of Legislative Decree 79/99 (“Bersani” decree).
However, Resolution 59/01 has postponed the date of presenting the technical regulations
for measuring electric power by the GRTN; the investigation started by the Authority in
August 2000 on the action necessary for the adjustment and renewal of the measuring
complexes, has still not been completed.
In accordance with paragraph 8, Article 3 of Legislative Decree 79/99, on January 19, 2001
the Ministry for Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing approved the decree of December
22, 2000 which allows the GRTN to enter agreements with the individual companies own-
ing networks in order to govern the maintenance and development work on these and on
the devices interconnecting with other networks. The agreement with AEM Trasmissione
S.p.A. has not yet been issued.
With Resolution 304/01, the Authority approved the values of the parameters for calcu-
lating the fixed portion of the annual fee which the GRTN pays to owners of plants form-
ing part of the national grid to cover operating and maintenance costs, amortisation and
depreciation, and the returns on capital invested. These values are updated by the
Authority at the beginning of each regulatory period.

Earnings

AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., a company set up in order to comply with Article 3 of decree
79/1999, has performed maintenance and development of networks which, in the absence
of an agreement with the GRTN, have been carried out according to the scheduled main-
tenance plans already in place prior to the company's establishment.

During 2001, revenues were € 10.9 million, mostly made up of fees paid by the GRTN for
using the high voltage lines owned by the company for the service of transporting electric
power, destined for both the requlated and free markets.

The following table presents the financial highlights of AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. as of
December 31, 2001.

NEM] - of e ] 2312008

o 12.31.2000
Revenues 10.9 ‘ 8.1
Value added 6.6 6.7
Gross operating income l 5.5 5.5
Operating income | 2.2 2.3
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_Ttalian energy market SRS
During 2001, electric power demand exceeded 305 billion kWh, an increase of 2.3% ye
on year.

This growth was mostly concentrated in the months of January {(+5.7% on an annual basis),
July (+4.5%) and August (+3.4%). In the other months, more limited growth was record-
ed or, in some cases, a reduction in demand.

_Regulations and tariffs

The structure of the end-user tariff has changed significantly following the implementa-
tion of Resolution 238/00. By this provision, the Authority has taken steps, following the
abolition of the heat charge with the Equalisation Fund - Electricity Sector, to include in
the PG component of the final tariff, also the charges for covering the variable thermo-
electric production costs (at the same time abolishing part B of the tariff which the
Account increased).

In addition, in 2001 the gradual component GR, introduced in 2000 for all usage types
other than residential use in order to ensure the gradual transition to the new tariff sys-
tem, reduced 50% compared to a year earlier.

Through Resolution 136/01, the Authority also established the criteria for converting the
electricity and gas tariffs to Euro and how they are to be presented in bills. Companies had
the option of following the indications given in this resolution, and to bill consumption
in Euro as of July 1, 2001. This, however, became obligatory from January 1, 2002.

In February, the Authority circulated the briefing note which describes the criteria for cal-
culating the egqualization systems of distribution costs. This document, which follows that
issued in June 2000, is compiementary to the provision for reform of electricity supply tar-
iffs to end-users which took effect from January 1, 2000. The equalization systems of elec-
tricity distribution costs are necessary to maintain a single nationwide tariff despite their
being a range of distributors operating in areas differing in number of users, mountainous
and flat areas and the levels of cost of the service.

On May 3, 2001, the Ministry for Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing approved the
decree which defines the role and the main duties of the Acquirente Unico (Sole Buyer).
Acgquirente Unico is the company set up by the government corporation GRTN in accordance
with paragraph 1, Article 4 of Legislative Decree 79/99 (“Bersani” decree) whose main
objective is the purchase of electricity at the lowest price on the electricity market in order
to supply companies operating in distribution and sale to tied customers.

The Authority, with Resolution 178/01 of August 1, 2001, completed the system of rules
regarding the technical guality of the distribution service, defining a further index for
assessing the veracity of figures provided by the companies. Thereafter, with Resolution
183/01, the Authority postponed the determination of recoveries of continuity and
approval of requests for acknowledgement of costs sustained in 2000 to November 30,
2001. This date was further postponed to February 28, 2002 through Resolution 294/01 of
November 29, 2001. A

_Period highlights

On March 31, 2001 there was concluded the arbitration procedure, as required by paragraph
4, Article 9 of the Bersani decree, for the transfer of ENEL S.p.Als business branches ded-
icated to distribution of electric power in the Municipalities of Milan and Rozzano to AEM
Elettricita S.p.A., at a value calculated by the Board of Arbitration in € 423 miltion.

The company ENEL Distribuzione S.p.A., together with ENEL S.p.A., summonsed AEM S.p.A.
and AEM Elettricita S.p.A. to Court on May 24, 2001 to contest the results of the Board of
Arbitration. AEM has requested that ENEL's application be rejected and, in turn, has lodged
a counterclaim asking to check that the transfer takes place at the price determined by the
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Board of Arbitration. AEM has also requested compensation from ENEL for damages
incurred and being incurred for each day the business branch is inoperative.

On May 2, 2001, the Ministry for Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing entered an agree-
ment with AEM Elettricita S.p.A. which governs the concession of electricity distribution
in the Municipalities of Milan and Rozzano. The next day, May 3, 2001, the concession was
granted by the Ministry for Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing to AEM Elettricita S.p.A.
as the sole distributor, expiring on December 31, 2030, in accordance with paragraph 1,
Article 9 of Legislative Decree 79/99 (“Bersani” decree). On November 6, 2001, ENEL S.p.A.
and ENEL Distribuzione S.p.A. appealed with the Regional Administrative Council for
Lombardy against this granting of the concession to AEM Elettricita S.p.A. At the date of
approving these financial statements, the date for a hearing has still not been set by the
Regional Administrative Council for Lombardy and no precautionary judgement with imme-
diate effect has been requested, nor has there been presented an “act of withdrawal”, an
application which normally, in civil law, is requested for setting the date of the hearing for
settling the matter of the appeal.

The Authority has updated the parameters of the tariff, with application starting from
January 1, 2002. In particular, through Resolution 318/01, the new wholesale price of
electricity sold to the requlated market has been defined.

_Sales

During 2001, the guantity of electricity sold to tied customers was 2,887.6 GWh (inclusive
of inter-group sales), a reduction since 2000 of 141.9 GWh (~4.7%) due to some of the
major customers having removed to the open market. The volumes of power delivered have
considerably grown, reaching 594.4 GWh, an increase of 218.4 GWh compared to the pre-
vious period. Total electricity distributed to users connected to the AEM Elettricita S.p.A.
network was 3,482 GWh showing a total increase of 2.2%.

As regards demand in the various segments, other than inter-group sales, there can be seen
a growth in residential use (+16,5 GWh) and in the segment “other low voltage uses”
(+44.4 GWh), while sales fell in the segments “other uses in medium voltage” (about
-162.2 GWh) and “other uses in high voltage” (~44.1 GWh) which include almost all the
customers which left to go to the free market.

The power supplied to companies in the AEM Group, including all the “inter-company” sup-
plies, amount to 15.2 GWh.

In total, at December 31, 2001, there were around 439,700 customers, an increase of
around 3,100 customers since the previous period. They are mostly concentrated in the res-
idential sector and other low-voltage users.

Zarrnings
In 2001, revenues totalled € 310.2 million.
Revenues from sales of electricity on the regulated market, inclusive of revenues from
inter-company transfers, total around € 289.2 million, an increase of 70.5% since the pre-
vious period.
This increase is mainly due to direct income of the distributor of the component covering
variable production costs.
Revenues deriving from delivering services amount to € 6.6 million. The increase from a
year earlier is due to some of the major customers having moved to the free market.
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December 31, 2001.

-
L AN Eleiriea s o fetino) 12.52,2002 12.82.2000
{
Revenues 310.2 186.2
Value added 75,1 67.5
Gross operating income 60.9 52.8
Operating income 10,6 16.9

_Plants and investments

Investments made during 2001 amount te € 15,9 million and refer to maintenance opera-
tions at € 9 miltion (renovation of internal plants, cabins and laying of medium and high
voltage cables) and to development at € 5.9 million (connections to new buildings).
Additionally, other operations involved expenditures of € 1 million for improvements to
processes and compliance with legal obligations.
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_Regulations and tariffs

Resolution 66/01 from the Authority has redefined the methods for recognizing and check-
ing the position of “eligible customer”. Aiming at making the administrative procedures
leaner, the obligation to annually inform the Authority about guantities of electric power
put in and withdrawn from the network has been transferred from eligible customers to
operators of the distribution networks to which they are connected.

The Authority has established, through Resolution 101/01, as an advance payment
for 2001, the fee which wholesalers of electric power must pay to cover costs incurred
by the GRTN for international delivering of electricity, destined for both free and requ-
tated markets.

_Period highlights

The progressive deregulation of gas and electricity markets has redefined the strategy
and organization of the company within the AEM Group. Thus, AEM Energia S.p.A.
will assume responsibility for sales of atl energy products of the Group and of mulii-util-
ity services.

To complete the reform of transmission and measuring services and electricity sales, the
Authority circulated at the end of the year an attachment to Resolution 317/01 (published
in February 2002) on the subject of dispatching electric power. This provision defines the
methods and terms for providing the electric power balancing service, including the fees
to pay for this service with the coverage of reserve costs.

The new regulation also changes the concept of reconciliation, defining the rules for the
exchange of electric power by compensation of the differences between power input from
generators and that withdrawn by consumers, within the framework of the same exchange
contract drawn up with the GRTN.

This regulation is temporary since it will be superseded by the start up of dispatching in
economic terms together with the start up of the Electricity exchange.

Lastly, starting from January 1, 2002, the new thresholds of eligibility will be applied: cus-
tomers whose annual consumption is @ GWh or higher in 2001 can have access to the free
market. Also end-users whose consumption of electricity in the previous year exceeded 1
GWh at each measuring point considered and over 40 GWh as the total of the measuring
points have the right to be considered “eligible” customers.

_Sales

During 2001, AEM Energia S.p.A. entered supply contracts with both eligible customers and
with consortia of small to medium size companies, selling 2,125 million kWh of power
(1,102 miltion kWh in 2000), as well as reconciliation power of 9.2 million kWh.

Power purchased totalled 2,234 million kWh, mostly coming from the parent company AEM
S.p.A., the associate AEM Trading S.r.l. and from bidding from auctions of power from
renewable sources (“CIP 6”) and from the assigning of imported power defined pro quota
by the Authority for Electricity and Gas, as well as from hydroelectric plants.

_Earnings

In 2001, AEM Energia S.p.A. achieved revenues totalling € 157.1 million, while costs for
purchasing power totalled € 107.7 million. There were also costs incurred of € 40.2 mil-
ion in charges for delivering, dispatching and further import charges.




The following table presents the financial highlights of AEM Energia S.p.A. as of Decembe

31, 2001.
| | |
‘ AN > milliens ef 12.31.2001 12.81,2000 |
[ 1
Revenues 1571 f 65.6
Value added 58 | 1.3
Gross operating income 2.9 ‘ 0.4
24 | 0.3

Operating income
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Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

_ltallan gas market

In 2001, 70 billion cubic metres of natural gas were consumed, a growth of 0.6% from the
same period a year earlier. November and December were the peak months for consump-
tion, turning round the trend recorded in the first ten months of the year. The increase in
consumption mostly involved residential/commercial use, while industrial users had a
lower consumption.

_Regulations and tariffs

At the end of December 2000, the Authority issued the Resolution for the reform of the
tariff system for the activities of distribution and sale to tied customers (Resolution
237/00), thereby concluding a consultation process in progress for months. The reform pre-
sented supersedes the previous method of calculating tariffs, in force since 1975, and sets
forth that the tariffs are to be calculated by distributors in compliance with the limita-
tions on revenues established by the Authority. Distributors will be compelled to propose
a base rate, one only to be applied to the whole system (the entirety of interconnected
networks), subject to regulations and on the basis of which there will be checked the com-
pliance with the limitations on revenues.

Distributors will also be able to propose personalised tariffs, not subject to limitations
on revenues, and differentiated on the basis of characteristics of the extraction. The new
method proposed intends bringing back all the tariffs to the standard costs of the serv-
ice, linking them to the costs of the most efficient operators, and to lay down parame-
ters for ensuring a return on capital invested in line with the average return found in
other European companies in the industry. The tariff method also envisages the applica-
tion of a price cap in order to encourage operators to look for improvements in terms of
efficiency.

The provision requires that, from July 2001, the former tariffs differentiated by type of use
are replaced by tariffs in different brackets according to consumption. In the first half of
the year, in order to permit the application of the new reform as of ‘heating” year 2001-
2002, a transitional period has been envisaged through the application of similar tariffs
to previous ones, increased or decreased by a percentage established on the basis of cri-
teria set down by the Authority. These percentages are differentiated by tariff level and,
for AEM Gas S.p.A., mean both increases (+10% for the areas of Cassano d’Adda and
Buccinasco and +2% for Milan) and decreases (-10% for the area of Segrate).

Following the publication of Resolution 237/00, AEM Gas S.p.A., together with other dis-
tributing companies and trade associations, have petitioned the Regional Administrative
Court for Lombardy to revoke the provision, disputing with the Authority the application
of the parametric method for calculating the capital invested by the companies regulated.
With its sentence of June 29, 2001, the Regional Administrative Court accepted the peti-
tion of Gas-It and partly revoked Resclution 237/00. While awaiting the judgement of the
Council of State to which the Authority made appeal against the Regional Administrative
Court’s sentence, the application of the new tariff regime, due to have started in July, has
been suspended, keeping the system used in the first half year.

In November, the Council of State rejected the urgent petition, adjourning any decision
until March 2002.

With Resolution 184/01, in order to encourage competition, the Authority for Electricity
and Gas has regulated the methods for terminating contracts for volumes in excess of
200,000 cubic metres per year. According to this provision, sellers and distributors of gas
shall permit their customers, unless otherwise agreed, to withdraw from the contracts with
prior notice no greater than six months for multiyear contracts, and no longer than three
months for annual contracts.




In terms of safety and continuity of the service, the Authority has introduced Resolution
236/00 bringing in regulations for safety and continuity of the service of gas distribution
through the definition of appropriate indicators (which will be checked annually by the
Authority to ensure compliance), and of other service obligations.

Specifically, paragraph 1 of Article 27, subsequently amended with Resclution 5/01, com-
pels distributors, on receiving emergency calls signalling gas leaks in systems below the
delivery point (the meter), to send its own staff, giving the option to suspend or deny sup-
ply if the safety of the general public is at risk, up until the moment the customer has
taken steps to eliminate the leak on the systems belonging to him.

Following the lodging of numerous petitions, the Regional Administrative Court of
Lombardy has revoked the provision in the aforementioned Article 27 since the obligation
contained in it does not fall within the realm, according to the judges, of the duties of
distributors as provided by current laws.

The Council of State has annulled the Regional Administrative Court’s sentence. Such
annulment means that the obligation of gas distributors to provide emergency services on
systems below the meter point (point of delivery to the end-user) has been restored,
according to the methods required by paragraph 1, Article 27 of Resolution 236/00 as
amended by Resolution 5/01.

The Council of State has issued the sentence which confirms Resolution 193/99 from the
Authority for Electricity and Gas, previously annulled by the sentence from the Regional
Administrative Court for Lombardy. This sentence re-introduced the reduction of the end-
user tariff by € 0.01224 per cubic metre in relation to the cost of the raw material.

_Period highlights

In line with the purposes of market liberalization, as defined by Legislative Decree 164/00,
AEM Gas S.p.A. has entered into four contracts for transporting natural gas through its own
distribution network.

AEM Gas S.p.A. acquired during 2001 the concession for the distribution of methane gas
in the Municipality of Rosate containing some 2,100 users. The management of the serv-
ice began on July 1, 2001.

During the last quarter, the supply of the raw materials necessary for natural gas sales, the
service of heat management and feeding cogeneration and district heating plants of AEM
Gas S.p.A., was carried out by AEM Trading S.p.A. The supply contract began on October
1, 2001 and will last for ten years. At the same time as this contract was drawn up, the
conditions for terminating existing contracts and agreements with Snam S.p.A. were
defined.

During the period, the plan for restructuring the borrowing of AEM Gas S.p.A. continued in
order to optimise the structure and reduce the servicing charges of loans taken out in the
past at more expensive market conditions compared to the average interest rates current-

ly available. Regarding this, an agreement was reached for the early termination of a loan
taken out on May 30, 1994 with due date on December 5, 2010, leading to a saving in
payable future interest, despite the exceptional charge, of around € 4 million.

On December 19, 2001, the Deed of partial separation was lodged with the Companies’
Registry of Milan by the transfer of the company branch largely made up of receivables and
payables associated to the contract relationship of gas selling, as well as a portion of the
goodwill calculated when the company was constituted, in AEM Energia S.p.Als favour. The




split operaticn meets, on one side, a precise legislative obligation (Legislative Decree
164/00 implementing EC directive 98/30) and, on the other, reasons of an operational and
strategic nature within the AEM Group. The civil and fiscal effects of this split will take
effect as of January 1, 2002.

On May 17, 2002 the deed of merger was deposited at the Companies’ Registry of Milan to
incorporate Triveneta Gas S.p.A. in Serenissima Gas S.p.A. taking retroactive effect as of
January 1, 2001.

_Distribution and sales

In 2001, revenues from the sale of gas on the market amounted to € 427.7 million, of
which € 21.6 million relating to Serenissima Gas S.p.A., an increase of € 77.7 million
(+22.2%) compared to the previous period.

This growth is due to both the increase in the average price and to the greater guantities
sold.

The increase in the average sale price is mainly the result of changes in the price of fuels
on the international markets, to which the cost of the “raw material”, natural gas, is
linked. With Resolution 134/01, the Authority has established a new method for indexing
the raw material component incorporated in the sale tariff to the final user, linking it a
benchmark basket which registers the international price trend of petrol products. The
amendment consists mainly of no longer acknowledging the unaccounted corrective coef-
ficient of gas.

The component relating fo tax remained unchanged until October 31, 2001. From
November 1, 2001, the rates established by the D.C.P.M. on January 15, 1999 came into
force once again, teading to an average increase of about € 0.01549 per cubic metre for
residential uses. The Regional Supplementary tax on methane gas was abolished as of
January 1, 2002.

Sales of gas by AEM Gas S.p.A. and Serenissima Gas S.p.A., as of December 31, 2001,
including inter-sectorial sales and sales to Group companies were 1,169 mitlion cubic
metres, an increase of 100.4 million cubic metres (+9.4%) compared to the 2000 period.
The increase for AEM Gas S.p.A. was as a result of the high number of new customers, as
well as the low temperatures recorded in December which offset the reduction in con-
sumption during October and January, and by the acquisition of the networks at
Buccinasco and Rosate.

The number of users as of December 31, 2001 was 859,000, of which 29,500 belong to the
network of Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

_Earnings
The following table presents the financial highlights of the companies operating in the gas
and heat distribution sector at December 31, 2001:

| |

in the = miens of 12,81.2002 12372000
Revenues 487.2 ‘ 381.4
Value added 134.3 { 118.1
Gross operating income 112.3 94.8
Operating income 21,6 l 16.6
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_Plants and investment
The investments in the gas sector totailed € 34.1 million of which € 12.7 million for con-
verting centralized heating systems for operating by gas. The remaining investments are
split between maintenance and safety operations of € 11.6 million (renovation of the
below and above surface network) and development and expansion for € 9.8 million (con-
necting customers).




_fleat distribution _AEH Gaw S.p.A.
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million kWht from the same period a year earlier.

There was also sold 24 million kWh of electric power generated by the Tecnocity cogener-
ation plant.

The increase in sales is largely due to the acquisition of new users in the Tecnocity and
Sesto San Giovanni areas and, to a lesser extent, by the positive trend of the heating sea-
son.

Overall, there were around 627 buildings connected to the heat network at December 31,
2001, an increase of 27 buildings from the same period a year earlier.

The sale prices for district heating kept pace with the variations in both the tariff compo-
nent and the tax component of the price of methane gas.

_Earnings

Revenues from the sale of thermal energy as of December 31, 2001 were € 20.1 million,
an increase of € 4.6 million (+29.9%) compared to the previous period.

Revenues from the sale of electric power from cogeneration were € 1.7 million, showing
an increase of € 0.9 million (+90.6%) compared to the previous period.

_Plants and investment

Investments in the heat sector amounted to € 16.5 million and refer to the cogeneration
plant in the Famagosta area, to the construction of the heat exchanger in the Figino area,
and the completion of the heating/air conditioning plant at Bocconi University.
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Fastweb S.p.A.

The company are developing a large coverage of high capacity network fibres in order to
permit physical connections of single buildings by means of short dedicated stretches of
optic fibre, minimising the access costs. Metroweb S.p.A. is able to offer its customers the
possibility of leasing end-to-end physical fibre-optic connections for exclusive use the of
the entire leased network segment, and interconnection with users {drop connections).
During 2001, Metroweb S.p.A. continued the technical and marketing operations for the
development of projects related to the optic fibre network.

In pursuit of the cabling programme for the main towns around Milan, Metroweb S.p.A. has
entered an important agreement with the Municipality of San Donato, which is added to
those already signed in the first half of the year with the Municipalities of Sesto San
Giovanni, Bresso, Buccinasco, Rho, Basiglio and Peschiera Borromeo.

By December 31, 2001, the broad band network extended over 2,150 km, while the num-
ber of buildings that can be connected by optic fibre reached 39,862, meaning some
361,000 apartments and offices.

The affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. has continued during 2001 the marketing activity to corporate
and residential customers, not only offering telephone services, but also advanced servic-
es like high-speed Internet access, high quality videophone, video on demand and fast
data transmission.

The telecommunication services of AEM S.p.A. and its subsidiaries are handled by Fastweb
S.p.A.

_Earnings
Revenues from telecommunications operations in 2001 totalled € 54,8 miltion.

The following table presents the financial highlights of Metroweb S.p.A. as of December
31, 2001.

METROWEE > of] 12.31.2001 12.81.2000
Revenues 54.8 17.2
Value added 174 2.2
Gross operating income 16,8 1.8
Operating income 10.6 (0.7)

_Plants and investment

In 2001 investments of about € 86.4 million were made, which mainly concerned the work
for laying the optic fibre network in the Milan metropolitan area and in some of the sur-
rounding provinces.

1

]







— = D ¥ e - |

The parent company AEM S.p.A. provides its subsidiaries and almost all the affiliates with
administrative, financial, legal, logistical, strategic and technical services, to optimise
available resources within the company and put know-how to the best business use.
These services are provided under special service delivery contracts which are entered into
annually.

The parent company AEM S.p.A. also makes space for offices and operations available at
its own facilities to the Group’s companies at market terms, along with services relating to
the use of such space.

_Plants and investments

In March 2001, a lease-back agreement was signed on the building in Corso di Porta
Vittoria 4, acquired in December the year before from the Municipality of Milan. The value
of the building is € 53.5 million, net of the capital gain resulting from the transaction,
and posted in the consolidated financial statements according to the finance method, as
required by accounting principles.

Investments by AEM S.p.A. Corporate Division amount to € 9.1 million and refer most of
all to work on the IT systems for € 3.5 million, while the remaining part was for work car-
ried out on company buildings and the purchase of equipment, furniture and fittings.




_Period highlights

The work of management and creation of the lighting and traffic signal systems for the
Municipalities of Milan, Rozzano, Barlassina, Pieve Emanuele, San Giuliano Milanese,
Vimodrone, Cassano D'Adda and Gazoldo degli Ippoliti (near Mantua) continued in 2001.
The contracts for managing the public lighting system for the Municipatity of San Donato
Milanese were awarded to the company.

There continued the work as scheduled in the Urban Lighting Plan 2000 which, at the end
of 2001, had been 90% completed with excavations of 83 km and the activating of 6,346
light points. The preliminary design work has been completed for the 2001 Urban Lighting
Plan.

In the framework of the new business area of the Division, there has been completed the
work pertaining to the first stage of the CCTV surveillance and monitoring of the area
around the Central Station and Basiliche Park in Milan. The second stage of works will be
completed by end June 2002.

Work is in progress for the second stage of the CCTV surveillance project which involves
Parco Sempione and Parco delle Cave. This work is due to be completed by autumn 2002.
In December, the work for bringing the Patroclo underpass up to standard was concluded.
The first stage of the monitoring project of the plants and the wells of the water system
in Milan has been concluded.

AEM S.p.A., in a Temporary Assaciation of Companies, has also been awarded the contract
for creating a CCTV surveillance system proposed by the Municipality of Varese.

As regards traffic signals, there continued the renovation work to bring them up to the
standards of the new highway code and to centralize the traffic signal system, which will
jnvolve 300 signals in the two years 2001-2002.

As of December 31, 2001, 60 new signals were activated and another 35 were ready for
activation.

_Earnings

As of December 31, 2001, management of public lighting and traffic signal systems gener-
ated revenues, inclusive of revenues from services to companies in the group, of € 39.2
million.
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This company handles the relationship with customers spread throughout the Group’s com- o
panies and those of other companies operating in the area of network services and with a
wide customer base.
_Peried highlights
During 2001, the remote meter-reading service began of multi-hour customers connected
to the electricity distribution network.
From September, the company has been directly carrying out the service of monthly meter-
reading, which was previously an outsourced activity.
The contracts made with new customers for the billing service also became operational.
_Earnings
The following table presents the financial highlights of AEM Service S.r.l. as of December
31, 2001.
T \
EMESevicefSTAmillionsof 12.31.2001 12.32.2000 |
Revenues 16.4 4.7
Value added 10,7 3.5
Gross operating income ) 3.3 | 0.9
Operating income ‘ 0.9 | 0.1
_Investments
In July 2001, the new Contact Centre became operational with the aim of increasing the
skills of AEM Service S.r.l. in the area of services to utilities.
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fully held by AEM S.p.A.

AEM Trading S.r.L. has been set up in order to participate in the future Electricity Exchange
on behalf of the AEM Group for both sales offers on behalf of producers (such as AEM
S.p.A.) and for purchase offers on behalf of wholesale customers (such as AEM Energia
S.p.A.). The company has been dedicating resources to training so that it will be ready to
operate as soon as the regulated markets start up.

_Regulatory proceedings

On May 9, 2001, the Ministry for Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing approved the reg-
ulations for the electricity market, containing technical and economic regulations for oper-
ating.

According to the formula adopted, the Electricity Exchange consists of a day-before mar-
ket, the purpose of which is to transact power sales, a market for adjusting the quantity
offered and demanded, a market for resolving congestion on the network, a market for
procuring reserve power, and lastly a market for matching offer to demand in real time.
With Resolution 96,/01, the Authority has ratified the framework of general rules and reg-
ulations to be applied for the correct operation of the Electricity Exchange.

As per the provision of paragraph 3 Article 3 of Legislative Decree 79/99 (“Bersani”
decree), the Authority has also established the conditions for dispatching electric power
on the national networks, with particular reference to the management of situations of
congestion (lack of a network’s transporting capacity), to the maintaining of a balance
between demand and supply, and to managing reserves.

The national operator Gestore della Rete di Trasmissione Nazionale (GRTN) has the task of
elaborating the rules for dispatching in compliance with the conditions established by the
Authority.

The dispatching activity concerns all the users of the networks and is a key feature in the
start up of the Electricity Exchange (Resolution 95/01).

On October 4, 2001, the GRTN circulated an Instruction Prospectus for consultation on
the Regulations of the electricity market (already approved on May 9, 2001 through the
decree from the Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Manufacturing). This Instructions
Prospectus contains the detailed regulations which must be adhered to by the operators
who decide to use the Exchange system, both for the marketing of electric power pro-
duced and in order to cover their own requirements. The GRTN has also issued a docu-
ment providing the guidelines for dispatching in an economic context which will devel-
op from the application of the regulations of the Electricity Exchange.




_Period highlights FILE ND,

The company has signed, as the only representative for the AEM Group and starting as of
October 1, 2001, a contract for the purchase of natural gas with the company Plurigas
S.p.A. totalling around 608 million cubic metres in the three months October-December
2001.

In this way, AEM Trading S.r.l. offers itself as a supplier of natural gas for both thermo-
electric uses in AEM S.p.Als plants and for residential and industrial use of AEM Gas S.p.Als
customers.

As of the same date there were signed two agreements with AEM S.p.A. for contracting out
the hydroelectric plants in Valtellina and of the thermoelectric plant in Cassano d’Adda.
Specifically, the agreement relating to the thermoelectric plants is a typical “tolling
agreement” on the basis of which AEM S.p.A., in return for a monthly fee paid in propor-
tion to the actual availability of the plant, offers AEM Trading S.r.l. the service of trans-
forming the fuel delivered by this company to the generating plant into electric power.
As a result, AEM Trading S.r.l. has signed two contracts to supply electric power with AEM
Elettricitd S.p.A. (at administered prices defined by the Authority for Electricity and Gas
for customers in the tied market) and with AEM Energia S.p.A. to cover the reguirements
of free customers.

These contracts resulted in sales of 725 GWh to the regulated market and 399 GWh in the
free market.

Trading on wholesale electricity markets has also made it possibie to enhance the produc-
tion of the AEM Group through spot sales to bulk-buyers in Italy and abroad. In the third
quarter of 2001, 8.8 GWh were sold to bulk-buyers and 12.5 GWh were negotiated.

93010435~




%7 I A 20T KM Trading S.r.l. achieved revenues of € 176.4 million, while costs for the pur-
chase of energy were € 131 million.

The following table presents the financial highlights of Trading S.r.l. as of December 31,
2001.

AZY Trading Sl - millions of eure e - 12.31.2001

|
1

Revenues | b4
Value added 8,3
Gross operating income 5.9
Operating income i 5.4
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As of December 31, 2001, the AEM Group had a total of 2,601 employees showing a
decrease of 4.1% since 2000. The hours of work during working hours remained unchanged
from 2000 at 78.7%.

Upper and lower management staff continued to receive institutional training in 2001 that
focused on enhancing management skills and expertise, improving communication and
developing interpersonal skills. Seminars were also organised for professional staff.
Safety training for hazardous activities continued, structured around targeted initiatives.
Technical and specialised training initiatives continued, aimed at retaining and develop-
ing business know-how.

To properly utilise human resources and coltivate a corporate culture supporting the
changes underway in the sector, the Group launched a series of initiatives focusing on
training and the creation of professional development tools. As part of the policy of prop-
erly utilising human resources, managerial training seminars were organised to develop
skills of assessing performance of their staff.

There was 6,251 days of training involving 3,102 participants.

Staff split by category are as follows:

12,31.2000

Managers ‘ 43
Management staff ‘ : 135
Office workers (652 | 1,700
Plant workers : i 835

The salaries policy put into effect has been aimed at creating an increasing level of
coherency between the evaluation of resources and the positions held.

The cost of personnel at Group level for 2001 was € 108,979 thousand (€ 111,701 thou-
sand in 2000), a reduction of € 2,723 thousand (-2.4%).

In July 2001, the main contract for the sector of electricity employee was signed. Staff on
the payroll received a one-off gross payment, for the period from January 1, 1999 to June
30, 2001, with a total cost for the company of € 2,512 thousand. The renewal of the min-
imum wage has led to an average increase of gross salaries of 1.62%.

As of the close of 2001, no Group company had employee stock option plans in place, with
the exception of the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A., which authorised a plan for its own employ-
ees in 1999.

During 2001 active and retired employees benefited from € 1,089 thousand in tariff dis-
counts on electricity consumption and € 366 thousand in gas supplied in kind.
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The AEM_Group conducts research and development in the areas of energy to monitor devel-
opments in the most promising energy technologies and to originate methods of analysing
production processes and optimising operations from the technical and business stand-
points. AEM S.p.A. expensed € 173 thousand during the 2001 fiscal year on research and
development.

AEM continues to conduct research and development in partnership with prestigious insti-
tutions, such as the Polytechnic Institute of Milan and ENEA.

_Research zrojects

_Milan Bicocea Project

AEM S.p.A. is taking part in the development of a joint research project promoted by the
Ministry of the Environment and the Municipality of Milan and coordinated by ENEA
together with ATM, Ansaldo Ricerche, State Railways, the Municipality of Hamburg, SOL
S.p.A., NUVERA Fuel Cells Europe S.r.l., and BMW Italia.

The project, called “Milan Bicocca Project”, aims at dealing with all the problems reiating
to the production, storage and distribution of hydrogen for the various energy uses (lig-
uid, gas, put in the pipeline). Regarding this, the Milan-Bicocca 1.3 MW fuel-cell facility
belonging to AEM S.p.A. will be modified according to integrated and complementary lines.
The idea is for the plant to completely recover the carbon dioxide and have minimum envi-
ronmental impact, aiming at reaching “Zero Carbon Emission”.

The hydrogen gas will partly be used on site as the fuel for a mini-fleet of public trans-
port buses operated by ATM, and partly it will be conveyed to the Tecnocity district heat-
ing plant and to the Greco-Pirelli railway station. The hydrogen will also be partly lique-
fied for fuelling vehicles which use liguid hydrogen, or will be loaded on to trucks for trans-
porting to other areas.

Any carbon dioxide and hydrogen in excess will be taken and marketed by the company
SOL S.p.A.

_Bliomass cogenerators

AEM S.p.A., together with two strongly farming-based municipalities in Lombardy, has
developed the designs for two district heating plants which use wood-pulp biomass fuel.
The feasibility study of the development project was presented to the Lombardy Regional
Council for approval to receive the pertinent State subsidies.

_Desigr of heat-pump systems

Various pilot projects have been started on power plants using heat pumps to extract heat
from groundwater.

The plant at the new university centre “Bocconi 2000” began operating in September.
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_Quality, environmental and safely systems

=

During 2001 the project for progressively complying with the ISO 9001 standards was start-

ed, due to be completed in 2003. In October, CSQ confirmed the validity of the certificates
for the ISO 9001 standard (1994), the Environmental Management Systems (ISO 14001)
and the Health and Safety Management Systems (OHSAS 18001).

The fourth Environmental and Safety Report was published during the year, which presents
detaits of undertakings, objectives and results of the Group regarding the occupational
environment and safety.




Parent company i:}'{’:r'--, MO, Bl
The Municipality of Milan is the controlling stakeholde“r‘?ﬁ‘ﬁx"‘tf“v‘ré's'ﬁ"k RSS%T“ﬁetEﬂTO%T;i:iJ :
2001 the Municipality of Milan held an absolute majority of 51% of the authorised capital
of AEM S.p.A., with 50.997% held directly and 0.003% held indirectly through
Metropolitana Milanese S.p.A. The remaining 49% is spread around the market.

AEM Group companies do business with the Municipality of Milan, supplying it with elec-
tricity, gas and heat as well as services in the form of operating the public lighting and
traffic signal system.

AEM Group companies atso do business with companies in which the Municipality of
Milan holds a controlling interest (including SEA S.p.A., MM S.p.A. and SOGEMI
S.p.A.) and the municipalised companies in the city’s charge (ATM, AMSA), supplying
them with electricity, gas and heat at market rates adjusted according to supply con-
ditions, and providing services on demand.

Business dealings between the Municipality of Milan and AEM Elettricitad S.p.A. and AEM
Gas S.p.A. are governed by service provider agreements approved by the Municipality of
Milan and AEM S.p.A. at the time it became a private company. As a result of the break-
up, the agreements were transferred to AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and AEM Gas S.p.A. in 1999
which deal with the distribution of electrical power and of gas and heat.

AEM S.p.A. and the City also have financial dealings with one another, making payments
into an interest-bearing checking account. The interest rate is equal to the official dis-
count rate minus 0.75 percentage points.

In regard to the relationships between AEM S.p.A. and other companies in which the
Municipality of Milan holds a controlling interest, AEM S.p.A. holds a 49% stake in
Malpensa Energia S.r.l.; the 51% controlling stake is held by SEA S.p.A.

_Subsidiaries and affiliates

Within the Group, AEM S.p.A. acts as a clearinghouse for all its subsidiaries, with the
exception of Metroweb S.p.A.

The companies use checking accounts held jointly by the parent company and subsidiary
to do business with one another at market interest rates.

Again during 2001, AEM S.p.A. and the subsidiary companies - except for Serenissima Gas
S.p.A. and AEM Trading S.r.l. - have adopted the procedure for group VAT.

The parent company AEM S.p.A. provides its subsidiaries and affiliates with administrative,
financial, legal, logistical, strategic and technical services, to optimise available resources
within the company and put know-how to the best business use. These services are pro-
vided under special service delivery contracts which are entered into annually.

Up until September 30, 2001, AEM S.p.A. sold most of the electricity it generates to group
companies in order to be distributed and sold to regulated and free customers.

However, since October 1, 2001, AEM S.p.A. receives a monthly payment from AEM Trading
S.r.l. connected to the actual availability of the thermoelectric and hydroelectric plants,
offering this company the service of electricity generation,

The parent company AEM also makes space for offices and operations available at its own
facilities to its subsidiaries and affiliates on market terms, along with services relating to
the use of such space.

AEM S.p.A. and its other subsidiaries have been outsourcing their telecommunications
service to the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. from the beginning of the year.




Regarding relationships with associated entities, AEM S.p.A. holds 0.27% of the authorised
capital in e.Biscom S.p.A., the company controlling Fastweb S.p.A. and minority share-
holder in Metroweb S.p.A., after the acquisition of 130,000 e.Biscom S.p.A. shares reserved
to AEM S.p.A. at the time of listing the company’s stocks in the Stock Exchange which took
place at the end of March 2000.

At the time of e.Biscom S.p.A’s listing, AEM S.p.A. and e.Biscom S.p.A. renewed the part-
nership agreement, initially signed with the start up of the partnership in July 1999 to
preserve the stability of the partners’ stakes. Under these agreements, the partners in
e.Biscom S.p.A. transferred the beneficial interest in shares representing 63.88% of
e.Biscom’s authorised capital to a newly established company, Anphora S.r.l. The Bylaws of
Anphora S.r.L. establish that the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of this company is to
pass resolutions only with the favourable vote of such shareholders representing more than
90% of the authorised capital. The Bylaws also provide that, for sale, transfer or, more gen-
erally, the stipulation of any deed affecting the beneficial interest in the shares of
e.Biscom stock, there is required prior authorisation from shareholders at the meeting of
Anphora S.r.L. which, also in this case, must only pass resolutions with the favourable vote
of shareholders representing more than 90% of the authorised capital. Lastly, the Bylaws
establish that, if there is to be a transfer of a quota of Anphora S.r.l. shares, a pre-emp-
tive purchase right is reserved to the other shareholders.

The relationship between AEM S.p.A. and its affiliated companies, the controlling stake-
holder and the associated entities are discussed in the explanatory notes to the individual
balance sheet and income statement entries.

Below is shown a summary table of the inter-group economic and equity relationships.

Shaeet Subsidiaries AffBates
o cue

ASSETS
B) FIXED ASSETS
IIT - Financial assets 1,166

C) CURRENT ASSETS
11 - Receivables 157,915 216,019

LIABILITIES
D) PAYABLES 109,615 181,285




Subsidianes
af

A) REVEMUES
1) Revenues from sales
and services 252,043
5} Rents 33,454

B) OPERATING EXPENSES
6) Raw materials
and fuel
7) Services
8) Lease and rental
expense

C) FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
15) Income from
equity investments 14,369
16) Other financial
income 1,156
17) Interest and other
financial expenses 4,688

286,966
34,916
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This Report describes the Corporate Governance model adopted by the AEM Group, follow-
ing the format contained in the “Guidelines for Preparing the Report on the subject of
Corporate Governance” issued by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. on February 28, 2002,

On March 22, 2001, the Board of Directors of the parent company AEM S.p.A. resolved to
comply with the principles recommended by the Code of Conduct of Listed Companies.

_Composition and rele of the Board oV Jirectors

The current Board of Directors for the parent company AEM S.p.A. consists of 8 compo-
nents: the Chairman Giuliano Zuccoli, the Deputy Chairman Luigi Carlo Spadacini and the
non-executive directors Marco Manzoli, Paolo Oberti, Carlo Ortolani, Luigi Prosperetti,
Angelo Provasoli and Aldo Scarselli. The Board's mandate continues until the meeting for
approving the 2001 financial statements.

Seven non-executive directors, including the Deputy Chairman, are independent in that (i)
they do not deal in important economic matters to an extent that affects their impartial
judgement with the company, its subsidiaries, with the executive directors, with share-
holders or shareholder blocks controlling the company and, (ii) they do not own, either
directly or indirectly, shares in a quantity that permits them to have a controlling position
over the company, nor do they take part in partnership agreements for the control of the
company.

The Board of Directors has a central role in the company’s organisation. A Board resolu-
tion exclusively reserved to them the following attributions: to make strategic and gener-
al policy decisions and set criteria for business management and the smooth operation of
the company; to approve the industrial plan and the annual budget for the company; to
appoint the Managing Director; to appoint corporate officers in the subsidiaries; to pur-
chase and sell equity investments in other companies not included in the annual budget;
to set up new companies; to subscribe, for whatever purpose, increases to authorised cap-
ital in companies, not included in the annual budget; to make decisions on the company's
organisation, particularly referring to strategies concerning hiring and training in the com-
pany; and to make both ordinary expenditures and investments not included in the annu-
al budget for amounts exceeding ITL 2,000,000,000 (€ 1,032,913.80).

Under the Bylaws, the Chairman of the Board of Directors for AEM S.p.A. - Giuliano Zuccoli
- is the company’s legal representative, and his signature binds the company.

The Board of Directors has granted the Chairman broad operating powers, including the
authority to administer the annual budget.

Giuliano Zuccoli is also member by right of the Executive Committee.

At each Board meeting, Giuliano Zuccoli refers on the activities carried out and the main
economic, financial and equity operations.

In adopting the Code of Conduct for Listed Companies, the Board of Directors of the par-
ent company AEM S.p.A. has also provided that:
o apart from the four meetings of the Board of Directors for approving annual, half-year-
ly and quarterly accounts of the company, the Chairman will call for at least a further two
meetings a year, preferably at regular intervals;




o the Chairman will ensure that each Director and Auditor is able to gather and provide,
at least three days prior to the meeting, all the information necessary for dealing with mat-
ters on the agenda of the Board of Directors” meeting.

In the event of urgent meetings or matters whose discussion is of a particularly confiden-
tial nature, the information will be provided to the Directors at least at the beginning of
the meeting;

o during the meetings of the Board of Directors, the Chairman will periodically inform the
Board of Directors about the main new regulations concerning the company, particularly
those concerning the sector and corporate and fiscal law;

o the Chairman will periodically report to the Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory
Auditors on the operations performed under the powers provided to the Chairman, partic-
ularly on unusual, uncommon operations or those with associated parties;

o excepting that provided by law, by accepting the mandate, the Directors and Auditors
undertake to keep all documents and information acquired in the performance of their task
strictly confidential.

Under the Bylaws, the Deputy Chairman if appointed performs the duties of the Chairman,
if the chairman is temporarily absent or unable to perform them. In that event, the
Deputy Chairman becomes a member by right of the Executive Committee, whereas nor-
matly the Deputy Chairman sits on the Executive Committee but does not have the right
to vote.

The Board of Directors of AEM S.p.A. has established an Executive Committee consisting
of the Chairman, Giuliano Zuccoli, and the Directors Marco Manzoli and Aldo Scarselli. The
Board has delegated ail its authority to the Executive Committee, with the exception of
the authority reserved to the Board by law or the Bylaws, the authority expressly reserved
to the Board of Directors, and the authority granted to the Chairman.

The Board of Directors must be informed of resolutions adopted by the Executive
Committee at the next Board meeting.

During 2001, the Board of Directors of AEM S.p.A. met twelve times. Five of these meetings
were attended by all the Directors, four of the meetings were one Director short, and three
of the meetings were held without two of the Directors present. At eleven meetings out of
the twelve, the entire Board of Statutory Auditors was present, with just one meeting where
one of the Auditors was not present.

In 2001, the Executive Committee met eight times at which all its component Directors were
present and which were attended by the Board of Statutory Auditors.

There were also two ordinary shareholders” meetings held.

As regards this present year, by March 1, 2002 there had already been held two meetings of
the Board of Directors and two meetings of the Executive Committee. At the moment, a fur-
ther four meetings of the Board are scheduled, and have already been communicated to the
market, in order to approve the accounts for the period.

The Bylaws do not provide for a minimum frequency of Board meetings.

_Appointment and remuneration of the Directors
Article 17 of the corporate Bylaws states that the Municipality of Milan can proceed with
directly appointing a number of divectors in proportion to the size of its equity invest-

ment, rounding up to the next unit if a fraction emerges. However, the Municipality of
Milan cannot appoint a number of directors that exceeds four-fifths of the overall number
of directors to be elected. The directors not appointed by the Municipality of Milan are




elected by shareholders on the basis of the lists presented by the outgoing directors or by
shareholders representing at least one per cent of the shares with voting rights at the
shareholders’ meeting,

Bearing in mind the special situation of the parent company, whose controlling shareholder
is the Municipality of Milan, and considering that the appointment of the Directors is fully
covered and regulated by the company Bylaws, the Board has decided to not set up a
Committee for the appointment proposals.

In compliance with the recommendations of the Code of Conduct of Listed Companies, at the
time of renewing the corporate officers which will take place at the shareholders’ meeting for
approving the 2001financial statements, the Board of Directors will ask those who present tists
nominating directors not appointed by the Municipality of Milan to also provide full written
information on the personal and professional characteristics of the candidates, to be made
available to the shareholders together with the lists.

Each Director receives a fixed annual fee approved by the shareholders” meeting. The mem-
bers of the Executive Committee, except for the Chairman, also receive an additional fee,
similarly approved by the shareholders” meeting. A Board decision has provided that the
Deputy Chairman is remunerated for the special position held. The Chairman receives a
fixed annual payment, as well as variable compensation linked to attaining economic goals
established by the Board of Directors.

To date, no stock option plans were in place, either for Board members or employees.

The Board of Directors has established its own Remuneration Committee, comprising two
non-executive Directors - Carlo Ortolani and Aldo Scarselli - which formulates proposals
to the Board for the remuneration of the Chairman and, together with the Chairman’s assis-
tance, proposats for the remuneration of the Directors who hold speciat positions or who
are entrusted with special mandates.

Since there are currently no Managing Directors, the Board decided that it was superfluous
to appoint said Committee with the task of calculating the criteria for remunerating the
company’s top management.

_The internal control system

The Board of Directors considers that its internal control system is appropriate for effec-
tively supervising the typical risks of the main activities performed by the company and
its subsidiaries and to monitor the economical and financial situation of the company and
the AEM Group.

The Board of Directors has also set up an Internal Control Committee, with advisory and
proactive functions, consisting of Marco Manzoli, the Hon. Paolo Oberti and Carlo Ortolani.
The Chairman of the Board and the Board of Statutory Auditors can take part in the work
of this committee.

The Internal Control Committee:

(a) appraises the adequacy of the internal control system;

(b) appraises the work plan prepared by those in charge of internal control and receives
periodical reports from them;

(c) appraises the proposals formulated by the auditing firm in order to be appointed to
the task, and also the work plan prepared for auditing and the results shown in the report
and in the letter of recommendations;




(d) reports to the Board, at least twice a year at the time of approving the financial state-
ments and the half-yearly report, on the work done and adequacy of the internal control
system;

(e) performs the further tasks attributed to it by the Board of Directors, particularly con-
cerning relations with the auditing firm.

In 2001, the Internal Control Committee met six times.

Since 1999 an Internal Auditing function has been installed with the parent company AEM
S.p.A. which reports directly to the Chairman about the work done. The purpose of the
Internal Auditing function, comprising one person in charge and five other auditors, is to
check that, within the Group, the internal operative and administrative procedures applied
to assure sound and efficient management are effectively complied with, as well as to iden-
tify, prevent and manage financial and operative risks and fraud that may damage the com-
pany or the Group.

The Internal Auditing function reports to the Chairman about the work done at the time
of issuing each Audit Report, and to the Board of Statutory Auditors once a month and to
the Internal Controt Committee each time requested.

_Handling of confidential information

The Board has approved the adoption of a Procedure for communicating important infor-
mation externally (price sensitive), which gives detailed guidelines on communicating
documents and information about the company externally, with particular reference to
"price sensitive" information (“Procedure”).

The Procedure has set up the organisational role of Information Manager, in charge of
applying this Procedure. This position is currently held by the office of General Affairs for
the parent company AEM S.p.A.

The Procedure governs information flows and the responsibility of various corporate
offices which handle important information. It also provides specific terms for the
subsidiaries.

_Relations with shareholders
To facilitate a dialogue with shareholders and institutional investors, a specific Investor
Relations structure has been set up as part of the company’s Strategic Planning office.

Since the shareholders’ body of the company has only been in operation since the recent
transformation of AEM into a joint-stock company, the Board of Directors has delayed
the adoption of Shareholder Meeting Regulations until such time as there are acquired
more elements on the real functioning of its meetings, the content, together with view-
ing the application of requlations being adopted by other major groups listed for some
time on the Stock Exchange and, lastly, on the formation of a generalised procedure in
this area.

To date, the Board of Directors has not noted the conditions making it opportune to pro-
pose changes to the Bylaws regarding the percentages established for taking action and
exercising the prerogatives set to safeguard minorities.

_The Board of Statutory Auditors

The Board of Statutory Auditors, whose mandate also expires with the approval of the 2001
financial statements, is made up of Piero Lonardi, the Chairman, and the Regular Auditors
Michele Cattaneo and Italo Bruno Vergallo. Alternate Auditors are Dario Colombo and
Giuseppe Santopietro.




The Municipality of Milan has the right to directly appoint a number of auditors, but not
more than two regular and one alternate, in proportion to the extent of their equity invest-
ment. The other auditors are appointed in the same way as for the appointment of direc-
tors elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

In compliance with the recommendations of the Code of Conduct of Listed Companies,
at the time of renewing the corporate officers which will take place at the shareholders’
meeting for approving the 2001 financial statements, the Board of Directors will ask
those who present lists nominating auditors not appointed by the Municipality of Milan
to also provide full written information on the personal and professional characteristics
of the candidates, to be made available to the shareholders together with the lists.




_Auditing of Financial Statements

The Independent Auditors’ Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. performed a full audit of AEM
S.p.Als 2001 financial statements under the three-year mandate granted by the
Shareholders’” Meeting. The General Shareholders” Meeting held on April 30, 2001 appoint-
ed Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. to audit the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the 2001, 2002 and 2003 fiscal years.

To audit the AEM S.p.A. 2001 financial statements, the Independent Auditors’ bitled € 25.8
thousand, while to audit the 2001 consolidated financial statement it billed € 10.3 thou-
sand.

The Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. performed a full audit of the 2001 financial statements
for all the subsidiary and affiliated companies, except for Fastweb S.p.A., billing € 134.8
thousand for the Italian companies and about € 7 thousand for the company abroad.

_Treasury Stock

In compliance with Article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, AEM states that it holds no treas-
ury stock as of December 31, 2001, nor did it buy or sell treasury stock during 2001,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries or affiliates, or through trust companies
or intermediaries.

Subsidiaries and affiliates own no stock in parent company AEM as of December 31, 2001,
nor did they buy or sell such stock during 2001.

There were no dividend-bearing shares, bonds convertible in shares, other or similar secu-
rities issued during 2001.

Eure
From August 27, 2001, the AEM Group adopted the Euro as money of account. The € 1.9
million costs for the transition to the Euro were for the specialist operations of IT con-
sultants and the acquisition of new software, as well as for notary expenses for the re-
denomination of the authorised capital in Euro. These costs were entirely expensed in the
Income Statement.

_Infraction proceeding instituted by the European Commission
In May 1999 the European Commission notified the Italian government that it was insti-
tuting an infraction proceeding in relation to tax relief granted to majority government-
owned local public service providers, which had been established as private corporations
pursuant to Law 142/1990. At the time of drawing up this report, there had been no fur-
ther developments in these infraction proceedings that would lead to a different evalua-
tion compared to the financial statements closed at December 31, 1999. The risk con-
nected to these infraction proceedings from the European commission, specifically in rela-
tion to the tax moratorium (relief) which terminated for AEM S.p.A. on December 31, 1999
in accordance with Law 427/93, is not recorded since it concerns an event which is cur-
rently held to be remote.

_Skareholdings of Board Directors and Statutery Auditers

In compliance with Article 79 of Italian Securities and Exchange Commission (CONSOB)
Regulation 11971/1999, the following table shows the shareholdings in AEM S.p.A. of the
Board Directors and Statutory Auditors of the company during 2001.




boligh seld hald &t
vendutel of

clnent

{Feeal

S S,

year

]

Lonardi Piero AEM S.p.A. - 5,000 Owner
Ortolani Carlo AEM S.p.A. 1,500 (3) ~ Owner
Scarselli Aldo AEM S.p.A. 5,000 ()  Owner
Vergallo Italo Bruno AEM S.p.A. 1,000 (')  Owner

(1) Held indirectly through spouse not legally separated.
(2) Sold indirectly through spouse not legally separated.
(3) Bought indirectly through spouse not legally separated.

The Board Directors and Statutory Auditors whose names do not appear in the table,
including those who during 2001 held such positions for only a part of the year, did not
own shares of AEM S.p.A. stock, directly or indirectly, as of December 31, 2000, nor acquire
any during 2001 or the part of the year when they held the position.

No Director or Auditor held, directly or indirectly, equity investments in subsidiaries of AEM
S.p.A. during 2001.




The results expected for operations in 2002 are related to the impact of the regulations
which gave rise to the process of liberalisation of the electricity and gas sector. The AEM
Group has outlined its objectives according o the new opportunities offered in the elec-
tricity and gas sectors by the new regulatory environment and in the telecommunications
sector in which it operates through the subsidiary Metroweb and the affiliate Fastweb.

_Electricity sector

AEM is aiming at maintaining its position in the free market: considerable quantities are
foracast to be sold to eligible customers, despite a predictable reduction in thermoelectric
power generating due to the shutdown of Group 2 at Cassano in the second half of 2002.
The opportunities for expansion arising from the free market will again this year be
exploited: AEM has taken part in the bidding and has attained the assigning of “incentive”
electrical power (CIP 6) and of imported electricity.

The level of sales achieved in the period closed are due to be maintained, while the rela-
tive costs of raw materials will stay high due to the charge on hydroelectric production
(hydroelectric revenues).

This charge will only be applied to the generating and distributing enterprises at the date
of issuing the Bersani Decree for the 2000-2006 period, and has no impact on independ-
ent producers.

AEM and other: hydroelectric producers have contested these provisions at the Regional
Administrative Court for Lombardy, which has rejected the request for repeal for formal rea-
sons. AEM is waiting to hear the sentence passed by the Council of State with which it has
lodged an appeal. Should this petition be accepted, there would be a benefit for AEM in
the 2001-2002 period estimated at a total of about € 82 million.

_Gas and heat sector

Through Resolution 237/00, the Authority has {aunched the reform of the tariff system,
the intention of which was to replace the old method calculating the tariff in place since
1975.

Following the appeal presented by certain distributing companies and trade associations,
the Regional Administrative Court revoked the Resolution 237/00, disputing with the
Authority the application of the parametric method for calculating the capital invested by
the companies regulated.

Therefore, Resolution 237/00 has not been applied: the opinion of the Council of State is
awaited to which the Authority has appealed against the Regional Administrative Court’s
sentence. ‘

The reduction in margins, the extent of which will depend on how far the Resolution
237700 is applied, will be limited due to the development of heat and cogeneration sales
and because of the forecast reduction in costs of raw materials as a result of the benefits
deriving from the gas supply contract with Plurigas.

From January 1, 2002, the corporate divisions concerning gas distribution are being sep-
arated from those concerning sales, creating organisational models assuring an efficient
multi-service synergy for the marketing of products and services to the end-user market.
There will also continue the policy of restoring productivity and efficiency to optimise the
profit margins connected to the limitations on revenues established by the new tariff
methodology and the relative updating with the price-cap criterion, ensuring the high
standards of quality demanded from a public service.

On the market, the AEM Group is aiming at consolidating and expanding the service terri-
tory both in distribution, through the participation in tenders to be appointed, and in
sales, through the acquisition of new customers in the national territory, and the activa-
tion of policies for retaining the customers already served in the concessionary area.




_Telecommunications sector

For 2002, it is envisaged that the customer portfolio currently held will allow Metroweb to
maintain its level of revenues at those acquired in the 2001 period.

The operations for developing the infrastructure of optic fibre will continue largely in line
with the performance levels achieved in 2001, resulting in the cabling of Milan by the end
of 2002.

In view of these considerations, it is felt that this period will attain a breakeven net result.

_Services sector

Regarding the service of public lighting and traffic signals, there is the prospect of an
increase in operations due to the installing of CCTV video surveillance systems, the com-
pletion of the urban lighting ptan for 2001, and the start of the urban tighting plan for
2002.

With regard to AEM Service, it is expected that, for the coming year, there will be an
expansion of operations beyond the captive market of the billing and contract centre serv-
ices.




= WI/RAIY D ULL W2 ASULD

© From January 1, 2002, there begin the civil and fiscal effects of the partial split of AEM
Gas S.p.A. by the transfer of the business unit relating to natural gas sales to AEM Energia
S.p.A. This split has two motives: in part, to meet the requirements of a specific law
(Legislative Decree 164/00 implementing EC Directive 98/30), and partly for operational
and strategic reasons within the AEM Group. Therefore, all the sales activities for the Group
relating to electricity and gas will be concentrated in AEM Energia S.p.A., which will lead
to significant synergies in commercial and operative terms.

© On January 1, 2002, AEM S.p.A!s business unit relating to IT services was transferred to
e-Utile S.p.A. It was transferred based on the value given by the estimate survey (€ 187.4
thousand), and entirely posted to the share capital of e-Utile S.p.A. AEM S.p.Als stake in
the joint-venture with Siemens Informatica is 49%. The aim of the company is to supply
“IT Solutions and Services” to operators in the utilities sector.

o QOn January 28, 2002, AEM S.p.A. and AMGA S.p.A. completed the acquisition, in the pro-
portions of 70% and 30% respectively, of 24.99% in the share capital of AGAM S.p.A., a
utility from Monza operating in the sector of gas and water distribution and district heat-
ing, for a total equity investment of € 24.6 million. As the strategic partner, there was
reserved to AEM S.p.A. the appointment of the Managing Director, some of the Directors
on the Board, and the Board of Statutory Auditors.

© In March, a main contract for employees in the gas and water sector was signed, with
economic effects already being reflected in these financial statements.

o In March, AEM S.p.A. acquired 12,500 shares in Electrone S.p.A. from ATEL S.A., so that
AEM S.p.A!s shareholding in Electrone S.p.A. has risen to 33.33%.

© In March, AEM S.p.A. acquired 13,400 shares in Edipower S.p.A. from Edison
Termoelettrica S.p.A.

o On March 17, 2002, Edipower S.p.A. (40% Edison, 13.4% AEM, 13.3% AEM Torino and
Atel S.A., 10% Unicredit and 5% Interbanca and Royal Bank of Scotland), after making an
offer of € 2,980 million as well as taking over indebtedness for an enterprise value of €
3,700 million, were awarded Eurogen S.p.A. (7,008 Megawatt installed capacity), put up
for sale by ENEL S.p.A.
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ASSETS

1.

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, bank deposits and fixed-rate securities
Receivables for financial transactions
Investments in current assets

Receivables for the sale of power and services
Affiliate receivables

Parent company receivables

Electricity Equalization Fund receivables

Other receivables

Advances to suppliers during the period
Current portion of ng term financial receivables
Current portion of affiliate financial receivables
Inventories

Accrued income and prepaid expenses

TANGIBLE ASSETS

Transferable tangible assets
Non-transferable tangible assets
Advances to suppliers for plant assets

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments

Securities

Long term financial receivables from affiliates
Long term financial receivables

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS (2 +3+4)

TOTAL ASSETS (1+5)

29,765,856
69,890,252
6,720,846
231,493,968
2,414,965
35,019,737
13,933,458
58,563,411
1,442,933
677,982
68,689
21,808,884
1,860,673

192,914,475
1,038,770,094
187,342,033

43,726,922

75,735,994
78,326
2,408,316
7,042,936

473,661,653

1,619,026,602

43,726,922

85,265,572

1,548,019,096

2,021,680,748

23.43
1.47
3.46
0.33

11.45
0.12
173
0.69
2.90
0.07
0.03
.00
1.08
0.09

70.19
9.54
51.38
9.27

2.16
2.16

4,22
3.75
0.00
0.12
0.35

76.57

100.00




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance payments and security deposits from customers
Accounts payable - suppliers

Affiliate payables

Parent company payables:

- current account

-~ other payables

Taxes payable

Social security and workmen's compensation payables
Electricity Equalization Fund payables

Personnel payables

Other debt and payables

Short-term bank debt

Accrued expenses and deferred credits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Medium and long-term bank debt
Debt to other financial institutions
Employee leaving entitlement
Reserve for future expenses
Reserve for deferred taxes

Reserve for specific risks

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital

Legal reserve

Other reserves
Consclidation reserve
Retained earnings

Net income for the period

MINORITY INTERESTS
Minority interest in shareholder's equity

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

29,139,303
266,396,737
6,721,038

74,878,718
45,952,787
51,167,871
12,052,674
19,957,142
8,645,028
32,482,120
161,000,246
4,393,220

34,925,692
58,497,843
60,783,282

208,124
16,371,531
55,957,125

e
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i 929,646,398
62,554,718
52,226,927

191,428
(45,095,083)
74,494,519

8,130,858

1,143,875,000  50.57

2,262,181,370  100.00

712,786,884

226,743,598

1,074,019,408

8,130,858

1,082,150,266

2,021,680,748

35.26
1.44
13.18
0.33

3.70
2.27
2.53
0.60
0.99
0.43
1.61
7.96
0.22

11,22
1.73
2,89
3.01
0.01
0.81
2.77

53.13
45.98
3.09
2.58
0.01

(2.23)
3.68

0.40
0.40

53.53

100.00
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REVENUES

Sate of power to other electric companies
Sale of electricity to tied customers

Sale of electricity to eligible customers
Sale of gas to users

Sales of heat

Services to affiliates

Services to users

Services to Municipality of Milan

Services provided on behalf of third parties
Changes in pending contracts

Connection fees

Other current period revenues

Total revenues

Electricity Equalisation Fund contributions

OPERATING COSTS

Purchase of fuel and power

Materials

Delivering fees

Contracts and other work

Services

Leases and rental expenses

Charge for extraction of hydroelectric power
Mountain municipalities contributions and water diversion fees
Taxes and duties for the period

Other operating expenses

VALUE ADDED (A-8)

PERSOMNEL EXPENSES

GROSS OPERATING INCOME (EBITDA) (C - D)

AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND PROVISIONS
Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Provisions to allowance for doubtful receivables
Provisions/uses of risk reserves

OPERATING INCOME (EBIT) (E - F)

15,273,800
169,133,337
54,160,218
349,978,760
15,511,613
3,485,051
3,142,640
35,680,974
52,296,942
1,492,443
11,387,069
16,189,891

727,732,738
39,526,534

308,182,604
10,294,248
18,777,340
41,815,966
46,589,060

9,410,361

5,958,363
5,389,228
7,239,693

58,081,394
16,602,473
1,703,602
2,652,991

767,259,272

454,656,863

312,602,410

111,701,364

200,901,046

79,040,460

121,860,586

100.0
2.0
22.0
7.1
45.6
2.0
0.5
0.4
4.7
6.8
0.2
1.5
2.1

94.8
5.2

59.3
40.3
1.3
2.4
5.5
6.1
1.2

0.8
0.7
0.9




RESULTS OF GROUP COMPANIES VALUED AT NET

£QUITY (11,298,528)  (1.5)

23,896,690 31

—

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expense on current account with the Municipality of Milan 2,171,930 0.3
Write-downs of equity investments 6,631,300 0.9
Other financial interest 15,093,460 2.0
L. FINANCIAL INCOME 15,293,838 2.0
Other financial income 15,293,838 2.0

M. TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES) (L -1) (8,602,852)  (1.1)

N. INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (G +H + M) 101,959,206 13.3

0. EXTRAORDINARY INCOME (EXPENSES) (2,256,461) (0.3)

99,702,745 13.0

P.  INCOME BEFORE TAXES (N+0) S 138,901,663
Q. TAXES 25,070,650 3.3
Income taxes 27,891,333 3.6 '
Advance tax payments (11,746,181) (1.5) !
Deferred taxes 8,925,498 1.2
R.  BEFQRE MINORITY INTERESTS 107,523,222 9.7 74,632,095 9.7
S, MINORITY INTERESTS (2,434,234) (0.2 (137,576) 0.0
T NET INCOME S 105,088,988 9.4 o 74,494,519 9.7
|
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INVESTED CAPITAL :
INTANGIBLE ASSETS L ahfs3g0 34 43,726,922
TANGIBLE ASSETS , :
Gross amount 3 . ) 1,564,645,602
(Accumulated depreciation) 3 - (145,619,000}
) ; 1,419,026,601

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Equity investments 2 E 99...- 75,735,994 5.81
Other financial receivables : 3 6,548,936 0.50
Security deposits . R ) & 494,000 0.04
(Risk and expense reserves) ] R 2 (72,536,780) (5.57)
(Employee’ leaving payed) i 4 (60,783,282) (4.67)
* NET FIXED ASSETS : { 1,412,212,390 108.42

Inventories . S 21,808,884 1.67
Short-term receivables i = 7 343,546,453 26.38
Aecrued income and prepaid expenses . - E d 1,860,673 0.14
(Accounts payable to suppliers) ) fexdlg (266,396,736 (20.45
(Other debt and payables) S A (206,117,963 (15.82

) )
) )
(Accrued expenses and deferred income)} . (4,393,220) (0.34)
) )

* WORKING CAPITAL - : : (109,691,907 (8.42

** TOTAL INVESTED CAPITAL ) 1,302,520,481  100.00

SOURCES OF FUNDING

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY ; N A073M (1,082,150,266) (83.08)

Long term financial receivables I 3 : 2,486,642 0.19
(Long term debt) 9 LS81 .  (93,423,535) (7.17)
@ TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER ONE YEAR ;_“_ N - (90,936,894) (6.98)
Financial receivables due within one year - ] 76,679,787 5.89
Cash and cash equivalents 3 I [ -~ 29,765,856 2.29
(Debt due within are year) e - . (235,878,964) (18.11)
@ TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION WITHIN ONE YEAR T (LIS (1)9,433,321) (9.94)

* TOTAL NET FINAMNCIAL POSITION (1 +2) . - (220,370,215) (16.92)

** TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDING (1,302,520,481) (180.00)




Cash flow from operating activities

Net income

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in subsidiary and affiliate receivables for sales
of power and services

Increase in parent company receivables

Decrease in other receivables

Increase in inventory

Decrease in accrued income and prepaid

Increase in accounts payable to suppliers
Decrease in other payables

Increase in advances from customers

Increase in accrued expenses and deferred income
Increase in employee leaving payed

Increase in other reserves

Total cash flow fram op’eratji,ng/a_'f.ji-iﬁﬁes ] i‘

Cash flow used in investment activities
Net capital expenditures on tangible and intangible assets
Increase in equity investments

Total cash flow used in investment activities
Free cash flow

Cash flow from financing activities

Increase in bank debt

Decrease in financial receivables

Decrease in debt to other financial institutions
Decrease in cash account debt due to the Municipality
of Milan

Increase in shareholder’s equity

Net income distributed

Total cash flow from financing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

Net cash and cash equiivalents

Financial receivables

Cash account with the Municipality of Milan
Other financial institutions

Bank debt

_ TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION

(14,844)
99,656

i e ke
s

g
e

74,495
58,081
16,603

(63,200)
5,349

(52,878)

(1,630)
446
66,326
49,485
4,588
1,177
2,270
8,854

169,966

(244,017)
(57,774)

84,812

301,791)

(131,825)

(35,714)
(8,798)
54,214

(35,926)
1,363
(106,909)

(131,770)

(263,595)
363,251
99,656

99,656
9,276

(74,879)

(58,498)

(195,925)

... (220,370)

)
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ASSETS

1.

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, hank deposits and fixed-rate securities
Investments in current assets

Receivables for financial transactions
Receivables for the sale of power and services
Subsidiary receivables

Subsidiary financial receivables

Affiliate receivables

Parent company receivables

Electricity Equalization Fund receivables
Other receivables

Advances to suppliers during the period
Current portion of long term financial receivables
Affiliate financial receivables

Inventories

Accrued income and prepaid expenses

TANGIBLE ASSETS

Transferable tangible assets
Non-transferable tangible assets
Advances to suppliers for plant assets

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments

Securities

Long term financial receivables from affiliates
Long term financial receivables

TOTAL FINED ASSETS (2 + 3+ 4)

TOTAL ASSETS ( 1+ 5)

17,403,863
6,720,846
69,890,768
23,441,729
65,937,336
24,933,506
2,414,965
25,028,332
13,159,587
43,221,144
1,436,219
155,682
68,689
18,195,126
16,854,026

192,914,475
387,283,538
3,504,980

6,953,010

78,326
2,408,316
3,807,503

i,

2,076,390,225

2,415,770,179

328,861,819

583,702,992

6,953,010

1,484,735,120

2,075,391,122

2,406,252,941

13.68
0.72
0.28
2.91
0.98
2.74
1.04
0.10
1.04
0.55
1.80
0.06
0.01
0.00
0.76
0.70

24,28
8.02
16.11
0.15

0.29
0.29

61.75
61.49
0.00
0.10
0.16

86.32

100.00




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1. CURRENT LIABILITIES 367,060,127  15.27

Advance payments from customers 4,555,842 0.19
Suppliers 122,037,743 5.08
Subsidiary payables 14,539,566 0.60
Subsidiary financial payables 86,746,167 3.61
Affiliate payables 6,721,038 0.28
Parent company payables

-~ current account 74,878,718 311
- other payables 27,306,348 1.14
Taxes payable 13,131,439 0.55
Social security payables 9,397,943 0.39
Electricity Equalization Fund payables 124,533 0.01
Personnel payables 4,652,741 0.19
Other debt and payables 2,742,579 0.11
Short-term bank debt

Accrued expenses and deferred credits 225,469 0.01

o R Bt | T
A T T

2. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 93,697,974 3.90

Medium and long-term bank debt

Debt to other financial institutions 5,331,305 0.22
Employee leaving entitlement 32,223,624 1.34
Reserve for deferred taxes 4,506,082 0.19
Reserve for specific risks 51,636,963 2,15

3. SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 1,943,494,840  80.84

Share capital 929,646,898 38.67

Legal reserve 62,554,718 2.60

Other reserves 921,610,213 38.33

Retained earnings

Net income 29,683,011 1.23
4. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2,415,770,179  100.00 2,404,252,941  100.00
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REVENUES

Sale of power to other electric companies
Sale of elactricity to users

Sale of electricity to subsidiaries

Sale of electricity to sole operator

Sale of materials to subsidiaries

Services to parent company {Municipality of Milan)
Services provided on behalf of third parties
Services to subsidiaries

Services to affiliates

Changes in work in progress projects
Connection fees

Subsidiary rentals

Other current period revenues

Total revenues from sales and services

Eletricity Equalisation Fund contributions

OPERATING COSTS

Fuel and purchases of power
Materials

Delivering fees

Contracts and other work
Services

Services from subsidiaries
Services from affiliates
Lease and rental expenses

Mountain municipalities contributions and water diversion fees

Charge for extraction of hydroelectric power
Taxes and duties for the period
Other operating expenses

VALUE ADDED (A-B)

PERSONNEL
Personnel expenses

GROSS OPERATING INCOME (EBITDA) (C-D)

AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND PROVISIONS
Depreciation of tangible assets

Amartization of intangible assets

Provisions to allowance for doubtful receivables
Provisions/uses of risk reserves

OPERATING INCOME (EBIT) (£ - F)

302,795,347
4,255,353
98,443
116,266,595

11,615,606
35,603,961
29,877,056
57,812,657
3,483,737
(1,966,091)
1,138
1,834,024
5,662,307

264,544,786
38,250,561

70,903,335
19,819,736
36,881
38,988,668
35,085,912
2,663,202
4,035,548
7,006,254
5,958,291

2,878,584
4,282,402

68,600,159

26,496,051
5,840,815
323,101
2,299,218

30,769,984 7.5

100.00

191,658,813

111,136,534

68,600,159

42,536,375

34,959,185

7,577,190

63.30
23.42
6.55
0.01
12.88
11.59
0.88
1.33
2.31
197

0.95
1.41

36.70

22.66
22.66

14.05




FINANCIAL EXPENSE ; ; 15,076,451
Interest expense on current account with parent company i 1 7 2,171,930
Interest on subsidiary payables i 6,109,024
Other financial interest ! 163,911
Write-downs of equity investments f 6,631,586

FINANCIAL INCOME e 506,005, o8 33,502,421
Other financial income ot 19,581,366
Income from equity investments i : 13,490,871
Interest on subsidiary receivables : i 430,184

TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES) (I~ H) a i §76 e 18,425,970
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS { G + L) - 3 26,003,160

EXTRAORDINARY INCOME (EXPENSES) “ - : y i 17,382,150

INCOME BEFORE TAXES (M+¥) 43,385,310

TAXES 470 B 4 13,702,299

- Income taxes

NET INCOME (0 - P) 9 29,683,011
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INVESTED CAPITAL

INTANGIBLE ASSETS : Fm 5,953,000 035
TANGIBLE ASSETS : B
Gross amount S = 676,356,874 34.01
(Accumulated depreciation) R 5 . (92,653,882) (4.66)
. = 583,702,992 29.35
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Equity investments 7 ] 1,478,440,975 74.33
Other financial receivables 3,346,068 0.17
Security deposits 461,435 0.02
(Risk and expense reserves) (56,143,045) (2.82)
(Employee leaving payed) ; - 2 (32,223,624) (1.62)
* NET FIXED ASSETS B . =) 1,984,537,811 99.78

Inventories o i ‘ 18,195,126 0.91
Short-term receivables GME 174,764,904 8.79
Accrued income and prepaid expenses i 90547 . 07 16,854,026 0.85
(Accounts payable to suppliers) Rk B ] (122,037,743) (6.14)
(Other debt and payables) ) : 25 (83,172,029) (4.18)
(Accrued expenses and deferred income) { Dk o (225,469) (0.01)

* WORKING CAPITAL aalld . X 4,408,905 0.22

** TOTAL INVESTED CAPITAL 2,005,228,646 100.00 1,988,946,716 100,00

SOURCES OF FUNDING

* TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY ] 568 L (1,943,494,840) (97.71)
Long term financial receivables 1 2,486,642 0.13
(Long term debt) : Z R 1 (5,331,305) (0.27)

 TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER ONE YEAR = : » (2,844,663) (0.14)
Financial receivables due within one year - 101,613,809 5.11
Cash and cash equivalents : 238 " 17,403,863 0.88
(Debt due within one year) 10 : fWEe  (161,624,885) (8.13)

@ TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION WITHIN ONE YEAR B0 S 5 (42,607,213) (2.14)

* TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION {1+ 2) e TR (45,451,876) (2.29)

#» TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDING {1,988,946,716) (100.00)




Cash flow from operating activities

Net income 29,683,011
Depreciation of tangible assets 26,496,051
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,840,815
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in subsidiary and affiliate receivables for sales
of power and services 22,775,170
Increase in parent company receivables 8,068,808
Decrease in other receivables (45,620,778)
Decrease in inventories 1,982,845
Increase in accrued income and prepaid expenses 2,883,407
Increase in accounts payable to suppliers (14,956,581)
Decrease in subsidiary payables 9,978,760
Decrease in affiliate payables 6,721,038
Decrease in other debts and payables 29,248,450
Increase in advances from customers 4,017,694
Increase in accrued expenses and deferred income 218,755
Decrease in employee leaving payed (3,453,219)
Increase in other reserves RS0 2,970,708
Total cash flow from operating activities 51,150,927 ) 86,854,934
Cash flow used in investment activities
Net capital expenditures on tangible and intangible assets (88,798,822)
Transfer of non-current assets to subsidiaries 193,721
Divestments
New equity investments (98,885,954)
Total cash flow used in investment activities (187,491,055)
Free cash flow (100,636,121)
Cash flow from financing activities
Change in Shareholder’s equity
Increase in bank debt
Decrease in financial receivables (8,812,398)
Decrease in current account debt due to subsidiaries (15,641,905)
Increase in debt to other financial institutions 1,047,295
Decrease in current account debt due to the Municipality
of Milan (35,925,560)
Net income distributed (106,909,393)
Total cash flow used in financing activities (166,241,961)
* NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (266,878,082)
CASH AND CASH EQUAVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 87,294,631 354,172,713
CASH AND CASH EQUAVALENTS, END OF THE PERIGD ] 16,910,238 87,294,631
NET FINANCIAL POSITION
Net cash and cash equivalents 87,294,631 I-.,.’
Financial receivables 9,276,177 S
Current account with the Municipality of Milan (74,878,718) =]
Bank debt g
Other financial institutions ; : ‘ (5,331,305) a
Current account with subsidiaries : PRI o (61,812,661) ;
TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION ] {100,634,978) (45,451,876) , S
| g
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In accordance with the rules implementing accounting and administrative separation, with
which companies operating in the electricity sector must comply as established by
Resolution 61 of May 14, 1999, included in this Report on Operations are the statements
required by the Resolution.

Generating activities include the balance sheet and income statement items relative to
both thermoelectric and hydroelectric plants.

The other activities refer to the service of public lighting and traffic signals.

amountshinge o] g iz Totel Eliminatien o
d atrtheEile

|
|
i
i
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ASSETS
Shareholder
receivables for
contributions due -
Non-current assets 490,755,224 479,357 1,585,282,907 2,076,517,488 - 2,076,517,488
Current assets 50,544,010 61,849,479 165,360,061 277,753,550 - 271,753,550
inter-sector receivables - - 5019875 52,019,875  (52,019,875) -
Accrued income and
prepaid expense 333,522 832 61,164,787 61,493,141 - 61,499,141

TOTAL ASSETS 541,632,756 62,329,668 1,863,827,630 2,467,790,054  (52,019,815) 2,415,770,179

LIABILITIES

Shareholders' equity 1,904,593,668  1,904,593,668
Risk and expense

reserve 2,628,781 - 54,826,916 57,455,697 57,455,697
Employee severance

pay reserve 10,400,282 5,030,628 16,733,017 32,163,927 - 32,163,927
Debt and payables 22,594,757 44,638,811 353,955,797 421,189,365 - 421,189,365
inter-sector payables 27,564,391 24,455,484 - 52,019,875  (52,019,875) -
Accrued expenses

and deferred credits 2,807 - 364,715 367,522 - - 367,522

TOTAL LIABILITIES 63,101,018 74,124,923 425,880,445 563,196,386 (52,019,875)  1,904,593,668  2,415,770,179




_Data by Activity and Shared Services

lamountshingeito) Shated

senvices]

hoH

A} Revenues
inter-sector revenues

284,303,551 38,957,005
122,898 239,582

284,426,449 39,196,587

(152,025,253) (31,293,687
(52,674535) (8,651,747

)

)

(204,699,788) (39,945,434)
79,126,661 (748,847)

76,949,105
61,326,283

138,275,388

(186,220,737
(362,481

}

}
(186,483,218)
(48,207,830)

Operating expenses
inter-sector costs

Operating income
Financial income and
expenses

Adjustments to the value
of financial assets
Extraordinary gains and
losses

Income before taxes

Taxes

400,209,661
61,688,763

461,898,424

(369,430,677)
(61,688,763)

(431,128,440) 61,688,763
30,769,984 -

(61,688,763) 400,209,661

(369,439,677)
30,769,984

26,669,094 26,669,094

(8,988.108)  (8,988,108)

1,627,485 1,627,445
- 50078415
(14610569)  (14,610,569)

Net income for the period

- BTAS
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Dear Shareholders,

The financial statements for your company, as of December 31, 2001, close with net
income of € 35,467,846.

If you agree with the criteria followed in drawing up the financial statements and with the
valuation criteria adopted, we would ask you to approve the following resolutions

The Meeting of Shareholders

© having viewed the Board of Directors’ report on operations;

© having viewed the report of the Board of Statutory Auditors;

o having viewed the report of the auditing firm;

o having examined the financial statements for the period énded December 31, 2001,
which closes with net income of € 35,467,846;

resolves
a) to approve:
o the Board of Directors’ report on operations;
o the balance sheet and the relative income statement and the notes thereto for the peri-
od which shows net earnings of € 35,467,846, as presented by the Board of Directors in
their overall and single postings, with the reserves and allocations proposed;

b) to distribute the net income of € 35,467,846 for the year as follows:

o € 1,773,392 to the legal reserve;

o € 4,385,701 to the reserve for accelerated depreciation as per art. 67, third paragraph,
Presidential Decree 917/86, specifying that this reserve, for tax purposes, forms an inte-
gral part of accumulated depreciation;

o £ 14,908,374 to the extraordinary reserve;

© £ 14,400,379 to a shareholder dividend of € 0,008 for each of the 1,800,047,400
shares of common stock. We recommend that the dividend be made payable as of June 27,
2002, upon clipping and presentation of Coupon 4. This portion of dividend is entitled to
full tax credit at 56.25% of the dividend received (“Basket A");

c) together with the dividend of € 14,400,379, for distribution among shareholders, a fur-
ther amount of:

o £61,201,612, corresponding to € 0.034 per share, taken from the extraordinary reserve
allocated at the time of approving the 1999 financial statements. This portion of dividend,
since it consists of earnings put aside in periods of tax moratorium, is exempt from taxa-
tion under Article 88 of Presidential Decree 917/86 and Article 66 (14) of Law 427/93, and
shall not entitle the recipient to a dividend tax credit. It is recommended that also the
payment of this portion of dividend takes place from June 27, 2002, upon clipping and
presentation of coupon 4.

The Board of Directors
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AEM S.p.A. tinancial statements




_ meERts In euse

A) SHAREHOLDER RECEIVABLES FOR CONTRIBUTIONS DUE

B) FIXED ASSETS

I Intangible assets

1) Start-up and other capitalised expenses 1,036,574 1,550,742
2) Research, development and advertising costs

3) Industrial patent and intellectual property rights 1,654,543 2,386,644
4) Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights - 770,775 1,324,165
5) Goodwill

6) Work in progress and advance payments 58,323 851,491
7) Other intangible assets ) o . 533208 739,968

Total intangible assets 4,053,112 6,953,010

Tangible assets
1) Land and buildings 3,13 134,330,811
2) Plant and machinery:

- Non-transferable assets 189,256,856 200,359,906

- Transferable assets 187,342,033 192,914,475

376,608,855 393,274,381

3) Industrial and commercial equipment ‘ 4,981,2%2 5,431,002
4) Other assets 11,133,764 11,237,513
5) Work in progress and advance payments 93,698,677 39,429,285

Total tangible assets 569,217,838 583,702,992

Financial assets
1) Investment in:
a) subsidiaries 1,391,890,873 1,391,643,388
b) affiliates 85,117,608 38,369,579
c) other companies 21,376,953 48,428,008
Total equity investments 1,478,440,975
Financial receivables:
a) subsidiary receivables
b) affiliate receivables
- due after one year 165,770 2,408,316
- due within one year 68,689
1,1€5,770 2,477,005

¢) parent company receivables
d) other receivables
- due after one year ' 3,489,645 3,807,503
- due within one year 127,263 155,682
3,616,908 3,963,185
Total financial receivables 6,440,190
3} Other securities : 78,326
4y Own shares ~

Total financial assets 1,503,246,538 1,484,959,491

Total fixed assets (B ) ~ 2,076,517,488 2,075,615,493
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_ ameunts Ii eure Balanee at 12.98.2001 Galanes 4t 12,81.2000
C) CURRENT ASSETS /
I Inventories i
1) Materials and fuels: :
a) materials 6,867,699 § 7,212,462
b) fuels 2,945,447 § 1,342,375
¢) other : ! 2,869
! 9,813,146 ! 8,557,706
2) Work in progress ; ;
3) Work in progress contracts 6,833,493 9,134,661
4) Finished goods and merchandise !
5) Advance payments | ; 434,695
6) Other ! | 68,064
Total inventories 16,646,639 18,195,126
II  Receivables
1) Receivables for sales and services 12,220,956 23,441,729
2) Subsidiary receivables 157,914,747 90,870,843
3) Affiliate receivables 1,296,518 2,414,964
4) Parent company receivables 41,338,080 25,028,332
5) Other receivables:
- Electricity Equalisation Fund ; 5,784,806 13,159,587
- receivables from financial transactions 1 ‘ 69,890,252
- advances to suppliers ! 181,963 ; 1,436,219
- personnet receivables 56,124 ‘ 56,937
- other receivables ; 25,403,379 } 43,164,724
31,426,372 127,707,719
Total receivables 244,196,673 269,463,587
III Financial assets not classified as fixed assets ;
1) Investment in subsidiaries '
2) Investment in affiliates |
3) Other equity investments “ 6,720,846
5) Other securities | 2,706 3,002,706
Total financial assets 2,706 9,723,552
IV Cash and cash equivalent i
1) Bank and post office deposits ‘ 16,762,379 14,102,753
2) Outstanding cheques
3) Cash and cash equivalents on hand 145,153 298,404
Total cash and cash equivalent 16,907,532 14,401,157
Total current assets ( C) 277,753,550 311,783,422
I
1 :
D) ACCRUED INCOME AND PREPAID EXPENSE 1‘ 61,499,141 16,854,026
TOTAL ASSETS 2,415,770,179 2,404,252,941
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A) SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

I Share capital

IV Legal reserve

VII Other reserves

VIII Retained earnings (losses)
IX Net income

Total shareholder’s equity ( A)

PROVISION FOR RISKS AND OTHER CHARGES
1) Retirement benefits and similar provisions
2) Deferred tax fund

3) Other provision for risks

Total provision for risks and other charges ( B )

() EMPLOYEES' LEAVING ENTITLEMENT

936,024,648
64,038,853
869,062,300

35,467,846

1,904,593,668

5,087,141

51,338,556

32,163,927

57,455,697

Beance at 12.31.2009

929,646,898
62,554,718
921,610,213

29,683,011
1,943,494,840

4,506,082
51,636,963

56,143,045

32,223,624




_ ameunts In eure

Ballrce o 12.99,2001  Gelbncs 48 12.99.2000

D) PAYABLES ‘
1) Bonds ! f

2) Convertible bonds 5 ;
3) Banks |
- due within one year ! 25,822,845 [ |
- due after one year ; 5,164,569 l |
| 30,987,414 | 1
4) Payables to other financial institutions ' :
- due within one year g i
- due after one year ! 5,331,305 ; 5,331,305
) 5,331,305 ! 5,331,305
5) Advance payments (received) } 13,403,430 4,555,842
6) Accounts payable - suppliers ‘ 170,257,619 122,037,743 ;
7) Notes payable ‘ ‘
8) Subsidiary payables i 109,614,571 | 101,285,733 |
9) Affiliate payables 5,039,770 ! 6,721,038
10) Parent company payables / 60,562,128 | 102,185,067
11) Taxes payable ; 9,411,731 13,131,439
12) Social security payables : 9,316,009 9,397,943
13) Other payables i
a) persannel payables ! 3,589,088 i 4,652,741
b) Electricity Equatization Fund i 88,503 | 124,533
c) other ; 3,577,797 | 2,742,579
i 7,265,388 | 7,519,853
Total payables ( D ) 421,189,365 372,165,963
i A
E) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME i 367,522 225,469
| |
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,415,770,179 2,404,252,941 :
;r B |
Commitments ~ :
Security deposits received : 84,624,820 98,641,485
Security deposits provided 32,663,432 59,119,486
Guarantees provided ; : 5,329,090
Total commitments 117,288,252 163,090,061




A) REVENUES

1) Revenues from sales and services

Sale of electricity to other electric power companies
Sale of electricity to sole operator

Sale of electricity to users

Sale of electricity to subsidiaries

Sale of materials to subsidiaries

Sale of materials to affiliates

4,255,353

98,443
116,266,595
11,615,606
22,658

Sale of fuel to subsidiaries

Services on behalf of users and third parties
Services provided to subsidiaries

Services provided to affiliates

3,691,357
63,735,055
57,319,500

1,081,773

65,481,017
57,812,657
3,461,079

Connection fees 253 1,138
336,-7‘675,916

Total revenues from sales and services 259,014,546

2) Changes in inventories

3) Changes in work in progress contract (2,301,168) (1,966,091)

4) Capitalised expenses 2,954,427 3,257,860

5) Other revenues and income
Miscellaneous
Other revenues: 3
1. contibution received from Electricity Equalization Fund -

52,847,998 7,376,155

9,148,622 38,250,561

2. others

Total other revenues and income

Total revenues ( A )

B) OPERATING EXPENSES

6) Materials and fuels

Purchases of power

Purchases of fuel for production
Purchase of other fuet
Purchases of materials

Total materials and fuels

7) Services

Electric power delivering charges
Contract and other work

Other expenses

Subsidiary-related service expenses
Affiliate-related service expenses

Totat services

783,866

62,790,486

400,209,661

508,360
95,294,653
527,288

20,367,155

116,697,476

36,462,252
41,733,421
5,015,368
3,897,375

87,108,426

9,947,488

120,176
38,370,737

45,746,892

306,053,207

69,831,321
668,575
19,885,957

20,385,853

36,882
38,988,668
35,085,912

2,663,202
4,035,548

80,810,212




8) Lease and rental expenses

9) Personnel expenses
a) salaries and wages
b) social security payments
c) employee’ leaving payments
d) retirement benefits and simitar payments
e) other expenses

Total personnel expenses

10) Amortization, depreciation and write-downs
a) amortization of intangible assets
b) depreciation of tangible assets:
1. ordinary depreciation
2. depreciation of transferable assets

c) other write-downs of fixed assets

d) write-downs of receivables included in current
assets

Total amortization, depreciation and write-downs

11) Changes in inventories
12) Risk provisions
13) Other provisions

14) Other operating expenses
Taxes, duties and water diversion fees
Other expenses

Total other operating expenses

Total operating expenses ( B )

Operating income (A -B)

Balanes ot 12.91.2008

7,006,254

I 13,262,621
‘ 44,436,380 49,616,172
; 12,572,919 15,657,773
‘ 4,041,499 4,330,615
% 2,135,343 2,071,621
63,186,141 71,676,181
)
4,117,065 5,840,815
19,633,145 20,821,157
5,655,294 5,674,894
| 25,288,439 26,496,051
|
i 938,943 323,101
30,344,447 32,659,967
(1,255,440) . 519,055
2,337,297 2,299,218
|
|
| ‘
49,080,470 8,836,867
8,678,239 4,282,410
57,758,709 13,119,277
369,439,677 298,476,017
30,769,984 7,577,180




AMOUNES 17 3U7E

€) FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

15) Income from investments in
a) Subsidiary companies
b} Affiliate companies
¢} Other companies

16) Other financial income
a) From receivables included in fixed assets:
1. Subsidiaries
2. Affiliates
3. Parent company
4, Associated companies
5. Other

b} From securities included in fixed assets
¢) From securities included in current assets
d) Income, not included above:
1. From subsidiaries
2. From affiliates
3. From the parent company
4. From other sources:
- On financial investments
- On current accounts at banks
- On other receivables

Total other financial income

17) Interest and other financial expense
a) Subsidiaries
b) Affiliates
c) Parent company
d) Other

Total interest and other financial expense

Total financial income and expense ( C)

14,369,088
9,331
3,852,048

1,155,590

4,551,625
1,669,195
8,804,065

18,230,407

16,180,475

17,365,558

4,688,352

2,935,755
1,302,784

8,926,931

26,669,094

12,676,335

814,536

94,081

129,953

430,184

10,527,270
682,577
7,984,412

13,490,871

224,034
2,166
160,907

19,624,443
20,011,550

6,109,024

2,171,929
163,911

8,444,864

25,057,557




ﬂmﬁm e Belenes ¢ 42.31.2001

D) ADJUSTMENTS TO THE VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

18) Revaluations
a) Of equity investments
b) Of financial assets which are not classified
as equity investments
¢} Of securities included in current assets which
are not classified as equity investments
d) Other

Total revaluations

19) Write-downs
a) Of equity investments
b) Of financial assets which are not
classified as equity investments
c) Of securities included among current assets that
are not classified as equity investments
d) Other

Total wiite-downs

Total adjustments to the value of financial assets (D)

E) EXTRAORDINARY INCOME AND EXPENSE

20) Extraordinary income
a) Capital gains on disposal of assets
by Non-operating income/reversal of asset items
¢) Annual portion of capital subsidies
d) Other

Total extraordinary income

21) Extraordinary expense
a) Capital losses on disposal of assets
b) Non-operating expenses/reversal of liability items
c) Other:
~ Taxes and duties for prior periods
- Other

Total extraordinary expense

Total extraordinary income and expense ( E )

Income before taxes

22) Income taxes
- Current taxes
- Advance tax payments
- Deferred taxes

Total income taxes

23) NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

8,988,108

|

8,988,108

(8,988,108)

1,634,906

1,634,906

7,461

7,461

7,461

1,627,445

50,078,415

12,453,675
565,835
1,591,059

14,610,569

35,467,846

6,631,300

286

6,631,586

(6,631,586)

16,568,864
2,511,417

19,080,281

1,557,209

2,256
138,667
140,923

1,698,132

17,382,149

43,385,310

11,651,874
(2,455,657)
4,506,082

13,702,299

29,683,011







The financial statements closed as of December 31, 2000 were prepared in accordance with
current applicable laws as well as regulations regarding the companies whose stock is list-
ed on the stock exchange.

These financial statements were prepared under the assumption that the companies are
operating and ongoing concerns, in accordance with the formats stipulated in the Civil
Code for the balance sheet, income statement and contents of the notes to financial state-
ments, with reference to legal provisions, which were interpreted and supplemented by
accounting principles of Business Consultants and Accountants, and as necessary, by
accounting principles recommended by the International Accounting Standard Committee
- TASC - and referenced by CONSOB, and in accordance with the criteria stipulated by CON-
SOB regulations related to the preparation of financial statements.

The notes to financial statements provide all additional information considered neces-
sary for the purposes of giving a true and accurate picture of the balance sheet, income
statement and financial condition of the company.

The notes to financial statements and report on operations include a presentation of the
information required by CONSOB Resolution No. 11971 of May 14, 1999 concerning the
approval of the regulation on the provisions for implementing Legislative Decree No. 58 of
February 24, 1998 with regard to issuers.

During the period under review, the company adopted the Euro as the money of account
to replace the Lira, so that the financial statements closed as of December 31, 2001 have
been prepared in Euro.

The report on operations also provides the information required on the basis of CONSOB
recommendations contained in Notice No. 97001574 dated February 20, 1897 regarding
company controls and Notice No. 98015375 dated February 27, 1998 with respect to infor-
mation on transactions with related parties.

These financial statements were subject to a full audit, which was carried cut in accor-
dance with the principles stated by CONSOB. The audit was conducted by RECONTA ERNST
& YOUNG S.p.A.

In line with the previsions of Article 2426 of the Civil Code, the valuation criteria used for
the preparation of financial statements closed as of December 31, 2001 were not changed
from the criteria used for the preparation of the financial statements closed as of December
31, 2000. During the fiscal year, following the application of accounting principte No. 29
of 2001, adjustments to estimates relating to previous periods, arising from greater or fur-
ther information or more experience regarding the assumptions on which they were based,
fall within the normal procedure for achieving an estimation and do not lead to showing
extraordinary income elements.

It should be noted that in the preparation of these financial statements, the exceptions
included in Article 2423 of the Civil Code were not made.
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In accordance with Article 2426 of the Civil Code, the main valuation criteria used for the
preparation of 2001 financial statements are as follows:

These items are stated at purchase or production cost including ancillary charges and other
directly allocable costs. They are amortised regularly in relation to their projected future
economic life. If it is deemed that certain intangible assets have no future economic life,
the remaining value is charged to the income statement.

Start-up and expansion costs and research and development costs that are applicable to
two or more years are reported among assets, subject to the consent of the auditing firm.
These costs are amortised over a period of five years. However, the costs incurred in 1998
in relation to the procedure of placing and listing shares on the stock exchange, which are
reported under start-up and expansion costs, are amortised on a straight-line basis over
three periods.

Advertising costs are fully allocated to period costs in the fiscal year when incurred.

Tangible assets are stated in financial statements at purchase or internal production cost,
or at the transfer cost based on the expert appraisal of the company’s assets. Cost includes
ancillary charges and the portion of all direct and indirect costs that can be reasonably
allocated to the assets.

Plant assets under construction are stated in financial statements in the amount of direct
costs incurred during the year, and are not depreciated since depreciation for these tangi-
ble assets commences at the time they become available and ready for use.

Tangible assets are regularly depreciated each fiscal year on a straight-line basis using
economic and technical depreciation rates taken from the expert appraisal prepared for the

purpose of the transfer of assets to AEM S.p.A., and deemed to be representative of the
remaining potential to use the tangible assets. Furthermore, to avoid unjustifiable extra
tax, if the economic and technical depreciation rates are lower than 50% of the maximum
fiscal rates, the depreciation rate was adjusted to the minimum fiscally allowed.

The depreciation rates applied are shown in the section containing notes on assets. For
additions made during the period, tangible assets were depreciated by applying 50% of the
rate.

Accelerated depreciation, applied solely under tax laws in addition to the economic and
technical depreciation, are directly attributed to a specific reserve in the net equity, cal-
culated when allocating the period profits, that is, without going through the income
statement. The relative deferred taxation on such depreciation is entered in the income
statement.

Assets with a unit cost under € 516 are depreciated entirely in the period in which the
purchase cost is incurred for such assets.

Freely transferable assets at the expiration of concessions are depreciated each period
using the straight-line method on the basis of the remaining term of concessions, which
are renewed for a further thirty years; this renewal was also taken into account for con-
cessions atready expired on the date these financial statements were prepared.

In the event there are changes in the useful life of assets, due to revisions of the original
appraisal conditions resulting from company plans that call for the replacement of the
assets, the tangible assets will be depreciated taking into account the remaining future life.




Contributions to plant assets, which are made in proportion to the cost of the tangible
assets, are credited to the income statement gradually on the basis of the useful life of
the assets they relate to. The posting method used stipulates that such contributions be
directly allocated as a reduction of the assets to which they relate.

Ordinary maintenance costs are fully charged to the income statement; incremental main-
tenance costs are allocated to the assets to which they relate.

The method of accounting for leased assets complies with current financial statement reg-
ulations in Italy which permits the lessee companies to post lease fees paid to the income
statement.

Financial assets, which consist of investments in subsidiaries, affiliates and other compa-
nies, are stated at cost, including ancillary charges; the value reported in financial state-
ments is determined on the basis of the purchase or subscription price, or the value attrib-
uted to assets transferred. The cost is reduced for permanent losses of vatue in the event
the companies owned have incurred losses for which no income is projected in the imme-
diate future to absorb the losses.

This lower value is not maintained in future periods if the reasons for the adjustment no
longer apply. The lower limit of value adjustments is reflected in the shareholders’ equity
of the companies or in the estimated sales value for those assets subject to negotiations
for potential sale.

In the event of an addition to equity investments following an increase in dividend-pay-
ing capital, which is subscribed and paid-in by the parent company, the cost value to
which the non-current equity investment is posted is increased by the amount correspon-
ding to the cost incurred for the subscription.

In the event there is a reduction in authorised capital of the subsidiary due to losses, the
value of the equity investment is reduced; if increases in capital are approved following
the reduction of capital due to losses, the value of the equity investment is reduced and
then restored in the amount corresponding to the capital increase made.

Equity investments with negative shareholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal year are
eliminated, and if the parent company deems it necessary to incur the cost of recapitali-
sation, a risk reserve is created in the amount equal to the stake in the negative share-
holders’ equity.

If the subsidiary prepares financial statements in a foreign currency, the valuation is car-
ried out using the currency of the subsidiary’s financial statements. Any loss in value is
converted to Euro, using the historical exchange rate of incorporation for the cost of the
subsidiary.

The historical exchange rate of incorporation may be modified only if there is a change in
the exchange rate that would result in a permanent loss of value. In this event, the new
exchange rate replaces historical exchange rates, and book value is written down as a
result.

For the purposes of comparing book value with the fraction of shareholders’ equity of the
subsidiary, the shareholders’ equity is converted to Euro using the exchange rate at the end
of the fiscal year.

Equity investments to be sold within the following fiscal year are reported as financial
assets not classified as non-current assets among current assets.
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Fixed rate debt instruments that are to remain in the portfolio in the long term are stat-
ed at the transfer or purchase cost including ancillary charges. The cost is written down
for any permanent losses in value.

Receivables included among financial assets are reported at their estimated realisable
value.

Inventories are reported at the lower of purchase cost, including directly applicable ancil-
lary costs, and estimated replacement cost determined from market values.

The cost is determined using the weighted average method. Market value is determined on
the basis of the current cost of inventories on hand at the end of the fiscal year. The value
of obsolete and slow-moving inventory on hand is written down in relation to the poten-
tial to use or sell such inventory by the creation of a special reserve for obsolete materi-
als.

Pending contracts include multi-year orders and are valued on the basis of payments
accrued with reasonable certainty using the percentage of completion method, determined
by the relationship of costs incurred to total projected costs to complete the project. Any
losses on orders that are estimated with a reasonable approximation are fully charged to
the income statement in the fiscal year in which they become known. Pending contracts
for orders lasting less than 1 year are valued at cost.

Receivables are reported at their estimated realisable value through the creation of spe-
cial allowances. Receivables include billings, which are being collected, issued at the end
of the fiscal year, and those to be issued, which, however, are related to supply and serv-
ice arrangements applicable to the fiscal year under review. Accounts receivable related to
customers subject to receivership proceedings or experiencing financial difficulties, for
which it is of no use to initiate enforcement proceedings, are fully charged off, or to the
extent to which the information obtained and pending procedures support the definitive
inability to collect such receivables.

Receivables for financial transactions include receivables related to banks transferring
securities for repurchase agreements, and receivables related to financial institutions for
commercial credit policies; these receivables correspond to prices paid for these transac-
tions. Receivables related to securities repurchase agreements may, as appropriate, include
interest already accrued.

The interest related to these financial transactions, which is accrued during the period but
not yet paid, is posted to accrued income.

Other receivables under current assets include assets in the form of advance tax payments,
the determination of which is specified in the valuation criteria for taxes on current peri-
od income.

Securities and equity investments that are to be traded in the short term, or with a natu-
ral maturity in the following fiscal year, are valued at the lower of purchase cost, using
the weighted average method, and market value at the end of the fiscal year. The cost
value is restored if the reasons for previous write-downs no longer apply.




These items include portions of expenses and income applicable to two or more fiscal
years, the amount of which varies over time, in order to comply with the accrual principle.

These reserves are created to cover losses or liabilities of a specific nature, the existence
of which is certain or likely, and for which the amount or date of occurrence could not be
determined at the end of the fiscal year. Provisions to these reserves reflect the best pos-
sible estimate on the basis of available information.

The tax reserve includes deferred tax liabilities, the determination of which is specified in
the valuation criterion for taxes on current period income.

Risk reserves include the provision for the present value (which was estimated reasonably
on the basis of actuarial and mathematical calculations) of payments in lieu of notice that
are coming due and payable to employees entitled at the end of the fiscal year, who, at
the time of the termination of their work relationship due to their retirement, are entitled
to receive certain additional monthly payments. The reserve for specific risks also includes
the provision for the present value (which was determined reasonably on the basis of actu-
arial and mathematical calculations) of amounts due to retired former employees who are
entitled to the pension supplement paid by the Premungas fund, and amounts due to
employees whose rights gre coming due.

This reserve covers the accrued liabitity to all employees at the closing date of the finan-
cial statements. It is determined on the basis of the provisions of Law No. 297 of May 29,
1982 and includes the provisions for employee severance pay accrued for personnel on the
payroll at the end of the year net of advances paid pursuant to Article 1 of the above law.
This tiability is subject to revaluation through the use of indices.

This entry also includes amounts due and payable, which are calculated at the time the
necessary seniority is reached for a minimum pension, to employees entitled at the end of
the fiscal year, and who, at the time of the termination of their work relationship due to
retirement, are entitled to receive certain additional monthly payments, as stipulated in
internal company agreements and the collective labour agreement.

These items are posted at nominal value.

Commitments include security provided directly and indirectly and security received, bro-
ken down by security deposits, quarantees and other security in an amount equal to the
actual commitment, and collateral equal to the value of the right or asset provided as col-
lateral.

N

Revenues and income are posted net of returns, discounts and allowances as well as taxes
directly connected with the sale of products and services.

To be specific:

revenues from the sale of power are recognised and posted when provided;

i
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" §8Fvice revenues are recognised on the basis of completed services and in accordance
with related contracts. Revenues for pending contracts are recognised in proportion to the
work completed;

revenues from the sale of goods are recognised at the time title is transferred;

- connection fees are considered revenues from services provided during the period;
accordingly, they are posted based on the accrual principle;

- capital subsidies are posted to financial statements at the time of collection, or if previ-
ously, at the time of receipt of the formal approval of disbursement. They are posted as a
reduction of the value of the asset to which they are related, and are credited to the income
statement in proportion to the depreciation of the asset to which they are related;

- expenses are posted in accordance with the accrual principle;

+ financial income and expenses are recognised on the basis of the accrual principle;

- dividends from subsidiaries and affiliates are posted according to the accrual principle
at the time the related dividend right goes into effect, even though this right may be exer-
cised only from the date on which dividends are made available for payment.

Dividends from subsidiaries, in which the parent company has a dominant position at
shareholders’ meetings, are recorded in the fiscal year in which they accrue provided the
draft financial statements for the parent company are approved by the board of directors
of the latter following the approval of draft financial statements for subsidiaries. For tax :‘
purposes, dividends are recognised on a cash basis; the right to the related tax credit also |
goes into effect at the time dividends are collected.

If dividends are collected in a period following the period when posted to financial state-
ments due to the accrual principle, the tax impact for the dividends is reported in the peri-
od when posted.

e g e e

Income taxes for the period are calculated on the basis of current laws, applying the rates |
in force, taking specific tax benefits into account.
Deferred taxes are calculated with regard to temporary differences in taxation and are |
posted to the deferred tax reserve, but only if the amount of such taxes reflects a charge.
If a positive element emerges, an advanced tax payment item is recorded under assets and
posted with other current asset receivables, but only if there is a reasonable certainty that |
there will be a taxable income not less than the amount of the differences which will be
cancelled out, which led to the posting of advance taxes, in the periods in which the |
deductible temporary differences will be applied. The amount of advance taxes is reviewed
yearly in order to assess that such reasonable certainty still continues for applying to
future taxable incomes to an extent that the entire amount of prepaid taxes can be recov- |
ered.

No deferred tax asset or liability is calculated for those temporary differences for which
there are no reasonable expectations that they will be cancelled out with a resulting pay-
ment or recovery of taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported using the equity method.

Deferred taxes are determined on the basis of tax rates in effect at the time of reporting
temporary differences. In order to take into account the different tax rates applicable to
different levels of income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using average |
expected rates for the periods in which the temporary differences will be reversed.
Any changes, resulting from modifications of taxes and/or tax rates, will be reported in the |
fiscal year in which the new provisions go into effect and will be actually applicable.

In order to calculate deferred tax assets, the tax benefit deriving from the future use of
current or previous period tax losses can be taken into account, as long there exists a rea-
sonable certainty of income which permits the recovery in the short term.




Receivables, debt and payables originally expressed in foreign currency are converted to
Euro at the historical exchange rates in effect on the dates of the related transactions.
Exchange differences realised at the time of paying debt and payables and collecting
receivables in foreign currency are posted to the income statement. If the conversion of
debt, payables and receivables in foreign currency, which was carried out on the basis of
exchange rates in effect as of the date of the financial statements, results in a net loss, it
is applied and reflected in the income statement. If, on the other hand, the conversion
results in a net gain, this amount is shown under the income statement postings at the

financial income item.
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|
Financial statement items for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2001 are compared with |
the corresponding items for the financial statements of AEM S.p.A. closed on December 31, ’
2000 in accordance with current regulations contained in the Civil Code and applicable [
CONSOB regulations. 3

As of December 31, 2001 the balance sheet showed assets of € 2,415,770 thousand
(€ 2,404,253 thousand at December 31, 2000) and liabilities of € 511,176 thousand;
shareholders’ equity totalled € 1,904,594 thousand.

Net income for the period was € 35,468 thousand.

Below is a breakdown of the main items of the balance sheet.

| heusands of cure ) ) £2,30.2000 12.31-2000
Start-up and other capitalised expenses ' 1,037 1,551
Industrial patent and intellectual property rights ; 1,655 2,387
Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights : 770 1,324
Work in progress 58 . 951
Other intangible assets 533 740 )
Total intangible assets 4,053 6,953 |

As of December 31, 2001, intangible assets totalled € 4,053 thousand (€ 6,953 thousand
as of December 31, 2000), net of the portion of amortisation for the period of € 4,117 -
thousand, and were related to the capitalisation of costs covering several years as well as ]
intangible assets such as: ;

Start-up and other capitalised expenses, which totalled € 1,037 thousand (€ 1,551
thousand as of December 31, 2000), related to the capitalisation of costs incurred to car-
rying out the corporate reorganisation process of AEM S.p.A. Such costs are amortised on
a straight-line basis over 5 years;

Industrial patent rights and rights to use intellectual property, which totalled € 1,655
thousand (€ 2,387 thousand as of December 31, 2000), relates to the capitalisation of
costs incurred for the acquisition of the SAP R/3 software, These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over 3 years;

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar rights, which totalled € 770 thousand
(€ 1,324 thousand as of December 31, 2000), included costs incurred to acquire applica-
tion software, and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 years;

Intangible assets in process totalled € 58 thousand (€ 951 thousand as of December
31, 2000), and were for charges for the creation of new application software which is cur- |
rently being completed; \
Other intangible assets totalled € 533 thousand (€ 740 thousand as of December 31,

|
|

2000) and were for the design costs for the museum in the area of Bovisa, amortised on
a straight-line basis over three years, as well as expenses related to leasehold improve-
ments such as the costs for the maintenance on the building in Corso di Porta Vittona,
amortised on the basis of the duration of the sale and lease-back contract stipulated dur-
ing the period.
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The net decrease of € 2,900 thousand in this item as at December 31, 2001 from the same
date a year earlier is due to the effect of the following items:

investments of € 1,369 thousand made during the year;

amortization of € 4,117 thousand during the year;
- the value of certain multiyear costs deducted of € 152 thousand.
The make-up of intangible assets and changes occurring during the fiscal year are shown
in Attachment No. 1 to these notes to the financial statements.

iheusanis ef aLm® 1502501 18515000
Land and buildings ‘ 82,795 134,331
Plant and machinery ] 376,6.C 393,275
Industrial and commercial equipment . 4,581 . 5,431
Other assets 13,233 11,237
Work in progress and advance payments o €3,600 39,429
Jotal tangible assets 569,218 583,703

The gross amount of tangible assets can be seen in the following table:

Gross value ' 686,003 676,357

Accumulated depreciation L (i1e,875) (92,654)

Net value 569,218 583,703

Tangible assets, which were € 676,093 thousand before accumulated depreciation
(€ 676,357 thousand as of December 31, 2000), increased by a net amount of € 9,736
thousand due to differences arising from:

capital expenditures made and advance amounts paid to suppliers for constructing plant
assets during the period, totalling € 64,506 thousand;
- the value of assets sold during the year totalling € 54,411 thousand;
- the capital contribution of € 359 thousand received, making a direct reduction of the
value of the assets to which it refers.

R T

The capital expenditures made during 2001 primarily related to the following tangible
assets:

Ll g R

a) Non-industrial land
Capital expenditures of € 24 thousand were made on the land by the South receiver
station.

b) Non-industrial buildings
The capital expenditures totalled € 322 thousand and mostly refer to work done on the
buildings of the rest home at Bormio, the shelter at Fusino, and on the small buildings for
the North and South receiver stations.




¢) Industrial land and buildings

Capital expenditures totalled € 2,327 thousand and concerned the work of renovating
industrial buildings for the West receiver station at the Bovisa, Orobia and Canavese sites.
There was also modernisation at the offices of Trento, Caracciolo and Gonin. Buildings were
updated at the Cassano power plant and the buildings in Grosio.

a) Production plants

Capital expenditures totalling € 914 thousand were made.

With regard to the hydroelectric production plants, the main work involved the plants at
the Premadio, Stazzona and Grosio power plants and the work for expansion of the remote
controlled system, for € 336 thousand.

Regarding the thermocelectric power plants, capital expenditures of € 578 were made,
largely for the work of expanding of Group 1 from 75 mW at the Cassano d’Adda thermal

power plant.

b) Electricity distribution networks

Work valued at € 1,467 thousand was completed.

The main activities involved the expansion of the medium and low voltage lines located in
Valtellina and the digital networks for the site in Milan.

New equipment was purchased and renovations were made to radio equipment for a total
amount of € 491 thousand.

o e
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Furniture, furnishings and office equipment were bought. In addition, the plan to renovate
the company’s information systems continued.
The total of these capital expenditures was € 1,824 thousand.

R g Coluie s R

Capital expenditures of € 128 thousand largely concerned the work for alterations to the
loading tanks at the Lovero plant and the work on the sluice gates of the San Giacomo
dam.

a) Non-industrial buildings
These capital expenditures total € 1,029 thousand and concern refurbishment works on
buildings in the Canavese area.

b) Industrial buildings

Capital expenditures of € 1,336 thousand were made, mainly pertaining to the work on the
buildings in Piazza Po and the Bovisa area. Updating work was also carried out on the
buildings of the Cassano power plant and the Premadio, Grosio and Stazzona buildings.

¢) Production plants

The capital expenditures in building were € 22,879 thousand.

Regarding the hydroelectric power plants, the main work concerned the continuation of the
installation of the fourth Group of the Grosio power plant and of the works for expanding
the Premadio power plant, for a total amount of € 10,654 thousand.
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“ Capital exbenaitures of € 12,225 thousand were made for the thermoelectric production
plants, mostly concerning the repowering of Group 1 of the Cassano power plant.

d) Other ossets
Capital expenditures of € 128 thousand were made for the development of some of the
IT systems.

e} Advance payments

The advance payments of € 10,639 thousand for constructing tangible assets largely refer
to the continuation of works for constructing Group 2 of the Cassano thermoelectric power
plant.

f} Transferable assets
The main activity concerned the excavation work and construction of the sluice gates to
create the new Viola Canal, totalling € 20,998 thousand.

Decreases in tangible assets which, net of accumulated depreciation, totalled € 53,703
thousand, refer to the sale of the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria 4, the sale of an alter-
nator of Group 2 of the Cassano d'Adda thermoelectric power plant and some of the com-
ponents of the Fraele plant, the elimination of PCs and office equipment, and for the sale
of some vehicles.

Tnousamnds of eure

Accumulated depreciation

Following the provision for depreciation for the fiscal year of € 25,288 thousand, accu-
mulated depreciation amounts to € 116,875 thousand and covers 19.7% of the value of
operating plants as at December 31, 2001.

The depreciation of tangible assets was calculated on the basis of rates that correspond to
economic and technical rates that are deemed to be representative of the remaining poten-
tial use and useful life of the tangible assets, as indicated in the expert appraisal prepared
for the purpose of transferring the group of assets related to Azienda Energetica Municipale
to AEM S.p.A.

The rates applied are as follows:
non-industrial land and buildings 10.0%
industrial land and buildings 27.9%
production plants 25.0%
transformer stations 25.0%
distribution networks 11.1%
manufacturing and commercial equipment 16.7%
furniture and furnishings 20.0%
electric and electronic office equipment 16.7%
vehicles 25.0%




It is pointed out that, in order to avoid unwarranted taxation, if the economic and tech-
nical rates were below 50% of the maximum tax rate, the depreciation rate was adjusted
to the minimum [imit allowed under tax laws. Had only the economical and technical rates
had been applied, the depreciation would have been lower by € 1,270 thousand and so
the effect on the profits and equity net of the tax effect would have been higher by € 759
thousand.

In addition to the depreciation for the period, accelerated depreciation is also calculated
(at £ 4,386 thousand) which is purely through the application of tax laws. In order to
assess this accelerated depreciation, the method recommended by accounting principles is
followed whereby it is not posted in the income statement, but directly entered in a
reserve of the balance sheet when profits are distributed.

To comply with the accruals principle, deferred taxes on accelerated depreciation are
shown in the income statement for the period, solely deducted at the time of completing
the income tax returns.

At the expiration of the concession, freely transferable assets are depreciated on the basis
of the duration of the concessions renewed for a further thirty years; this renewal was also
taken into account for concessions that had already expired on the preparation date of
these financial statements.

The decision to depreciate freely transferable assets on the basis of the duration of con-
cessions, which were renewed for a further thirty years, was based on the fact that this
period of time is an appropriate representation of the useful life attributed by experts to
transferable plant assets at the time of determining the original capital, and it is sup-
ported by current regulations. In fact, there are specific regulations that call for the auto-
matic renewal of concessions related to hydroelectric plants up to a maximum of sixty years
for major diversions of public water to be used for driving power, and thirty years for minor
diversions (Law No. 102 of May 2, 1990, better known as the Valtellina Law). The Bersani
Decree No. 79/1999 also calls for the ability to renew hydroelectric concessions for thirty
years from the expiration date, provided that the grantor of the concession presents a plan
to improve the productivity of the plant.

Bearing in mind that the concessions for the transferable plant assets of AEM S.p.A., which
are all located in Valtellina, almost exclusively invoived major diversions of public water,
it was decided, on the basis of the prudence principle, to consider the concessions to be
automatically renewable for a further thirty years from the expiration date of the conces-
sions.

Tangible assets affected by changes in usefut life due to revisions in the original condi-
tions for estimating the remaining potential usage resulting from company plans calling
for the replacement of these assets, were depreciated taking into account the remaining
future usage.

It should also be noted that no financial expenses were capitalised during the fiscal year
under review.

A summary table was prepared for “Tangible assets” (Attachment No. 2 to the notes to
financial statements) which indicates, for each item, the beginning amount, changes dur-
ing the period, and the ending balance of tangible assets and related accumulated depre-
ciation.
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_B III 1) Egquity investments

iheusands ef aure 2. 892000

Investments in subsidiaries - i,301,8¢¢ 1,391,643
Investments in affiliates ' 5,008 38,370
Investments in other companies o 2130 48,428

Total equity investments ] 1,498,386 1,478,441

B III 1 a) Investments in subsidiaries
This item totalled € 1,391,891 thousand (€ 1,391,643 thousand in 2000) with an increase
of € 248 thousand over the period ending December 31, 2000.

The following table shows the composition and changes during the period:

Imvestmends ‘a subsidiades Historie Neveluaors Witie-omnns
lheusands @f eure GBS

Values at 12.31.2000 1,391,643 1,391,643

Changes in 2001:
changes in share capital - -
purchases 151 151
contributions - _
subscriptions 99 99
disposals (2) (2)
write-downs - -

Total changes in 2001 248 248
Values at 12.31.2001 1,391,891 1,391,891

At the end of the fiscal year, investments in directly held subsidiaries were as follows:

-~ AEM Trasmissione S.p.A.

The equity investment totals € 77,566 thousand representing 99.9% of authorised capital.
The amount shown in the financial statements, calculated according to the cost method,
appears lower than the corresponding fraction of the shareholders’ equity of the company
by € 1,558 thousand due to the positive performance of the company which closed the
year with a net income of € 1,486 thousand and an overall shareholders’ equity of € 9,132
thousand;

- AEM Elettricita S.p.A.

This equity investment totals € 568,205 thousand and represents 99.9% of the company’s
authorised capital. At December 31, 2001, the net income for the period amounted to
£ 9,026 thousand and the overall shareholders’ equity was € 579,606 thousand. This
amount is € 11,344 thousand higher than the amount posted for the equity investment in
the financial statements of AEM S.p.A. The increase in the amount is due to the favourable
operating earnings generated during the during the 2001 period;

~ AEM Gas S.p.A.

This equity investment total € 702,482 thousand and represents 99.99% of the company's
authorised capital. The percentage held has not changed even though, during the period,
3,500 shares were transferred to Metropolitana Milanese S.p.A. The amount posted in the
financial statements, determined using the cost method, is € 4,503 thousand lower than




tions of the company which closed the period under review with net income of £ 5,183
thousand and total shareholders” equity of € 707,055 thousand;

- AEM Energia S.p.A.

The equity investment totals € 104 thousand, representing 99.99% of the authorised
capital of the company. During the period, AEM S.p.A. acquired 1,999 shares from
Metropolitana Milanese S.p.A., so that the percentage held has risen from 99% to 99.99%.
At December 31, 2001 the net income for the period totalled € 1,452 thousand and the
overall shareholders’” equity € 1,560 thousand. This amount is € 1,457 thousand higher
than the equity investment posted in the financial statements of AEM S.p.A. as a result of
the favourable operating earnings generated during the year;

< Metroweb S.p.A.

The equity investment of € 13,461 thousand in the subsidiary company Metroweb S.p.A.
is unchanged from the financial statements of the previous year, and represents 67.16% of
the authorised capital.

The 2001 period shows a net income of € 6,241 thousand and the shareholders’ equity, at
December 31, 2001, therefore stood at € 26,577 thousand. The book value of the equity
investment, which was determined using the cost method, is € 4,389 thousand lower than
the fraction of the company’s shareholders’ equity held;

= AEM Service S.r.l.

The equity investment totals € 12,405 thousand and represents 100% of the company’s
authorised capital. The 2001 period shows a net income of € 820 thousand, while the
shareholders’ equity, at December 31, 2001 totalled € 13,169 thousand. As a result, the
book value of the equity investment, which was determined using the cost method, is
€ 764 thousand lower than the fraction of the company's shareholders’ equity held;

v Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

The equity investment totals € 17,421 thousand and represents 71.4% of the authorised
capital (net of own shares, the amount held being 79.4%). The company’s authorised cap-
ital is € 1,082 thousand made up of 1,040 thousand shares with a nominal value of € 1.04
each. At the moment of purchasing, a greater value was paid for the purposes of goodwill
- € 22.05 per share - in relation to the ownership of seven concessions for the distribu-
tion of natural gas, of which one in Lombardy, four in Veneto, and two in Friuli Venezia
Giulia.

From January 1, 2001, Serenissima Gas S.p.A. merged with its parent company Triveneta
Gas S.p.A. Serenissima Gas S.p.A. controls the company S.ENE.CA S.r.l. being liquidated.
The company closed the 2001 period with a net income of € 1,865 thousand;

= AEM Trading S.r.l.

The equity investment totals € 99 thousand and represents 100% of the company’s autho-
rised capital. The company was founded on March 15, 2001 and became operative from
October 1, 2001 with the aim of taking advantage of the opportunities provided by the
deregulation of the electricity market which will result in the creation of an Electricity
Exchange in which operators can concentrate their sale and purchase offers. On December
31, 2001, net income for the period totalled € 3,176 thousand and total shareholders’
equity was € 3,275 thousand. This amount is € 3,176 thousand higher than the equity
investment posted in the financial statements of AEM S.p.A. as a result of the favourable
operating earnings generated in the last quarter of 2001;

o Zincar S.r.l.

The equity investment totals € 149 thousand and is inclusive of the coverage by € 49
thousand of losses in previous periods. During 2001, AEM S.p.A. acquired the remaining
51% of the authorised capital from Edison Termoelettrica S.p.A. thereby becoming the sole
shareholder with 100% of the company’s authorised capital equalling € 100 thousand. At
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December 31, 2001, net income for the period totalled € 71 thousand and total share-
holders' equity was € 184 thousand. This amount is € 35 thousand higher than the equi-
ty investment posted in the financial statements of AEM S.p.A. as a result of the favourable
operating earnings generated in the company’s first year.

B III 1 b) Investments in affiliates
Investments in affiliates are evaluated using the cost method.

The following table shows the make up and changes in these investments during the fis-
cal year:

Values at 12.31.2000

Changes in 2001:
changes in share capital 44,638
acquisitions 20
contributions -
subscriptions 2,980 2,980
disposals - - - -
write-downs - (186)
reclassifications (704) (704)

Total chianges in 2001 46,934 46,748
Values at 12.31.2001 85,304 85,118

The main changes in the period concerned:
€ 5,168 thousand to subscribe the increase in capital of the affiliate Mestni Plinovoodi

d.0.0. in May 2001;

£ 39,470 thousand to subscribe the increase in capital in the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. It
is pointed out that AEM S.p.A. only partially subscribed the capital increase, in relation to
the financial commitments foreseen for the development of the core business;

€ 20 thousand for the purchase of 39 thousand shares in affiliate Fastweb S.p.A.;

€ 1,580 thousand to subscribe 30% in the consortium fund of Consorzio 3A;

€ 646 thousand in payment of 25% of the consortium fund of Consorzio Italpower (in
liguidation) set up with ACEA S.p.A., AEM di Torino S.p.A. and ATEL in order to take part
in the bidding for the acquisition of Elettrogen, an electricity generating company (GENCO)
which ENEL S.p.A. sold as required by the Bersani Decree. The bidding was finally won by
a competitor company;

€ 487 thousand, corresponding to seven-tenths of the authorised capital in Electrone
S.p.A. (€ 263 thousand) and Plurigas S.p.A. (€ 224 thousand);

€ 81 thousand for AEM S.p.As quota - equalling 49% of the authorised capital totalling
€ 100 thousand - in the company e-UTILE S.p.A. including ancillary constitution costs.

Write-downs of € 186 thousand are represented by the writing down of the equity invest-
ment in Italpower S.p.A. which was set up for the already mentioned Elettrogen bidding,
and put inte liquidation during 2001.

The reclassifications of € 704 thousand refer to the € 98 thousand investment in Zincar
S.r.L which is fully consolidated, and to the € 606 thousand investment in Laritel S.r.l. The
percentage held in Laritel S.r.l. has dropped from 30% to 6.19% due to AEM S.p.A. not
subscribing to the increase in capital in this company during 2001.




B III 1 d) Investments in other companies

Investments in other companies totalled € 21,377 thousand (€ 48,428 thousand in the
2000 period), representing a decrease of € 27,051 thousand over the financial statements
closed on December 31, 2000, as shown in detail in the following table:

Irvesiments in edher Misterie Rewluatlons Wrte-dewns Chenges RNt

Gmpantes - (housands of eum gost i vale paltie
Values at 12.31.2000 48,428 - - ~ 48,428

Changes in 2001:
- changes in share capital - - - - -

~ purchases 12,189 - - - 12,189
- contributions - - - - -
~ subscriptions 25 - - - 25
~ disposals (48) - - - (48)
~ write-downs - - (8,803) - (8,803)
-~ reclassifications (30,414) - - - (30,414)
Total changes in 2001 (18,248) - (8,803) - (27,051)
Values at 12.31.2001 30,180 - (8,803) - 21,377

The main changes in the period concerned:

€ 8,198 thousand for the write-down of the investment in the company e.BISCOM, pru-
dentially applied to align the historic cost with the average arithmetic value of the mar-
ket in the second half of 2001 with a view to recovering the cost sustained in the medi-
um term period;

€ 31,020 thousand for the rectassification to current assets, and subsequent sale, of the
equity investment in Montedison S.p.A.;
- € 11,315 thousand for the purchase of shares in AEM di Torino S.p.A.;

€ 874 thousand for the purchase of shares in ASM di Sondrio;
- € 48 thousand for the sale of a quota of the authorised capital of the company Emittenti
Titoli S.p.A;

€ 25 thousand to subscribe 16.66% in the consortium fund of Consorzio Milanosistema;
~ € 1 thousand net after the reclassification in this item of the equity investment in
Laritel S.r.l., for € 606 thousand, and the write-down of the same investment by € 605
thousand.
For the equity investments in subsidiary and affiliated companies, a special summary table
(Attachment No. 3 to the notes to financial statements) has been prepared showing, for
each type of investment, the situation at the beginning and end of the period, the changes
during the period, any write-downs or revaluations made during the period. In accordance
with the provisions of Clause 5 of Article 2427 of the Civil Code, a list of investments in
subsidiaries and affiliates and other companies (Attachment No. 4 to the notes to finan-
cial statements) is attached to these notes to financial statements. In addition, as stipu-
lated in Article 126 of CONSOB Resolution No. 11971 of May 14, 1999, a table on princi-
pal equity investments (Attachment No. 5) is attached to these notes to financial state-
ments.
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BT %) Financial receivables

Affiliate receivables
of which:

due after one year
due within one year

Receivable from others
of which:

due after one year

due within one year

2,477

2,408
69

3,963

3,807
156

The item under review includes outstanding medium and long-term receivables as of
December 31, 2001 totalling € 4,783 thousand (€ 6,440 thousand as of December 31,
2000). This item is made up of:

~ affiliate receivables of € 1,166 thousand (€ 2,477 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
referring to the first seven tranches of the loan granted to the affiliate Alagaz S.p.A. in
order to develop the “Metanizzazione di Porgolovo” project in St. Petersburg, free of inter-
est up to January 1, 2002; affiliate receivables show a decrease of € 1,311 thousand as a
result of the repayment of loans granted to the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.o0.0.:

other receivables totalled € 3,617 thousand (€ 3,963 thousand as of December 31,
2000) broken down as follows:

- € 296 thousand for staff receivables, of which € 127 thousand, for employee loans,
is due within the following period. This amount dropped € 93 thousand from the prior peri-
od due to fewer loans granted and for loans paid back during the period;

- € 469 thousand for security deposits (€ 461 thousand as of December 31, 2000);

- € 2,852 thousand of tax credits for the advance payment of IRPEF [individual
income taxes] (€ 3,112 thousand as of December 31, 2000), applied to severance pay
accrued for employees on the payroll at the end of fiscal year 1997 and paid to tax author-
ities, in part in July and in part at the end of November 1998, as set forth in tax requla-
tions in effect from 1997. These credits are re-valued at the end of each fiscal year in
accordance with the criteria set forth in Article 2120 of the Civil Code. The financial income
resulting from the revaluation is posted to the income statement under other financial
income. This item decreased € 260 thousand from the prior period, due to the use for pay-
ment of the withholdings on severance payments starting from January 1, 2001 (€ 348
thousand), partly compensated by the revaluation relating to the 2001 period of € 88
thousand.
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Changes during the fiscal year and maturities for these receivables are shown in the fol-
lowing table:

Hheweands of cum Amouns &t Changes fn  ATEUR'S &t Reeetmbles dus
12.51.2000 e pered 12312000  Wiihis e Afer the JAfitei

[SHbSE JNQ]J{Z %nl@(;}‘ﬂu@ﬁﬂﬁ ﬁi\@ @h
pefied  periad up peniod]
e

Affiliate receivables 2,477 (1,311) | 1,166 | - 1,166 -

Gther receivables ‘ f

- personnel receivables 390 (94) 206 127 169 -

- security deposits 461 8 469 - 469 -

- tax receivables 3,112 (260) ! 2,852 - 2,852 -

Total 6,440 (1,657) 4,783 127 4,656 -
!

It should be noted that no write-downs were applied to non-current receivables since it is
believed that they will be collected in full.

_B III 3) Other securities

- Hoysancs of U 12312001 12,31.2000

Other securities ‘ 78 ! 78

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 78 thousand, unchanged from a year earli-
er, and was for government securities or securities guaranteed by the government that
mature after the following period, and that AEM S.p.A. intends to hold until their natural
maturity.

During the fiscal year, no adjustments were made for permanent losses of value.
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As of December 31, 2001 the composition and changes in inventories from the prior peri-
od were as follows:

OIS

Materials and fuels:

- materials and equipment

- obsolescence provision {1,390)
7,212

- fuels 1,342

~ other inventory on hand 3

Total materials and fuels 8,557

Work in progress contracts 9,135
Advance payments 435
Travelling goods 68

Total 18,195 - 16,647

Changes in reserves posted as an adjustment to the amounts of inventories were as
follows:

Aeeaien

Obsolescence provision 1,390 (257) 1,433

Inventories of matenials and fuel totalling € 9,813 thousand increased € 1,256 thousand
from December 31, 2000, largely due to the increase in fuel inventories and partly com-

pensated by the reduction in inventories of materials and devices.

The amount reported for inventories of materials was adjusted to the current value with
the reserve for obsolescence.

This reserve, which at the end of the fiscal year totalled € 1,433 thousand (€ 1,390 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000), is created in order to write-down materials that move
slowly over the medium term as well as those considered obsolete. In 2001, a provision
was made to this reserve of € 300 thousand after classifying certain materials on hand as
obsolete. At the same time, to cover the elimination of certain warehoused materials that
were already considered obsolete, the reserve was used to the extent of € 257 thousand.
The adjustment of the average weighted cost of inventories of materials and fuel to mar-
ket values was applied directly to the ending value of inventories on hand without mak-
ing a provision to the reserve for price fluctuations.

It should also be noted that the cost of materials on hand calculated using the weighted
average method, does not differ substantially from the current value at the end of the fis-
cal year. In fact, this value is € 198 thousand higher than the value reported in financial
statements as of December 31, 2001.

At the end of the period, pending projects totalled € 6,834 thousand (€ 9,135 thousand
at the end of the prior period). This item includes work in process assigned by the
Municipality of Milan to AEM involving the refurbishing and expansion of city lighting fix-
tures and traffic signals. This work, which is reported at cost, inasmuch as it will be com-
pleted in a single year, includes the accrued value of the project as of December 31, 2001,
which has not yet been invoiced to the municipality.




At the end of the period, advance payments and travelling goods were nil.

_Receivables for sales and services

12000 12,31.2000

Receivables for sales and services . 12,221 23,443

This item, which totalled € 12,221 thousand net of write-downs (€ 23,443 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), was payable entirely within the following period, and can be broken
down as follows:

12.91.2000 e pered  12.31.2001  Witin the é&;ﬁa@t e ﬁ&%}ﬁ
sulbseguent subseguent aefoll
periad w

o e 50

Receivables for the X
sale of power 9 (6) ! 3 3 - -
Receivables for the ‘ {

sale of power,

invoices to be issued - -

Total receivables for

sales 9 (6) o3| 3 - -

Receivables for | l

services 9,152 (5,016) | 4,136 | 4,136 - -

Receivables for : i

services, invoices : |

to be issued 14,584 (5.821) | 8,763 8,763 - -

Total receivables ; i

for services 23,736  (10,837) . 12,899 | 12,899 - -
—

Allowance for : j

doubtful receivables (302) (379) . 681) | (681) - -

Total 23,443 (11,222) 12,221 12,221 - -

Changes in allowances offsetting the amount of receivables for sales of power and servic-
es are detailed in the following table:

WausHnes of eure Ameurt at Allecaden Use Githed AMEURES &%

1%2,89.2000 o changes 12.31.2001
Allowance for doubtful ;
receivables |
from users and customers 302 379 - - j 681

Receivables for the sale of power, which totalled € 3 thousand, solely concern amounts
receivable from tied users in Valtellina.

Receivables for services, which totalled € 12,899 thousand (€ 23,736 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), were primarily for receivables retated to ASM Brescia S.p.A. for serv-
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ices involving the management of the Cassano d’Adda thermoelectric power plant, third
party receivables for miscellaneous services, and receivables related to ENEL for the assess-
ment of the counter-value of power exchanged during the year, as well as receivables relat-
ed to the national corporation called Gestore Rete Trasmissione Nazionale (GRTN) for
income from vectoring of electricity.

As of December 31, 2001 the allowance for doubtful receivables totalled € 681 thousand,
an increase of € 379 thousand as a result of allocations during the period to the limits
permitted by tax law and justified in civil terms, to adjust the receivables from users and
customers to their estimated realisable value.

Subsidiary receivables

revsends €7 ouie

Subsidiary receivables

As of December 31, 2001 these receivables totalled € 157,915 thousand (€ 90,871 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000), broken down as follows:

Trade receivables

Financial receivables resulting

from the inter-group current

account relationship

Receivables from dividends

Allowance for doubtful receivables

from subsidiaries -

Total subsidiary receivables 90,871 157,915

The trade receivables of € 61,530 thousand (€ 53,687 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
refer to services provided, the sale of electricity, the sale of materials, for receivable rents,
from the renting of the electricity generating plant to AEM Trading S.r.l. interest accrued
on inter-group current accounts which AEM S.p.A. has charged to the subsidiary compa-
nies. Compared to the figures at the end of December 2000, these receivables have
increased by € 7,843 thousand, largely because of increases in receivables for rental of the
electricity generating plants to the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.l., partly compensated by a
reduction in receivables from sales of electricity.

The trade receivables, calculated as part of the Group relationships, arising from the
process of corporate reorganisation, are regulated on the basis of contracts stipulated
between the subsidiaries and the parent company.

Financial receivables for current account relationships were € 82,323 thousand (€ 24,934
thousand at December 31, 2000), and were related to the balance of the inter-group cur-
rent account maintained by the parent company, AEM S.p.A., with all subsidiaries except
Metroweb S.p.A., which is used for the settlement of financial transactions carried out on
behalf of, and authorised by subsidiaries. This current account relationship, which is a part
of centralised treasury management at Group tevel, is delineated in a specific contract
entered into by the parties. The rate applied to this current account relationship is in line
with normal market conditions. The lending rate is three-month Euribor plus 0.2 percent-
age points applied with value starting the first day of each quarter, while the borrowing




rate applied is three-month Euribor less 0.2 percentage points, applied under the same
conditions as the lending rate.

These financial receivables show an increase of € 57,389 thousand since the end of 2000
due to increased regulated current account operations carried out during 2001 by the sub-
sidiaries.

The receivables for dividends, of € 14,369 thousand, refer to dividends regarding the
2001 period of the subsidiary companies AEM Elettricita S.p.A., AEM Energia S.p.A.,
AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., AEM Gas S.p.A., AEM Service S.rl., AEM Trading S.r.l. and
Serenissima Gas S.p.A. shown in the financial statements by the accruals method. It is
pointed out that there has also been posted the relative tax credit for these dividends.

_Affiliate receivables

thoucands fewe 12392000 12318000
Affiliate receivables 1,296 2,415

This item amounts to € 1,296 thousand (€ 2,415 thousand at December 31, 2000) net of
€ 19 thousand write-downs. This item is made up of receivables for supplies and services
already invoiced and receivables for supplies and services to be invoiced. Affiliate receiv-
ables largely concern receivables from Fastweb S.p.A., Malpensa Energia S.r.l., Societa
Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A., Consorzio Italpower and Plurigas S.p.A. Affiliate receivables are
primarily the result of commercial relationships and are all due within the following peri-
od, and relate to the sale of power, materials and devices and miscellaneous services pro-
vided for affiliate companies, and to rents receivable. Compared to the previous period, at
December 31, 2001 these fell by € 1,119 thousand mostly due te the decrease in receiv-
ables from Fastweb S.p.A. for provision of services.

As of December 31, 2001, the allowance for doubtful receivables totalled € 19 thousand
as a result of allocations during the period to the limits permitted by tax law and justi-
fied in civil terms, to adjust the receivables from affiliates to the estimated realisable
value.

_Parent Company receivables (Municipality of Milan)

- Whousands of ey i 7 12.81,2000 12.31.2000

Parent Company receivables (Municipality of Milan) ' 41,338 25,028

As of December 31, 2001 this item totalled € 41,338 thousand, net of € 334 thousand as
an allowance for doubtful receivables. Gross of write-downs, these receivabies totalled €
41,672 thousand, of which € 8,064 thousand for services and supplies already invoiced and
€ 33,608 thousand in receivables related to invoices to be issued.

The receivables related to the Municipality of Milan primarily concern goods and services
provided for the management of public lighting fixtures and the network of city traffic
lights. This item increased by € 16,310 thousand from the financial statements as of
December 31, 2000 due primarily to the increase in services provided during the period
with respect to the progressive completion of the urban lighting plan awarded by the
Municipality of Milan to AEM S.p.A. at the end of 1998 and to the completion of subse-
quent urban plans approved by the Municipality.
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The allowance for doubtful receivables totalled € 244 thousand as a result of allocations
during the period to the limits permitted by tax law and justified in civil terms, to adjust
the receivables from the Municipality of Milan to their estimated realisable value.

_QOther receivables

12302808

Other receivables 33 ; 127,707
of which:

- Electricity Equalization Fund , 13,159
- receivables for financial transactions - 69,890
- advance payments - suppliers 1 1,436
- personnel receivables ‘ 34 57
- other receivables L4303 43,165

This item totalled € 31,426 thousand (€ 127,707 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
refers to the following:

£ 5,785 thousand, net of write-downs of € 95 thousand, for receivables related to the
Equalisation Fund for the Electricity Industry [CCSE], referring to both the contribution
towards thermal charges that have not yet been paid by that agency, and to the contri-
bution towards the production of electricity for the tied market (Authority’s resolution
No. 205/99); compared to the end of the previous fiscal year, these receivables have
reduced by € 7,374 thousand largely because of the abolition of the thermal charge paid
by the CCSE as of January 1, 2001, as required by the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority's
resolution No. 230/00;

receivables for financial operations up to December 31, 2001 stand at zero. This
decrease since a year earlier is due to the lower level of liquid assets available for finan-
cial operations in the latter part of the year;

£ 182 thousand, a decrease of € 1,254 thousand since the previous period, for advance
payments made during the period to suppliers of both contracts and work - largely velat-
ed to the development of the urban lighting plan - and for professional services;

€ 56 thousand for staff receivables (€ 57 thousand in the previous period);

€ 25,403 thousand for miscellaneous receivables (€ 43,165 thousand at December 31,
2000).
This entry was primarily for receivables related to third parties for compensation resulting
from the damage caused to plant assets, as well as tax credits and social security receiv-
ables.
Included in the tax receivables there are the tax credits on the dividends which will be dis-
tributed by the subsidiary companies, amounting to € 15,277 thousand. Also entered, at
€ 2,359 thousand, are the receivables related to IRPEG and IRAP deferred tax assets -
deriving from temporary differences between the net income as per the financial state-
ments and the taxable income - which will be returned in future periods, as well as receiv-
ables for IRPEG for the current period.
The decrease of € 17,762 thousand compared to December 31, 2000, is mostly due to the
€ 20,869 thousand reduction in VAT credit, partly compensated by an increase in tax cred-
its of € 7,832 thousand on dividends.
Third party receivables for the compensation of damage caused to plant assets, which
totalled € 1,797 thousand, were adjusted by specific risk reserves of € 341 thousand
(unchanged from the prior period) and by the allowance for doubtful receivables for com-
pensation of damages of € 8 thousand in order to reflect the actual potential for collec-
tion.




Changes in reserves adjusting the value of other receivables are shown below:

Gineusands &F euTe Ameunt &t Use OFhex Ameumnts a7

Reserve for specific risks ; i
as a reduction to third 3'
party receivables for the i
compensation of damages 341 - - - 341
Allowance for doubtful

receivables for compensation

of damages - 8 - - 8

Allowance for doubtful i

receivables from others 66 29 - - 85
I

The receivables relating to deferred tax assets will be collectible at the moment that the
temporary differences generating them are reversed. The remaining other receivables are
due to be paid within the subsequent period.

_Other equity investments

housands ef eure 12.31,2001 ] 12.91.2000
Other equity investments ‘ - 6,721

As of December 31, 2001, this item showed a zero figure since the company sold all its
shares in ACSM S.p.A. di Como and in Montedison S.p.A. during 2001, resutting in a capi-
tal gain of € 3,741 thousand entered in the income statement under financial income.

_Dther securities

- theusands of cum 12,81,2004 12,31.2000

— — - -
; f
i

Other securities 3 i 3,003

As of December 31, 2001, this item totalled € 3 thousand (€ 3,003 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and was for fixed return bonds. The decrease of € 3,000 thousand
from December 31, 2000 was due to the sale of all the Lavoro Bank Overseas bonds. At the
end of the period there were no adjustments made to value.

_Bank and post office deposits

{

heusands of eure ] 12,92,2002 12.91.2000
Bank and post office deposits ; 16,762 J 14,103
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qUid aSsats Tn current accounts as of December 31, 2001 were € 16,762 thousand repre-
senting an increase of € 2,659 thousand compared to the end of fiscal year 2000. Bank
deposits included interest accrued but not yet credited at the end of the period.

_Cash and cash eguivalents on hand

Pheceands of ave ORI S (AR )

Cash and cash equivalents on hand 5 298

Total cash balances that had not been deposited to current accounts at banks were € 145
thousand as of December 31, 2001.

Accrued income and prepaid expense

This item was reported at € 61,499 thousand and was for amounts paid towards future
payables as well as of fees that relate to future periods. These items increased by € 44,645
thousand from the figure of December 31, 2000. This was largely due to having recorded
the fees, pertaining to future periods, relating to the sale and leaseback agreement for the
company property in Corso di Porta Vittoria, in Milan, entered into by the company during
the period. These lease payments were invoiced prior to the commencement of the agree-
ment for the entire lease payment. Accounting of lease contracts permits the posting of
fees to the income statement, as noted in the section on valuation criteria. Had the sale
and tease back operations been posted using the finance method, the net income for the
period would have been € 2,867 thousand higher, net of the relative tax impact, and the
shareholders” equity would have been € 3,737 thousand higher net of the relative tax
impact.

The composition and changes that occurred in this item during the year are reported in
the following table:

Accrued income:
- interest on financial transactions

Total accrued income

Prepaid expenses:
- invoicing related to the

subsequent period 45,360
- payments during the

year related to the

subsequent period (406)

Total prepaid expenses 44,954
Totat 44,645




The composition of shareholders’ equity is detailed below:

heusands ¢f euro 12.31.2001 42,31.2000

Share Capital ) 936,025 929,647
Legal reserve ‘ 64,039 ' 62,555
Other reserves i 869,062 | 921,610
Net income , 35,468 29,683

Total shareholder’s equity 1,904,594 1,943,495

As of December 31, 2001, capital stock totalled € 936,025 thousand. On July 25, 2001,
the capital was converted to Euro and comprises 1,800,047,400 shares with a par value
of € 0.52 each. The difference of € 6,378 thousand was drawn from the Extraordinary
reserve.

It should be noted that earnings per share, which is obtained from the ratio of net income
for the period to the number of ordinary shares in circulation during the year, were approx-
imately € 0.02 (€ 0.016 for the prior period).

o ~

As of Dyecember 31, 2001, this item totalled € 64,039 thousand. The increase of € 1,484
thousand over the period ended December 31, 2000 is due to the 5% allocation of net
income from the prior period as required by Article 2430 of the Civil Code.

_Extraordinary reserve

This item totalled € 865,568 thousand {€ 921,610 thousand as of December 31, 2000) as
was made up as follows:

- € 849,420 thousand (€ 905,462 thousand at the end of the prior period) for the provi-
sion to this reserve of a portion of undistributed income from previous periods.

The decrease of € 56,042 thousand is attributable to both the use of € 6,378 thousand
for the increase in authorised capital as a result of converting to Euro, and to the distri-
bution to shareholders, as a supplement to the dividend for the 2000 period, of € 61,357
thousand drawn from the extraordinary reserve funded by income produced during the
moratorium period in 1999, partly compensated by the allocation of part of the net income
from the 2000 period of € 11,693 thousand.

During the 2001 period, a portion (€ 69,859 thousand) of that reserve allocated to
cover transfer capital gains generated in the 1999 period became available, due to the
depreciation of non-current assets which were posted to the financial statements of
AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and AEM Gas S.p.A. in the 2001 period.
The extracrdinary reserve, which was funded by income produced during the morato-
rium period, will never be subject to taxation in the event of future distributions
pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 73, Article 3 of Law 549/1995, which treats
them as capital distributions, and as a result, they do not entitle recipients to any tax
credits;
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" £ 16,148 thousand from the excess reported in reserves for specific risks, which occurred
in fiscal year 1997. These reserves were funded by making full use of additional paid-in
capital that resulted from the transformation of the municipal power company into a cor-
poration.

_Accelerated depreciation reserve

This totals € 3,491 thousand at December 31, 2001 and refers to the allocation of part of
the net income from 2000 to cover the accelerated depreciation, pursuant to paragraph 2,
Article 67 of Presidential Decree 917/86.

_Reserve for waived dividends
This totalled € 3 thousand at the end of 2001 and refers to dividends from previous peri-
ods which some shareholders waived.

Net income was € 35,468 thousand for fiscal year 2001.

In accordance with Clause 5), Paragraph 1 of Article 2426 of the Civil Code, it should be
noted that in the absence of other available reserves, a portion of the extraordinary reserve
in the amount of € 1,037 thousand, is restricted by law to cover the amount of start-up
and expansion costs not amortised at the end of the period.

Also, bearing in mind that accelerated depreciation is directly attributed to a sharehold-
ers’ equity reserve, at the time of the shareholders’ meeting decision regarding the
approval of the financial statements for the period, a portion of the net income for the
period (£ 4,386 thousand), corresponding to the accelerated depreciation, deducted once
only in the income tax returns for the period, cannot be distributed.

Changes in shareholders’ equity items are shown in Attachment No. 6 to the notes to finan-
cial statements.

af eue

Provision for risks and other charges
of which:

Deferred taxes

Social security

Specific risks

Future expenses

Changes occurring during the period were as follows:

=~ Provision for Deferred taxes

As of December 31, 2001 this reserve totalled € 6,097 thousand and is made up of deferred
tax liabilities for IRAP and IRPEG, as a result of the deduction, solely at the time of the
income tax returns, of the accelerated depreciation of € 4,386 thousand. For IRPEG alone,
deferred tax liabilities were also catculated on dividends which will be distributed by the
subsidiary companies and on the relative tax credits.

This allocation is partly compensated by the use of the deferred tax reserve, following
the distribution of the dividend for the 2000 period, together with the relative tux
credit.

The deferred tax liabilities were calculated on the basis of the IRPEG and IRAP rates in
force in the moment that the temporary differences which generated them are reversed.




- Provision for Specific risks
As of December 31, 2001 this reserve totalled € 51,359 thousand (€ 51,637 thousand as
of December 31, 2000), and regards the following:

- € 3,377 thousand (€ 2,536 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for the provision for
pending litigation with staff and third parties, and potential liabilities related to opera-
tions;

- € 5,864 thousand (€ 6,024 thousand at the end of the prior period) for the provision
for the present value, which was reascnably estimated on the basis of mathematical and
actuarial calculations, of payments in lieu of notice that are falling due, which will be paid
to employees under the electricity contract at the time of the termination of their work
relationship due to retirement. The decrease in this reserve totalling € 161 thousand from
the prior pericd, was due to its utilisation during 2001 and to the portion transferred to
the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L.;

- € 42,118 thousand (€ 43,077 thousand as of December 31, 2000) in relation to the
estimate, which was determined on the basis of mathematical and actuarial calculations,
of future liabilities to retired former employees who are entitled to supplemental pension
benefits from the Premungas pension fund, and labilities to employees whose rights are
falling due. This reserve which, as of December 31, 2001, was adequate to cover the relat-
ed risk, decreased € 959 thousand from December 31, 2000 due to the difference between
the utilisation of € 2,912 thousand during the year and the amount allocated of € 1,953
thousand in order to adjust it for the charge that will actually be paid by AEM S.p.A.

A provision for the risk associated with the European Community infraction proceedings,
which was initiated in 2000 by the EEC Commission against the Italian government, and
in particular with regard to the tax moratorium pursuant to Law No. 427/93, was not made
in these financial statements since it involves an event that is currently deemed to be
remote with only a possibility of occurrence.

The above reserves changed as follows during the period:

Hheusands of aue Ameunt ot Allecatien Use _ @her Ammeunds at
- 12,87.2000 _ Gremges 4232001
Deferred taxes 4,506 5,285 (3.694) - 6,097
Specific risks 51,637 2,827 (3.039) (67) . 51,358

[
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Hheusanes of eure 12.99.2000 12.81.2000
Employees’ teaving entitlement / 32,164 ! 32,224

As of December 31, 2001 this reserve totalled € 6,686 thousand corresponding to the total
amount of severance pay accrued by staff on the payroll at the end of fiscal year 2001 net
of advances made pursuant to Article 1 of Law No. 297 of May 29, 1982, and the amount
due and payable for payments in fieu of notice at the time the necessary seniority is
reached for a minimum pension, to employees entitled at the end of the fiscal year.
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The decrease in the employee severance pay reserve from the period ending December 31,
2000 totalled € 60 thousand, and was attributable to changes during the period as well
as to the portion of this reserve transferred to the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L.

Employee severance

pay (113)
Payment in lieu of

notice accrued 65

Totat (48)

WOUEEnEs of e

Short term banks 25,823
Medium-long term bank payables ) 5,164

Total payable to banks 30,987

These total € 30,987 thousand, € 5,164 thousand of which referring to medium and long
term debt regarding the loan taken out by AEM S.p.A. from Banca Commerciale Italiana
(IntesaBci) to finance the increase in capital of the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o.
€ 2,745 thousand is due after the 5th financial year following. The other € 25,823 thou-
sand is short term financial debt, concerning funds issued by Banca OPI S.p.A. and due
in 2002.

Debt to other financial institutions totalled € 5,331 thousand, unchanged since the end
of the previous period. This debt relates to financing obtained from the Cassa Depositi e
Prestiti [Bank for Deposits and Loans] for the planning of the new Viola canal, which is
under construction, and for operations related to the expansion of the Premadio power
plant, as well as for repowering operations of Group 1 of the Cassano d’Adda thermoelec-
tric power plant. This debt is re-payable after the following period and is an interest-free,
soft loan.

Hreusanes ef cuTo

Advance payments

Advance payments from users and part payments from customers totalled € 13,403 thou-
sand representing an increase of € 8,847 thousand from December 31, 2000 largely attrib-
utable to part payments invoiced to the Municipality of Milan for work regarding the urban
lighting plan.




{h uga’m@\s af eure ) ) 12,31.2001 12.31,2000

Accounts payable - suppliers 170,258 ! 122,038
| |

As of December 31, 2001, debt exposure to suppliers totalled € 170,258 thousand
(€ 122,038 thousand as of December 31, 2000) representing an increase of € 48,220 thou-
sand from the prior period attributable primarily to changes in payment terms for con-
tracts.

Accounts payable to suppliers include € 60,633 thousand for payables to leasing compa-
nies for the contract related to the buildings on Via Caracciolo and Corso di Porta Vittoria
in Milan resulting from the advance invoicing at the outset of the lease for the entire lease
payment.

Changes occurring during the period, and the maturities of accounts payable to suppliers,
all of which are of a trade nature, are provided in the following table:

hovsands ef eure Amewnls &t Changes i Ameurts &t Felling due
12.59.2000 e period 92.3%.2000  Wihin the  Afer the ARer
peried  pered wp pegicd
) o the 3%

Accounts payable - i
suppliers 78,934 58,343 137,277

]
I
|
I

137,277 - -
Accounts payable to ;
supptliers for invoices : ‘
to be received 43,104 (10,123) . 32,981 32,981 - -
Total accounts

payable - suppliers 122,038 48,220 170,258 170,258 - -

Accounts payable to foreign suppliers totalled € 349 thousand (€ 414 thousand as of
December 31, 2000). Accounts payable to suppliers, denominated in currencies that are
part of the Euro, were reported at the fixed, invariable rate set on January 1, 1999, and
do not give rise to exchange differences. The payables valued at exchange rates as of
December 31, 2001, which are denominated in currencies that are not a part of the Euro,
result in a negligible exchange loss when converted at the exchange rate for reporting pur-
poses.

. Hheusands of eum ) 12,31.2008 | 12.91.2000
| P ‘
Trade payables [ 4,995 | 14,540
Debt resulting from current account relationship \ 104,620 | 86,746

Total subsidiary payables 109,615 101,286

This item totalled € 109,615 thousand, broken down as follows:
€ 104,620 for debt resulting from the end-of-period balance of the inter-group current
account maintained by the parent company AEM S.p.A. with the subsidiaries AEM
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Elettricita S.p.A., AEM Trading S.r.l. and Zincar S.r.l. This account is used for the settle-
ment of financial transactions made on behalf of, and authorised by the subsidiaries. This
current account relationship, which is a part of centralised treasury management at the
Group level, is delineated in a specific contract entered into by the parties, the conditions
of which are provided in these notes to financial statements under comments on subsidiary
receivables. The increase of € 17,874 thousand from the previous period is mostly due to
the increase in current account debts by AEM Trading S.p.A., partly compensated by a
reduction in debts towards AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and the credit balance to the current
account by the subsidiary AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. which, during 2000, closed with debt
for AEM S.p.A.;

~ £ 4,995 thousand (€ 14,540 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for trade payables to
subsidiaries for the sale of power and gas to company-owned properties, payables related
to various services provided by subsidiaries, payables to AEM Energia S.p.A. for the cost of
intermediation in electrical energy, as well as the VAT payables towards the subsidiary
Metroweb S.p.A. regarding the transfer from this company to AEM S.p.A. of its VAT credit.

The debt and payables under review are all due within the following period.

Hneuesnds of ey - ©2.31.20010 L2300

Affiliate payables

At the end of the period, these totalled € 5,040 thousand and comprise € 3,533 thousand
for invoices already received and € 1,507 thousand for invoices to be received, and most-
ly refer to amounts payable for provision of company telecommunication services and
Internet connections carried out by the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. for AEM S.p.A., and to
trade payables to Electrone S.p.A. for energy intermediation expenses, as well as for
payables to the Italpower Consortium for membership contributions.

Parent Company Payables (the Municipality of Milan) 60,562 102,185

Payables to the parent entity, which are due within the following period, totalled € 60,562
thousand compared to € 102,185 thousand in the financial statements as of December 31,
2000, and comprise the following:

= £ 60,173 thousand for the balance of the current account for the settlement of finan-
cial relationships between AEM S.p.A. and the Municipality of Milan. The decrease of
€ 14,706 from the financial statements as of December 31, 2000 is attributable to the fact
that, according to the current account agreement between AEM and the Municipality of
Milan, any receivables recorded by AEM S.p.A. are posted to the current account at matu-
rity and used as a reduction of the amount payable by AEM S.p.A.

In 2001 the dividend totalling € 37,930 thousand related to fiscal year 2000 was paid to
the city administration in cash as approved by the shareholders’ meeting of April 30, 2001.




- £ 389 thousand, a decrease of € 26,917 thousand from a year eartier, which mostly
refers to the debt for the fee paid for the discharge of wastewater. During the 2000 peri-
od, the debt for the purchase of the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria was included, but
now fully paid during 2001.

_ fhousands ef euie - 12,54.2001 12.31.2000
Taxes payable ; 9,412 | 13,131

The taxes payable total € 9,412 thousand (€ 13,131 thousand at December 31, 2000) and
largely include the following:

£ 990 thousand payable to tax authorities for deferred VAT, payable in the next period;
-~ € 1,966 thousand payable to tax authorities for IRPEF withheld from employees in the
last month of the year;
- € 878 thousand payable to tax authorities for the current IRPEG of the period;
- € 4,715 thousand payable for water diversion fees to be paid to various agencies;
~ £ 863 thousand payable to various Municipalities for refuse collection rates.
The decrease of € 3,719 thousand in this entry is largely due to the reduction in taxes
payable in the period arising from the credit position with respect to current IRPEG, as
well as for decreases in debt payable to tax authorities for VAT and for IRPEF. This decrease
is partly offset by the increase in debt payable for water diversion fees.
These payables are all due within the following period.

. theusende of eum ~ 12,31.2001 _12:32.2000
. L ‘ .
Social security payables ] 9,316 9,398

This item totalled € 9,316 thousand and was related to the debt position of AEM S.p.A.
in relation to the Social Security Institute for monthly payments for December 2001
that have not been paid. These payables dropped € 82 thousand from the prior period
largely as a result of lower contributions owed by AEM S.p.A. following the reduction
in staff levels that occurred with the transfer of some staff to the subsidiary AEM
Trading S.r.l.

The payables under review are due within the subsequent period.

L Uheusands of eury 12,30.2001 12,31.2000
Other payables : 7,265 7,520
of which: J !

- personnel payables | 3,599 | 4,653
- Electricity Equalization Fund | 38 L 124
- other f 3,578 2,743
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The overall amount for this item was € 7,265 thousand (€ 7,520 thousand at the end of
the 2000 period), comprising:

€ 3,599 thousand, representing a decrease of € 1,054 thousand from December 31,
2000, for staff payables. This item includes costs related to the renewed staff contract for
the gas sector, the costs for the employee productivity bonus accrued during the period
and the charge for vacation time accrued but not taken in 2001 as of December 31, 2001.
The reduction is largely due to having made a one-off payment to staff under the electric-
ity contract for the new wage settlement contract, and to the transfer of a portion of these
payables to the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.L.;

€ 88 thousand, with a decrease of € 36 thousand from the prior period, for payables to
the Equalisation Fund regarding the heat surcharge included in the final sales price for
electric power, which is invoiced to tied users of the Valtellina area and self-consumption
at Cassano d'’Adda, as well as the amounts payable for the {ast two months of the year for
portion of the price on electricity charged to AEM S.p.A. The reduction is largely due to
the new tariff system in force since January 1, 2001;

€ 3,578 thousand (€ 2,743 thousand as of December 31, 2000} for miscellaneous debt
and payables, primarily concerning the exposure to various agencies and companies for
insurance premiums appticable to the period that have not yet been paid, and fees for the
period payable to directors and the audit committee.

The above debt and payables are all due within the following period.
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Accrued expenses and deferred income

This item totalled € 368 thousand as of December 31, 2001, € 291 thousand of which
referring to deferred credits largely for portions of rent and lease payments applicable to
the following period, while € 77 thousand was accrued expenses for interest payable on
{oans.

The composition and changes in this entry during the period are shown in the following
table:

Accrued expenses:
- payable interest on
loans

Deferred income:
- other deferred income

Total




theussnds of cure 12,32.2081 12,31.2000

Commitments : 117,288 163,090

The amount of performance bonds and security deposits made by contractors, as well as
guarantees issued by credit institutions to guarantee contracts related to the signing of
commercial credit policies totalled € 84,625 thousand (€ 98,641 thousand for the prior
period).

This item totalled € 32,663 thousand (€ 59,199 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was related to guarantees issued and security deposits made by AEM S.p.A. to guarantee
obligations made to third parties. Of this amount, € 7,699 thousand was for AEM’s share
of guarantees issued in support of loans negotiated by the affiliate Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o.
The decrease since December 31, 2000 of € 26,456 thousand was largely due to the release
from the guarantee provided to the Municipality of Milan in the previous period for the
payment of the second tranche for the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria.

As of December 31, 2001, this item was nil (£ 5,329 thousand as of December 31, 2000)
since they expired during the period under review.
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Revenues from the sale of power and services for 2001 totalled € 336,766 thousand
(€ 259,014 thousand as of December 31, 2000). These revenues are detailed as fol-
lows:

revenues for the sale of power to other electric companies of € 19,801 thousand |
(€ 4,255 thousand at December 31, 2000) related to power sold to the affiliate Societd
Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A. (13.7 million kWh), and to surplus power sold to ENEL as well as
electrical power sold to the GRTN (468.4 milioni di kWh);

revenues for the sale of 0.5 million kWh of electricity to tied users in the Valtellina area
for € 50 thousand (€ 98 thousand as of December 31, 2000);

revenues for the sale of electric power to subsidiaries of € 180,128 thousand (€ 116,267
thousand at the closing of the 2000 period) from the sale of 2,209.5 million kWh to the
subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A. and 650 million kWh to the subsidiary AEM Energia S.p.A.
in the first nine months of the year;

revenues for the sale of materials of € 10,903 thousand (€ 11,616 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) to subsidiaries relating to the centralised logistics system of the
Group;

revenues from the sale of fuel to the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.l. for € 3,691 thousand,
referring to the sale of 23.1 million kg of fuel oil and 26,810 litres of diesel oil for gener-
ating thermoelectricity;
* Revenues for services on behalf of users and third parties of € 63,735 thousand
(€ 65,481 thousand as of December 31, 2000), of which € 32,684 thousand (€ 35,604
thousand at the closing of the previous period) was attributable to services to the
Municipality of Milan, and € 31,051 thousand (£ 29,877 thousand as of December 31,
2000) for services provided on behalf of third parties. The revenues from services provid-
ed to the Municipality of Milan were largely related to the management and installation of
public lighting fixtures and the traffic signal network, and reduced by € 2,920 thousand
due to having completed the urban lighting plan assigned to AEM by the Municipality at
the end of 1998 as well as the installation of further public lighting fixtures and traffic
signals approved by the same Municipality. Revenues from services provided on behalf of
third parties were primarily related to revenues for the sale of thermoelectric power pro-
duced for ASM Brescia S.p.A., and the charge to that company for the applicable portion
of operating expenses and capital expenditures related to the Cassano d’Adda power plant,
the revenues for vectoring electricity, as well as revenues for renovating public lighting
systems and from ordinary maintenance carried out for various Municipalities in the
Lombardy Region. The increase of € 1,174 thousand largely arises from services to
Municipalities in relation to public lighting systems;

revenues from services provided to subsidiaries of € 57,319 thousand (€ 57,813 thou-
sand in the previous period), which were related to administrative, financial, legal, man-
agement and technical services, and logistical services provided by AEM S.p.A. to Group
companies in accordance with the service contract entered into with them. This item also
includes services provided for the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. related to the installation of
fibre optic conduits. The decrease of € 493 thousand is largely due to the reduced servic-
es provided to the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A.;

revenues from services to affiliates of € 1,137 thousand relating to both services pro-
vided mostly to the affiliates Fastweb S.p.A., Malpensa Energia S.r.l., Plurigas S.p.A. and ’
Consorzio Italpower, and for the sale of materials to the affiliates Societa Servizi Valdisotto |
S.p.A. and Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o.
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This item reported a negative balance of € 2,301

31, 2000) and was mainly related to the work in progress for the installation of new public
lighting fixtures and traffic signals, which was carried out on behalf of the Municipality of
Milan as a part of the implementation of the Urban Lighting Plan. The work in progress, which
was valued at cost since it relates to activities lasting a year or less, includes the accrued
value of the job as of December 31, 2001 which had not vet been invoiced to the Municipality.

R R I NSRRI

During the period, the following costs were capitalised under “Tangible and intangible
assets”:

e e

e e

Hheusands of aure 12,31.2001 12.31,2000 |
Materials ° 97 182
(taken from the warehouse), of which, included in:

- Intangible assets 1 1

- Tangible assets 96 181
Personnel expenses 2,857 3,076

of which, included in:

- Intangible assets 11 58

- Tangible assets 2,846 3,018

Total 2,954 3,258 |
‘ ! !

These items represent the internal costs incurred for making the company’s capital expen-
ditures. The description of the capital expenditures was presented in comments on balance
sheet assets in the section covering tangible and intangible assets.
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Other revenues totalled € 62,790 thousand (€ 45,747 thousand in 2000), comprising the
following:

- miscellaneous income and revenues, which totalled € 52,848 thousand (€ 7,376 thousand
as of December 31, 2000) and were related primarily to income from rents receivable charged
to the subsidiaries and affiliates as well as to rent for hydroelectric and thermoelectric power
generating plants to the subsidiary AEM Trading S.r.l. for the period October-December 2001,
to the capital gain arising from the sale of the building in Corso di porta Vittoria 4, to com-
pensation for damages and penalties received from users, insurance companies and private
individuals, and to the non-operating income from differences in reserves of previous peri-
ods. Such revenues include the estimate for the higher evaluation of the cable duct trans-
ferred to the subsidiary Metroweb S.p.A. in previous periods, as well as € 8,574 thousand
relating to the acknowledgement by the CCSE of a contribution on the thermoelectric reduc-
tion referring to the previous three years, and the sale of equipment and materials. The
increase of € 45,472 thousand is largely due to an increase in rental fees payable to AEM
S.p.A. by affiliated and subsidiary companies for electric power generating plants;
 subsidies from the Equalisation Fund of € 9,149 thousand (€ 38,251 thousand at the
close of the previous period) as a contribution to encourage the production of electricity
for the tied market, at a rate of € 0.0031 per kWh for a period of two years, pursuant to
the decision no. 205/1999 from the Italian Electricity and Gas Authority. The decrease of
£ 29,102 thousand is largely due to the abolition (resolution no. 230/00) by the Authority
starting from January 2001, of the contribution from the Equalisation Fund - Electricity
Sector for the production thermoelectric power, incorporating the component covering
variable production costs in the tariff to users;

thousand (€ 1,966 thousand as of December

e1uawa1029 julavoull vd's W3V Y2 01 9210N"




- the contributions of € 794 thousand fram other agencies during the year (€ 120 thou-
sand as of December 31, 2000).

The value of production includes € 1,951 thousand relating to trade operations during the
year with affiliates, details of which are shown in the table below:

Revenilasy dled Maipens  Fashek
drowsands oF cure : Sz P

A1) Revenues from sales
and services
© Revenues from the sale
of electricity 814
@ Revenues from sale of
materials - 45
© Services to third parties 145 1,092

A5) Other revenues - -
Total 145 1,951

A I R -
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Expenditures for purchases in 2001 totalled € 116,697 thousand (€ 90,386 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and comprise the following:

& cost for the purchase electricity from other electricity companies for € 508 thousand;
~ costs for the purchase of fuel for the production electric power production for € 95,295
thousand (€ 69,831 thousand in 2000) and refers to costs of fuels, both gas and fuel oil,
for thermoelectric production during the period from January to September 2001. The
increase of € 25,463 thousand is mostly due to the higher quantity of gas and fuel oil pur-
chased for the greater output of thermoelectric power generated;

¢ costs for the purchase of other fuels, at € 527 thousand (€ 668 thousand in 2000);

< costs for the purchase of materials, at € 20,367 thousand (€ 19,886 thousand at the
close of the previous period):

T

Toueands of sum 0%.31.2800

Costs for the purchase of materials 24,858 78,352
(Capitalised costs) - (4401) (58,466)

Totat 20,367 19,886

and are shown in the financial statements net of the capitalised costs. The decrease, gross
of capitalisation, is largely attributable to the fact that, in the previous period, this post-
ing included the purchase value of the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria 4, subsequently
totally capitalised.

This item includes the costs incurred for the purchase of materials both for AEM S.p.A. and
for the Group companies, with the aim of centralised management of logistics.
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This item totalled € 87,108 thousand (€ 80,810 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and

refers to:
« expenditure for power delivering fees (€ 37 thousand in the previous period);




expenditures for contracts and work, amounting to:

_Ynousands of eure __ 12.87.2001 12912000
Costs for contracts and work | 79,018 | 70,708
(Capitalised costs) | (42,556) | (31,720)
Total 36,462 38,988

net of capitalised costs, these expenses show a balance of € 36,462 thousand and largely
concern the creation of public lighting and traffic lights carried out during 2001 in rela-
tion to the urban lighting and traffic lights plan, maintenance work for users and third par-
ties, as well as maintenance on company assets;

other service expenses totalling:

_ Yrousants of Gu® - 912.91.2001 12.81.2000
Other services expenses ‘ 45,404 | 38,476
(Capitalised costs) ‘ (3,671) (3,390)

Total 41,733 35,086

net of capitalised costs, these expenses show a balance of € 41,733 thousand, primarily
as a result of consulting and professional service expenses mostly relating to costs for
legal, tax, engineering and computer consultation, to other expenses for surveillance serv-
ices after such services were outsourced, costs for financial reporting and advertising cam-
paigns, to insurance expenses and to miscellaneous services for operations and services for
updating and adjusting computing procedures to the Euro.

Compensation paid by AEM S.p.A. to directors for 2001 totalled € 651 thousand, while
compensation paid to the audit committee totalled € 145 thousand.

As stipulated in Article 78 of CONSOB Resolution No. 11971 of May 14, 1999, which cov-
ers the regulations for the implementation of Legislative Decree No. 58 of February 24,
1998 regarding issuers, below is the information on the compensation paid during the
period to directors and internal auditors by AEM S.p.A. and subsidiaries.

Compensation means the fee paid for the position held, including for a portion of the year,
as well as any non-monetary benefits, bonuses and other incentives, which are also allo-
cated by companies owned by AEM S.p.A.

First and last same Pesiton (eld Terms &fF posiEon (Fees fer ey
(@ jto] e ondolier EUMREH-

jinceniives] Saton)

Zuccoli Giuliano Chairman 01.01.01 12.31.01 284,051.29  129,114.22 413,165.51

Director 01.01.01 12,31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Cattaneo Flavio Deputy Chairman 01.01.01 01.29.01 3,282.69 3,282.69
Director 01.01.01 01.29.01
Spadacini Luigi Deputy Chairman 06.13.01 12.31.01 8,301.37 8,301.37
Director 03.28.01 12.31.01 19,738.56 19,738.56
Manzoli Marco Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Exec. Board 01.01.01 12.31.01 12,911.42 12,911.42
Scarselli Aldo Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Exec. Board 01.01.01 12.31.01 12,911.42 12,911.42
Oberti Paolo Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Ortolani Carlo Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Prosperetti Luigi Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84
Provasali Angelo Director 01.01.01 12.31.01 25,822.84 25,822.84

Total 521,956.63  129,114.22 651,070.85
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Lonardi Piero Chairman of the

Audit Committee 01.01.01 12.31.01 61,974.83 145,408.45 (*} 207,383.28
Cattaneo Michele Regular Auditor 01.01.01 12.31.01 41,316.55 96,938.96 (*) 138,255.51
Vergallo Ttalo Bruno  Regular Auditor 01.01,01 12.31.01 41,316.55 96,938.96 () 138,255.51

Total 144,607.93  339,286.37 483,894.30

(A) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas € 61,974.83, AEM Elettricita
€ 61,974.83, AEM Trasmissione € 16,578.27, AEM Energia £ 4,880,52.

(B) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas € 41,316.55, AEM Elettricitd
€ 41,316.55, AEM Trasmissione € 11,052.18, AEM Energia € 3,253.68.

(C) Compensation as member of the Audit Committee for the subsidiary companies: AEM Gas € 41,316.55, AEM Elettricita
€ 41,316.55, AEM Trasmissione € 11,052.18, AEM Energia € 3,253.68.

- expenses for services from subsidiaries totalled € 5,015 thousand (€ 2,663 thousand as
of December 31, 2000), net of capitalisation of € 256 thousand (€ 224 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and comprise, gross of capitalisation:

- £ 107 thousand for services received from Metroweb S.p.A. (€ 114 thousand in
2000);

- € 67 thousand (£ 186 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for services from AEM
Trasmissione S.p.A., generally concerning maintenance work on the 23kV and medium volt-
age lines;

- € 2,156 thousand (€ 1,448 thousand in the previous period) to services from AEM
Elettricita S.p.A. The increase of € 706 thousand arises from both the greater quantity
of electricity purchased and because of the greater provision of services;

- € 1,268 thousand (€ 408 thousand in 2000) for services from AEM Energia S.p.A. both
for the services performed by staff transferred from the central functions of AEM S.p.A. and
for costs of intermediation in the sale of energy, pursuant to the transfer contract. The
increase of € 859 thousand comes from the higher intermediation costs for electrical
power;

~ € 723 thousand (£ 727 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for services from AEM Gas
S.p.A., for the cost of purchasing methane gas and for other services provided;

- € 122 thousand for services from AEM Service S.r.l. for credit management, front-
office and back-office services carried out on behalf of the Lighting and Traffic Signals
Division;

~ € 337 thousand for services from AEM Trading S.r.l. for strategic planning and opti-
misation of production;

- € 492 thousand for services from Zincar S.r.l. in relation to urban mobility projects.
- costs for services from affiliated companies of € 3,897 thousand (£ 4,035 thousand as
of December 31, 2000}, net of capitalisation of € 3¢1 thousand, generally concerning the
provision of services from the affiliate Fastweb S.p.A. regarding the management of
telecommunication and Internet connections, as well the expenditure for intermediation
in electrical power to Electrone S.p.A..

For 2001 this item totalled € 13,263,00 (€ 7,006 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was primarily related to lease payments and other non-ownership payments, in particular for
the buildings on Via Caracciolo and Corso di Porta Vittoria, sold through a lease-back oper-
ation that took place in the fiscal periods 1999 and 2001, the annual licence fee for the use
of application software, charges for hired vehicles as well as for payable rents of € 259 thou-




sand by the subsidiary AEM Elettricita S.p.A. for the building at Ponte Nuovo. The increase
of € 6,256 thousand is due to the lease payment for the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria
and for the increase in licence fees for use of software and to higher vehicle hire charges.

For the period ending December 31, 2001, staff costs totalled € 63,186 thousand
(€ 71,676 thousand as of December 31, 2000). Staff costs are made up of € 44,436 thou-
sand for wages and salaries, € 12,573 thousand for social security contributions, € 4,042
thousand for severance pay reserves and € 2,135 thousand for miscellaneous staff costs.
The decrease of € 8,490 thousand is largely a result of the reduction in the number of staff
by 73, partly absorbed by the increase in the unitary average cost.

Staff costs, as a percentage of value of production, were 15.8%.

The following table shows the average number of employees split by position and contract:

12.87.2001 12.31.2000

L - Elecriciy (Ge'] el  Elecrely Gas] otk
Managers . 26 - 26 | 28 - 28
Managerial staff . 83 15 98 . 87 12 99
Office workers : 643 227 870 : 747 282 1,029
Plant workers . 280 15 295 ¢ 297 23 320
Total 1,032 257 1,289 1,159 317 1,476

The overall average per capita staff cost for AEM S.p.A. at December 31, 2001 was € 45.1k
(€ 45k as of December 31, 2000).

This item totalled € 30,344 thousand (€ 32,660 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was made up as follows:

amortisation of intangible assets of € 4,117 thousand (€ 5,841 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), refers to the costs sustained in the year for the reorganisation of AEM
S.p.A. and for the purchase of the SAP R/3 application software;

depreciation of tangible assets, at € 25,288 thousand (€ 26,496 thousand as of
December 31, 2000), of which € 5,655 thousand (€ 5,675 thousand in the previous year)
was for depreciation of freely transferable assets.
The depreciation of tangible assets was calculated on the hasis of economic and technical
depreciation rates that are deemed to be representative of the remaining potential use of
the tangible assets, as determined by experts in the appraisal report prepared for the pur-
poses of the transfer to AEM S.p.A. of assets making up the municipal power company.
Freely transferable assets were depreciated on the basis of the term of the concession,
which was renewed for a further thirty years. Furthermore, to avoid unjustifiable extra tax,
if the economic and technical depreciation rates were lower than 50% of the maximum fis-
cal rates, the depreciation rate was adjusted to the minimum fiscally allowed. Accelerated
depreciation of € 4,386 thousand is not entered in the income statement since it is only
deducted from the income tax returns;

write-down of receivables included in current assets and liquid assets of € 939 thou-
sand which include the provision to the allowance for doubtful receivables in the amount
necessary to adjust user and customer, Municipality of Milan and affiliates receivables to
their estimated realisable value.
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These inventories reduced overall by € 1,255 thousand during 2001, as is shown in the fol-
lowing table:

neusands ef eure 12.97.200°

Beginning inventory ‘ 0,047
Ending inventory ‘ (27,245)
Change in reserve for obsolescence of materiats 44,

Total N (1,255)

This item, totalling € 2,337 thousand (€ 2,299 thousand at the close of the 2000 period)
was primarily related to the € 1,953 thousand provision made during the period to adjust
the reserve for specific risks (related to supplemental pension payments paid by the
Premungas pension fund to retired former employees) to the charge actually owed by AEM.
This amount was determined on the basis of mathematical and actuarial calculations. This
item also included the € 384 thousand provision for pending disputes with third parties
and potential liabilities related to operations.

N

This item totalled € 57,759 thousand (£ 13,119 thousand as of December 31, 2000} and
consisted of the following:

- € 40,184 thousand as a charge for the extraction of hydroelectric power, as provided by
the Authority’s resolution no. 230/00 applied to hydroelectric and geothermal generating
companies on the difference between the average weighted value of the wholesale price
of electricity sold on the national market in the various periods of time, and the average
weighted value of the wholesale electricity price component covering fixed production
costs far electricity as provided by resolution no. 205/99 for 2000;

"~ £ 8,807 thousand (€ 8,837 thousand in 2000), net of € 2 thousand capitalisation, for
taxes, duties and water diversion fees. The charge for taxes and duties includes the water
diversion fees paid to various agencies of € 5,848 thousand, and other taxes and duties of
€ 3,049 thousand largely concerning the payment of the ICI and COSAP taxes after the end
of the tax moratorium as of January 1, 2000;

£ 8,678 thousand (€ 4,282 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for other operating
expenses, of which € 3,143 thousand was for general expenses which were largely for asso-
ciation dues paid to various entities, as well as contributions and donations to various sub-
jects and, for € 5,535 thousand, to non-operating losses and non-existent assets mostly
deriving from adjustments to allocations of previous years, such charges including the esti-
mate for the different evaluation of revenues charged to the Municipality of Milan for pub-
lic lighting works in previous periods.

In 2001, income from equity investments totalled € 18,230 thousand (€ 13,491 thousand
as of December 31, 2000), and consists of:

- € 14,369 thousand (€ 12,676 thousand in 2000) for dividends relating to the 2001
period from subsidiaries posted according to the accrual principle; the relative tax credit
for such dividends was also entered;




Valdisotto S.p.A.;

- € 111 thousand (€ 141 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for dividends for the 2000
period of € 75 thousand from ASM Brescia S.p.A., € 12 thousand from ACSM S.p.A. di Como,
£ 24 thousand from Emittente Titoli;

- € 3,741 (€ 673 thousand in the previcus period) for the capital gain from the disposal
of the shares entered in current assets regarding ACSM S.p.A. di Como, Montedison S.p.A.,
Emittenti Titoli and Italpower S.p.A.

Financial income totalled € 17,366 thousand (€ 20,011 thousand as of December 31,
2000), consisting of:

€ 219 thousand (€ 224 thousand at the close of the previous period) for interest on
financial receivables posted under financial assets. This income was primarily from inter-
est for the increase in the tax credit related to the advance IRPEF payment for severance
payments made in 1997 and 1998, interest on personnel receivables and interest related
to financing provided to the affiliate Metsni Plinovodi d.0.0.;
- € 966 thousand (€ 163 thousand in 2000) for income from long-term securities and
securities included in current assets;

€ 1,156 thousand (€ 430 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for interest towards sub-
sidiaries accruing on intergroup current accounts, for the companies AEM Gas S.p.A., AEM
Energia S.p.A., AEM Trasmissione S.p.A., Serenissima Gas S.p.A. and AEM Trading S.r.L.;
€ 15,025 thousand (€ 19,194 thousand as of December 31, 2000) for miscetlaneous
income made up as follows:

- interest on short-term financial receivables of € 4,552 thousand which shows a fall
of € 5,976 thousand since the previous period. This fall reflects the lower financial assets
available for short-term operations, which were used during the year in order to finance
industrial investments;

- interest on bank deposits of € 1,669 thousand, showing an increase of € 987 thou-
sand compared to December 31, 2000 due to improved treasury management;

- interest on other receivables totalling € 8,804 thousand, which was primarily
due to income from tax credits of € 8,082 thousand calculated on dividends which the
subsidiaries will be distributing in 2002 but included in these financial statements by
the accruals principle, in addition to income on advance payments made to suppliers,
gains on exchange rates and interest on other receivables.

Financial expenses totalled € 8,927 thousand (€ 8,445 thousand as of December 31,
2000), and are detailed as follows:

- Interest paid to subsidiaries of € 4,688 thousand (€ 6,109 thousand in 2000}, which
was for accrued financial expenses on the exposures arising from the centralised treasury
management;

- Interest paid to the Municipality of Milan of € 2,936 thousand (€ 2,172 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) for accrued financial expenses on the current account maintained with
the Municipality of Milan for the settlement of financial items between AEM S.p.A. and the
Municipality. The increase of € 764 thousand is largely due to payable interest accrued on
the debt for the purchase of the building in Corso di Porta Vittoria, partly compensated by
the lower average funds deposited on the current account held with the parent company;
© interest to others of € 1,303 thousand (€ 164 thousand as of December 31, 2000), an
increase of € 1,139 thousand due to the borrowing by AEM S.p.A. from banks, as detailed
in the balance sheet.
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This item totalled € 8,988 thousand (€ 6,632 thousand as of December 31, 2000) and
was related to the prudential write-down of the equity investment in e.BISCOM to adjust
it to the average arithmetic market value in the second half of 2001, as well as the write-
down of the equity investments in Italpower S.p.A., in liguidation, and in Laritel S.r.l.

In the 2001 fiscal period, these were € 1,635 thousand (€ 19,080 thousand as of
December 31, 2000) and refer wholly to non-operating expenses which mostly arose from
lower contributions for staff for the previous period, as well as the entry of advance
taxes referring to previous periods resuiting as a consequence of the Ministerial Circular
No 69/E of February 26, 2001, In this Circular, the Ministry of Finance has definitively
recognised as taxable, those provisions to reserves not covered by the T.U.I.R. 917/86
(Consolidated Act on Income Tax) allocated during the period of the fiscal moratorium
from which AEM S.p.A. benefited from 1996 to 1999. Therefore, AEM has posted
advanced taxes of € 469 thousand to the income statement relating to the reserves for
which there is a reasonable expectation of return of such taxes in future periods, as pro-
vided for by accounting principles. Again, on the basis of accounting principles, advance
taxes of € 5,298 thousand have not been reparted since these pertain to reserves for
which there is not a reasonable expectation of returns of the relative advanced taxes in
future periods.

In the financial statements for the period ending December 31, 2001, this item totalled €
7 thousand (€ 1,698 thousand at the close of the previous period) and refer to taxes and
duties related to prior periods.

At December 31, 2001, the taxes on income for the period amounted to € 14,610 thou-
sand (€ 13,702 thousand at the end of the previous period), the breakdown for which is
as follows:

€ 8,257 thousand for the IRPEG applying to the period;

€ 4,197 thousand for IRAP applying to the period;

€ 1,591 thousand for deferred IRPEG and IRAP tax liabilities relating to the deduction
- which will be made in the income tax returns - of the accelerated depreciation, as well
as, solely for IRPEG, for the dividends and tax credits of the subsidiaries relating to the
2001 fiscal year and attributed on an accruals basis;

€ 565 thousand for deferred tax assets for both IRAP and IRPEG.
The deferred taxes are posted in the income statement in order to represent the fiscal tax
due for the period, taking into account the fiscal effects relating to the temporary differ-
ences between the net income as per the financial statements and the taxable income.
Regarding such deferred taxes, the following is pointed out:

for the deferred tax assets the main temporary differences for IRPEG and IRAP consist
of entertainment costs sustained during the period, deductible in future periods, of the
difference between fiscal depreciation and the civil depreciation for assets in which the
share of civil depreciation is higher than the share of fiscal depreciation, as well as for
provisions for risks. Purely for IRPEG, deferred taxation was catculated on some compo-




nents of staff costs, the total amount for which can only be held to be certain for tax pur-
poses in the 2002 fiscal year;

for the deferred tax liabitities, the temporary differences consist of, for both IRPEG and
for IRAP, accelerated depreciation, deducted solely in the income tax returns. For IRPEG
alone, deferred tax liabilities were calculated for the dividends and tax credits of the sub-
sidiaries relating to the 2001 fiscal year and posted in accordance with the accrual prin-
ciple. These deferred taxes were strongly reduced by the use, in this period, of the deferred
taxes allocated in the previous period on dividends and tax credits of the subsidiaries relat-
ing to the 2000 fiscal year and posted in accordance with the accrual principle;

deferred taxes were calculated on the basis of the tax rates in force in the moment when
the temporary differences which generated them will be reversed.
The overall amount of IRAP was calculated by subjecting the net production value, appro-
priately adjusted by increasing and decreasing variations permitted by tax law, to the rate
of 4.25%. With regard the overall amount for IRPEG, it should be pointed out that the com-
pany has been able to benefit, for the tax period under review, from the application of the
soft rate of 19% pursuant to the instituted law for “Dual Income Tax” (DIT), on the por-
tion of income corresponding to the ordinary remuneration of the increase in equity from
the net income of the 1999 period allocated to reserve, As a result of the elimination of
the limit of an average 27% rate, the overall tax calculated for the period under review
corresponds to an average rate of 19%, the minimum allowable by current fiscal laws. In
view of the explicit prohibition on accumulating other benefits with the DIT benefit, the
company was not able to take advantage of the benefit coming from Article 4 of Law
383/2001 (the so-called “Tremonti II” benefit) except 50% of the incorporation costs
relating to the last half of the financial year.
Below are shown the tables that explain how the IRAP and IRPEG taxes were calculated,
both current and pertaining to the period, as well as the reconciliation tables between the
fiscal burden fram the financial statements and the theoretical fiscal burden, as estab-
lished by accounting principles.
There is also shown the measurement for the so-called ‘tax baskets’, pursuant to article
105, paragraph 1 of TUIR (Consolidated act on income tax).

EEmOURES I eure IRFEG _ IRPES
calctilatedfonilcalctlatedlonRhinanGial

Earnings before taxes 50,078,415 50,078,415

Changes made pursuant to tax laws (13,829,622)

Tremonti benefit-incorporation (57,096)

Tax credits 7,265,224

Taxable income 43,456,921

DIT benefit-Legislative Decree 466/97

Increase subject to the benefit 1,204,060,990

Capital remuneration rate calculated by the

Ministry of Finance 7%

Taxable income at soft rate 43,456,921

Tax at 19% 8,256,815 9,514,899

Remaining IRPEG taxable income -
Tax at 36% -~

Total IRPEG 8,256,815 9,514,899
Average rate 19%
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Net value of production
Changes applied pursuant to IRPEG regulations
Changes applied pursuant to IRAP regulations
Taxable income

Total IRAP 4.25%

IRPEG on current period earnings (item 22a of Inc. Stat.)

- Deferred IRPEG tax assets for temporary differences in
the period

+ Return of deferred IRPEG tax assets for temporary
differences from previous periods

+ Adjustment of deferred tax assets and changes in tax
rate

Total deferred tax assets

+ Deferred IRPEG tax liabilities for temporary differences

- Return of deferred IRPEG tax assets for temporary
differences relating to previous periods

- Adjustment of deferred tax assets and changes in tax
rate

Total deferred tax liabilities

= IRPEG tax applicable to the period

IRAP on current period earnings (item 22a of Inc. Stat.)
- Deferred IRAP tax assets for temporary differences
in the period
+ Return of deferred IRAP tax assets for temporary
differences relating to previous periods

Total deferred tax assets

+ Deferred IRAP tax liabilities for temporary differences
- Return of deferred IRAP tax assets for temporary
differences relating to previous periods

Total deferred tax liabilities
= IRAP tax applicable to the period

94,895,071
1,738,346
2,116,244

98,749,661

4,196,860

8,256,815
(941,796)

1,608,513

667,718
5,099,106

(3,694,439)

1,404,667
10,329,200

4,196,860
(106,999)

5,117
(101,883)
186,392

186,392
4,281,370




| ATICURGS M U

Earnings before tax 50,078,415
Theoretical tax charge (19% rate)

Permanent differences 16,464,986
Earnings before tax adjusted by the permanent

differences 66,543,401
IRPEG on period earnings

Temporary differences deductible in subsequent periods 4,956,818
Temporary differences taxable in subsequent periods (26,837,401)
Return of temporary differences from previous periods (8,471,121)
Tax credit on dividends 7,265,224
Taxable income 43,456,921

IRPEG on current period earnings

gmeunis Ih euie

9,514,899

12,643,246

8,256,815

Difference between value and cost of production

30,769,984
Non-relevant costs for IRAP 69,968,142
Total 100,738,126
Theoretical tax charge 4,25% 4,281,370
Temporary differences deductible in subsequent periods 2,517,633
Temporary differences taxable in subsequent periods (4,385,701)
Return of temporary differences from previous periods (120,397)
IRAP taxable income 98,749,661 IZ
IRAP on current period earnings 4,196,860 9
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AEM S.p.A. exibits




Start-up and other capitalised expenses

Industrial patent and intellectuzal property rights
Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights
Work in progress

Other intangible assets

Total intangible assets

(6,762)
(1,665)
(4,171)

(1,127)
(13,725)
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Non-transferable assets

Land and buildings

Non-industrial land 70 70
Non-industrial buildings 58,792 (1,710) 57,082
Industrial land and buildings 86,141 (8,962) 77,179
Total land and buildings 145,003 (10,672) 134,331

Plant and machinery

Production facilities 229,088 (46,492) 182,596
Transport lines

Transformer stations 1,910 (1,650) 260
Distribution networks 21,101 (3,597) 17,504
Total plant and machinery 252,099 (51,739) 200,360

Industrial and commercial equipment
Miscellaneous equipment 8,154 (2,723) 5,431
Total industrial and commercial equipment 8,154 (2,723) 5,431

Other assets

Furniture and fittings 2,966 (1,590) 1,376
Electric and electronic office equipment 12,112 (2,543) 9,569
Vehicles 1,268 (976) 292
Capital equipment with value up to € 516 572 (572)

Total other assets 16,918 (5.681) 11,237

Work in progress and advance paymerits

Non-industrial buildings

Industrial buildings

Production facilities

Transport lines

Transformer stations

Distribution networks

Miscellaneous equipment

Other assets

Advance payments 3,505 3,505
Total work in progress and advance payments 14,699 14,699
Total nen-transferable assets 436,873 (70,815) 366,058

Transferable assets

Plant and machinery 214,754 (21,839) 192,915
Transferable assets in process 24,730 24,730
Total transferable assets 239,484 {21,839) 217,645

Total 676,357 (92,654) 583,703
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Financial assets

Subsidiaries:

Metroweb S.p.A. (formerly Citytel S.r.l.) 13,461 13,461
AEM Elettricita S.p.A. 568,205 568,205
AEM Gas S.p.A. 702,484 702,484
AEM Trasmissione S.p.A. 77,566 77,566
AEM Energia S.p.A. 102 102
AEM Service S.r.l. 12,405 12,405
Serenissima Gas S.p.A. 17,421 17,421
AEM Trading S.r.L.

Zincar S.r.l.

Total subsidiaries 1,391,644 1,391,644

Affiliates:

Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A. 2,073 2,073

Malpensa Energia S.r.l. 2,531 2,531

Alagaz S.p.A. 8 8

Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o. 2,136 2,136 5,168
Fastweb S.p.A. 30,658 30,658 39,490
Zincar S.r.L. 98 98

Bovisa Sviluppo S.p.A. 52 52
Laritel S.r.l. 606
Electrone S.p.A. 112
Plurigas S.p.A. 96

Consorzio Italpower (in tiquidation)

Ttalpower S.p.A. (in liguidation)

e-Utile S.p.A. 81
Consorzio 3A 1,580
Total affiliates 38,370 38,370 47,638

1,430,014 1,430,014 47,789
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13,461 | } 13,461 67.16% 26,577 17,849
568,205 | | 568,205 99.99% 579,606 579,548
@) | 702,482 702,482 | 99.99% 707,055 706,984
| 77,566 77,566 [ 99.99% 79,132 79,124
i 103 103 | 99.99% 1,560 1,560
, \
} 12,405 12,405 ’ 100% 13,169 13,169
17,421 | 17,421 71.44% 4,745 3,390
E % | 99 | 100% 3,275 3,275
| 149 ] 149 | 100% 184 184
() 1,391,891 | T 1,391,801 \ 1,415,303 1,405,083
i
2,073 2,073 | 35.76% 6,035 2,158
2,531 2,531 | 49% 5,097 2,939
8 8 { 35%
7304 | | 7,304 | 39.87% 13,214 5,268
70,148 | 70,148 } 30.80% 260,943 80,370
| | .
52 | 52 50% 97 49
| 6.20%
375 \] 375 25% 1,542 386
320 | 320 40% 5,316 2,126
646 | : 646 25% 2,582 646
(186) | 186 (186) | 10%
81 !( 81 49% 100 49
1580 L ass0 30% 5,264 1,579
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() (186) 1,477,195 (186) 1,477,009 1,716,393 1,500,653
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Subsidiaries:

Metroweh S.p.A.
(formerly Citytel S.r.l.)

AEM Elettricita S.p.A
AEM Gas S.p.A.

AEM Trasmissione S.p.A.

AEM Energia S.p.A.
AEM Service S.r.l.

Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

AEM Trading S.r.L.

Zincar S.r.lL.

Lomang)

20,180 -
520,000
572,000
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67.16%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
100%
71.44%
100%
100%

579,548
706,984
79,124
1,560
13,169
3,390
3,275
184

It

13,461
568,205
702,482

77,566

103
12,405
17,421

99
149

11,343
4,502
1,558
1,457

764

(14,031)
3,176
35




Sacieta Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A
Malpensa Energia S.r.l.

Alagaz S.p.A.

Mestni Plinovodi d.o.o0.

(Amounts expressed in Euro at

the SIT exchange rate of 28.12.01 =
Euro 0.004569)

Fastweb S.p.A.

Bovisa Sviluppo S.p.A.

Electrone S.p.A.

Plurigas S.p.A.

Consorzio Italpower (in liquidation)
e-Utile S.p.A.

Consorzio 3A

Valdisotta (S0)
Segrate (MI)

St. Petershurg
(Russian Federation)

Capodistria (Slovenia)

€. ey

34,675

102
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AEM Distribuzione Energia Elettrica S.p.A. 99.99% Ownershin AEM S.p.A.
AEM Distribuzione Gas e Calore S.p.A. 99.99% Cwrership AEM S.p.A.
AEM Gestione Linee di Trasporto Elettricita S.p.A. 99.99% ! Cumershin | AEM S.p.A.
AEM Acquisto e Vendita di Energia S.p.A. 99.99% Qwire:shin AEM S.p.A.
Metroweb S.p.A. (formerly Citytel S.r.L.) 67.16% | Qunarship AEM S.p.A.
AEM Service S.r.l. 100% | Cwsersin AEM S.p.A.
Serenissima Gas S.p.A. 71.44% Owieshis  AEM S.p.A.
AEM Trading S.r.L. 100% . Ownaershin AEM S.p.A.
Zincar S.r.. 100% | Ownership - AEM S.p.A.
Malpensa Energia S.r.l. 49% Cwnershin | AEM S.p.A.
Societa Servizi Valdisotto S.p.A. 35.76% Cunershia | AEM S.p.A,
Alagaz S.p.A. Russian Federation 35% Cwnarshin AEM S.p.A.
Metsni Plinovodi d,0,0, Slovenia 39.87% | Ovmorshiz AEM S.p.A.
Bovisa Sviluppo S.p.A. 50% Qwnarshin AEM S.p.A.
Fastweb S.p.A. 30.80% Cwnarship AEM S.p.A.
Electrone S.p.A. 25% : Cwimership ‘ AEM S.p.A.
Plurigas S.p.A. 40% Cwnership ©  AEM S.p.A.
Consorzio Italpower 25% Ownership AEM S.p.A.
e-Utile S.p.A. 49% | Ownorshin . AEM S.p.A.
Consorzio 3A 30% | Quiisarshiip AEM S.p.A.
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Shareholders’ equity

as of 12.31.2000 929,647 62,555 921,610 29,683

Changes during the period:

Legal reserve 1,484 (1,484)

Extraordinary reserve 11,693 (11,693)

Use of Extraordinary Reserve

for conversion of authorised

capital in Euro 6,378 (6,378)

Accelerated depreciation reserve 3,491 (3,491)

Other reserves 3 (3)

Net income distributed to

shareholders (61,357) (13,012} | (74,369)

Net income (loss) for the ]

period 35,468 | 35,468

Shareholders’ equity

as of 12.31.2001 936,025 64,039 865,568 3,491 3 35,468 1,904,594
]
=
S
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=
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Cash flow from operating activities

Net income

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in subsidiary and affiliate receivables for sales
of power and services

Increase in parent company receivables

Decrease in other receivables

Decrease in inventories

Increase in accrued income and prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable to suppliers
Decrease in subsidiary payables

Decrease in affiliate payables

Decrease in other debts and payables

Increase in advances from customers

Increase in accrued expenses and deferred income
Decrease in employee’ leaving payed

Increase in other reserves

Total cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow used in investment activities

Net capital expenditures on tangible and intangible assets
Transfer of non-current assets to subsidiaries
Divestments

New equity investments

Total cash flow used in investment activities

Free cash flow

Cash flow from financing activities

Net change in Shareholder’s equity

Increase in bank debt

Decrease in financial receivables

Decrease in current account debt due to subsidiaries
Increase in debt to other financial institutions

Decrease in cash account debt due to the parent company -
Municipality of Milan

Net income distributed

Total cash flow used in financing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUEVALENT, BEGINNING OF THE PERICD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT, END OF THE PERIOD

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash receivables

Current account with the Municipality of Milan
Bank debt

Other financial institutions

Current account with subsidiaries

TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION

(89,570,309)

35,467,846
25,288,438
4,117,065

2,684,641
(16,309,748)
26,736,855

1,548,487
(44,645,115)
48,219,876
(9,545,353)
(1,681,268)
(30,973,394)
8,847,588
142,053
(59,697)

o L312652

51,150,927

(12,020,452)

(19,944,559)
(31,965,011)

19,185,916

2,734
30,987,414
8,032,081

(39,515,135)

(14,705,651)
(74,371,752)

(70,384,393)
87,294,631
16,910,238

16,910,238

1,244,096

(60,173,067
(30,987,414)
(5,331,305)
(22,297,526)

(100,634,978)

29,683,011
26,496,051
5,840,815

22,775,170
8,068,808
(45,620,778)
1,982,845
2,883,407
(14,956,581)
9,978,760
6,721,038
29,248,450
4,017,694
218,755
(3,453,219)
2,970,708

86,854,934

(88,798,822)
193,721

(98,885,954)
(187,491,055)

(100,636,121)

(8,812,398)
(15,641,905)
1,047,295

(35,925,560)
(106,509,393)

(166,241,961)

(266,878,082)
354,172,713
87,294,631

87,294,631
9,276,177
(74,878,718)

(5,331,305)
(61,812,661)

(45,451,876)




ametintsyhfetio Balenes s of 12.31.2000 Balanes 85 of 12.81.2000
] Sulbotz] Tk % Subel Towl %
INVESTED CAPITAL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS X 4,053,112 0.20 l 6,953,010 0.35
TANGIBLE ASSETS ! |
Gross amaunt I 685,094,400 .22 | 676,356,874 34.01
{Accumulated depreciation) i (116,876,562) (5.83) ©  (92,653,882) (4.66)
569,217,838 28.39 ‘ 583,702,992 29.35
FINANCIAL ASSETS :
Equity investments 1,498,385,534 74.72 1,478,440,975 74,33
Other financial receivables 3,020,954 015 | 3,346,068 0.17
Security deposits 468,691 0.02 | 461,435 0.02
(Risk and expense reserves) (57,455,697) (2.87) (56,143,045) (2.82)
(Employees’ leaving payed) (32,163,927) (1.60) (32,223,624) (1.62)
* NET FIXED ASSETS :' 1,985,526,505 99.01  1,984,537,811 99.78
Inventories : 16,646,639 0.83 | 18,195,126 0.91
Short-term receivables 162,001,104 8.08 174,794,994 8.79
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 61,499,141 3.07 ¢ 16,854,026 0.85
{Accounts payable to suppliers) (170,257,619) (8.49) ' (122,037,743) (6.14)
(Other debt and payables) (49,819,602) (2.48) (83,172,029) (4.18)
(Accrued expenses and deferred income) ; (367,522) (0.02) | (225,469) (0.01)
* WORKING CAPITAL 19,702,141 0.99 4,408,905 0.22

** TOTAL INVESTED CAPITAL

SOURCES OF FUNDING

* TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Long term financial receivables
{Long term debt)

© TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER ONE YEAR
Financial receivables due within one year
Cash and cash equivalent
(Debt due within one year)

® TOTAL FINANCIAL POSITION WITHIN ONE YEAR

* TOTAL NET FINANCIAL POSITION (1 +2)

** TOTAL SOURCES

S ST

2,005,228,646 100.00

(1,904,593,668)

=

(94.98) (1,943,494,840)

1,244,096 0.06 | 2,486,642
(10,495,874) (0.52) (5,331,305)
(9,251,778) (0.46) (2,844,663)
82,322,832 411 101,613,809
16,910,238 0.84 17,403,863
(190,616,270) (9.51) (161,624,885)

. (91,383,200) (4.56) ©  (42,607,213)
* (100,634,978) (5.02) (45,451,876)

(2,005,228,646) (100.00)

1,988,946,716  100.00

(97.71)

0.13
(0.27)
(0.14)
5.11
0.88
(8.13)
(2.14)

(2.29)

(1,988,946,716) (100.00)
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CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, bank deposits and fixed-rate securities
Investments in current assets

Receivables for financial transactions
Receivables for the sale of power and services
Subsidiary receivables

Subsidiary financial receivables

Affiliate receivables

Parent company receivables

Etectricity Equalization Fund receivables
Other receivables

Advances to suppliers during the period
Current portion of long term financial receivables
Affiliate financial receivables

Inventories

Accrued income and prepaid expenses

TANGIBLE ASSETS

Transferable tangible assets
Non-transferable tangible assets
Advances to suppliers for plant assets

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments

Securities

Long term financial receivables from affitiates
Long term financial receivables

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS (2+3 +4)

TOTAL ASSETS (1+5)

16,910,238

12,220,956
75,591,915
82,322,832
1,295,518
41,338,080
5,784,906
25,459,503
181,963
127,263

16,546,639
61,499,141

187,342,033
367,711,939
14,263,856

4,053,112

1,498,385,534
78,326
1,135,770
3,488,645

239,379,954

569,217,838

4,053,112

1,503,119,275

1405 328,861,819
0.70 17,403,863
6,720,846
69,890,768
23,441,729
65,937,336
24,933,506
2,414,965
25,028,332
13,159,587
43,221,144
1,436,219
155,682
68,689
18,195,126
16,854,026

583,702,992
192,914,475
387,283,538
3,504,980

6,953,010
6,953,010

1,484,735,120
1,478,440,975
78,326
2,408,316
3,807,503

2,076,390,225

2,415,770,179

2,075,391,122

2,404,252,941

13.68
0.72
0.28
2.91
0.98
2.74
1.04
0.10
1.04
0.55
1.80
0.06
0.01
0.00
0.76
0.70

24,28
8.02
16.11
0.1%

0.29
0.29

6175
61.49
0.00
0.10
0.16

86.32

100.00




EMEUAS 1T Ui

Balanes as oF 12,371.2001
Subtewl okl

Siibtokall

Terall %

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

1.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance payments from customers
Suppliers

Subsidiary payables

Subsidiary financial payables

Affitiate payables

Parent company payables

- current account

- other payables

Taxes payable

Social security payables

Electricity Equalization Fund payables
Personnel payables

QOther debt and payables

Short-term bank debt

Accrued expenses and deferred credits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Medium and long-term bank debt
Debt to other financial institutions
Employee’ leaving entitlement
Reserve for deferred taxes

Reserve for specific risks

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share Capital

Legal reserve

QOther reserves

Retained earnings

Net income

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

411,061,013 17.02

13,403,430 0.55
170,257,619 7.05
4,994,213 0.21
104,620,358 4.33
5,039,770 0.21

60,173,067 2.49
389,061 0.02
9,411,731 0.39
9,316,009 0.39
88,503 0.00
3,599,088 0.15
3,577,797 0.15
25,822,845 1.07
367,522 0.02

100,115,498 4.14

5,164,569 0.21

5,331,305 0.22

32,163,927 1.33
6,097,141 0.25

51,358,556 213

1,904,593,668 78.84

936,024,648 38.75
64,038,868 2.65
869,062,306 35.97

35,467,846 1.47

2,415,770,179  100.00

4,555,842
122,037,743
14,539,566
86,746,167
6,721,038

74,878,718
27,306,348
13,131,438
9,397,943
124,533
4,652,741
2,742,579

225,469

5,331,305
32,223,624
4,506,082
51,636,963

929,646,898
62,554,718
921,610,213

29,683,011

367,060,127 15.27
0.19
5.08
0.60
3.61
0.28

EN N
1.14
0.55
0.39
0.01
0.19
0.11

0.01

93,697,974 3.90

0.22
1.34
0.19
2.15

1,943,494,840  80.84
38.67

2.60

38.33

1.23

2,404,252,941  100.00




REVENUES 397,255,234 1CC.CC 302,795,347 100,00
Sale of power to other electric companies 2,062,802 K 4,255,353 1.41
Sale of electricity to users 49,894 R 98,443 0.03
Sale of electricity to subsidiaries 183,819,882 .77 116,266,595 38.40
Sale of electricity to sole operator 17,738,128

Sale of materials to subsidiaries 10,303,255 T4 11,615,606 3.84
Services to parent campany {Municipality of Milan) 32,383,988 5,23 35,603,961 11.76
Services provided on behalf of third parties 31,251,067 A2 29,877,056 9.87
Services to subsidiaries 57,319,500 B 57,812,657 19.09
Services to affiliates 1,137,743 3,483,737 1.15
Changes in work in progress projects (2,301,168) 5 (1,966,091) {0.65)
Connection fees 253 0. 1,138 0.00
Subsidiary rentals 33,454,335 3.42 1,834,024 0.61
Other current period revenues 20,187,529 7 ) L8 5,662,307 1.87

Total revenues »}788,105,5127 7.3 264,544,786 87.37

Electricity Equalization Fund contribution 6,148,622 o .38 38,250,561 12.63

OPERATING COSTS 773,474,175 38,84 191,658,813
Fuel and purchases of power 94,727,239 Rib 70,903,335
Materials 20,617,180 3.5 19,819,736
Delivering feas 36,881
Contracts and other work 36,452,262 L 38,988,668
Services 41,733,421 C 35,085,912
Services from subsidiaries 5,015,368 .25 2,663,202
Services from affiliates 3,897,375 @ 4,035,548
Lease and rental expense 13,262,621 31.54% 7,006,254
Mountain municipalities contributions and water diversion fees 5,848,033 Y 5,958,291
Charge for extraction of hydroelectric power \ 40,.83,652

Taxes and duties for the period 3,048,785 2,878,584
Other operating expenses 8,678,239 4,282,402

VALUE ADDED (A -B) 123,781,059 3108 111,136,534

PRESONNEL EXPENSES 60,329,331 150 68,600,159
Personnel expenses 60,328,331 68,600,159

GROSS OPERATING INCOME (EBITDA) (C-D) 63,451,728 15,97 42,536,375

AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND PROVISIONS 32,681,744 34,959,185
Depreciation of tangible assets 25,288,43¢ 26,496,051
Amortization of intangible assets 4,117,065 5,840,815
Provisions to atlowance for doubtful receivables $38,943 323,101
Provisions/uses of risk reserves 2,337,297 2,299,218

OPERATING INCOME (EBIT) (E-F) 30,769,984 7.75 7,577,190




ameuFs 11 eure Balanee as @

... S
H. FINANCIAL EXPENSE 17,915,039 4,51 l 15,076,451 4,98
Interest expense on current account with parent company ! 2,935,795 0.74 . 2,171,930 0.72
Interest on subsidiary payables : 4,688,352 1.18 6,109,024 2.01
Other financial interest . 1,302,784 0.33 163,911 0.05
Write-downs of equity investments ! 8,088,108 2.26 | 6,631,586 2.19
1. FINANCIAL INCOME : 35,596,025 8.96 33,502,421  11.06
Other financial income 16,209,968 L08 19,581,366 6.48
Income from equity investments 18,230,467 4.59 ¢ 13,490,871 4,46
Interest on subsidiary receivables 1,155,590 0.29 | 430,184 0.14
L. TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME AND (EXPENSE) (1-H) : 17,680,986 4.45 : 18,425,970 6.09
‘ l
M. INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (6 + L) 48,450,970  12.20 | 26,003,160 8.59
N.  EXTRAORDINARY INCOME (EXPENSES) | 1,627,445 0.41 ‘ 17,382,150 5.74
0. INCOME BEFORE TAXES (M + N ) 50,078,415  12.61 43,385,310  14.33
) !
P.  TAXES ; 14,610,569 3.68 ! 13,702,299 4,53
- Income taxes i 14,610,569 3.68 J 13,702,299 453
Q. NETINCOME (0-P) 35,467,846 8.93 29,683,011 9.80




~ » . (pursuant to Paragrapn 4, Articte 2429 or the Livit Loae)

Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 20,180,160
% held: 67.16% AEM S.p.A.

inousands of euTE 17972800

Total revenues

Gross operating income

Operating income

Net income

Current assets

Fixed assets

Current liabilities

Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves
Shareholder's equity

Net financial position

o

19,461
2,858
323

(271)
43,526
98,389
95,577
26,002
20,336

(18,322)
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S5 BaUelie
Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 76,596,900

% held: 99.99% AEM S.p.A.
theusends ef cum N 12.31,2001 12.31.2000
Total revenues | 10,873 ; 8,125
Value added I 6,655 | 6,666
Gross operating income ! 5,506 5,498
Operating income ! 2,208 ‘ 2,261
Current income 2,212 2,353
Income before taxes ‘ 2,481 i 2,359
Net income ( 1,486 | 1,325
Current assets 14,631 | 8,096
Fixed assets 70,683 | 73,296
Current liabilities 5,327 ‘ 1,865
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves 855 | 836
Shareholder's equity 79,132 : 78,692
Net financial position (3,683) | 2,725
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S kBUTSUANT Lo Taragrapn 4, AITICE c4c7 OF TRE LIVIL LOGE)

Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 520,000,000
% held: 99.99% AEM S.p.A.

heusands of euie

Total revenues

Value added

Gross operating income
Operating income
Current income

Income before taxes
Net income

Current assets

Fixed assets

Current liabilities : 93,453
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves : 13,041
Shareholder’s equity 3/8,60e 580,925
Net financial position ! 84,021

186,194
67,522
52,794
16,862
20,032
20,430
11,201

153,705

533,715
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Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 104,000

% held: 99.99% AEM S.p.A.

~ cifetiol ) 12,32.26001 12.31,2000
Total revenues 157,087 65,589
Value added ! 5,841 | 1,335
Gross operating income 2,936 406
Operating income { 2,373 268
Current income ! 2,342 | 247
Income before taxes ‘ 2,353 ¢ 232
Net income ,‘ 1,452 42
Current assets ) 65,691 ! 31,119
Fixed assets \ 997 31
Current liabilities ; 63,721 | 30,629
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves | 1,407 399

Shareholder's equity : 1,560 122
Net financial position ; (10,991) ! (11,443)
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1z(pussuant-e0 raragraphn 4, Article c4<¥ or the Livil Lode)
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Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 572,000,000
% held: 99.99% AEM S.p.A.

heusanis of e 19,97, 200% 12.310,2000

Total revenues . 443,583 362,814
Value added : 129,374 114,174
Gross operating income : 108,23¢ 91,776
Operating income 18,473 14,252
Current income ' 17,945 4,840
Income before taxes / 1,323
Current period income/loss 5,183 (1,236)
Current assets ‘ 106,985
Fixed assets 4,287 951,624
Current liabilities 7C,57" 308,021
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves 2,504 48,715
Shareholder's equity L0735 701,872
Net financial position ‘ 144,972 (201,394)




Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 12,405,294

% held: 100%  AEM S.p.A.

_ {heusanes of euwm  12.31.2000 12,831.2000
Total revenues i 16,367 4,692
Value added f 10,647 3,525
Gross operating income 3,348 846
Operating income j 878 | 96
Current income 955 99
Income before taxes } 955 99
Current period income/loss ; 820 (56)
Current assets 5575 3,354
Fixed assets | 16,886 16,253
Current liabilities 5,134 ] 3,082
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves ! 4,158 | 4,176
Shareholder’s equity : 13,169 | 12,349
Net financial position ? (1,761) (109)
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_(pursuant te:Paragraph 4, Article 2429 of the Civil Code)

Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 99,000
% held: 100%  AEM S.p.A.

HReUSARES &F
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Total revenues

Value added

Gross operating income
Operating income
Current income

Income before taxes
Net income

Current assets

Fixed assets

Current liabilities
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves
Shareholder’s equity
Net financial position
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Registered headquarters: Milan - s

Authorised capital: € 1,081,600
% held: 71.44% (') AEM S.p.A.
(*) Net of own shares held by Serenissima Gas S.p.A., the percentage held in equity is 79.4%.

Hhousanes of sure im0 12.31.2008 (%)
e e —
Total revenues 23,136 18,529
Value added | 4,939 3,972
Gross operating income : 4,009 3,070
Operating income ‘ 3,163 2,308
Current income J 3,136 | 2,181
Income before taxes ‘ 3,135 } 2,188
Net income ! 1,865 1,314
Current assets i 9,754 . 7,188
Fixed assets 1 10,397 10,030
Current liabilities 14,291 | 11,672
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves ; 1,116 ‘ 1,603
Shareholder’s equity : 4,745 | 3,942
Net financial position I (7,016) * (4,574)

(*) figures include the amounts for Triveneta Gas S.p.A. . ;
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{ Lo Paragraph 4, Articie 2429 Or the Livit Loae)

Drgome 24T

Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 100,000
% held: 100%  AEM S.p.A.

12992007 12,35, 2068

Total revenues e

Value added 140 (93)
Gross operating income /s {93)
Operating income i (93)
Current income 74 (88)
Income before taxes I (88)
Net income (loss) 7t (88)
Current assets 1,307 161
Fixed assets 7

Current liabilities : 1,067 48
Medium and long-term (iabilities and miscellaneous reserves - :

Shareholder's equity g 112
Net financial position




{pursuant to Paragraph 3, Article 2429 of the Civil Code)ﬂ
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Registered headquarters: Valdisotto (So)

Authorised capital: € 5,836,888

% held: 35.76% AEM S.p.A.
heusonds af eum . 12512000 - 12.32,2000
Total revenues 5731 ! 4,574
Value added ; 1,207 1,298
Gross operating income | 1,072 ‘ 1,182
Operating income ‘ (14) ¢ 109
Current income 46 . 133
Income before taxes 46 | 166
Net income 23 | 86
Current assets 2,944 | 2,637
Fixed assets | 4,330 5,099
Current liabilities 1,138 ! 1,819
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves : 101 ‘ 96
Shareholder’s equity ; 6,035 5,821
Net financial position ! 1,178 688
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. ApdisUdit te-rdfagiaph 2, AFLIGE c4cr OF Lhe LiVil LOdg)

Registered headquarters: Milan Linate Airport

Authorised capital: € 5,200,000
% held: 49% AEM S.p.A.

Hhevsands ef sum

Total revenues

Value added

Gross operating income
Operating income
Income before taxes
Net income

Current assets

Fixed assets

Current labilities
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves
Shareholder’s equity
Net financial position
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25,193
2,904
25,893
5,774
(22,423)
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Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital:
% held:

€ 34,876,400
30.8% AEM S.p.A.

- fheusands of cum 12,91.200i 12.81,2000
Total revenues 1 106,236 | 31,629
Gross operating income i (29,879) : (16,624)
Operating income | (87,225) | (30,829)
Net income (loss) (22,651) (25,218)
Current assets ; 158,867 58,723
Fixed assets i 557,909 137,080
Current liabilities _‘ 297,395 143,406
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves : 158,438 1,228
Shareholder’s equity 260,943 51,169
Net financial position (125,969) (48,578)
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\pursuant Lo Faragrapn 3, Arucle c425 01 the Livil Lode)

Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 102,000
% held: 50% AEM S.p.A.

Total revenues

Value added

Gross operating income
Operating income
Current income

Income before taxes
Net income {loss)
Current assets

Fixed assets

Current liabilities
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves
Shareholder’s equity
Net financial position
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Registered headquarters: Capodistria

uthorised capital: Sit 450,000,000

% held: 39.87% AEM S.p.A.

_ theusands of eur - 12.31,2001 12,81,2000
Totat revenues : 3,206 j 1,793
Value added { 387 394
Gross operating income : 174 256
Operating income [ (354) ‘v (242)
Current income (loss) ! (1,107) | (1,146)
Net period (loss) (1,110) | {1,166)
Current assets ] 6,497 ; 2,403
Fixed assets 34,031 ! 24,673
Current liabilities 1,728 | 2,018
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves 21,590 [ 24,368
Shareholder’s equity i 13,214 | 690

(*} Exchange rate of the SIT at December 31, 2001 = 8.8480 converted to Euro.
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Registered headquarters: Milan

Authorised capital: € 800,000
% held: 40%  AEM S.p.A.

Total revenues

Value added

Gross operating income
Operating income
Income before taxes
Net income

Current assets

Fixed assets

Current liabilities
Medium and long-term liabilities and miscellaneous reserves
Shareholder’s equity
Net financial position




pursuant to Article 153 of Legislative Decree 58/59 and péfagréph 3, Article 2429 of the Civil deé B
(Translation from the original issued in Italian) &‘%1("
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Dear Shareholders,
During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2001, the Audit Committee has carried out the
monitoring activities stipulated by law (Legislative Decree No. 58 of 2/24/98 and the Unified
Code of provisions related to financial brokerage activities) adapting its operations to the |
principles for Audit Committees in companies with share capital listed in the regulated mar-
kets as recommended by the National Boards of Business Consultants and Accountants.
In order to carry out its functions, the Audit Committee:

participated in all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee (fotalling
8) which were held during the year, and through its participation in these, the Audit com-
mittee obtained information from directors, on a continual basis, regarding the activities
performed and most significant transactions carried out by the company and subsidiaries with
respect to operations, the financial situation and the balance sheet, and made sure that all
actions approved and implemented were in accerdance with the law and company Bylaws,

ALOANIER

\
v

and were not imprudent or risky or a potential conflict of interest with, or contradictory to,
resolutions passed by the shareholders’ meeting or such as to compromise the solidity of the —
company's assets; =
met at least once a week, and put into effect the preparation of 57 Minutes of the @
activities taking place within the company; — o |
evaluated the congruency and that the company's interests were met in the operations -
of an ordinary nature within the group and with the correlated parties, whose character- G:P

istics, the subjects involved and economic effects are amply covered in the notes to the |
financial statements and in the directors' report on operations, to which the reader is
referred by the Audit Committee;

did not note any atypical and/or unusual operations as a result of the monitoring;

v did not find any important matters or ohservations in the certification report;

was not in receipt of any complaints or petitions pursuant to article 2408 of the Civil
Code

noted that, during the financial period, further mandates were conferred to the audit-
ing firm and to subjects connected to the firm on a continual basis, as described below
showing the date of appointment, the objective and respective costs:

- the Studio Associato Legale Tributario was engaged on February 20, 2001, with the
object of consultancy and tax assistance for a fee of € 23,240.56 and engaged on
November 26, 2001 for the purpose of professional services for the application of all the
provisions required by Legislative Decree 231 of June 8, 2001, as amended by Decree Law
350 of September 25, 2001, for a fee of € 69,411.80. The company Revind S.rl. was
engaged on February 14, 2001 for the purpose of professional services for preparing the
procedures for externally communicating corporate information, for a fee of € 28,405.13,
and engaged on February 20, 2001 for the purpose of professional services for internal
auditing, for a fee of € 51,645.69;

did not issue opinions pursuant to law during the period;

monitored for compliance with the principles of proper management through direct
observations, the gathering of information from managers of internal organisation func-
tions and meetings with the auditing firm for the purposes of the mutual exchange of rel-
evant data and information. There were no observations to be made in this respect;

acquired knowledge of, and monitored, to the extent of its responsibilities, the ade-
quacy of the company's organisational structure, with respect to which no remarks are to
be highlighted;

found the internal control system to be adequate and monitored the activities of those
in charge of its operations, particularly through periodical meetings with those in charge

1Joday S0




pomign

T " of the Internal Audit Function, where it examined the activities carried out and the reports
produced, also assessing the congruence of the remedial actions proposed and put into
effect by the organisational entities concerned;

monitored the adequacy of the administrative and accounting system, and its reliabit-

ity in accurately reporting on operating events, by obtaining information from managers

of the respective areas, reviewing company documents and analysing the results of work
performed by the auditing firm and, with respect to this, has no observations to make;

checked to make sure that the company gave adequate instructions to subsidiaries pur-

suant to Paragraph 2, Article 114 of Legislative Decree No. 58/98 and, with respect to this,

has no observations to make;

checked compliance with legal provisions regarding the preparation and posting tc finan-

cial statements and the report on operations through direct verification and with the assistance

of managers of the respective areas and through information obtained from the auditing firm.

The Committee reminds shareholders that, in March 2001, the company adopted the Code
of Conduct issued in October 1999 by the Committee for Corporate Governance of Listed
Companies. The Board of Directors has given ample information about the operations car-
ried out as a result of adhering to the Code in the specific section in its report on opera-
tions of the company and the Group during 2001.

The Audit Committee has noted, from the company results, that the Control Committee, set
up as part of the Board of Directors, held 6 meetings during 2001, in 4 of which it met
those in charge of internal control.

The Remuneration Committee met once.

The Audit Committee confirms that, during the activities carried out and during the meet-
ings held with the auditors pursuant to Article 150, paragraph 2, of Legislative Decree
58/1998, no material facts were revealed that would require notification to supervisory
authorities or observation in this report, nor were there found any omissions, censurable
facts or irregularities.

The Audit Committee notes that, during the year, the following events took place:

the merger by incorporation of the subsidiary Triveneta Gas S.p.A. into its parent com-
pany Serenissima Gas S.p.A.

the constitution of the company AEM Trading S.r.L.

the subscribing by the company of the increase in capital of the affiliate company e-
Utile S.p.A. by the transfer of a business unit, effective as of January 1, 2002;

the split of the company “AEM Distribuzione Gas e Calore S.p.A.” by transfer of part of
its equity to the beneficiary “AEM Acquisto e Vendita Energia S.p.A.”, effective as of
January 1, 2002.

With regard to the report on the performance of the company and the Group in 2001, which
was approved by the Board of Directors of the company at its meeting on March 18, 2002,
and delivered, on that occasion, to the Audit Committee for its evaluation, and after per-
forming all related checks, the Audited Committee acknowledges that it has checked compli-
ance with the provisions of laws, regulations and Bylaws in relation to deadlines concerning:

the preparation of the annual report on the performance of the company and the Group,
which was completed on March 18, 2002;

the preparation of related reports by the auditing firm, which were completed on April
8, 2002.




1t also acknowledges that it has verified the following:

that the report includes the mandatory content as stipulated in Article 2428 of the Civil
Code;

the report corresponds and is consistent with the data and figures in the financial
statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements, in part due to the
assistance of information obtained from the auditing firm;

the report is complete and clear in accordance with the principles of truthfulness, accu-
racy and clarity established by law.

Finally, the Committee acknowledges that it has verified that the annual reports corre-
spond to the facts and information that the Audit Committee has at its disposal.

With reference to the financial statements that report the following figures:

__ amevnis in eur®

BALANCE SHEET ;

|
Assets } 2,415,770,179
Liabilities J 511,176,511
Shareholders’ equity ) 1,869,125,822

i
Net income for the period ‘ 35,467,846
Total for balancing ‘ 2,415,770,179
Commitments 1 117,288,252
|
INCOME STATEMENT J
Total revenues 400,209,661
Total operating expenses 369,439,677
Operating income 30,769,984
Financial income and expenses | 26,669,094
Adjustments to the value of financial assets | (8,988,108) -
Extraordinary items k 1,627,445
Taxes on current period 1 14,610,569
Net income for the period | 35,467,846

The Committee acknowledges that it has verified the compliance of accounting formats and
principles that were used and indicated in the notes to financial statements with: the laws,
regulations enacted by CONSOB and notices issued by CONSOB, accounting principles enact-
ed by accountants and business consultants, and the accounting principles recommended
by the I.A.S.C. (International Accounting Standard Committee), and has checked the appro-
priateness of these formats and principles in relation to the company’s operations. The
Committee also acknowledges that it verified the correspondence of financial statements
with facts and information that the Audit Committee had at its disposal following its par-
ticipation in meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee and after per-
forming its monitoring duties and exercising its inspection and control powers.

As a result, the Audit Committee expresses a favourable opinion for the approval of the
financial statements and the proposal of the Board of Directors for the distribution of net
income for the period.

Milan, April 11, 2002

Board of Statutory Auditors
Dr Piero Lonardi

Dr Michele Cattaneo

Dr Italo Bruno Vergallo
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2 ReCONTA ERNST & YOUNG © Via Torinn 58 & 7ol (02 722121 (50 e
L athee

AUDITORS’ REPORT
pursuant to article 156 of Legisiative Decree of Februgry 24, 1998, n. 58
{Trenslation from the originel Ralian text)

To the Shareholders
of Aem S.p.A.

1. We have audited the financial statements of Aem S.p.A. s of and for the
year ended December 31, 2001. These Sfnanciel statements are the
responsibility of Aem S.p.A.’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our gudit,

Ouwr audit was made in accordance with auditing standards end procedures
recommended by CONSOB (the Italian Stock Exchange Regulatory
Agency) (1). In accordance with such standards and procedures we planned
and performed our gudit to obtain the information necessery in order to
determine whether the financial statements gre materially misstated and if
such financial statements, taken as a whole, may be relied upon. An audit
includes examining, on 2 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts end
disclosures in the financial statements, as well as assessing the
appropriateness of the accounting principles applied and the reasonableness
of the estimates made by management. We believe thet our audit provides 2
reasonable basis for our opinion.

For our opinicn on the financial statements of the prior vear, which are
presented for comparstive purposes as required by the lew, reference should
be mede to our report dated April 10, 2001.

In our epinjon, the Hnancial siatements of Aem S.p.A. comply with the
Itallom (1) regulations governing financial statements; sccordingly, thsy
clearly present and give 2 true and fair view of the financial position of Asm
S.p.A. &s of December 31, 2001, and the resuits of its operations for the year
then ended.

Milan, April 8, 2002
Reconts Ernst & Young S.p.A.

signed by: Pellegring Libroia
(partmer)

(1) Words added in trensietion from original Italian text
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